
AGENDA

Planning Commission
November 27, 2023
7:00PM
City Hall, 6090 Woodson Street

Questions concerning this meeting may be addressed to the staff contact, 
Karie Kneller, City Planner, at (913) 676-8366 or kkneller@missionks.org

I. Call to Order
II. Approval of Minutes from September 25 and October 23
III. New Business

1. Case #23-22 Freeway Industrial Park Billboard Special Use Permit

2. Case #23-23 Popeye’s Final Development Plan

3. Case #23-24 Popeye’s Final Plat

IV. Old Business
V. Planning Commission Comments
VI. Staff Updates

1

mailto:kkneller%40missionks.org?subject=Planning%20Commission%20Inquiry
https://www.missionks.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/DRAFT-Planning-Commission-Minutes.9.25.23.pdf
https://www.missionks.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/Draft-Planning-Commission-Minutes.10.23.23.pdf


Applicant:

Location:

Property ID:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

Current Land Use:

Proposed Land Use:

 Public Hearing Required

Legal Notice:

Case Number:

Project Name:

Project Summary:

Staff Contact:

AT A GLANCE

23-22

Freeway Industrial Park Billboard Special Use 
Permit

The applicant proposes a digital billboard sign on 
the subject property at 6650 West 47th Terrace. 
The site is currently developed with a light industrial 
warehouse building. The property lies in the 100-
year floodplain.

Interstate Holdings, LLC

6650 West 47th Terrace

KP13000000 0002

M-1

N/A

Light Industrial

N/A

November 7, 2023

X

November 27, 2023 
Planning Commission

Staff Report

Karie Kneller, Planner

2



The subject property is located at 6650 West 47th Terrace, on the north side of Interstate 35, west of the 
Lamar Street exit. The property is zoned M-1 “General Industrial.” Adjacent properties located within 
the City of Mission are also zoned M-1. The existing structure straddles the Mission and Kansas City, 
Kansas boundaries and currently houses an office/warehouse business, Bestdrive Tire Store, according 
to the Land Based Classification Standards (LBCS). The subject property and adjacent properties 
lie within the 100-year floodway (AE) of Turkey Creek as designated by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). Developments on properties in the floodway are required to obtain a 
“No-Rise” certificate from a professional engineer. 

The applicant proposes a new digital billboard on a developed property, within the City of Mission 
boundary, that would be located in the green space fronting 47th Terrace. The applicant included a 
“No-Rise” certificate in its submittal that supports data that shows no impact on the 100-year flood 
elevations, floodway elevations, and floodway widths of Turkey Creek. The proposed sign face is 15 
feet high by 50 feet wide and stands 60 feet in total height with the column pipe pole. The pole is set 
back from the property line by 25 feet and the sign face is completely within the property boundaries.

Mission Comprehensive Plan (2007)

The Mission Comprehensive Plan (2007) future land use map identifies the subject property as “Business 
Park/Research: Sub-Urban,” defined as areas that contain high density office and service business, as 
well as some very limited light manufacturing typically in single-use suburban business park settings. 

Analysis: The current land use is consistent with the Mission Comprehensive Plan (2007) future 
land use map and land use definition. 

Mission Comprehensive Plan (2023 Draft Update)

The draft 2022 Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property as Light Industrial/Warehouse. It is 
defined as typical medium- or large-scale office and light industrial uses. 

Analysis: The current land use is consistent with the draft Mission Comprehensive Plan (2023).

Municipal Code

Under Article III, a digital billboard is defined in Mission’s municipal code at §430.020 as a billboard 
which has a computer-controlled board that displays an image through the use of light emitting diode 

Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard Special Use Permit

ProPerty Background and InformatIon

Plan revIew and analysIs

Project ProPosal

3



(LED) display, or similar technology. Mission’s municipal code requires a special use permit for 
billboards according to §445.180 Designated Use. Billboard signs are permitted in any district except 
for residentially zoned districts with a special use permit. Special uses may be approved by action of 
the City Council after recommendation from the Planning Commission, and may be approved with 
conditions. Conditions may include, but are not limited to the following §445.190(C)(1-8):

1. Requirements for special yards, open spaces, density, buffers, fences, walls and screening.

2. The installation of landscaping and maintenance.

3. Provisions for erosion control.

4. Limitations on ingress and egress movements into and out of the site and traffic circulation.

5. Limitation on signage.

6. Limitation on hours of operation and other characteristics of operation.

7. Conditions specifically listed under the individual special use.

8. Other conditions deemed necessary to ensure compatibility with surrounding land uses.

Analysis: The property is currently developed as office/warehouse under the LBCS. Staff has 
not observed, nor made aware of, erosion control issues or limitations regarding ingress or 
egress into or out of the site. The billboard use on the site is considered a separate use not 
associated with the current land use. There is vegetated buffer in the right-of-way between I-35 
and the frontage road (47th Terrace) of the property. 

Additionally, under “Criteria for Considering Applications,” §440.140(E), the Planning Commission and 
City Council shall give consideration to pertinent criteria, such as:

1. The character of the neighborhood.

2. The zoning and uses of nearby properties and the extent to which the proposed use would be in
harmony with such zoning and uses.

3. The suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted under the applicable
zoning district regulations.

4. The extent to which approval of the application would detrimentally affect nearby properties.

5. The length of time the property has remained vacant as zoned.

6. The relative benefit to the public health, safety and welfare by retaining applicable restrictions
on the property as compared to the destruction of the value of the property or hardship to the owner
association with denying its request.

Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard Special Use Permit

4



Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard Special Use Permit

7. The Master Plan or Comprehensive Plan.

8. The extent to which the proposed use would adversely affect the capacity or safety of that portion
of the road network influenced by the use or present parking problems in the vicinity of the property.

9. The recommendation of the professional staff.

10. The extent to which utilities and services, including, but not limited to, sewers, water service,
police and fire protection and parks and recreation facilities, are available and adequate to serve the
proposed use.

11. The extent to which the proposed use would create excessive stormwater runoff, air pollution,
water pollution, noise pollution or other environmental harm.

12. The extent to which there is a need for the use in the community.

13. The economic impact of the proposed use on the community.

14. The ability of the applicant to satisfy any requirements applicable to the specific use imposed
pursuant to the zoning district regulations.

Analysis: It is Staff’s determination that the application for a special use permit meets all applicable 
criteria in §440.140 under the following circumstances: character and zoning of surrounding area 
is compatible with the use in an industrial/warehouse setting along a major interstate highway; 
the zoning restrictions are suitable for the current land use, as well as the proposed billboard 
land use under consideration; approval of the application would not conceivably detrimentally 
affect nearby properties, as there is precedent for billboards in nearby locations and along 
major interstate highways in the region that are consistent with the use in the proposed area; 
The property is not currently vacant, but additional build-out of buildings on property in the 
area would not be advisable due to the impact on the floodway, thereby restricting the owner’s 
ability to generate additional revenue on the site; the Comprehensive Plan is compatible with 
the proposed use according to the 2007 Plan and the 2023 Draft Update; there are no anticipated 
safety issues beyond possible driver distractions along the interstate (see U.S Department of 
Transportation Federal Highway Administration study as part of the attached packet); electric 
utilities are in place on-site and the billboard would not create additional stormwater, air 
pollution, water pollution, noise pollution, or other environmental harm; staff does not identify 
a need or economic need for the use in the community; the required “No-Rise” certificate has 
been provided with the application.

Kansas State Statute Article 22, 68-2234 pertains to the sign standards as applicable for the proposed 
billboard sign. The statute covers configuration, size, spacing, and lighting in order to ensure the sign 
does not obscure traffic signs and signals or create safety hazards (see statute and Kansas Department 
of Transportation outdoor advertising guidelines as part of the attached packet). 

5



Analysis: The proposed sign shall adhere to all applicable state statutes to maintain the special 
use permit. 

Under Mission municipal code at §430.140 Removal of Obsolete or Abandoned Signs, if a structure 
or premise is abandoned for a six-month period of time signs shall be deemed obsolete and abandoned. 
The owner shall be responsible for removing any such signs.

Analysis: The billboard sign in this case is not associated with the building or structure on 
premises; however, should the sign be abandoned of its specific use as advertising or if it is 
abandoned due to lack of maintenance, the special use permit would cease to be valid after a 
six-month period.

Under §445.210 of the City’s municipal code, Special Use Permits may be for a specified time period or 
continual. Revocation of a Special Use Permit may be granted if any of the following conditions are met: 

• Non-compliance with any applicable requirement

• Non-compliance with any special conditions imposed at the time of approval

• Violation of any provisions of the Code

• Where conditions of the neighborhood have changed to the extent that approval would be
unwarranted

• Violation of any State or Federal law or regulation

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the electronic billboard to the 
City Council with the following conditions:

1. Applicant shall obtain a sign permit from the Kansas Department of Transportation as well as the
City of Mission.

2. The Sign shall comply with all K.S.A 68-2231 et seq as well as the City of Mission Municipal
Code.

3. The sign must display a static image for a minimum of (8) eight seconds and have an interval
change time of (2) two seconds or less.

4. Erosion control during construction shall be sufficient to protect waterways and reduce runoff
impact.

5. Maintenance and continued operation of the billboard shall be the responsibility of the property
owner or owner’s agent in perpetuity; the special use permit is transferrable.

Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard Special Use Permit

recommendatIon

6



6. Abandonment, including lack of maintenance or continued operation, shall nullify the special use
permit within six months.

7. The special use permit shall be effective following City Council approval for a period not to
exceed 10 years, at which time the property owner shall submit an application for continuation of the
special use permit in perpetuity or until the property is redeveloped.

The Planning Commission will consider the application for Case #23-22 Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard during a public hearing at its November 27, 2023 meeting.

Following Planning Commission recommendation, the City Council will hear Case #23-22 at its 
December 20, 2023 meeting.

PlannIng commIsIon actIon

cIty councIl actIon

Freeway Industrial Park 
Billboard Special Use Permit

7



8



9



5

0

'

PROPOSED

DIGITAL

BILLBOARD

SIGN FACE NOT

TO EXCEED

15'X50'

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E

S

1

9

°

5

9

'
2

4

"

E

6

5

.

0

0

'

S

1

9

°

5

9

'
2

4

"

E

6

5

.

0

0

'

S

7

0

°

0

0

'
3

6

"

W

1

0

0

.

0

0

'

4

6

.

3

5

'

S

7

0

°

0

0

'
3

6

"

W

 

 

1

4

1

.

6

2

'

160.2
2'

75.14'

124.8
4'

1

3

9

.

3

5

'

1

1

0

.

5

8

'

1

1

3

.

0

5

'

1

1

6

.

4

3

'

1

1

6

.

4

1

'

1

0

9

.

9

4

'

1

1

0

.

0

7

'

4

.

1

4

'

6

2

.

0

4

'

8

.

8

0

'

22.2
5'

22.7
8'

1

7

.

0

4

'

7

.

2

7

'

2

3

.

0

2

'

2

5

'

3

1

'

3

3

'

1

8

'

1

8

'

1

8

'

2

6

'

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXISTING BUILDING

TO REMAIN

EXISTING

FENCED AREA

TO REMAIN

EXIST.

PARKING

TO

REMAIN

PROPOSED ELEC.

ESMT. BY

SEPARATE DOC.

PROPOSED SIGN

ESMT. BY

SEPARATE DOC.

EXIST. SIGN

TO REMAIN

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

CITY O
F M

ISSIO
N

UNIFIED G
OVERNMENT O

F W
YANDOTTE COUNTY AND KANSAS CITY KANSAS

CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

CONCRETE

STEPS

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

1

8

6

.

8

6

'

9.8
6'

0 50' 100'

SCALE: 1" = 50'

N

(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
5

1
5

8
 
 
 
 
F

a
x
:
 
(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
8

4
0

0

1
4

9
2

0
 
W

e
s
t
 
1

0
7

t
h

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
 
 
L

e
n

e
x
a

,
 
K

a
n

s
a

s
 
6

6
2

1
5

W
W

W
.
S

C
H

L
A

G
E

L
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
.
C

O
M

SHEET

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
 
D

A
T

E
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

D
A

T
E

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
:

P
R

O
J
.
 
N

U
M

B
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

8 97654321

PREPARED BY:

SCHLAGEL & ASSOCIATES, P.A.

2
3
-
1
8
7

F
R

E
E

W
A

Y
 
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
L
O

T
S

 
2
 
&

 
7

M
O

N
O

P
O

L
E

 
D

I
G

I
T

A
L
 
B

I
L
L
B

O
A

R
D

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
 
&

 
S

U
P

6
6
5
0
 
W

 
4
7
T

H
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 
 
M

I
S

S
I
O

N
,
 
K

A
N

S
A

S

VICINITY PLAN

C1.0

S
C

H

S
C

H

9
-
2
1
-
2
0
2
3

D
A

T
E

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
 
1

I
:
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
2
0
2
3
\
2
3
-
1
8
7
\
3
.
0
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
3
.
0
 
D

W
G

 
P

l
a
n
s
\
2
.
0
 
P

D
P

\
2
3
-
1
8
7
 
P

D
P

 
S

U
P

.
d
w

g
,
 
V

I
C

I
N

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N
,
 
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
8
:
4
2
:
0
0
 
A

M
,
 
1
:
1

10

AutoCAD SHX Text
47TH TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
47TH TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°27'15"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°02'25"W(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" REINFORCING ROD, BENT (O.U)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD (O.U)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" REINFORCING ROD,  BENT (O.U)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD,  CAP DESTROYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
401.89'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
541.11'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" REINFORCING ROD  (O.U.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.00'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69°56'26"W(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N68°10'58"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69°56'26"W(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°54'39"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSTATE ROUTE I-35

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN BY PLAT WD: BK. 413 PG. 523

AutoCAD SHX Text
07

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°49'02"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS EASEMENT EMPIRE OIL & GAS CO. BK. 803 PG. 140

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
248.57'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
132.25'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. PRIVATE DRIVE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRIVATE DRIVE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PRIVATE ROAD & GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENT BY PLAT BK. 3245, PG. 43 3245, PG. 43 BK. 2665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
45' PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT BK. 3245, PG. 43 BY PLAT BK. 2665, PG. 52665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT BY PLAT BK. 3245, PG. 43 3245, PG. 43 BK. 2665, PG. 52665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS EASEMENT EMPIRE OIL & GAS CO. BK. 803 PG. 140

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY CASE NO. 62869-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT & STORM SEWER EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2373, PG. 169 BK.2725 , PG. 630

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT & STORM SEWER EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2373, PG. 169 2373, PG. 169 BK.2725 , PG. 630

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2492 PG. 257

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY CASE NO. 62869-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2492 PG. 257



5

0

'

PROPOSED DIGITAL

BILLBOARD

SIGN FACE NOT TO EXCEED

15'X50'

E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

S

1

9

°

5

9

'
2

4

"

E

6

5

.

0

0

'

S

1

9

°

5

9

'
2

4

"

E

6

5

.

0

0

'

S

7

0

°

0

0

'
3

6

"

W

1

0

0

.

0

0

'

4

6

.

3

5

'

S

7

0

°

0

0

'
3

6

"

W

 

 

1

4

1

.

6

2

'

160.2
2'

75.14'

124.8
4'

1

3

9

.

3

5

'

1

1

0

.

5

8

'

1

1

3

.

0

5

'

1

1

6

.

4

3

'

1

1

6

.

4

1

'

1

0

9

.

9

4

'

1

1

0

.

0

7

'

4

.

1

4

'

6

2

.

0

4

'

8

.

8

0

'

22.2
5'

22.7
8'

1

7

.

0

4

'

7

.

2

7

'

2

3

.

0

2

'

2

5

'

3

1

'

3

3

'

1

8

'

1

8

'

1

8

'

2

6

'
EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXISTING BUILDING

TO REMAIN

EXISTING

FENCED AREA

TO REMAIN

EXIST.

PARKING

TO

REMAIN

PROPOSED ELEC.

ESMT. BY

SEPARATE DOC.

PROPOSED SIGN

ESMT. BY

SEPARATE DOC.

EXIST. SIGN

TO REMAIN

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

EXIST. LP

CITY O
F M

ISSIO
N

UNIFIED G
OVERNMENT O

F W
YANDOTTE COUNTY AND KANSAS CITY KANSAS

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I

D

E

W

A

L

K

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

I

D

E

W

A

L

K

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

S

T

E

P

S

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

1

8

6

.

8

6

'

9.8
6'

0 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

N

(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
5

1
5

8
 
 
 
 
F

a
x
:
 
(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
8

4
0

0

1
4

9
2

0
 
W

e
s
t
 
1

0
7

t
h

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
 
 
L

e
n

e
x
a

,
 
K

a
n

s
a

s
 
6

6
2

1
5

W
W

W
.
S

C
H

L
A

G
E

L
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
.
C

O
M

SHEET

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
 
D

A
T

E
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

D
A

T
E

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
:

P
R

O
J
.
 
N

U
M

B
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

8 97654321

PREPARED BY:

SCHLAGEL & ASSOCIATES, P.A.

2
3
-
1
8
7

F
R

E
E

W
A

Y
 
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
L
O

T
S

 
2
 
&

 
7

M
O

N
O

P
O

L
E

 
D

I
G

I
T

A
L
 
B

I
L
L
B

O
A

R
D

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
 
&

 
S

U
P

6
6
5
0
 
W

 
4
7
T

H
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 
 
M

I
S

S
I
O

N
,
 
K

A
N

S
A

S

SITE PLAN

C2.0

S
C

H

S
C

H

9
-
2
1
-
2
0
2
3

D
A

T
E

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
 
1

SITE DATA

EXISTING ZONING M-1 MISSION M-2 UGWYCOKCK

SITE AREA FROM ALTA SURVEY PROVIDED BY OWNER 4.0686 ACRES (177,227 S.F.)

EXISTING BUILDING AREA 32,084 S.F.

EXISTING FAR .181

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED (SEC 410.130.H)(1 SPACE PER 500 S.F.) 64 SPACES

EXISTING PARKING SPACES 32 SPACES

GENERAL NOTES:

1. FLOOD NOTE:  The Johnson County portion of the site lies within Flood Zone AE Base

Flood Elevations Determined with a Base Flood elevation of 854.0 feet as shown on FEMA

Firm panel  20091C0008G Panel No. 8 of 161 dated August 3, 2009.   The Wyandotte

County a portion of the site lies within Other Flood Areas Zone "X"  Areas of 0.2% annual

chance flood: areas of 1% annual chance flood with average depths of less than 1 foot or

with drainage areas less than 1 square mile and a portion of the site appears to lie within

Other Areas Flood Zone "X" Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance

floodplain Or Flood Zone "D" Areas in which flood hazards are undetermined but possible

as shown on FEMA Firm panel 20209C0170D panel 170 of 210 dated September 2, 2011.

The FEMA  HEC-RES MODEL indicates that all of the site is within Flood Zone AE Base

Flood Elevations Determined with a Base Flood elevation of 854.0 feet.

2. Boundary data from ALTA survey provided by owner.

3. Adjacent property lines, buildings and paved surfaces from JOCO AIMS and DOTMAPS.

4. Topography and adjacent plat and improvements from JOCO AIMS.

5. Existing utilities have been shown to the greatest extent possible based upon ALTA survey

provided by owner.

6. All new on-site wiring and cable shall be placed underground per the city codes and

ordinances.

55TH STREET

N
A

L
L

 
A

V
E

N
U

E

NW1/4 NE1/4

SW1/4

05

SE1/4

PROJECT

LOCATION

L
A

M
A

R
 
A

V
E

.

51ST ST.

32

NW1/4 NE1/4

SW1/4 SE1/4

WOODEND AVE.

3
4

T
H

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

1
8

T
H

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

M

E

R

R

I

A

M

 

L

N

.

SECTION 05-12-25

SECTION 32-11-25

LOCATION MAP

SCALE 1" = 2000'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FROM ALTA PROVIDED BY OWNER

ALL OF LOT 2, FREEWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK, A SUBDIVISION IN MISSION, JOHNSON COUNTY,

KANSAS

LOT 7, FREEWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK, A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF KANSAS CITY, WYANDOTTE,

KANSAS

I
:
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
2
0
2
3
\
2
3
-
1
8
7
\
3
.
0
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
3
.
0
 
D

W
G

 
P

l
a
n
s
\
2
.
0
 
P

D
P

\
2
3
-
1
8
7
 
P

D
P

 
S

U
P

.
d
w

g
,
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
,
 
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
8
:
4
2
:
0
1
 
A

M
,
 
1
:
1

11

AutoCAD SHX Text
47TH TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
47TH TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°27'15"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°02'25"W(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" REINFORCING ROD, BENT (O.U)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD W/ANDERSON CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" REINFORCING ROD,  BENT (O.U)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REINFORCING ROD,  CAP DESTROYED

AutoCAD SHX Text
401.89'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
541.11'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.00'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N68°10'58"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69°56'26"W(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°54'39"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURLINGTON NORTHERN RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSTATE ROUTE I-35

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN BY PLAT WD: BK. 413 PG. 523

AutoCAD SHX Text
07

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S21°49'02"E(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS EASEMENT EMPIRE OIL & GAS CO. BK. 803 PG. 140

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
248.57'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
132.25'(P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. PRIVATE DRIVE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PRIVATE DRIVE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PRIVATE ROAD & GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENT BY PLAT BK. 3245, PG. 43 3245, PG. 43 BK. 2665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
45' PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT BK. 3245, PG. 43 BY PLAT BK. 2665, PG. 52665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT BY PLAT BK. 3245, PG. 43 3245, PG. 43 BK. 2665, PG. 52665, PG. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS EASEMENT EMPIRE OIL & GAS CO. BK. 803 PG. 140

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY CASE NO. 62869-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT & STORM SEWER EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2373, PG. 169 BK.2725 , PG. 630

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT & STORM SEWER EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2373, PG. 169 2373, PG. 169 BK.2725 , PG. 630

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2492 PG. 257

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY CASE NO. 62869-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM EASEMENT CITY OF KANSAS CITY BK. 2492 PG. 257

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



TORSION PIPE

OUTRIGGERS

COLUMN PIPE

CATWALK

DIGITAL BILLBOARD

4
8
'

STRINGERS

TORSION PIPE

CATWALK

DIGITAL BILLBOARD

LEDGER SUPPORT

UPRIGHT SUPPORT

COLUMN PIPE

OUTRIGGERS

CATWALK

CATWALK

APRON WITH LEASING COMPANY NAME

UPRIGHT

CATWALK

APRON

CATWALK

LEASING COMPANY NAME

DIGITAL BILLBOARD

FOOTING

COLUMN PIPE

48.00

1
4

.
0

0

6
0

.
0

0

FOOTING

(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
5

1
5

8
 
 
 
 
F

a
x
:
 
(
9

1
3

)
 
4

9
2

-
8

4
0

0

1
4

9
2

0
 
W

e
s
t
 
1

0
7

t
h

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
 
 
L

e
n

e
x
a

,
 
K

a
n

s
a

s
 
6

6
2

1
5

W
W

W
.
S

C
H

L
A

G
E

L
A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
.
C

O
M

SHEET

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
 
D

A
T

E
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

D
A

T
E

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
:

P
R

O
J
.
 
N

U
M

B
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

8 97654321

PREPARED BY:

SCHLAGEL & ASSOCIATES, P.A.

2
3
-
1
8
7

F
R

E
E

W
A

Y
 
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
L
O

T
S

 
2
 
&

 
7

M
O

N
O

P
O

L
E

 
D

I
G

I
T

A
L
 
B

I
L
L
B

O
A

R
D

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
 
&

 
S

U
P

6
6
5
0
 
W

 
4
7
T

H
 
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 
 
M

I
S

S
I
O

N
,
 
K

A
N

S
A

S

DIGITAL

BILLBOARD

DESIGN DETAILS

1

  

9
-
2
1
-
2
0
2
3

D
A

T
E

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
 
1

NOTE: THIS DRAWING IS TO ONLY SHOW  GENERAL DESIGN AND IS NOT

FOR PERMITS OR CONSTRUCTION.

PLAN VIEW

FRONT VIEW I-35 HIGHWAY SIDE VIEW

I
:
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
2
0
2
3
\
2
3
-
1
8
7
\
3
.
0
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
3
.
0
 
D

W
G

 
P

l
a
n
s
\
2
.
0
 
P

D
P

\
2
3
-
1
8
7
 
S

I
G

N
 
D

T
L
.
d
w

g
,
 
D

I
G

I
T

A
L
 
B

I
L
L
B

O
A

R
D

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

,
 
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
8
:
4
2
:
0
3
 
A

M
,
 
1
:
1

12



 

14920 West 107th Street • Lenexa, Kansas 66215 • (913) 492-5158 • Fax: (913) 492-8400 

 

 

 
 
September 20, 2023 

 
Karie Kneller 
City of Mission 
6090 Woodson Street 
Mission, Kansas 66202 
 
RE: STORMWATER MANANGEMENT STUDY 

 FREEWAY INDUSTRIAL PARK LOTS 2 & 7 MONOPOLE DIGITAL BILLBOARD 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN & SUP 

 
Dear Karie: 
 
Per City of Mission requirements, we are submitting the following storm water letter in support of 
the PDP & SUP application for Freeway Industrial Park Lots 2&7 Monopole Digital Billboard. 
The billboard is located at 6650 W. 47th Terrace Mission, KS 66203 on a 4.07-acre site. The 
Northwestern portion of the site does lie within the City of Kansas City limits.  
 
The site currently drains from North to South with slopes ranging from 0% to 5% and eventually 
drains into KDOT ROW and across I-35 to Turkey Creek. With the construction of the proposed 
signage the drainage patterns will remain the same. A detailed map of the drainage patterns is 
in Appendix A. The proposed sign will be approximately 50’ tall. However, the proposed pole 
that will hold the sign is proposed to be 3.0’ in diameter. This equates to approximately 7 square 
feet of added impervious area.  
 
There is FEMA identified floodplain located on the proposed property per Flood Insurance Rate 
Map Panel No. 20091C0008G. The proposed sign is to be located within the Zone AE 
floodplain. However, the sign is located within an ineffective flow location. Per city requirements 
a No-Rise certification letter is being submitted with this report.  
 
After the sign has been constructed the site will have a 7 sq ft increase in impervious area on a 
total of 177,289 sq ft site. This correlates to a 0.003% increase in the impervious area. Given 
there is a minimal increase in impervious areas the proposed improvements can be considered 
negligible for stormwater and storm quality requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 
 
 
In conclusion, there is a minimal increase in the impervious area between the existing site and 
after the proposed sign is constructed. We would request that the minimal increase be 
considered negligible, and that the stormwater management and storm water quality 
requirements not be applicable to the proposed project. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the study or the information presented, please contact me.  
Thank You. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
SCHLAGEL & ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jake A. Hattock, P.E.  
Project Engineer  
Direct Dial 913-322-7155       

10.23.2023

14



E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

S1
9°

59
'2

4"
E

65
.0

0'

S1
9°

59
'2

4"
E

65
.0

0'

S70°00'36"W
100.00'

S70°00'36"W  141.62'

///////

850

850850850

850

85
0

850

850

850

850

850

850

850

844

844
846

846

846 846

848

848
848

848
84

8

848
848

848

85
2

852

852
852

852

852 852

854

854
856

858

DA #1
AREA =  4.07 ACRES
SLOPES = 0.0%-5.0%

0 50' 100'

SCALE: 1" = 50'

N

SHEET

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

D
AT

E 
PR

EP
AR

ED
:

PR
O

J.
 N

U
M

BE
R

:
Ka

ns
as

 S
ta

te
 C

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

f A
ut

ho
rit

y
 #

E-
29

6 
 #

LA
-2

9 
 #

LS
-5

4

(9
13

) 4
92

-5
15

8 
   

Fa
x:

 (9
13

) 4
92

-8
40

0
14

92
0 

W
es

t 1
07

th
 S

tre
et

   
Le

ne
xa

, K
an

sa
s 

66
21

5

W
W

W
.S

C
H

LA
G

EL
AS

SO
C

IA
TE

S.
C

O
M

FR
EE

W
AY

 IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K 

LO
TS

2 
& 

7 
M

O
N

O
PO

LE
 D

IG
IT

AL
BI

LL
BO

AR
D

 P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 &
 S

U
P

66
50

 W
 4

7T
H

 T
ER

R
AC

E 
 M

IS
SI

O
N

, K
AN

SA
S

JA
H

09
.2

0.
20

23

23
-1

87

HYDRO MAP

1\\D
at

as
er

ve
r\C

ad
\p

ro
je

ct
s\

20
23

\2
3-

18
7\

3.
0 

D
es

ig
n\

4.
0 

C
iv

il\
2.

0 
H

yd
ro

\2
3-

18
7 

H
YD

R
O

.d
w

g,
 1

0/
23

/2
02

3 
1:

27
:0

5 
PM

, P
re

vi
ou

s 
pa

pe
r s

iz
e 

 (1
7.

00
 x

 1
1.

00
 in

ch
es

)

15



ENGINEERING "NO-RISE" CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that I am a duly qualified engineer licensed to practice in
the State of	

It is to further certify that the attached technical data supports the fact that
proposed	 will

(Name of Development)

not impact the 100-year flood elevations, floodway elevations and floodway
widths on	 at published sections

(Name Of stream)

in the Flood Insurance Study for	
(Name of Community)

dated	 and will not impact the 100-year flood
elevations, floodway elevations, and floodway widths at unpublished
cross-sections in the vicinity of the proposed development.

(Date)

	

(Signature)

(Title)

seal:
(Address)

Kansas

Freeway Industrial Park Billboard

Turkey Creek

Merriam, City of

Aug 3, 2009

09.21.2023

PROJECT ENGINEER

09/21/2023

14920 W. 107TH STREET, LENEXA, KANSAS 66215

16



 

DRIVER VISUAL BEHAVIOR IN THE PRESENCE OF COMMERCIAL 

ELECTRONIC VARIABLE MESSAGE SIGNS (CEVMS) 

 
 

SEPTEMBER 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

              FHWA-HEP-16-036 

 

  

17



FOREWORD 

The advent of electronic billboard technologies, in particular the digital Light-Emitting Diode 

(LED) billboard, has necessitated a reevaluation of current legislation and regulation for 

controlling outdoor advertising. In this case, one of the concerns is possible driver distraction. In 

the context of the present report, outdoor advertising signs employing this new advertising 

technology are referred to as Commercial Electronic Variable Message Signs (CEVMS). They 

are also commonly referred to as Digital Billboards and Electronic Billboards.  

The present report documents the results of a study conducted to investigate the effects of 

CEVMS used for outdoor advertising on driver visual behavior in a roadway driving 

environment. The report consists of a brief review of the relevant published literature related to 

billboards and visual distraction, the rationale for the Federal Highway Administration research 

study, the methods by which the study was conducted, and the results of the study, which used an 

eye tracking system to measure driver glances while driving on roadways in the presence of 

CEVMS, standard billboards, and other roadside elements. The report should be of interest to 

highway engineers, traffic engineers, highway safety specialists, the outdoor advertising 

industry, environmental advocates, Federal policymakers, and State and local regulators of 

outdoor advertising. 

 Monique R. Evans 

 Director, Office of Safety  

 Research and Development 

  

 Nelson Castellanos 

 Director, Office of Real Estate  

 Services 

 

Notice 
This document is disseminated under the sponsorship of the U.S. Department of Transportation 

in the interest of information exchange. The U.S. Government assumes no liability for the use  

of the information contained in this document. This report does not constitute a standard, 

specification, or regulation. 

The U.S. Government does not endorse products or manufacturers. Trademarks or 

manufacturers’ names appear in this report only because they are considered essential to the 

objective of the document. 

Quality Assurance Statement 
The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) provides high-quality information to serve 

government, industry, and the public in a manner that promotes public understanding. Standards 

and policies are used to ensure and maximize the quality, objectivity, utility, and integrity of its 

information. The FHWA periodically reviews quality issues and adjusts its programs and 

processes to ensure continuous quality improvement. 

 

18



TECHNICAL DOCUMENTATION PAGE 

1. Report No. 

FHWA-HRT- 

2. Government Accession No. 

 

3. Recipient’s Catalog No. 

 

4. Title and Subtitle 

Driver Visual Behavior in the Presence of Commercial Electronic Variable 

Message Signs (CEVMS) 

5. Report Date 

 

6. Performing Organization Code 
 

7. Author(s) 

William A. Perez, Mary Anne Bertola, Jason F. Kennedy, and John A. 

Molino 

 

8. Performing Organization Report No. 

 

9. Performing Organization Name and Address 

SAIC 

6300 Georgetown Pike 

McLean, VA 22101 

10. Work Unit No. (TRAIS) 

 

11. Contract or Grant No. 

 

12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address 

Office of Real Estate Services 

Federal Highway Administration 

1200 New Jersey Avenue SE 

Washington, DC 20590  

13. Type of Report and Period Covered 

 

14. Sponsoring Agency Code 

 

15. Supplementary Notes 

The Contracting Officer’s Technical Representatives (COTR) were Christopher Monk and Thomas Granda. 

16. Abstract 

This study was conducted to investigate the effect of CEVMS on driver visual behavior in a roadway driving 

environment. An instrumented vehicle with an eye tracking system was used. Roads containing CEVMS, standard 

billboards, and control areas with no off-premise advertising were selected. Data were collected on arterials and 

freeways in the day and nighttime. Field studies were conducted in two cities where the same methodology was used 

but there were differences in the roadway visual environment. The gazes to the road ahead were high across the 

conditions; however, the CEVMS and billboard conditions resulted in a lower probability of gazes as compared to the 

control conditions (roadways not containing off-premise advertising) with the exception of arterials in Richmond where 

none of the conditions differed from each other. Examination of where drivers gazed in the CEVMS and standard 

billboard conditions showed that gazes away from the road ahead were not primarily to the billboards. Average and 

maximum fixations to CEVMS and standard billboards were similar across all conditions. However, four long dwell 

times were found (sequential and multiple fixations) that were greater than 2,000 ms. One was to a CEVMS on a 

freeway in the day time, two were to the same standard billboard on a freeway once in the day and once at night; and 

one was to a standard billboard on an arterial at night. In Richmond, the results showed that drivers gazed more at 

CEVMS than at standard billboards at night; however, in Reading the drivers were equally likely to gaze towards 

CEVMS or standard billboards in day and night. The results of the study are consistent with research and theory on the 

control of gaze behavior in natural environments. The demands of the driving task tend to affect the driver’s self-

regulation of gaze behavior.  

17. Key Words 

Driver visual behavior, visual environment, billboards, eye tracking 

system, commercial electronic variable message signs, CEVMS, visual 

complexity  

 

18. Distribution Statement 

No restrictions.  

19. Security Classif. (of this report) 

Unclassified 

20. Security Classif. (of this page) 

Unclassified 

21. No. of Pages 

 

22. Price 

 Form DOT F 1700.7 (8-72) Reproduction of completed page authorized 

19



ii 

 

 SI* (MODERN METRIC) CONVERSION FACTORS 
APPROXIMATE CONVERSIONS TO SI UNITS

Symbol When You Know Multiply By To Find Symbol 

LENGTH 
in inches 25.4 millimeters mm 
ft feet 0.305 meters m 
yd yards 0.914 meters m 
mi miles 1.61 kilometers km 

AREA 
in

2
square inches 645.2 square millimeters mm

2

ft
2 

square feet 0.093 square meters m
2

yd
2 

square yard 0.836 square meters m
2

ac acres 0.405 hectares ha 
mi

2
square miles 2.59 square kilometers km

2

VOLUME 
fl oz fluid ounces 29.57 milliliters mL 
gal gallons 3.785 liters L 
ft

3 
cubic feet 0.028 cubic meters m

3 

yd
3 

cubic yards 0.765 cubic meters m
3 

NOTE: volumes greater than 1000 L shall be shown in m
3

MASS 
oz ounces 28.35 grams g
lb pounds 0.454 kilograms kg
T short tons (2000 lb) 0.907 megagrams (or "metric ton") Mg (or "t") 

TEMPERATURE (exact degrees) 
o
F Fahrenheit 5 (F-32)/9 Celsius 

o
C 

or (F-32)/1.8 

ILLUMINATION 
fc foot-candles 10.76 lux lx 
fl foot-Lamberts 3.426 candela/m

2 
cd/m

2

FORCE and PRESSURE or STRESS 
lbf poundforce   4.45    newtons N 
lbf/in

2
poundforce per square inch 6.89 kilopascals kPa 

APPROXIMATE CONVERSIONS FROM SI UNITS 

Symbol When You Know Multiply By To Find Symbol 

LENGTH
mm millimeters 0.039 inches in 
m meters 3.28 feet ft 
m meters 1.09 yards yd 
km kilometers 0.621 miles mi 

AREA 
mm

2
 square millimeters 0.0016 square inches in

2 

m
2
 square meters 10.764 square feet ft

2 

m
2
 square meters 1.195 square yards yd

2 

ha hectares 2.47 acres ac 
km

2 
square kilometers 0.386 square miles mi

2 

VOLUME 
mL milliliters 0.034 fluid ounces fl oz 

L liters 0.264 gallons gal 
m

3 
cubic meters 35.314 cubic feet ft

3 

m
3 

cubic meters 1.307 cubic yards yd
3 

MASS 
g grams 0.035 ounces oz
kg kilograms 2.202 pounds lb
Mg (or "t") megagrams (or "metric ton") 1.103 short tons (2000 lb) T 

TEMPERATURE (exact degrees) 
o
C Celsius 1.8C+32 Fahrenheit 

o
F 

ILLUMINATION 
lx  lux 0.0929 foot-candles fc 
cd/m

2
candela/m

2
0.2919 foot-Lamberts fl

FORCE and PRESSURE or STRESS 
N newtons 0.225 poundforce lbf 
kPa kilopascals 0.145 poundforce per square inch lbf/in

2

*SI is the symbol for th  International System of Units.  Appropriate rounding should be made to comply with Section 4 of ASTM E380.  e

(Revised March 2003) 

20



iii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY _____________________________________________________1 

INTRODUCTION_____________________________________________________________5 
BACKGROUND ___________________________________________________________5 

Post-Hoc Crash Studies____________________________________________________5 
Field Investigations _______________________________________________________6 
Laboratory Studies _______________________________________________________8 
Summary _______________________________________________________________9 

STUDY APPROACH _______________________________________________________9 
Research Questions ______________________________________________________12 

EXPERIMENTAL APPROACH _______________________________________________13 

EXPERIMENTAL DESIGN OVERVIEW ____________________________________14 
Site Selection __________________________________________________________14 

READING __________________________________________________________________16 
METHOD _______________________________________________________________16 

Selection of Data Collection Zone Limits ____________________________________16 
Advertising Conditions ___________________________________________________16 
Photometric Measurement of Signs _________________________________________19 
Visual Complexity ______________________________________________________20 
Participants ____________________________________________________________21 
Procedures _____________________________________________________________21 

DATA REDUCTION ______________________________________________________23 
Eye Tracking Measures___________________________________________________23 

Other Measures _________________________________________________________25 

RESULTS _______________________________________________________________26 
Photometric Measurements ________________________________________________26 
Visual Complexity ______________________________________________________27 
Effects of Billboards on Gazes to the Road Ahead ______________________________28 
Fixations to CEVMS and Standard Billboards _________________________________30 
Comparison of Gazes to CEVMS and Standard Billboards _______________________36 
Observation of Driver Behavior ____________________________________________36 
Level of Service ________________________________________________________36 

DISCUSSION OF READING RESULTS _____________________________________37 

RICHMOND ________________________________________________________________40 
METHOD _______________________________________________________________40 

Selection of DCZ Limits __________________________________________________40 
Advertising Type _______________________________________________________40 
Photometric Measurement of Signs _________________________________________42 
Visual Complexity ______________________________________________________42 
Participants ____________________________________________________________43 

Procedures _____________________________________________________________43 

DATA REDUCTION ______________________________________________________44 
Eye Tracking Measures___________________________________________________44 

21



iv 

Other Measures _________________________________________________________44 

RESULTS _______________________________________________________________44 
Photometric Measurement of Signs _________________________________________44 
Visual Complexity ______________________________________________________45 
Effects of Billboards on Gazes to the Road Ahead ______________________________45 
Fixations to CEVMS and Standard Billboards _________________________________47 
Comparison of Gazes to CEVMS and Standard Billboards _______________________50 
Observation of Driver Behavior ____________________________________________51 
Level of Service ________________________________________________________51 

DISCUSSION OF RICHMOND RESULTS ___________________________________51 

GENERAL DISCUSSION _____________________________________________________53 
CONCLUSIONS __________________________________________________________53 

Do CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway and other driving 

relevant stimuli? ________________________________________________________53 
Do glances to CEVMS occur that would suggest a decrease in safety? ______________54 
Do drivers look at CEVMS more than at standard billboards? ____________________54 

SUMMARY ______________________________________________________________55 
LIMITATIONS OF THE RESEARCH _______________________________________55 

REFERENCES ______________________________________________________________57 
 

22



v 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1. Eye tracking system camera placement. ____________________________________13 
Figure 2. FHWA’s field research vehicle. __________________________________________14 
Figure 3. DCZ with a target CEVMS on a freeway. ___________________________________17 
Figure 4. DCZ with a target CEVMS on an arterial. __________________________________18 
Figure 5. DCZ with a target standard billboard on a freeway. ___________________________18 
Figure 6. DCZ with a target standard billboard on an arterial. ___________________________18 
Figure 7. DCZ for the control condition on a freeway. ________________________________19 
Figure 8. DCZ for the control condition on an arterial. ________________________________19 
Figure 9. Screen capture showing static ROIs on a scene video output. ___________________23 
Figure 10. Mean feature congestion as a function of advertising condition and road 

type (standard errors for the mean are included in the graph). ________________________27 

Figure 11. Distribution of fixation duration for CEVMS in the daytime and nighttime. _______30 
Figure 12. Distribution of fixation duration for standard billboards in the daytime and 

nighttime. ________________________________________________________________31 
Figure 13. Distribution of fixation duration for road ahead (i.e., top and bottom road 

ahead ROIs) in the daytime and nighttime. ______________________________________31 
Figure 14. Heat map for the start of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an 

arterial. __________________________________________________________________33 
Figure 15. Heat map for the middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an 

arterial. __________________________________________________________________33 
Figure 16. Heat map near the end of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an 

arterial. __________________________________________________________________33 
Figure 17. Heat map for start of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a freeway. _______34 

Figure 18. Heat map for middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a 

freeway. __________________________________________________________________34 
Figure 19. Heat map near the end of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a 

freeway. __________________________________________________________________34 
Figure 20. Heat map for the start of a DCZ for a standard billboard in the daytime on 

a freeway. ________________________________________________________________35 
Figure 21. Heat map near the middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard in the daytime 

on a freeway. ______________________________________________________________35 
Figure 22. Heat map near the end of DCZ for standard billboard in the daytime on a 

freeway. __________________________________________________________________35 
Figure 23. Heat map at the end of DCZ for standard billboard in the daytime on a 

freeway. __________________________________________________________________35 
Figure 24. Example of identified salient areas in a road scene based on bottom-up 

analysis. __________________________________________________________________38 
Figure 25. Example of a CEVMS DCZ on a freeway. _________________________________41 
Figure 26. Example of CEVMS DCZ an arterial. _____________________________________41 

Figure 27. Example of a standard billboard DCZ on a freeway. _________________________41 
Figure 28. Example of a standard billboard DCZ on an arterial. _________________________42 
Figure 29. Example of a control DCZ on a freeway. __________________________________42 
Figure 30. Example of a control DCZ on an arterial. __________________________________42 

23



vi 

Figure 31. Mean feature congestion as a function of advertising condition and road 

type. _____________________________________________________________________45 
Figure 32. Fixation duration for CEVMS in the day and at night. ________________________47 
Figure 33. Fixation duration for standard billboards in the day and at night. ________________48 
Figure 34. Fixation duration for the road ahead in the day and at night. ___________________48 
Figure 35. Heat map for first fixation to CEVMS with long dwell time. ___________________49 
Figure 36. Heat map for later fixations to CEVMS with long dwell time. __________________50 
Figure 37. Heat map at end of fixations to CEVMS with long dwell time. _________________50 
 

24



vii 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1. Distribution of CEVMS by roadway classification for various cities. ______________15 
Table 2. Inventory of target billboards with relevant parameters. ________________________17 
Table 3. Summary of luminance (cd/m

2
) and contrast (Weber ratio) measurements. _________27 

Table 4. The probability of gazing at the road ahead as a function of advertising 

condition and road type. _____________________________________________________28 
Table 5. Probability of gazing at ROIs for the three advertising conditions on arterials 

and freeways. _____________________________________________________________29 
Table 6. Level of service as a function of advertising type, road type, and time of day. _______37 
Table 7. Inventory of target billboards in Richmond with relevant parameters. _____________40 
Table 8. Summary of luminance (cd/m

2
) and contrast (Weber ratio) measurements. _________44 

Table 9. The probability of gazing at the road ahead as a function of advertising 

condition and road type. _____________________________________________________46 
Table 10. Probability of gazing at ROIs for the three advertising conditions on 

arterials and freeways. ______________________________________________________46 
Table 11. Estimated level of service as a function of advertising condition, road type, 

and time of day.____________________________________________________________51 
 

25



viii 

LIST OF ACRONYMS AND SYMBOLS 

CEVMS Commercial Electronic Variable Message Sign 

EB Empirical Bayes 

DCZ Data Collection Zone 

ROI Region of Interest 

LED Light-Emitting Diode 

IR Infra-Red 

CCD Charge-Coupled Device 

MAPPS Multiple-Analysis of Psychophysical and Performance Signals 

GEE Generalized Estimating Equations 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

DOT Department of Transportation 

 

 

26



1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This study examines where drivers look when driving past commercial electronic variable 

message signs (CEVMS), standard billboards, or no off-premise advertising. The results and 

conclusions are presented in response to the three research questions listed below:  

1. Do CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway and other driving-

relevant stimuli? 

2. Do glances to CEVMS occur that would suggest a decrease in safety? 

3. Do drivers look at CEVMS more than at standard billboards? 

This study follows a Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) review of the literature on the 

possible distracting and safety effects of off-premise advertising and CEVMS in particular. The 

review considered laboratory studies, driving simulator studies, field research vehicle studies, 

and crash studies. The published literature indicated that there was no consistent evidence 

showing a safety or distraction effect due to off-premise advertising. However, the review also 

enumerated potential limitations in the previous research that may have resulted in the finding of 

no distraction effects for off-premise advertising. The study team recommended that additional 

research be conducted using instrumented vehicle research methods with eye tracking 

technology.  

The eyes are constantly moving and they fixate (focus on a specific object or area), perform 

saccades (eye movements to change the point of fixation), and engage in pursuit movements 

(track moving objects). It is during fixations that we take in detailed information about the 

environment. Eye tracking allows one to determine to what degree off-premise advertising may 

divert attention away from the forward roadway. A finding that areas containing CEVMS result 

in significantly more gazes to the billboards at a cost of not gazing toward the forward roadway 

would suggest a potential safety risk. In addition to measuring the degree to which CEVMS may 

distract from the forward roadway, an eye tracking device would allow an examination of the 

duration of fixations and dwell times (multiple sequential fixations) to CEVMS and standard 

billboards. Previous research conducted by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

(NHTSA) led to the conclusion that taking your eyes off the road for 2 seconds or more presents 

a safety risk. Measuring fixations and dwell times to CEVMS and standard billboards would also 

allow a determination as to the degree to which these advertising signs lead to potentially unsafe 

gaze behavior.   

Most of the literature concerning eye gaze behavior in dynamic environments suggests that task 

demands tend to override visual salience (an object that stands out because of its physical 

properties) in determining attention allocation. When extended to driving, it would be expected 

that visual attention will be directed toward task-relevant areas and objects (e.g., the roadway, 

other vehicles, speed limit signs) and that other salient objects, such as billboards, would not 

necessarily capture attention. However, driving is a somewhat automatic process and conditions 

generally do not require constant, undivided attention. As a result, salient stimuli, such as 

CEVMS, might capture driver attention and produce an unwanted increase in driver distraction. 

The present study addresses this concern. 

27



2 

This study used an instrumented vehicle with an eye tracking system to measure where drivers 

were looking when driving past CEVMS and standard billboards. The CEVMS and standard 

billboards were measured with respect to luminance, location, size, and other relevant variables 

to characterize these visual stimuli extensively. Unlike previous studies on digital billboards, the 

present study examined CEVMS as deployed in two United States cities. These billboards did 

not contain dynamic video or other dynamic elements, but changed content approximately every 

8 to 10 seconds. The eye tracking system had nearly a 2-degree level of resolution that provided 

significantly more accuracy in determining what objects the drivers were looking at compared to 

an earlier naturalistic driving study. This study assessed two data collection efforts that employed 

the same methodology in two cities.  

In each city, the study examined eye glance behavior to four CEVMS, two on arterials and two 

on freeways. There were an equal number of signs on the left and right side of the road for 

arterials and freeways. The standard billboards were selected for comparison with CEVMS such 

that one standard billboard environment matched as closely as possible that of each of the 

CEVMS. Two control locations were selected that did not contain off-premise advertising, one 

on an arterial and the other on a freeway. This resulted in 10 data collection zones in each city 

that were approximately 1,000 feet in length (the distance from the start of the data collection 

zone to the point that the CEVMS or standard billboard disappeared from the data collection 

video).  

In Reading, Pennsylvania, 14 participants drove at night and 17 drove during the day. In 

Richmond, Virginia, 10 participants drove at night and 14 drove during the day. Calibration of 

the eye tracking system, practice drive, and the data collection drive took approximately 2 hours 

per participant to accomplish. 

The following is a summary of the study results and conclusions presented in reference to the 

three research questions the study aimed to address. 

Do CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway and other driving 

relevant stimuli? 

 On average, the drivers in this study devoted between 73 and 85 percent of their visual 

attention to the road ahead for both CEVMS and standard billboards. This range is 

consistent with earlier field research studies. In the present study, the presence of 

CEVMS did not appear to be related to a decrease in looking toward the road ahead.  

Do glances to CEVMS occur that would suggest a decrease in safety? 

 The average fixation duration to CEVMS was 379 ms and to standard billboards it was 

335 ms across the two cities. The average fixation durations to CEVMS and standard 

billboards were similar to the average fixation duration to the road ahead. 

 The longest fixation to a CEVMS was 1,335 ms and to a standard billboard it was 

1,284 ms. The current widely accepted threshold for durations of glances away from the 

road ahead that result in higher crash risk is 2,000 ms. This value comes from a NHTSA 

28



3 

naturalistic driving study that showed a significant increase in crash odds when glances 

away from the road ahead were 2,000 ms or longer. 

 Four dwell times (aggregate of consecutive fixations to the same object) greater than 

2,000 ms were observed across the two studies. Three were to standard billboards and 

one was to a CEVMS. The long dwell time to the CEVMS occurred in the daytime to a 

billboard viewable from a freeway. Review of the video data for these four long dwell 

times showed that the signs were not far from the forward view while participant’s gaze 

dwelled on them. Therefore, the drivers still had access to information about what was in 

front of them through peripheral vision.  

 The results did not provide evidence indicating that CEVMS, as deployed and tested in 

the two selected cities, were associated with unacceptably long glances away from the 

road. When dwell times longer than the currently accepted threshold of 2,000 ms 

occurred, the road ahead was still in the driver’s field of view. This was the case for both 

CEVMS and standard billboards.  

Do drivers look at CEVMS more than at standard billboards? 

 When comparing the probability of a gaze at a CEVMS versus a standard billboard, the 

drivers in this study were generally more likely to gaze at CEVMS than at standard 

billboards. However, some variability occurred between the two locations and between 

the types of roadway (arterial or freeway). 

 In Reading, when considering the proportion of time spent looking at billboards, the 

participants looked more often at CEVMS than at standard billboards when on arterials 

(63 percent to CEVMS and 37 percent to a standard billboard), whereas they looked more 

often at standard billboards when on freeways (33 percent to CEVMS and 67 percent to a 

standard billboard). In Richmond, the drivers looked at CEVMS more than standard 

billboards no matter the type of road they were on, but as in Reading, the preference for 

gazing at CEVMS was greater on arterials (68 percent to CEVMS and 32 percent to 

standard billboards) than on freeways (55 percent to CEVMS and 45 percent to standard 

billboards). When a gaze was to an off-premise advertising sign, the drivers were 

generally more likely to gaze at a CEVMS than at a standard billboard. 

 In Richmond, the drivers showed a preference for gazing at CEVMS versus standard 

billboards at night, but in Reading the time of day did not affect gaze behavior. In 

Richmond, drivers gazed at CEVMS 71 percent and at standard billboards 29 percent at 

night. On the other hand, in the day the drivers gazed at CEVMS 52 percent and at 

standard billboards 48 percent.  

 In Reading, the average gaze dwell time for CEVMS was 981 ms and for standard 

billboards it was 1,386 ms. The difference in these average dwell times was not 

statistically significant. In contrast, the average dwell times to CEVMS and standard 

billboards were significantly different in Richmond (1,096 ms and 674 ms, respectively).  

29



4 

The present data suggest that the drivers in this study directed the majority of their visual 

attention to areas of the roadway that were relevant to the task at hand (e.g., the driving task). 

Furthermore, it is possible, and likely, that in the time that the drivers looked away from the 

forward roadway, they may have elected to glance at other objects in the surrounding 

environment (in the absence of billboards) that were not relevant to the driving task. When 

billboards were present, the drivers in this study sometimes looked at them, but not such that 

overall attention to the forward roadway decreased. 

 

It also should be noted that, like other studies in the available literature, this study adds to the 

knowledge base on the issues examined, but does not present definitive answers to the research 

questions investigated. 

 

  

30



5 

INTRODUCTION 

“The primary responsibility of the driver is to operate a motor vehicle safely. The task of driving 

requires full attention and focus. Drivers should resist engaging in any activity that takes their 

eyes and attention off of the road for more than a couple of seconds. In some circumstances even 

a second or two can make all the difference in a driver being able to avoid a crash.” – US 

Department of Transportation
(1)

 

The advent of electronic billboard technologies, in particular the digital Light-Emitting Diode 

(LED) billboard, has prompted a reevaluation of regulations for controlling outdoor advertising. 

An attractive quality of these LED billboards, which are hereafter referred to as Commercial 

Electronic Variable Message Signs (CEVMS), is that advertisements can change almost 

instantly. Furthermore, outdoor advertising companies can make these changes from a central 

remote office. Of concern is whether or not CEVMS may attract drivers’ attention away from the 

primary task (driving) in a way that compromises safety.  

The current Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) guidance recommends that CEVMS 

should not change content more frequently than once every 8 seconds.
(2)

 However, according to 

Scenic America, the basis of the safety concern is that the “…distinguishing trait…” of a 

CEVMS “… is that it can vary while a driver watches it, in a setting in which that variation is 

likely to attract the drivers’ attention away from the roadway.”
(3)

This study was conducted to 

provide the FHWA with data to determine if CEVMS capture visual attention differently than 

standard off-premise advertising billboards. 

BACKGROUND 

A 2009 review of the literature by Molino et al. for the FHWA failed to find convincing 

empirical evidence that CEVMS, as currently implemented, constitutes a safety risk greater than 

that of conventional vinyl billboards.
(4)

 A great deal of work has been focused in this area, but 

the findings of these studies have been mixed.
(4,5)

 A summary of the key past findings is 

presented here, but the reader is referred to Molino et al. for a comprehensive review of studies 

prior to 2008.
(4)

  

Post-Hoc Crash Studies 

Post-hoc crash studies use reviews of police traffic collision reports or statistical summaries of 

such reports in an effort to understand the causes of crashes that have taken place in the vicinity 

of some change to the roadside environment. In the present case, the change of concern is the 

introduction of CEVMS to the roadside or the replacement of conventional billboards with 

CEVMS.  

The literature review conducted by Molino et al. did not find compelling evidence for a 

distraction effect attributable to CEVMS.
(4)

 The authors concluded that all post-hoc crash studies 

are subject to certain weaknesses, most of which are difficult to overcome. For example, the vast 

majority of crashes are never reported to police; thus, such studies are likely to underreport 

crashes. Also, when crashes are caused by factors such as driver distraction or inattention, the 

involved driver may be unwilling or unable to report these factors to a police investigator. 

31



6 

Another weakness is that police, under time pressure, are rarely able to investigate the true root 

causes of crashes unless they involve serious injury, death, or extensive property damage. 

Furthermore, to have confidence in the results, such studies need to collect comparable data 

before and after the change, and, in the after phase, at equivalent but unaffected roadway 

sections. Since crashes are infrequent events, data collection needs to span extended periods of 

time both before and after introduction of the change. Few studies are able to obtain such 

extensive data.  

Two recent studies by Tantala and Tantala examined the relationship between the presence of 

CEVMS and crash statistics in Richmond, Virginia, and Reading, Pennsylvania.
(6,7)

 For the 

Richmond area, 7 years of crash data at 10 locations with CEVMS were included in the analyses. 

The study used a before-after methodology where most sites originally contained vinyl billboards 

(before) that were converted to CEVMS (after). The quantity of crash data was not the same for 

all locations and ranged from 1 year before/after to 3 years before/after. The study employed the 

Empirical Bayes (EB) method to analyze the data.
(8)

 The results indicated that the total number 

of crashes observed was consistent with what would be statistically expected with or without the 

introduction of CEVMS. The analysis approach for Reading locations was much the same as for 

Richmond other than there were 20 rather than 10 CEVMS and 8 years of crash statistics. The 

EB method showed results for Reading that were very similar to those of Richmond. 

The studies by Tantala and Tantala appear to address many of the concerns from Molino et al. 

regarding the weaknesses and issues associated with crash studies.
(4,6,7)

 For example, they 

include crash comparisons for locations within multiple distances of each CEVMS to address 

concerns about the visual range used in previous analyses. They used EB analysis techniques to 

correct for regression-to-mean bias. Also, the EB method would better reflect crash rate changes 

due to changes in average daily traffic and the interactions of these with the roadway features 

that were coded in the model. The studies followed approaches that are commonly used in post-

hoc crash studies, though the results would have been strengthened by including before-after 

results for non-CEVMS locations as a control group. 

Field Investigations 

Field investigations include unobtrusive observation, naturalistic driving studies, on-road 

instrumented vehicle investigations, test track experiments, driver interviews, surveys, and 

questionnaires. The following focuses on relevant studies that employed naturalistic driving and 

on-road instrumented vehicle research methods. 

Lee, McElheny, and Gibbons undertook an on-road instrumented vehicle study on Interstate and 

local roads near Cleveland, Ohio.
(9)

 The study looked at driver glance behavior in the vicinity of 

digital billboards, conventional billboards, comparison sites (sites with buildings and other signs, 

including digital signs), and control sites (those without similar signage). The results showed that 

there were no differences in the overall glance patterns (percent eyes-on-road and overall number 

of glances) between the different sites. Drivers also did not glance more frequently in the 

direction of digital billboards than in the direction of other event types (conventional billboards, 

comparison events, and baseline events) but drivers did take longer glances in the direction of 

digital billboards and comparison sites than in the direction of conventional billboards and 

baseline sites. However, the mean glance length toward the digital billboards was less than 

32



7 

1,000 ms. It is important to note that this study employed a video-based approach for examining 

drivers’ visual behavior, which has an accuracy of no better than 20 degrees.
(10)

 While this 

technique is likely to be effective in assessing gross eye movements and looks that are away 

from the road ahead, it may not have sufficient resolution to discriminate what specific object the 

driver is looking at outside of the vehicle. 

Beijer, Smiley, and Eizenman evaluated driver glances toward four different types of roadside 

advertising signs on roads in the Toronto, Canada, area.
(11)

 The four types of signs were: (a) 

billboard signs with static advertisements; (b) billboard advertisements placed on vertical rollers 

that could rotate to show one of three advertisements in succession; (c) scrolling text signs with a 

minor active component, which usually consisted of a small strip of lights that formed words 

scrolling across the screen or, in some cases, a larger area capable of displaying text but not 

video; and (d) signs with video images that had a color screen capable of displaying both moving 

text and moving images. The study employed an on-road instrumented vehicle with a head-

mounted eye tracking device. The researchers found no significant differences in average glance 

duration or the maximum glance duration for the various sign types; however, the number of 

glances was significantly lower for billboard signs than for the roller bar, scrolling text, and 

video signs. 

Smiley, Smahel, and Eizenman conducted a field driving study that employed an eye tracking 

system that recorded drivers’ eye movements as participants drove past video signs located at 

three downtown intersections and along an urban expressway.
(12)

 The study route included static 

billboards and video advertising. The results of the study showed that on average 76 percent of 

glances were to the road ahead. Glances at advertising, including static billboards and video 

signs, constituted 1.2 percent of total glances. The mean glance durations for advertising signs 

were between 500 ms and 750 ms, although there were a few glances of about 1,400 ms in 

duration. Video signs were not more likely than static commercial signs to be looked at when 

headways were short; in fact, the reverse was the case. Furthermore, the number of glances per 

individual video sign was small, and statistically significant differences in looking behavior were 

not found. 

Kettwich, Kartsen, Klinger, and Lemmer conducted a field study where drivers’ gaze behavior 

was measured with an eye tracking system.
(13)

 Sixteen participants drove an 11.5 mile (18.5 km) 

route comprised of highways, arterial roads, main roads, and one-way streets in Karlsruhe, 

Germany. The route contained advertising pillars, event posters, company logos, and video 

screens. Mean gaze duration for the four types of advertising was computed for periods when the 

vehicle was in motion and when it was stopped. Gaze duration while driving for all types of 

advertisements was under 1,000 ms. On the other hand, while the vehicle was stopped, the mean 

gaze duration for video screen advertisements was 2,750 ms. The study showed a significant 

difference between gaze duration while driving and while stationary: gaze duration was affected 

by the task at hand. That is, drivers tended to gaze longer while the car was stopped and there 

were few driving task demands. 

The previously mentioned studies estimated the duration of glances to advertising and computed 

mean values of less than 1,000 ms. Klauer et al., in his analysis of the 100-Car Naturalistic 

Driving Study, concluded that glances away from the roadway for any purpose lasting more than 

2,000 ms increase near-crash/crash risk by at least two times that of normal, baseline driving.
(14)

 

33



8 

Klauer et al. also indicated that short, brief glances away from the forward roadway for the 

purpose of scanning the driving environment are safe and actually decrease near-crash/crash 

risk.
(14)

 Using devices in a vehicle that draw visual attention away from the forward roadway for 

more than 2,000 ms (e.g., texting) is incompatible with safe driving. However, for external 

stimuli, especially those near the roadway, the evaluation of eye glances with respect to safety is 

less clear since peripheral vision would allow the driver to still have visual access to the forward 

roadway.  

Laboratory Studies 

Laboratory investigations related to roadway safety can be classified into several categories: 

driving simulations, non-driving-simulator laboratory testing, and focus groups. The review of 

relevant laboratory studies by Molino et al. did not show conclusive evidence regarding the 

distracting effects of CEVMS.
(4)

 Moreover, the authors concluded that present driving simulators 

do not have sufficient visual dynamic range, image resolution, and contrast ratio capability to 

produce the compelling visual effect of a bright, photo-realistic LED-based CEVMS against a 

natural background scene. The following is a discussion of a driving simulator study conducted 

after the publication of Molino et al.
(4)

 The study focused on the effects of advertising on driver 

visual behavior.  

Chattington, Reed, Basacik, Flint, and Parkes conducted a driving simulator study in the United 

Kingdom (UK) to evaluate the effects of static and video advertising on driver glance 

behavior.
(15)

 The researchers examined the effects of advertisement position relative to the road 

(left, right, center on an overhead gantry, and in all three locations simultaneously), type of 

advertisement (static or video), and exposure duration of the advertisement. (The paper does not 

provide these durations in terms of time or distance. The exposure duration had to do with the 

amount of time or distance that the sign would be visible to the driver.) For the advertisements 

presented on the left side of the road (recall that drivers travel in the left lane in the UK), mean 

glance durations for static and video advertisements were significantly longer (approximately 

650 to 750 ms) when drivers experienced long advertisement exposure as opposed to medium 

and short exposures. Drivers looked more at video advertisements (about 2 percent on average of 

the total duration recorded) than at static advertisements (about 0.75 percent on average). In 

addition, the location of the advertisements had an effect on glance behavior. When 

advertisements were located in the center of the road or in all three positions simultaneously, the 

glance durations were about 1,000 ms and were significantly longer than for signs placed on the 

right or left side of the road. For advertisements placed on the left side of the road, there was a 

significant difference in glance duration between static (about 400 ms) and video (about 800 ms). 

Advertisement position also had an effect on the proportion of time that a driver spent looking at 

an advertisement. The percentage of time looking at advertisements was greatest when signs 

were placed in all three locations, followed by center location signs, then the left location signs, 

and finally the right location signs. Drivers looked more at the video advertisements relative to 

the static advertisements when they were placed in all three locations, placed on the left, and 

placed on the right side of the road. The center placement did not show a significant difference in 

percent of time spent looking between static and video. 

34



9 

Summary 

The results from these key studies offer some insight into whether CEVMS pose a visual 

distraction threat. However, these same studies also reveal some inconsistent findings and 

potential methodological issues that are addressed in the current study. The studies conducted by 

Smiley et al. showed drivers glanced forward at the roadway about 76 percent of the time in the 

presence of video and dynamic signs where a few long glances of approximately 1,400 ms were 

observed.
(12)

  However, the video and dynamic signs used in these studies portray moving objects 

that are not present in CEVMS as deployed in the United States. In another field study 

employing eye tracking, Kettwich et al. found that gaze duration while driving for all types of 

advertisements that they evaluated was less than 1,000 ms; however, when the vehicle was 

stopped, mean gaze duration for advertising was as high as 2,750 ms.
(16)

 Collectively, these 

studies did not demonstrate that the advertising signs detracted from drivers’ glances forward at 

the roadway in a substantive manner while the vehicle was moving.  

In contrast, the simulator study by Chattington et al. demonstrated that dynamic signs showing 

moving video or other dynamic elements may draw attention away from the roadway.
(15)

 

Furthermore, the location of the advertising sign on the road is an important factor in drawing 

drivers’ visual attention. Advertisements with moving video placed in the center of the roadway 

on an overhead gantry or in all three positions (right, left, and in the center) simultaneously are 

very likely to draw glances from drivers.  

Finally, in a study that examined CEVMS as deployed in the United States, Lee et al. did not 

show any significant effects of CEVMS on driver glance behavior.
(9)

 However, the methodology 

that was used likely did not employ sufficient sensitivity to determine at what specific object in 

the environment a driver was looking.  

None of these studies combined all necessary factors to address the current CEVMS situation in 

the United States. Those studies that used eye tracking on real roads had animated and video-

based signs, which are not reflective of current off-premise CEVMS practice in the United 

States.  

STUDY APPROACH 

Based on an extensive review of the literature, Molino et al. concluded that the most effective 

method to use in an evaluation of the effects of CEVMS on driver visual behavior was the 

instrumented field vehicle method that incorporated an eye tracking system.
(4)

 The present study 

employed such an instrumented field vehicle with an eye tracking system and examined the 

degree to which CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway.  

The following presents a brief overview and discussion of studies using eye tracking 

methodology with complex visual stimuli, especially in natural environments (walking, driving, 

etc.). The review by Molino et al. recommended the use of this type of technology and method; 

however, a discussion laying out technical and theoretical issues underlying the use of eye 

tracking methods was not presented.
(4)

 This background is important for the interpretation of the 

results of the studies conducted here. 

35



10 

Standard and digital billboards are often salient stimuli in the driving environment, which may 

make them conspicuous. Cole and Hughes define attention conspicuity as the extent to which a 

stimulus is sufficiently prominent in the driving environment to capture attention. Further, Cole 

and Hughes state that attention conspicuity is a function of size, color, brightness, contrast 

relative to surroundings, and dynamic components such as movement and change.
(17)

 It is clear 

that under certain circumstances image salience or conspicuity can provide a good explanation of 

how humans orient their attention.  

At any given moment a large number of stimuli reach our senses, but only a limited number of 

them are selected for further processing. In general, attention can be focused on a stimulus 

because it is important for achieving some goal, or because the properties of the stimulus can 

attract the attention of the observer independent of their intentions (e.g., a car horn may elicit an 

orienting response). When the focus of attention is goal directed, it is referred to as top-down. 

When the focus of attention is principally a function of stimulus attributes, it is referred to as 

bottom-up.
(18)

  

In general, billboards (either standard or CEVMS) are not relevant to the driving task but are 

presumably designed to be salient stimuli in the environment where they may draw a driver’s 

attention. The question is to what degree CEVMS draw a driver’s attention away from driving-

relevant stimuli (e.g., road ahead, mirrors, and speedometer) and is this different from a standard 

billboard? In his review of the literature Wachtel leads one to consider CEVMS as stimuli in the 

environment where attention to them would be drawn in a bottom-up manner; that is, the salience 

of the billboards would make them stand out relative to other stimuli in the environment and 

drivers would reflexively look at these signs.
(19)

 Wachtel’s conclusions were in reference to 

research by Theeuwees who employed simple letter stimulus arrays in a laboratory task.
(20)

 

Research using simple visual stimuli in a laboratory environment are very useful for testing 

different theories of perception, but often lack direct application to tasks such as driving. The 

following discusses research using complex visual stimuli and tasks that are more relevant to 

natural vision as experienced in the driving task. 

A recent review of stimulus salience and eye guidance by Tatler et al. shows that most of the 

evidence for the capture of attention by the conspicuity of stimuli comes from research in which 

the stimulus is a simple visual search array or in which the target is uniquely defined by simple 

visual features.
(21)

 In other words, these are laboratory studies that use letters, arrays of letters, or 

simple geometric patterns as the stimuli. Pure salience-based models are capable of predicting 

eye movement endpoint in simple displays, but are less successful for more complex scenes that 

contain task-relevant and task-irrelevant salient areas.
(22,23)

   

Research by Henderson et al. using photographs of actual scenes showed that subjects looked at 

non-salient scene regions containing a search target and rarely looked at salient non-task-relevant 

regions of the scenes.
(24)

 Salience of the stimulus alone was not a good predictor of where 

participants looked. Additional research by Henderson using photographs of real world scenes 

also showed that subjects fixated on regions of the pictures that provided task-relevant 

information rather than visually salient regions with no task-relevant information. However, 

Henderson acknowledges that static pictures have many shortcomings when used as surrogates 

for real environments.
(25)

  

36



11 

Land’s review of eye movements in dynamic environments concluded that the eyes are proactive 

and typically seek out information required in the second before each new activity 

commences.
(26)

 Specific tasks (e.g., driving) have characteristic but flexible patterns of eye 

movement that accompany them, and these patterns are similar between individuals. Land 

concluded that the eyes rarely visit objects that are irrelevant to the task, and the conspicuity of 

objects is less important than the objects’ roles in the task. In a subsequent review of eye 

movement and natural behavior, Land concluded that in a task that requires fixation on a 

sequence of specific objects, the capture of gaze by irrelevant salient objects would, in general, 

be an obtrusive nuisance.
(22)

  

The literature examining gaze control under natural behavior suggests that it is principally top-

down driven, or intentional.
(24,25,26,22,21,27)

 However, top-down processing does not explain all 

gaze control or eye movements. For example, imagine driving down a two-lane country road and 

a deer jumps into the road. It is most likely that you will attend and react to this deer. Unplanned 

or unexpected stimuli capture our attention as we engage in complex natural tasks. Research by 

Jovancevic-Misic and Hayhoe showed that human gaze patterns are sensitive to the probabilistic 

nature of the environment.
(28)

 In this study, participants’ eye movement behavior was observed 

while walking among other pedestrians. The other pedestrians were confederates and were either 

safe, risky, or rogue pedestrians. When the study began, the risky pedestrian took a collision 

course with the participant 50 percent of the time, and the rogue pedestrian always assumed a 

collision course as he approached the participant, whereas the safe pedestrian never took a 

collision course. Midway through the study the rogue and safe pedestrians exchanged roles but 

the risky pedestrian role remained the same. The participants were not informed about the 

behavior of the other pedestrians. Participants were asked to follow a circular path for several 

laps and to avoid other pedestrians. The study showed that the participants modified their gaze 

behavior in response to the change in the other pedestrians’ behavior. Jovancevic-Misic 

concluded that participants learned new priorities for gaze allocation within a few encounters and 

looked both sooner and longer at potentially dangerous pedestrians.
(28)

  

Gaze behavior in natural environments is affected by expectations that are derived through long-

term learning. Using a virtual driving environment, Shinoda et al. asked participants to look for 

stop signs while driving an urban route.
(29)

 Approximately 45 percent of the fixations fell in the 

general area of intersections during the simulated drive, and participants were more likely to 

detect stop signs placed near intersections than those placed in the middle of a block. Over time, 

drivers have learned that stop signs are more likely to appear near intersections and, as a result, 

drivers prioritize their allocation of gazes to these areas of the roadway. 

The Tatler et al. review of the literature concludes that in natural vision, a consistent set of 

principles underlies eye guidance. These principles include relevance or reward potential, 

uncertainty about the state of the environment, and learned models of the environment.
(21)

 

Salience of environmental stimuli alone typically does not explain most eye gaze behavior in 

naturalistic environments. 

In sum, most of the literature concerning eye gaze behavior in dynamic environments suggests 

that task demands tend to override visual salience in determining attention allocation. When 

extended to driving, it would be expected that visual attention will be directed toward task-

relevant areas and objects (e.g., the roadway, other vehicles, speed limit signs, etc.) and other 

37



12 

salient objects, such as billboards, will not necessarily capture attention. However, driving is a 

somewhat automatic process and conditions generally do not require constant undivided 

attention. As a result, salient stimuli, such as CEVMS, might capture driver attention and provide 

an unwarranted increase in driver distraction. The present study addresses this concern. 

Research Questions 

The present research evaluated the effects of CEVMS on driver visual behavior under actual 

roadway conditions in the daytime and at night. Roads containing CEVMS, standard billboards, 

and areas not containing off-premise advertising were selected. The CEVMS and standard 

billboards were measured with respect to luminance, location, size, and other relevant visual 

characteristics. The present study examined CEVMS as deployed in two United States cities. 

Unlike previous studies, the signs did not contain dynamic video or other dynamic elements. In 

addition, the eye tracking system used in this study has approximately a 2-degree level of 

resolution. This provided significantly more accuracy in determining what objects the drivers 

were looking at than in previous on-road studies examining looking behavior (recall that Lee et 

al. used video recordings of drivers’ faces that, at best, examined gross eye movements).
(9)

 

Two studies are reported. Each study was conducted in a different city. The two studies 

employed the same methodology. The studies’ primary research questions were:  

1. Do CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway and other driving 

relevant stimuli? 

2. Do glances to CEVMS occur that would suggest a decrease in safety? 

3. Do drivers look at CEVMS more than at standard billboards? 

  

38



13 

EXPERIMENTAL APPROACH 

The study used a field research vehicle equipped with a non-intrusive eye tracking system. The 

vehicle was a 2007 Jeep® Grand Cherokee Sport Utility Vehicle. The eye tracking system used 

(SmartEye® vehicle-mounted infrared (IR) eye-movement measuring system) is shown in figure 

1.
(30)

 The system consists of two IR light sources and three face cameras mounted on the 

dashboard of the vehicle. The cameras and light sources are small in size, and are not attached to 

the driver in any manner. The face cameras are synchronized to the IR light sources and are used 

to determine the head position and gaze direction of the driver.  

 
Figure 1. Eye tracking system camera placement. 

As a part of this eye tracking system, the vehicle was outfitted with a three-camera panoramic 

scene monitoring system for capturing the forward driving scene. The scene cameras were 

mounted on the roof of the vehicle directly above the driver’s head position. The three cameras 

together provided an 80-degree wide by 40-degree high field of forward view. The scene 

cameras captured the forward view area available to the driver through the left side of the 

windshield and a portion of the right side of the windshield. The area visible to the driver 

through the rightmost area of the windshield was not captured by the scene cameras.  

The vehicle was also outfitted with equipment to record GPS position, vehicle speed, and vehicle 

acceleration. The equipment also recorded events entered by an experimenter and synchronized 

those events with the eye tracking and vehicle data. The research vehicle is pictured in figure 2. 

39



14 

 
Figure 2. FHWA’s field research vehicle. 

EXPERIMENTAL DESIGN OVERVIEW 

The approach entailed the use of the instrumented vehicle in which drivers navigated routes in 

cities that presented CEVMS and standard billboards as well as areas without off-premise 

advertising. The participants were instructed to drive the routes as they normally would. The 

drivers were not informed that the study was about outdoor advertising, but rather that it was 

about examining drivers’ glance behavior as they followed route guidance directions.  

Site Selection 

More than 40 cities were evaluated in the selection of the test sites. Locations with CEVMS 

displays were identified using a variety of resources that included State department of 

transportation contacts, advertising company Web sites, and a popular geographic information 

system. A matrix was developed that listed the number of CEVMS in each city. For each site, the 

number of CEVMS along limited access and arterial roadways was determined.  

One criterion for site selection was whether the location had practical routes that pass by a 

number of CEVMS as well as standard off-premise billboards and could be driven in about 

30 minutes. Other considerations included access to vehicle maintenance personnel/facilities, 

proximity to research facilities, and ease of participant recruitment. Two cities were selected: 

Reading, and Richmond. 

Table 1 presents the 16 cities that were included on the final list of potential study sites.  

  

40



15 

Table 1. Distribution of CEVMS by roadway classification for various cities. 

State Area Limited Access Arterial Other 
(1)

 Total 

VA Richmond 4 7 0 11 

PA Reading 7 11 0 18 

VA Roanoke 0 11 0 11 

PA Pittsburgh 0 0 15 15 

TX San Antonio 7 2 6 15 

WI Milwaukee 14 2 0 16 

AZ Phoenix 10 6 0 16 

MN St. Paul/Minneapolis 8 5 3 16 

TN Nashville 7 10 0 17 

FL Tampa-St. Petersburg 7 11 0 18 

NM Albuquerque 0 19 1 20 

PA Scranton-Wilkes Barre 7 14 1 22 

OH Columbus 1 22 0 23 

GA Atlanta 13 11 0 24 

IL Chicago 22 2 1 25 

CA Los Angeles 3 71 4 78 

(1) Other includes roadways classified as both limited access and arterial or instances where the road 

classification was unknown. Source: www.lamar.com and www.clearchannel.com 

In both test cities, the following independent variables were evaluated: 

 The type of advertising. This included CEVMS, standard billboards, and no off-premise 

advertising. (It should be noted that in areas with no off-premise advertising, it was still 

possible to encounter on-premise advertising; e.g., for gas stations, restaurants, and other 

miscellaneous stores and shops.)  

 Time of day. This included driving in the daytime and at night. 

 The functional class of roadways in which off-premise advertising signs were 

located. Roads were classified as either freeway or arterial. It was observed that the 

different road classes were correlated with the presence of other visual information that 

could affect the driver’s glance behavior. For example, the visual environment on 

arterials may be more complex or cluttered than on freeways because of the close 

proximity of buildings, driveways, and on-premise advertising, etc. 

  

41



16 

READING 

The first on-road study was conducted in Reading. This study examined the type of advertising 

(CEVMS, standard billboard, or no off-premise advertising), time of day (day or night) and road 

type (freeway or arterial) as independent variables. Eye tracking was used to assess where 

participants gazed and for how long while driving. The luminance and contrast of the advertising 

signs were measured to characterize the billboards in the current study.  

METHOD 

Selection of Data Collection Zone Limits 

Data collection zones (DCZ) were defined on the routes that participants drove where detailed 

analyses of the eye tracking data were planned. The DCZ were identified that contained a 

CEVMS, a standard billboard, or no off-premise advertising.  

The rationale for selecting the DCZ limits took into account the geometry of the roadway (e.g., 

road curvature or obstructions that blocked view of billboards) and the capabilities of the eye 

tracking system (2 degrees of resolution). At a distance of 960 ft (292.61 m), the average 

billboard in Reading was 12.8 ft (3.90 m) by 36.9 ft (11.25 m) and would subtend a horizontal 

visual angle of 2.20 degrees and a vertical visual angle of 0.76 degrees, and thus glances to the 

billboard would just be resolvable by an eye tracking system with 2 degrees of accuracy. 

Therefore 960 ft was chosen as the maximum distance from billboards at which a DCZ would 

begin. If the target billboard was not visible from 960 ft (292.61 m) due to roadway geometry or 

other visual obstructions, such as trees or an overpass, the DCZ was shortened to a distance that 

prevented these objects from interfering with the driver’s vision of the billboard. In DCZs with 

target off-premise billboards, the end of the DCZ was marked when the target billboard left the 

view of the scene camera. If the area contained no off-premise advertising, the end of the DCZ 

was defined by a physical landmark leaving the view of the eye tracking systems’ scene camera. 

Table 2 shows the data collection zone limits used in this study. 

Advertising Conditions 

The type of advertising present in DCZs was examined as an independent variable. DCZs fell 

into one of the following categories, which are listed in the second column of table 2:  

 CEVMS. These were DCZs that contained one target CEVMS. Two CEVMS DCZs were 

located on freeways and two were located on arterials. Figure 3 and figure 4 show 

examples of CEVMS DCZs with the CEVMS highlighted in the pictures. 

 Standard billboard. These were DCZs that contained one target standard billboard. Two 

standard billboard DCZs were located on freeways and two were located on arterials. 

Figure 5 and figure 6 show examples of standard billboard DCZs; the standard billboards 

are highlighted in the pictures. 

42



17 

 No off-premise advertising conditions. These DCZs contained no off-premise 

advertising. One of these DCZs was on a freeway (see figure 7) and the other was on an 

arterial (see figure 8). 

Table 2. Inventory of target billboards with relevant parameters. 

DCZ 
Advertising 

Type 

Copy 

Dimensions 

(ft) 

Side of 

Road 

Setback 

from Road 

(ft) 

Other 

Standard 

Billboards 

Approach 

Length (ft) 

Type of 

Roadway 

1 CONTROL N/A N/A N/A N/A 786 Freeway 

6 CONTROL N/A N/A N/A N/A 308 Arterial 

3 CEVMS 10'6" x 22'9" L 12 0 375 Arterial 

5 CEVMS 14'0" x 48'0" L 133 1 853 Freeway 

9 CEVMS 10'6" x 22'9" R 43 0 537 Arterial 

10 CEVMS 14'0" x 48'0" R 133 1 991 Freeway 

2 Standard 14'0" x 48'0" L 20 0 644 Arterial 

7 Standard 14'0" x 48'0" R 35 1 774 Freeway 

8 Standard 10'6" x 22'9" R 40 1 833 Arterial 

4 Standard 14'0" x 48'0" L 10 0 770 Freeway 

*N/A indicates that there were no off-premise advertising in these areas and these values are undefined. 

 

 
Figure 3. DCZ with a target CEVMS on a freeway. 

 

43



18 

 

 
Figure 4. DCZ with a target CEVMS on an arterial. 

 

 
Figure 5. DCZ with a target standard billboard on a freeway. 

 

 
Figure 6. DCZ with a target standard billboard on an arterial. 

 

44



19 

 
Figure 7. DCZ for the control condition on a freeway. 

 

 
Figure 8. DCZ for the control condition on an arterial. 

Photometric Measurement of Signs 

Two primary metrics were used to describe the photometric characteristics of a sample of the 

CEVMS and standard billboards present at each location: luminance (cd/m
2
) and contrast (Weber 

contrast ratio). 

Photometric Equipment  

Luminance was measured with a Radiant Imaging ProMetric 1600 Charge-Coupled Device 

(CCD) photometer with both a 50 mm and a 300 mm lenses. The CCD photometer provided a 

method of capturing the luminance of an entire scene at one time. 

The photometric sensors were mounted in a vehicle of similar size to the eye tracking research 

vehicle. The photometer was located in the experimental vehicle as close to the driver’s position 

as possible and was connected to a laptop computer that stored data as the images were acquired. 

Measurement Methodology 

Images of the billboards were acquired using the photometer manufacturer’s software. The 

software provided the mean luminance of each billboard message. To prevent overexposure of 

45



20 

images in daylight, neutral density filters were manually affixed to the photometer lens and the 

luminance values were scaled appropriately. Standard billboards were typically measured only 

once; however, for CEVMS multiple measures were taken to account for changing content. 

Photometric measurements were taken during day and night. Measurements were taken by 

centering the billboard in the photometer’s field of view with approximately the equivalent of the 

width of the billboard on each side and the equivalent of the billboard height above and below 

the sign. The areas outside of the billboards were included to enable contrast calculations.   

Standard billboards were assessed at a mean distance of 284 ft (ranging from 570 ft to 43 ft). The 

CEVMS were assessed at a mean distance of 479 ft (ranging from 972 ft to 220 ft). To include 

the background regions of appropriate size, the close measurement distances required the use of 

the 50 mm lens whereas measurements made from longer distances required the 300 mm lens. A 

significant determinant of the measurement locations was the availability of accessible and safe 

places from which to measure. 

The Weber contrast ratio was used because it characterizes a billboard as having negative or 

positive contrast when compared to its background area.
(31)

 A negative contrast indicates the 

background areas have a higher mean luminance than the target billboard. A positive contrast 

indicates the target billboard has a higher mean luminance than the background. Overall, the 

absolute value of a contrast ratio simply indicates a difference in luminance between an item and 

its background. From a perceptual perspective luminance and contrast are directly related to the 

perception of brightness. For example, two signs with equal luminance may be perceived 

differently with respect to brightness because of differences in contrast. 

Visual Complexity 

Regan, Young, Lee and Gordon presented a taxonomic description of the various sources of 

driver distraction.
(32)

 Potential sources of distraction were discussed in terms of: things brought 

into the vehicle; vehicle systems; vehicle occupants; moving objects or animals in the vehicle; 

internalized activity; and external objects, events, or activities. The external objects may include 

buildings, construction zones, billboards, road signs, vehicles, and so on. Focusing on the 

potential for information outside the vehicle to attract (or distract) the driver’s attention, 

Horberry and Edquist developed a taxonomy for out-of-the-vehicle visual information. This 

suggested taxonomy includes four groupings of visual information: built roadway, situational 

entities, natural environment, and built environment.
(33)

 These two taxonomies provide an 

organizational structure for conducting research; however, they do not currently provide a 

systematic or quantitative way of classifying the level of clutter or visual complexity present in a 

visual scene.  

The method proposed by Rozenholtz, Li, and Nakano provides quantitative and perhaps reliable 

measures of visual clutter.
(34)

 Their approach measures the feature congestion in a visual image. 

The implementation of the feature congestion measure involves four stages: (1) compute local 

feature covariance at multiple scales and compute the volume of the local covariance ellipsoid, 

(2) combine clutter across scale, (3) combine clutter across feature types, and (4) pool over space 

to get a single measure of clutter for each input image. The implementation that was used 

employed color, orientation and luminance contrast as features. Presumably, less cluttered 

46



21 

images can be visually coded more efficiently than cluttered images. For example, visual clutter 

can cause decreased recognition performance and greater difficulty in performing visual 

search.
(35)

  

Participants 

In the present study participants were recruited at public libraries in the Reading area. A table 

was set up so that recruiters could discuss the requirements of the experiment with candidates. 

Individuals who expressed interest in participating were asked to complete a pre-screening form, 

a record of informed consent, and a department of motor vehicles form consenting to release of 

their driving record.  

All participants were between 18 and 64 years of age and held a valid driver’s license. The 

driving record for each volunteer was evaluated to eliminate drivers with excessive violations. 

The criteria for excluding drivers were as follows: (a) more than one violation in the preceding 

year; (b) more than three recorded violations; and (c) any driving while intoxicated violation.  

Forty-three individuals were recruited to participate. Of these, five did not complete the drive 

because the eye tracker could not be calibrated to track their eye movements accurately. Data 

from an additional seven participants were excluded as the result of equipment failures (e.g., 

loose camera). In the end, usable data was collected from 31 participants (12 males, M = 46 

years; 19 females, M = 47 years). Fourteen participants drove at night and 17 drove during the 

day. 

Procedures 

Data were collected from two participants per day (beginning at approximately 12:45 p.m. and 

7:00 p.m.). Data collection began on September 18, 2009, and was completed on October 26, 

2009.  

Pre-Data Collection Activities  

Participants were greeted by two researchers and asked to complete a fitness to drive 

questionnaire. This questionnaire focused on drivers’ self-reports of alertness and use of 

substances that might impair driving (e.g., alcohol). All volunteers appeared fit.  

Next, the participant and both researchers moved to the eye tracking calibration location and the 

test vehicle. The calibration procedure took approximately 20 minutes. Calibration of the eye 

tracking system entailed development of a profile for each participant. This was accomplished by 

taking multiple photographs of the participant’s face as they slowly rotate their head from side to 

side. The saved photographs include points on the face for subsequent real-time head and eye 

tracking. Marked coordinates on the face photographs were edited by the experimenter as needed 

to improve the real-time face tracking. The procedure also included gaze calibration in which 

participants gazed at nine points on a wall. These points had been carefully plotted on the wall 

and correspond to the points in the eye tracking system’s world model. Gaze calibration relates 

the individual participant’s gaze vectors to known points in the real world. The eye tracking 

system uses two pulsating infrared sources mounted on the dashboard to create two corneal glints 

that are used to calculate gaze direction vectors. The glints were captured at 60 Hz. A second set 

47



22 

of cameras (scene cameras), fixed on top of the car close to the driver’s viewpoint, were used to 

produce a video scene of the area ahead. The scene cameras recorded at 25 Hz. A parallax 

correction algorithm compensated for the distance between the driver’s viewpoint and the scene 

cameras so that later processing could use the gaze vectors to show where in the forward scene 

the driver was gazing.  

If it was not possible to calibrate the eye tracking system to a participant, the participant was 

dismissed and paid for their time. Causes of calibration failure included reflections from eye 

glasses, participant height (which put their eyes outside the range of the system), and eyelids that 

obscure a portion of the pupil.  

Practice 

After eye-tracker calibration, a short practice drive was made. Participants were shown a map of 

the route and written turn-by-turn directions prior to beginning the practice drive. Throughout the 

drive, verbal directions were provided by a GPS device.  

During the practice drive, a researcher in the rear seat of the vehicle monitored the accuracy of 

eye tracking. If the system was tracking poorly, additional calibration was performed. If the 

calibration could not be improved, the participant was paid for their time and dismissed. 

Data Collection  

Participants drove two test routes (referred to as route A and B). Each route required 25 to 30 

minutes to complete and included both freeway and arterial segments. Route A was 13 miles 

long and contained 6 DCZs. Route B was 16 miles long and contained 4 DCZs. Combined, 

participants drove in a total of 10 DCZs. Similar to the practice drive, participants were shown a 

map of the route and written turn-by-turn directions. A GPS device provided turn-by-turn 

guidance during the drive. Roughly one half of the participants drove route A first and the 

remaining participants began with route B. A 5 minute break followed the completion of the first 

route. 

During the drives, a researcher in the front passenger seat assisted the driver when additional 

route guidance was required. The researcher was also tasked with recording near misses and 

driver errors if these occurred. The researcher in the rear seat monitored the performance of the 

eye tracker. If the eye tracker performance became unacceptable (i.e., loss of calibration), then 

the researcher in the rear asked the participant to park in a safe location so that the eye tracker 

could be recalibrated. This recalibration typically took a minute or two to accomplish. 

Debriefing 

After driving both routes, the participants provided comments regarding their drives. The 

comments were in reference to the use of a navigation system. No questions were asked about 

billboards. The participants were given $120.00 in cash for their participation.  

48



23 

DATA REDUCTION 

Eye Tracking Measures 

The Multiple-Analysis of Psychophysical and Performance Signals (MAPPS™) software was 

used to reduce the eye tracking data.
(36)

 The software integrates the video output from the scene 

cameras with the output from the eye tracking software (e.g., gaze vectors). The analysis 

software provides an interface in which the gaze vectors determined by the eye tracker can be 

related to areas or objects in the scene camera view of the world. Analysts can indicate regions of 

interest (ROIs) in the scene camera views and the analysis software then assigns gaze vectors to 

the ROIs.   

Figure 9 shows a screen capture from the analysis software in which static ROIs have been 

identified. These static ROIs slice up the scene camera views into six areas. The software also 

allows for the construction of dynamic ROIs. These are ROIs that move in the video because of 

own-vehicle movement (e.g., a sign changes position on the display as it is approached by the 

driver) or because the object moves over time independent of own-vehicle movement (e.g., 

pedestrian walking along the road, vehicle entering or exiting the road). 

Static ROIs need only be entered once for the scenario being analyzed whereas dynamic ROIs 

need to be entered several times for a given DCZ depending on how the object moves along the 

video scene; however, not every frame needs to be coded with a dynamic ROI since the software 

interpolates across frames using the 60-Hz data to compute eye movement statistics. 

 

Figure 9. Screen capture showing static ROIs on a scene video output. 

The following ROIs were defined with the analysis software: 

Static ROIs 

These ROIs were entered once into the software for each participant. The static ROIs for the 

windshield were divided into top and bottom to have more resolution during the coding process. 

The subsequent analyses in the report combines the top and bottom portion of these ROIs since it 

appeared that this additional level of resolution was not needed in order to address research 

questions: 

 Road ahead: bottom portion (approximately 2/3) of the area of the forward roadway 

(center camera). 

49



24 

 Road ahead top: top portion (approximately 1/3) of the area of the forward roadway 

(center camera). 

 Right side of road bottom: bottom portion (approximately 2/3) of the area to the right of 

the forward roadway (right camera). 

 Right side of road top: top portion (approximately 1/3) of the area to the right of the 

forward roadway (right camera). 

 Left side of road bottom (LSR_B): bottom portion (approximately 2/3) of the area to the 

left of the forward roadway (left camera). 

 Left side of road bottom (LSR_T): top portion (approximately 1/3) of the area to the left 

of the forward roadway (left camera). 

 Inside vehicle: below the panoramic video scene (outside of the view of the cameras, but 

eye tracking is still possible). 

 Top: above the panoramic video scene (outside of the view of the cameras, but eye 

tracking is still possible). 

Dynamic ROIs 

These ROIs are created multiple times within a DCZ for stimuli that move relative to the driver: 

 Driving-related safety risk: vehicle which posed a potential safety risk to the driver, 

defined as a car that is/may turn into the driver’s direction of travel at a non-signalized or 

non-stop-controlled intersection (e.g., a car making a U-turn, a car waiting to turn right, 

or a car waiting to turn left). These vehicles were actively turning or entering the roadway 

or appeared to be in a position to enter the roadway.  

 Target standard billboard: target standard billboard that defines the start and end of the 

DCZ. 

 Other standard billboard: standard billboard(s) located in the DCZ, other than the target 

standard billboard or the target digital billboard. 

 CEVMS: target digital billboard that defines the start and end of the DCZ. 

The software determines the gaze intersection for each 60 Hz frame and assigns it to an ROI. In 

subsequent analyses and discussion, gaze intersections are referred to as gazes. Since ROIs may 

overlap, the software allows for the specification of priority for each ROI such that the ROI with 

the highest priority gets the gaze vector intersection assigned to it. For example, an ROI for a 

CEVMS may also be in the static ROI for the road ahead.  

50



25 

The 60 Hz temporal resolution of the eye tracking software does not provide sufficient 

information to make detailed analysis of saccade characteristics,
1
 such as latency or speed. The 

analysis software uses three parameters in the determination of a fixation: a fixation radius, 

fixation duration, and a time out. The determination begins with a single-gaze vector 

intersection. Any subsequent intersection within a specified radius will be considered part of a 

fixation if the minimum fixation duration criterion is met. The radius parameter used in this 

study was 2 degrees and the minimum duration was 100 ms. The 2-degree selection was based 

on the estimated accuracy of the eye tracking system, as recommended by Recarte and Nunes.
(37)

 

The 100 ms minimum duration is consistent with many other published studies; however, some 

investigators use minimums of as little as 60 ms.
(37,38)

 Because of mini-saccades and noise in the 

eye tracking system, it is possible to have brief excursions outside the 2 degree window for a 

fixation. In this study, an excursion time outside the 2-degree radius of less than 90 ms was 

ignored. Once the gaze intersection fell outside the 2-degree radius of a fixation for more than 

90 ms, the process of identifying a fixation began anew. 

Other Measures 

Driving Behavior Measures 

During data collection, the front-seat researcher observed the driver’s behavior and the driving 

environment. The researcher used the following subjective categories in observing the 

participant’s driving behavior: 

 Driver Error: signified any error on behalf of the driver in which the researcher felt 

slightly uncomfortable, but not to a significant degree (e.g., driving on an exit ramp too 

quickly, turning too quickly). 

 Near Miss: signified any event in which the researcher felt uncomfortable due to driver 

response to external sources (e.g., slamming on brakes, swerving). A near miss is the 

extreme case of a driver error. 

 Incident: signified any event in the roadway which may have had a potential impact on 

the attention of the driver and/or the flow of traffic (e.g., crash, emergency vehicle, 

animal, construction, train). 

These observations were entered into a notebook computer linked to the research vehicle data 

collection system.  

Level of Service Estimates  

For each participant and each DCZ the analyst estimated the level of service of the road as they 

reviewed the scene camera video. One location per DCZ was selected (approximately halfway 

through the DCZ) where the number of vehicles in front of the research vehicle was counted. 

The procedure entailed (1) counting the number of travel lanes visible in the video, (2) using the 

                                                 
1
 During visual scanning, the point of gaze alternates between brief pauses (ocular fixations) and rapid shifts 

(saccades). 

51



26 

skip lines on the road to estimate the approximate distance in front of the vehicle that constituted 

the analysis zone, and (3) counting the number of vehicles present within the analysis zone. 

Vehicle density was calculated with the formula: 

Vehicle Density = [(Number of Vehicles in Analysis Zone)/(Distance of Analysis 

Zone in ft/5280)]/Number of Lanes.  

Vehicle density is the number of vehicles per mile per lane. 

Vehicle Speed  

The speed of the research vehicle was recorded with GPS and a distance measurement 

instrument. Vehicle speed was used principally to ensure that the eye tracking data was recorded 

while the vehicle was in motion. 

RESULTS 

Results are presented with respect to the photometric measures of signs, the visual complexity of 

the DCZs, and the eye tracking measures. Photometric measurements were taken and analyzed to 

characterize the billboards in the study based on their luminance and contrasts, which are related 

to how bright the signs are perceived to be by drivers. 

Photometric Measurements 

Luminance  

The mean daytime luminance of both the standard billboards and CEVMS was greater than at 

night. Nighttime luminance measurements reflect the fact that CEVMS use illuminating LED 

components while standard billboards are often illuminated from below by metal halide lamps. 

At night, CEVMS have a greater average luminance than standard billboards. Table 3 presents 

summary statistics for luminance as a function of time of day for the CEVMS and standard 

billboards.  

Contrast 

The daytime and nighttime Weber contrast ratios for both types of billboards are shown in table 

3. Both CEVMS and standard billboards had contrast ratios that were close to zero (the 

surroundings were about equal in brightness to the signs) during the daytime. On the other hand, 

at night the CEVMS and standard billboards had positive contrast ratios (the signs were brighter 

than the surrounding), with the CEVMS having higher contrast than the standard billboards. 

52



27 

Table 3. Summary of luminance (cd/m
2
) and contrast (Weber ratio) measurements. 

 Luminance (cd/m
2
) Contrast 

Day Mean St. Dev. Mean St .Dev. 

CEVMS  2126 798.81 -0.10 0.54 

Standard Billboard 2993 2787.22 -0.27 0.84 

Night     

CEVMS 56.00 23.16 73.72 56.92 

Standard Billboard 17.80 17.11 36.01 30.93 

 

Visual Complexity 

The DCZs were characterized by their overall visual complexity or clutter. For each DCZ, five 

pictures were taken from the driver’s viewpoint at various locations within the DCZ. In Reading, 

the pictures were taken from 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. In Richmond, one route was photographed 

from 11:00 a.m. to noon and the other from 2:30 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. The pictures were taken at the 

start of the DCZ, quarter of the way through, half of the way through, three quarters of the way 

through, and at the end of the DCZ. The photographs were analyzed with MATLAB® routines 

that computed a measure of feature congestion for each image. Figure 10 shows the mean feature 

congestion measures for each of the DCZ environments. The arterial control condition was 

shown to have the highest level of clutter as measured by feature congestion. An analysis of 

variance was performed on the feature congestion measure to determine if the conditions differed 

significantly from each other. The four conditions with off-premise advertising did not differ 

significantly with respect to feature congestion; F(3,36) = 1.25, p > 0.05. Based on the feature 

congestion measure, the results indicate that the four conditions with off-premise advertising 

were equated with respect to the overall visual complexity of the driving scenes. 

 
Figure 10. Mean feature congestion as a function of advertising condition and road type 

(standard errors for the mean are included in the graph). 

53



28 

Effects of Billboards on Gazes to the Road Ahead 

For each 60 Hz frame, a determination was made as to the direction of the gaze vector. Previous 

research has shown that gazes do not need to be separated into saccades and fixations before 

calculating such measures as percent of time or the probability of looking to the road ahead.
(39)

 

This analysis examines the degree to which drivers gaze toward the road ahead across the 

different advertising conditions as a function of road type and time of day. Gazing toward the 

road ahead is critical for driving, and so the analysis examines the degree to which gazes toward 

this area are affected by the independent variables (advertising type, type of road, and time of 

day) and their interactions. 

Generalized estimating equations (GEE) were used to analyze the probability of a participant 

gazing at driving-related information.
(40,41)

 The data for these analyses were not normally 

distributed and included repeated measures. The GEE model is appropriate for these types of 

data and analyses. Note that for all results included in this report, Wald statistics were the chosen 

alternative to likelihood ratio statistics because GEE uses quasi-likelihood instead of maximum 

likelihood.
(42)

 For this analysis, road ahead included the following ROIs (as previously described 

and displayed in figure 9): road ahead, road ahead top, and driving-related risks. A logistic 

regression model for repeated measures was generated by using a binomial response distribution 

and Logit (i.e., log odds) link function. Only two possible outcomes are allowed when selecting a 

binomial response distribution. Thus, a variable (RoadAhead) was created to classify a 

participant’s gaze behavior. If the participant gazed toward the road ahead, road ahead top, or 

driving-related risks, then the value of RoadAhead was set to one. If the participant gazed at any 

other object in the panoramic scene, then the value of RoadAhead was set to zero. Logistic 

regression typically models the probability of a success. In the current analysis, a success would 

be a gaze to road ahead information (RoadAhead = 1) and a failure would be a gaze toward non-

road ahead information (RoadAhead = 0). The resultant value was the probability of a participant 

gazing at road-ahead information. 

Time of day (day or night), road type (freeway or arterial), advertising condition (CEVMS, 

standard billboard, or control), and all corresponding second-order interactions were explanatory 

variables in the logistic regression model. The interaction of advertising condition by road type 

was statistically significant, χ
2 

(2) = 6.3, p = 0.043. Table 4 shows the corresponding 

probabilities for gazing at the road ahead as a function of advertising condition and road type.  

Table 4. The probability of gazing at the road ahead as a function of advertising condition 

and road type. 

Advertising Condition Arterial Freeway 

Control 0.92 0.86 

CEVMS 0.82 0.73 

Standard 0.80 0.77 

 

Follow-up analyses for the interaction used Tukey-Kramer adjustments with an alpha level of 

0.05. The arterial control condition had the greatest probability of looking at the road ahead 

(M = 0.92). This probability differed significantly from the remaining five probabilities. On 

54



29 

arterials, the probability of gazing at the road ahead did not differ between the CEVMS 

(M = 0.82) and the standard billboard (M = 0.80) DCZs. In contrast, there was a significant 

difference in this probability on freeways, where standard billboard DCZs yielded a higher 

probability (M = 0.77) than CEVMS DCZs (M = 0.73). The probability of gazing at the road 

ahead was also significantly higher in the freeway control DCZ (M = 0.86) than in either of the 

corresponding freeway off-premise advertising DCZs. The probability of gazing at road-ahead 

information in arterial CEVMS DCZs was not statistically different from the same probability in 

the freeway control DCZ. 

Additional descriptive statistics were computed to determine the probability of gazing at the 

various ROIs that were defined in the panoramic scene. Some of the ROIs depicted in figure 9 

were combined in the following fashion for ease of analysis: 

 Road ahead, road ahead top, and driving-related risks combined to form road ahead.  

 Left side of road bottom and left side of road top combined to form left side of vehicle.  

 Right side of road bottom and right side of road top combined to form right side of 

vehicle.  

 Inside vehicle and top combined to form participant vehicle.  

Table 5 presents the probability of gazing at the different ROIs. 

Table 5. Probability of gazing at ROIs for the three advertising conditions on arterials and 

freeways. 

Road Type ROI CEVMS 

Standard 

Billboard Control 

Arterial CEVMS 0.07 N/A N/A 

 Left Side of Vehicle 0.06 0.06 0.02 

 Road ahead 0.82 0.80 0.92 

 Right Side of Vehicle 0.03 0.06 0.04 

 Standard Billboard N/A 0.03 N/A 

 Participant Vehicle 0.03 0.05 0.02 

Freeway CEVMS 0.05 N/A N/A 

 Left Side of Vehicle 0.08 0.07 0.04 

 Road ahead 0.73 0.77 0.86 

 Right Side of Vehicle 0.09 0.02 0.05 

 Standard Billboard 0.02* 0.09 N/A 

 Participant Vehicle 0.04 0.05 0.05 

* The CEVMS DCZs on freeways each contained one visible standard billboard. 

The probability of gazing away from the forward roadway ranged from 0.08 to 0.27. In 

particular, the probability of gazing toward a CEVMS was greater on arterials (M = 0.07) than on 

freeways (M = 0.05). In contrast, the probability of gazing toward a target standard billboard was 

greater on freeways (M = 0.09) than on arterials (M = 0.03). 

55



30 

Fixations to CEVMS and Standard Billboards 

About 2.4 percent of the fixations were to CEVMS. The mean fixation duration to a CEVMS 

was 388 ms and the maximum duration was 1,251 ms. Figure 11 shows the distribution of 

fixation durations to CEVMS during the day and night. In the daytime, the mean fixation 

duration to a CEVMS was 389 ms and at night it was 387 ms. Figure 12 shows the distribution of 

fixation durations to standard billboards. Approximately 2.4 percent of fixations were to standard 

billboards. The mean fixation duration to standard billboards was 341 ms during the daytime and 

370 ms at night. The maximum fixation duration to standard billboards was 1,284 ms (which 

occurred at night). For comparison purposes, figure 13 shows the distribution of fixation 

durations to the road ahead (i.e., top and bottom road ahead ROIs) during the day and night. In 

the daytime, the mean fixation duration to the road ahead was 365 ms and at night it was 390 ms.  

 
Figure 11. Distribution of fixation duration for CEVMS in the daytime and nighttime. 

56



31 

 
Figure 12. Distribution of fixation duration for standard billboards in the daytime and 

nighttime. 

 
Figure 13. Distribution of fixation duration for road ahead (i.e., top and bottom road ahead 

ROIs) in the daytime and nighttime. 

57



32 

Dwell times on CEVMS and standard billboards were also examined. Dwell time is the duration 

of back-to-back fixations to the same ROI.
(43,44)

 The dwell times represent the cumulative time 

for the back-to-back fixations. Whereas there may be no long, single fixation to a billboard, there 

might still be multiple fixations that yield long dwell times. There were a total of 25 separate 

instances of multiple fixations to CEVMS with a mean of 2.4 fixations (minimum of 2 and 

maximum of 5). The 25 dwell times came from 15 different participants distributed across four 

different CEVMS. The mean duration of these dwell times was 994 ms (minimum of 418 ms and 

maximum of 1,467 ms).  

For standard billboards, there were a total of 17 separate dwell times with a mean of 3.47 

sequential fixations (minimum of 2 fixations and maximum of 8 fixations). The 17 dwell times 

came from 11 different participants distributed across 4 different standard billboards. The mean 

duration of these multiple fixations was 1,172 ms (minimum of 418 ms and maximum of 

3,319 ms). There were three dwell-time durations that were greater than 2,000 ms. These are 

described in more detail below. 

In some cases several dwell times came from the same participant. In order to compute a statistic 

on the difference between dwell times for CEVMS and standard billboards, average dwell times 

were computed per participant for the CEVMS and standard billboard conditions. These average 

values were used in a t-test assuming unequal variances. The difference in average dwell time 

between CEVMS (M = 981 ms) and standard billboards (M= 1,386 ms) was not statistically 

significant, t(12) = -1.40, p > .05. 

Figure 14 through figure 23 show heat maps for the dwell-time durations to the standard 

billboards that were greater than 2,000 ms. These heat maps are snapshots from the DCZ and 

attempt to convey in two dimensions the pattern of gazes that took place in a three dimensional 

world. The heat maps are set to look back approximately one to two seconds and integrate over 

time where the participant was gazing in the scene camera video. The green color in the heat map 

indicates the concentration of gaze over the past one to two seconds. The blue line indicates the 

gaze trail over the past one to two seconds. 

Figure 14 through figure 16 are for a DCZ on an arterial at night. The standard billboard was on 

the right side of the road (indicated by a pink rectangle). There were eight fixations to this 

billboard, and the single fixations were between 200 to 384 ms in duration. The dwell time for 

this billboard was 2,019 ms. At the start of the DCZ (see figure 14), the driver was directing 

his/her gaze to the forward roadway. Approaching the standard billboard, the driver began to 

fixate on the billboard. However, the billboard was still relatively close to the road ahead ROI. 

58



33 

 
Figure 14. Heat map for the start of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an arterial. 

 
Figure 15. Heat map for the middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an 

arterial. 

 

 
Figure 16. Heat map near the end of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on an arterial. 

Figure 17 through figure 19 are for a DCZ on a freeway at night. The standard billboard was on 

the right side of the road (indicated by a green rectangle). There were six consecutive fixations to 

this billboard, and the single fixations were between 200 and 801 ms in duration. The dwell time 

for this billboard was 2,753 ms. At the start of the DCZ (see figure 17), the driver was directing 

his/her gaze to a freeway guide sign in the road ahead and the standard billboard was to the left 

of the freeway guide sign. As the driver approached the standard billboard, his/her gaze was 

directed toward the billboard. The billboard was relatively close to the top and bottom road 

ahead ROIs. Near the end of the DCZ (see figure 19), the billboard was accurately portrayed as 

being on the right side of the road. 

59



34 

 
Figure 17. Heat map for start of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a freeway. 

 
Figure 18. Heat map for middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a freeway. 

 
Figure 19. Heat map near the end of a DCZ for a standard billboard at night on a freeway. 

Figure 20 through figure 23 are for a DCZ on a freeway during the day. The standard billboard 

was on the right side of the road (indicated by a pink rectangle). This is the same DCZ that was 

discussed in figure 17 through figure 19. There were six consecutive fixations to this billboard, 

and the single fixations were between 217 and 767 ms in duration. The dwell time for this 

billboard was 3,319 ms. At the start of the DCZ (see figure 20), the driver was principally 

directing his/her gaze to the road ahead. Figure 21 and figure 22 show the location along the 

DCZ where gaze was directed toward the standard billboard. The billboard was relatively close 

to the top and bottom road-ahead ROIs. As the driver passed the standard billboard, his/her gaze 

returned to the road ahead (see figure 23). 

60



35 

 
Figure 20. Heat map for the start of a DCZ for a standard billboard in the daytime on a 

freeway. 

 
Figure 21. Heat map near the middle of a DCZ for a standard billboard in the daytime on a 

freeway. 

 
Figure 22. Heat map near the end of DCZ for standard billboard in the daytime on a 

freeway. 

 
Figure 23. Heat map at the end of DCZ for standard billboard in the daytime on a freeway. 

61



36 

Comparison of Gazes to CEVMS and Standard Billboards 

The GEE were used to analyze whether a participant gazed more toward CEVMS than toward 

standard billboards, given that the participant was gazing at off-premise advertising. With this 

analysis method, a logistic regression model for repeated measures was generated by using a 

binomial response distribution and Logit link function. First, the data was partitioned to include 

only those instances when a participant was gazing toward off-premise advertising (either to a 

CEVMS or to a standard billboard); all other gaze behavior was excluded from the input data set. 

Only two possible outcomes are allowed when selecting a binomial response distribution. Thus, 

a variable (SBB_CEVMS) was created to classify a participant’s gaze behavior. If the participant 

gazed toward a CEVMS, the value of SBB_CEVMS was set to one. If the participant gazed 

toward a standard billboard, then the value of SBB_CEVMS was set to zero.  

Logistic regression typically models the probability of a success. In the current analysis, a 

success would be a gaze to a CEVMS (SBB_CEVMS = 1) and a failure would be a gaze to a 

standard billboard (SBB_CEVMS = 0).
2
 A success probability greater than 0.5 indicates there 

were more successes than failures in the sample. Therefore, if the sample probability of the 

response variable (i.e., SBB_CEVMS) was greater than 0.5, this would show that participants 

gazed more toward CEVMS than toward standard billboards when the participants gazed at off-

premise advertising. In contrast, if the sample probability of the response variable was less than 

0.5, then participants showed a preference to gaze more toward standard billboards than toward 

CEVMS when directing gazes to off-premise advertising. 

Time of day (i.e., day or night), road type (i.e., freeway or arterial), and the corresponding 

interaction were explanatory variables in the logistic regression model. Road type was the only 

predictor to have a significant effect, χ
2 

(1) = 13.17, p < 0.001. On arterials, participants gazed 

more toward CEVMS than toward standard billboards (M = 0.63). In contrast, participants gazed 

more toward standard billboards than toward CEVMS when driving on freeways (M = 0.33). 

Observation of Driver Behavior 

No near misses or driver errors were observed in Reading. 

Level of Service 

The mean vehicle densities were converted to level of service as shown in table 6.
(45)

 As 

expected, less congestion occurred at night than in the day. In general, there was traffic during 

the data collection runs. Review of the scene camera data verified that all eye tracking data 

within the DCZs were recorded while the vehicle was in motion.  

                                                 
2
 Success and failure are not used to reflect the merits of either type of sign, but only for statistical purposes. 

62



37 

Table 6. Level of service as a function of advertising type, road type, and time of day. 

 Arterial Freeway 

 Day Night Day Night 

Control B A C B 

CEVMS C A B A 

Standard A A B A 

 

DISCUSSION OF READING RESULTS 

Overall the probability of gazing at the road ahead was high and similar in magnitude to what 

has been found in other field studies addressing billboards.
(11,9,12)

 For the DCZs on freeways, 

CEVMS showed a lower proportion of gazes to the road ahead than the standard billboard 

condition, and both off-premise advertising conditions had lower probability of gazes to the road 

ahead than the control. On the other hand, on the arterials, the CEVMS and standard billboard 

conditions did not differ from each other but were significantly different from their respective 

control condition. Though the CEVMS condition on the freeway had the lowest proportion of 

gazes to the road ahead, in this condition there was a lower proportion of gazes to CEVMS as 

compared to the arterials (see table 5 for the trade-off of gazes to the different ROIs). A greater 

proportion of gazes to other ROIs (left side of the road, right side of the road, and participant 

vehicle) contributed to the decrease in proportion of gazes to the road ahead. Also, for the 

CEVMS on freeways, there were a few gazes to a standard billboard located in the same DCZ 

and there were more gazes distributed to the left and right side of the road than in standard 

billboard and control conditions. The gazes to ROIs other than CEVMS contributed to the lower 

probability of gazes to the road ahead in this condition. 

The control condition on the arterial had buildings along the sides of the road and generally 

presented a visually cluttered area. As was presented earlier, the feature congestion measure 

computed on a series of photographs from each DCZ showed a significantly higher feature 

congestion score for the control condition on arterials as compared to all of the other DCZs. 

Nevertheless, the highest probability for gazing at the road ahead was seen in the control 

condition on the arterial. 

The area with the highest feature congestion, especially on the sides of the road, had the highest 

probability for drivers looking at the road ahead. Bottom-up or stimulus driven measures of 

salience or visual clutter have been useful in predicting visual search and the effects of visual 

salience in laboratory tasks.
(34,46)

 These measures of salience basically consider the stimulus 

characteristics (e.g., size, color, brightness) independent of the requirements of the task or plans 

that an individual may have. Models of visual salience may predict that buildings and other 

prominent features on the side of the road may be visually salient objects and thus would attract 

a driver’s attention.
(47)

 Figure 24 shows an example of a roadway photograph that was analyzed 

with the Salience Toolbox based on the Itti et al. implementation of a saliency based model of 

bottom-up attention.
(48,49)

 The numbered circles in figure 24 are the first through fifth salient 

areas selected by the software. Based on this software, the most salient areas in the photographs 

are the buildings on the sides of the road where the road ahead (and a car) is the fifth selected 

salient area.  

63



38 

 
Figure 24. Example of identified salient areas in a road scene based on bottom-up analysis. 

It appears that in the present study participants principally kept their eyes on the road even in the 

presence of visual clutter on the sides of the road, which supports the hypothesis that drivers tend 

to look toward information relevant to the task at hand.
(50,26,22)

 In the case of the driving task, 

visual clutter may be more of an issue with respect to crowding that may affect the driver’s 

ability to detect visual information in the periphery.
(51)

 Crowding is generally defined as the 

negative effect of nearby objects or features on visual discrimination of a target.
(52)

 Crowding 

impairs the ability to recognize objects in clutter and principally affects perception in peripheral 

vision. However, crowing effects were not analyzed in the present study. 

Stimulus salience, clutter, and the nature of the task at hand interact in visual perception. For 

tasks such as driving, the task demands tend to outweigh stimulus salience when it comes to gaze 

control. Clutter may be more of an issue with the detection and recognition of objects in 

peripheral vision (e.g., detecting a sign on the side of the road) that are surrounded by other 

stimuli that result in a crowding effect. 

The mean fixation durations to CEVMS, standard billboards, and the road ahead were found to 

be very similar. Also, there were no long fixations (greater than 2,000 ms) to CEVMS or 

standard billboards. The examination of multiple sequential fixations to CEVMS yielded average 

dwell times that were less than 1,000 ms. However, when examining the tails of the distribution, 

there were three dwell times to standard billboards that were in excess of 2,000 ms (the three 

dwell times came from three different participants to two different billboards). These three 

standard billboards were dwelled upon when they were near the road ahead area but drivers quit 

gazing at the signs as they neared them and the signs were no longer near the forward field of 

view. Though there were three dwell times for standard billboards greater than 2,000 ms, the 

difference in average dwell times for CEVMS and standard billboards was not significant.  

Using a gaze duration of 2,000 ms away from the road ahead as a criterion indicative of 

increased risk has been developed principally as it relates to looking inside the vehicle to in-

vehicle information systems and other devices (e.g., for texting) where the driver is indeed 

looking completely away from the road ahead.
(14,53,54)

 The fixations to the standard billboards in 

the present case showed a long dwell time for a billboard. However, unlike gazing or fixating 

inside the vehicle, the driver’s gaze was within the forward roadway where peripheral vision 

could be used to monitor for hazards and for vehicle control. Peripheral vision has been shown to 

be important for lane keeping, visual search orienting, and monitoring of surrounding 

objects.
(55,56)

 

64



39 

The results showed that drivers were more likely to gaze at CEVMS on arterials and at standard 

billboards on freeways. Though every attempt was made to select CEVMS and standard 

billboard DCZs that were equated on important parameters (e.g., which side of the road the sign 

was located on, type of road, level of visual clutter), the CEVMS DCZs on freeways had a 

greater setback from the road (133 ft for both CEVMS) than the standard billboards (10 and 

35 ft). Signs with greater setback from the road would in a sense move out of the forward view 

(road ahead) more quickly than signs that are closer to the road. The CEVMS and standard 

billboards on the arterials were more closely matched with respect to setback from the road (12 

and 43 ft for CEVMS and 20 and 40 ft for standard billboards). 

The differences in setback from the road for CEVMS and standard billboards may also account 

for differences in dwell times to these two types of billboards. However, on arterials where the 

CEVMS and standard billboards were more closely matched there was only one long dwell time 

(greater than 2,000 ms) and it was to a standard billboard at night. 

  

65



40 

RICHMOND 

The objectives of the second study were the same as those in the first study, and the design of the 

Richmond data collection effort was very similar to that employed in Reading. This study was 

conducted to replicate as closely as possible the design of Reading in a different driving 

environment. The independent variables included the type of DCZ (CEVMS, standard billboard, 

or no off-premise advertising), time of day (day or night) and road type (freeway or arterial). As 

with Reading, the time of day was a between-subjects variable and the other variables were 

within subjects. 

METHOD 

Selection of DCZ Limits 

Selection of the DCZ limits procedure was the same as that employed in Reading. 

Advertising Type 

Three DCZ types (similar to those used in Reading) were used in Richmond:  

 CEVMS. DCZs contained one target CEVMS.  

 Standard billboard. DCZs contained one target standard billboard.  

 Control conditions. DCZs did not contain any off-premise advertising.  

There were an equal number of CEVMS and standard billboard DCZs on freeways and arterials. 

Also, there two DCZ that did not contain off-premise advertising with one located on a freeway 

and the other on an arterial.  

Table 7 is an inventory of the target employed in this second study. 

Table 7. Inventory of target billboards in Richmond with relevant parameters. 

DCZ 
Advertising 

Type 

Copy 

Dimensions 

(ft) 

Side of 

Road 

Setback 

from Road 

(ft) 

Other 

Standard 

Billboards 

Approach 

Length (ft) 

Roadway 

Type 

5 CONTROL N/A N/A N/A N/A 710 Arterial 

3 CONTROL N/A N/A N/A N/A 845 Freeway 

9 CEVMS 14'0" x 28'0"  L 37 0 696 Arterial 

13 CEVMS 14'0" x 28'0"  R 37 0 602 Arterial 

2 CEVMS 12'5" x 40'0"  R 91 0 297 Freeway 

8 CEVMS 11'0 x 23'0"  L 71 0 321 Freeway 

10 Standard 14'0" x 48'0"  L 79 1 857 Arterial 

12 Standard 10'6" x 45'3"  R 79 2 651 Arterial 

1 Standard 14'0" x 48'0"  L 87 0 997 Freeway 

7 Standard 14'0" x 48'0"  R 88 0 816 Freeway 

* N/A indicates that there were no off-premise advertising in these areas and these values are undefined. 

66



41 

Figure 25 through figure 30 below represent various pairings of DCZ type and road type. Target 

off-premise billboards are indicated by red rectangles. 

 
Figure 25. Example of a CEVMS DCZ on a freeway. 

 
Figure 26. Example of CEVMS DCZ an arterial. 

 

 
Figure 27. Example of a standard billboard DCZ on a freeway. 

67



42 

 
Figure 28. Example of a standard billboard DCZ on an arterial. 

 
Figure 29. Example of a control DCZ on a freeway. 

 
Figure 30. Example of a control DCZ on an arterial. 

Photometric Measurement of Signs 

The methods and procedures for the photometric measures were the same as for Reading. 

Visual Complexity 

The methods and procedures for visual complexity measurement were the same as for Reading. 

68



43 

Participants 

A total of 41 participants were recruited for the study. Of these, 6 participants did not complete 

data collection because of an inability to properly calibrate with the eye tracking system, and 11 

were excluded because of equipment failures. A total of 24 participants (13 male, M = 28 years; 

11 female, M = 25 years) successfully completed the drive. Fourteen people participated during 

the day and 10 participated at night. 

Procedures 

Research participants were recruited locally by means of visits to public libraries, student unions, 

community centers, etc. A large number of the participants were recruited from a nearby 

university, resulting in a lower mean participant age than in Reading.  

Participant Testing 

Two people participated each day. One person participated during the day beginning at 

approximately 12:45 p.m. The second participated at night beginning at around 7:00 p.m. Data 

collection ran from November 20, 2009, through April 23, 2010. There were several long gaps in 

the data collection schedule due to holidays and inclement weather. 

Pre-Data Collection Activities 

This was the same as in Reading. 

Practice Drive  

Except for location, this was the same as in Reading. 

Data Collection  

The procedure was much the same as in Reading. On average, each test route required 

approximately 30 to 35 minutes to complete. As in Reading, the routes included a variety of 

freeway and arterial driving segments. One route was 15 miles long and contained two target 

CEVMS, two target standard billboards, and two DCZs with no off-premise advertising. The 

second route was 20 miles long and had two target CEVMS and two target standard billboards. 

The data collection drives in this second study were longer than those in Reading. The eye 

tracking system had problems dealing with the large files that resulted. To mitigate this technical 

difficulty, participants were asked to pull over in a safe location during the middle of each data 

collection drive so that new data files could be initiated.  

Upon completion of the data collection, the participant was instructed to return to the designated 

meeting location for debriefing. 

Debriefing  

This was the same as in Reading. 

69



44 

DATA REDUCTION 

Eye Tracking Measures 

The approach and procedures were the same as used in Reading. 

Other Measures 

The approach and procedures were the same as used in Reading. 

RESULTS 

Photometric Measurement of Signs 

The photometric measurements were performed using the same equipment and procedures that 

were employed in Reading with a few minor changes. Photometric measurements were taken 

during the day and at night. Measurements of the standard billboards were taken at an average 

distance of 284 ft, with maximum and minimum distances of 570 ft and 43 ft, respectively. The 

average distance of measurements for the CEVMS was 479 ft, with maximum and minimum 

distances of 972 ft and 220 ft, respectively. Again, the distances employed were significantly 

affected by the requirement to find a safe location on the road from which to take the 

measurements. 

Luminance 

The mean luminance of CEVMS and standard billboards, during daytime and nighttime are 

shown below in table 8. The results here are similar to those for Reading. 

Contrast 

The daytime and nighttime Weber contrast ratios for both types of billboards are shown in table 

8. During the day, the contrast ratios of both CEVMS and standard billboards were close to zero 

(the surroundings were about equal in brightness to the signs). At night, the CEVMS and 

standard billboards had positive contrast ratios. Similar to Reading, the CEVMS showed a higher 

contrast ratio than the standard billboards at night. 

Table 8. Summary of luminance (cd/m
2
) and contrast (Weber ratio) measurements. 

 Luminance (cd/m
2
) Contrast 

Day Mean St. Dev. Mean St. Dev. 

CEVMS  2134 798.70 -0.20 0.53 

Standard Billboard 3063 2730.92  0.03 0.32 

Night     

CEVMS 56.44 16.61 69.70 59.18 

Standard Billboard 8.00 5.10 6.56 3.99 

 

70



45 

Visual Complexity 

As with Reading, the feature congestion measure was used to estimate the level of visual 

complexity/clutter in the DCZs. The analysis procedures were the same as for Reading.  

Figure 31 shows the mean feature congestion measures for each of the advertising types 

(standard errors are included in the figure). Unlike the results for Reading, the selected off-

premise advertising DCZs for Richmond differed in terms of mean feature congestion; F(3, 36) = 

3.95, p = 0.016. Follow up t-tests with an alpha of 0.05 showed that the CEVMS DCZs on 

arterials had significantly lower feature congestion than all of the other off-premise advertising 

conditions. None of the remaining DCZs with off-premise advertising differed from each other. 

The selection of DCZs for the conditions with off-premise advertising took into account the type 

of road, the side of the road the target billboard was placed, and the perceived level of visual 

clutter. Based on the feature congestion measure, these results indicated that the conditions with 

off-premise advertising were not equated with respect to level of visual clutter.  

 
Figure 31. Mean feature congestion as a function of advertising condition and road type. 

Effects of Billboards on Gazes to the Road Ahead 

As was done for the data from Reading, GEE were used to analyze the probability of a 

participant gazing at the road ahead. A logistic regression model for repeated measures was 

generated by using a binomial response distribution and Logit link function. The resultant value 

was the probability of a participant gazing at the road ahead (as previously defined). 

Time of day (day or night), road type (freeway or arterial), advertising type (CEVMS, standard 

billboard, or control), and all corresponding second-order interactions were explanatory variables 

in the logistic regression model. The interaction of advertising type by road type was statistically 

significant, χ
2 

(2) = 14.19, p < 0.001. Table 9 shows the corresponding probability of gazing at 

the road ahead as a function of advertising condition and road type. 

71



46 

Table 9. The probability of gazing at the road ahead as a function of advertising condition 

and road type. 

Advertising Condition Arterial Freeway 

Control 0.78 0.92 

CEVMS 0.76 0.82 

Standard 0.81 0.85 

 

Follow-up analyses for the interaction used Tukey-Kramer adjustments with an alpha level of 

0.05. The freeway control had the greatest probability of gazing at the road ahead (M = 0.92). 

This probability differed significantly from the remaining five probabilities. On arterials, there 

were no significant differences among the probabilities of gazing at the road ahead among the 

three advertising conditions. On freeways, there was no significant difference between the 

probability associated with CEVMS DCZs and the probability associated with standard billboard 

DCZs. 

Additional descriptive statistics were computed for the three advertising types to determine the 

probability of gazing at the ROIs that were defined in the panoramic scene. As was done with the 

data from Reading, some of the ROIs were combined for ease of analysis. Table 10 presents the 

probability of gazing at the different ROIs. 

Table 10. Probability of gazing at ROIs for the three advertising conditions on arterials 

and freeways. 

Road Type ROI CEVMS 

Standard 

Billboard Control 

Arterial CEVMS 0.06 N/A N/A 

 Left Side of Vehicle 0.03 0.05 0.04 

 Road ahead 0.76 0.81 0.78 

 Right Side of Vehicle 0.07 0.06 0.09 

 Standard Billboard N/A 0.02 N/A 

 Participant Vehicle 0.07 0.06 0.09 

Freeway CEVMS 0.05 N/A N/A 

 Left Side of Vehicle 0.03 0.01 0.01 

 Road ahead 0.82 0.85 0.92 

 Right Side of Vehicle 0.04 0.04 0.03 

 Standard Billboard N/A 0.04 N/A 

 Participant Vehicle 0.06 0.06 0.05 

 

The probability of gazing away from the forward roadway ranged from 0.08 to 0.24. In 

particular, the probability of gazing toward a CEVMS was slightly greater on arterials 

(M = 0.06) than on freeways (M = 0.05). In contrast, the probability of gazing toward a standard 

billboard was greater on freeways (M = 0.04) than on arterials (M = 0.02). In both situations, the 

probability of gazing at the road ahead was greatest on freeways.  

72



47 

Fixations to CEVMS and Standard Billboards 

About 2.5 percent of the fixations were to CEVMS. The mean fixation duration to a CEVMS 

was 371 ms and the maximum fixation duration was 1,335 ms. Figure 32 shows the distribution 

of fixation durations to CEVMS during the day and at night. In the daytime, the mean fixation 

duration to a CEVMS was 440 ms and at night it was 333 ms. Approximately 1.5 percent of the 

fixations were to standard billboards. The mean fixation duration to standard billboards was 

318 ms and the maximum fixation duration was 801 ms. Figure 33 shows the distribution of 

fixation durations for standard billboards. The mean fixation duration to a standard billboard was 

313 ms and 325 ms during the day and night, respectively. For comparison purposes, figure 34 

shows the distribution of fixation durations to the road ahead during the day and night. In the 

daytime, the mean fixation duration to the road ahead was 378 ms and at night it was 358 ms. 

 
Figure 32. Fixation duration for CEVMS in the day and at night. 

73



48 

 
Figure 33. Fixation duration for standard billboards in the day and at night. 

 
Figure 34. Fixation duration for the road ahead in the day and at night. 

74



49 

As was done with the data for Reading, the record of fixations was examined to determine dwell 

times to CEVMS and standard billboards. There were a total of 21 separate dwell times to 

CEVMS with a mean of 2.86 sequential fixations (minimum of 2 fixations and maximum of 6 

fixations). The 21 dwell times came from 12 different participants and four different CEVMS. 

The mean dwell time duration to the CEVMS was 1,039 ms (minimum of 500 ms and maximum 

of 2,720 ms). There was one dwell time greater than 2,000 ms to CEVMS. To the standard 

billboards there were 13 separate dwell times with a mean of 2.31 sequential fixations (minimum 

of 2 fixations and maximum of 3 fixations). The 13 dwell times came from 11 different 

participants and four different standard billboards. The mean dwell time duration to the standard 

billboards was 687 ms (minimum of 450 ms and maximum of 1,152 ms). There were no dwell 

times greater than 2,000 ms to standard billboards. 

In some cases several dwell times came from the same participant. To compute a statistic on the 

difference between dwell times for CEVMS and standard billboards, average dwell times were 

computed per participant for the CEVMS and standard billboard conditions. These average 

values were used in a t-test assuming unequal variances. The difference in average dwell time 

between CEVMS (M = 1,096 ms) and standard billboards (M= 674 ms) was statistically 

significant, t(14) = 2.23, p = .043. 

Figure 35 through figure 37 show heat maps for the dwell-time durations to the CEVMS that 

were greater than 2,000 ms. The DCZ was on a freeway during the daytime. The CEVMS is 

located on the left side of the road (indicated by an orange rectangle). There were three fixations 

to this billboard, and the single fixations were between 651 ms and 1,335 ms. The dwell time for 

this billboard was 2,270 ms. Figure 35 shows the first fixation toward the CEVMS. There are no 

vehicles near the participant in his/her respective travel lane or adjacent lanes. In this situation, 

the billboard is relatively close to the road ahead ROI. Figure 36 shows a heat map later in the 

DCZ where the driver continues to look at the CEVMS. The heat map does not overlay the 

CEVMS in the picture since the heat map has integrated over time where the driver was gazing. 

The CEVMS has moved out of the area because of the vehicle moving down the road. However, 

visual inspection of the video and eye tracking statistics showed that the driver was fixating on 

the CEVMS. Figure 37 shows the end of the sequential fixations to the CEVMS. The driver 

returns to gaze directly in front of the vehicle. Once the CEVMS was out of the forward field of 

view, the driver quit looking at the billboard. 

 

 
Figure 35. Heat map for first fixation to CEVMS with long dwell time. 

75



50 

 

 
Figure 36. Heat map for later fixations to CEVMS with long dwell time. 

 

 
Figure 37. Heat map at end of fixations to CEVMS with long dwell time. 

Comparison of Gazes to CEVMS and Standard Billboards 

As was done for the data from Reading, GEE were used to analyze whether a participant gazed 

more toward CEVMS than toward standard billboards, given that the participant was looking at 

off-premise advertising. Recall that a sample probability greater than 0.5 indicated that 

participants gazed more toward CEVMS than standard billboards when the participants gazed at 

off-premise advertising. In contrast, if the sample probability was less than 0.5, participants 

showed a preference to gaze more toward standard billboards than CEVMS when directing 

visual attention to off-premise advertising. 

Time of day (i.e., day or night), road type (i.e., freeway or arterial), and the corresponding 

interaction were explanatory variables in the logistic regression model. Time of day had a 

significant effect on participant gazes toward off-premise advertising, χ
2 

(1) = 4.46, p = 0.035. 

Participants showed a preference to gaze more toward CEVMS than toward standard billboards 

during both times of day. During the day the preference was only slight (M = 0.52), but at night 

the preference was more pronounced (M = 0.71). Road type was also a significant predictor of 

where participants directed their gazes at off-premise advertising, χ
2 

(1) = 3.96, p = 0.047. 

Participants gazed more toward CEVMS than toward standard billboards while driving on both 

types of roadways. However, driving on freeways yielded a slight preference for CEVMS over 

standard billboards (M = 0.55), but driving on arterials resulted in a larger preference in favor of 

CEVMS (M = 0.68). 

76



51 

Observation of Driver Behavior 

No near misses or driver errors occurred.  

Level of Service 

Table 11 shows the level of service as a function of advertising type, type of road, and time of 

day. As expected, there was less congestion during the nighttime runs than in the daytime. In 

general, there was traffic during the data collection runs; however, the eye tracking data were 

recorded while the vehicles were in motion. 

Table 11. Estimated level of service as a function of advertising condition, road type, and 

time of day. 

 Arterial Freeway 

 Day Night Day Night 

Control B A C B 

CEVMS B A B A 

Standard C A C C 

 

DISCUSSION OF RICHMOND RESULTS 

Overall the probability of looking at the forward roadway was high across all conditions and 

consistent with the findings from Reading and previous related research.
(11,9,12)

 In this second 

study the CEVMS and standard billboard conditions did not differ from each other. For the 

DCZs on arterials there were no significant differences among the control, CEVMS, and 

standard billboard conditions. On the other hand, while the CEVMS and standard billboard 

conditions on the freeways did not differ from each other, they were significantly different from 

their respective control conditions. The control condition on the freeway principally had trees 

along the sides of the road and the signs that were present were freeway signs located in the road 

ahead ROI. 

Measures such as feature congestion rated the three DCZs on freeways as not being statistically 

different from each other. These types of measures have been useful in predicting visual search 

and the effects of visual salience in laboratory tasks.
(34)

 Models of visual salience may predict 

that, at least during the daytime, trees on the side of the road may be visually salient objects that 

would attract a driver’s attention.
(47)

 However, it appears that in the present study, participants 

principally kept their eyes on the road ahead.  

The mean fixations to CEVMS, standard billboards, and the road ahead were found to be similar 

in magnitude with no long fixations. Examination of dwell times showed that there was one long 

dwell time for a CEVMS greater than 2,000 ms and it occurred in the daytime on a sign located 

on the left side of the road on a freeway DCZ. Furthermore, when averaging among participants 

the mean dwell time for CEVMS was significantly longer than to standard billboards, but still 

under 2,000 ms. For the dwell time greater than 2,000 ms, examination of the scene camera 

video and eye tracking heat maps showed that the driver was initially looking toward the forward 

roadway and made a first fixation to the sign. Three fixations were made to the sign and then the 

77



52 

driver started looking back to the road ahead as the sign moved out of the forward field of view. 

On the video there were no vehicles near the subject driver’s own lane or in adjacent lanes.  

Only the central 2 degrees of vision, foveal vision, provide resolution sharp enough for reading 

or recognizing fine detail.
(57)

 However, useful information for reading can be extracted from 

parafoveal vision, which encompasses the central 10 degrees of vision.
(57)

 More recent research 

on scene gist recognition
3
 has shown that peripheral vision (beyond parafoveal vision) is more 

useful than central vision for recognizing the gist of a scene.
(58)

 Scene gist recognition is a 

critically important early stage of scene perception, and influences more complex cognitive 

processes such as directing attention within a scene and facilitating object recognition, both of 

which are important in obtaining information while driving. 

The results of this study do show one duration of eyes off the forward roadway greater than 

2,000 ms, the duration at which Klauer et al. observed near-crash/crash risk at more than twice 

those of normal, baseline driving.
(14,53)

 When looking at the tails of the fixation distributions, few 

fixations were greater than 1,000 ms, with the longest fixation being equal to 1,335 ms.
(53,54)

 The 

one long dwell time on a CEVMS that was observed was a rare event in this study, and review of 

the video and eye tracking data suggests that the driver was effectively managing acquisition of 

visual information while driving and fixated on the advertising. However, additional work needs 

to be done to derive criteria for gazing or fixating away from the forward road view where the 

road scene is still visible in peripheral vision. 

The results showed that drivers are more likely to look at CEVMS than standard billboards 

during the nighttime across the conditions tested (at night the average probability of gazing at 

CEVMS was M= 0.71). CEVMS do have greater luminance than standard billboards at night and 

also have higher contrast. The CEVMS have the capability of being lit up so that they would 

appear as very bright signs to drivers (for example, up to about10,000 cd/m
2 

for a white square 

on the sign.). However, our measurements of these signs showed an average luminance of about 

56 cd/m
2
. These signs would be conspicuous in a nighttime driving environment but significantly 

less so than other light sources such as vehicle headlights. Drivers were also more likely to look 

at CEVMS than standard billboards on both arterials and freeways, with a higher probability of 

gazes on arterials.  

In this second study, CEVMS and standard billboards were more nearly equated with respect to 

setback from the road. Gazes to the road ahead were not significantly different between CEVMS 

and standard billboard DCZs across conditions and the proportion of gazes to the road ahead 

were consistent with previous research. One long dwell time for a CEVMS was observed in this 

study; however, it occurred in the daytime where the luminance and contrast (affecting the 

perceived brightness) of these signs are similar to those for standard billboards. 

  

                                                 
3
 “Scene gist recognition” refers to the element of human cognition that enables us to determine the meaning of a 

scene and categorize it by type (e.g., a beach, an office) almost immediately upon seeing it. 

78



53 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

This study was conducted to investigate the effect of CEVMS on driver visual behavior in a 

roadway driving environment. An instrumented vehicle with an eye tracking system was used. 

Roads containing CEVMS, standard billboards, and control areas with no off-premise 

advertising were selected. The CEVMS and standard billboards were measured with respect to 

luminance, location, size, and other relevant variables to characterize these visual stimuli. Unlike 

previous studies on digital billboards, the present study examined CEVMS as deployed in two 

United States cities and did not contain dynamic video or other dynamic elements. The CEVMS 

changed content approximately every 8 to 10 seconds, consistent within the limits provided by 

FHWA guidance.
(2)

 In addition, the eye tracking system used had nearly a 2-degree level of 

resolution that provided significantly more accuracy in determining what objects the drivers were 

gazing or fixating on as compared to some previous field studies examining CEVMS.  

CONCLUSIONS 

Do CEVMS attract drivers’ attention away from the forward roadway and other driving 

relevant stimuli? 

Overall, the probability of looking at the road ahead was high across all conditions. In Reading, 

the CEVMS condition had a lower proportion of gazes to the road ahead than the standard 

billboard condition on the freeways. Both of the off-premise advertising conditions had a lower 

proportion of gazes to the road ahead than the control condition on the freeway. The lower 

proportion of gazes to the road ahead can be attributed to the overall distribution of gazes away 

from the road ahead and not just to the CEVMS. On the other hand, for the arterials the CEVMS 

and standard billboard conditions did not differ from each other, but both had a lower proportion 

of gazes to the road ahead compared to the control. In Richmond there were no differences 

among the three advertising conditions on the arterials. However, for the freeways the CEVMS 

and standard billboard conditions did not differ from each other but had a lower proportion of 

gazes to the road ahead than the control. 

The control conditions differed across studies. In Reading, the control condition on arterials 

showed 92 percent for gazing at the road ahead while on the freeway it was 86 percent. On the 

other hand, in Richmond the control condition for arterials was 78 percent and for the freeway it 

was 92 percent. The control conditions on the freeway differed across the two studies. In 

Reading there were businesses off to the side of the road; whereas in Richmond the sides of the 

road were mostly covered with trees. The control conditions on the arterials also differed across 

cities in that both contained businesses and on-premise advertising; however, in Reading arterials 

had four lanes and in Richmond arterials had six lanes. The reason for these differences across 

cities was that these control conditions were selected to match the other conditions (CEVMS and 

standard billboards) that the drivers would experience in the two respective cities. Also, the 

selection of DCZs was obviously constrained by what was available on the ground in these cities. 

The results for the off-premise advertising conditions are consistent with Lee et al., who 

observed that 76 percent of drivers’ time was spent looking at the road ahead in the CEVMS 

scenario and 75 percent in the standard billboard scenario.
(9)

 However, it should be kept in mind 

79



54 

that drivers did gaze away from the road ahead even when no off-premise advertising was 

present and that the presence of clutter or salient visual stimuli did not necessarily control where 

drivers gazed.  

Do glances to CEVMS occur that would suggest a decrease in safety? 

In DCZs containing CEVMS, about 2.5 percent of the fixations were to CEVMS (about 2.4 

percent to standard billboards). The results for fixations are similar to those reported in other 

field data collection efforts that included advertising signs.
(12,11,9,13)

 Fixations greater than 

2,000 ms were not observed for CEVMS or standards billboards. 

However, an analysis of dwell times to CEVMS showed a mean dwell time of 994 ms 

(maximum of 1,467 ms) for Reading and a mean of 1,039 ms (maximum of 2,270 ms) for 

Richmond. Statistical comparisons of average dwell times between CEVMS and standard 

billboards were not significant in Reading; however, in Richmond the average dwell times to 

CEVMS were significantly longer than to standard billboards, though below 2,000 ms. There 

was one dwell time greater than 2,000 ms to a CEVMS across the two cities. On the other hand, 

for standard billboards there were three long dwell times in Reading; there were no long dwell 

times to these billboards in Richmond. Review of the video data for these four long dwell times 

showed that the signs were not far from the forward view when participants were fixating. 

Therefore, the drivers still had access to information about what was in front of them through 

peripheral vision. 

As the analyses of gazes to the road ahead showed, drivers distributed their gazes away from the 

road ahead even when there were no off-premise billboards present. Also, drivers gazed and 

fixated on off-premise signs even though they were generally irrelevant to the driving task. 

However, the results did not provide evidence indicating that CEVMS were associated with long 

glances away from the road that may reflect an increase in risk. When long dwell times occurred 

to CEVMS or standard billboards, the road ahead was still in the driver’s field of view. 

Do drivers look at CEVMS more than at standard billboards? 

The drivers were generally more likely to gaze at CEVMS than at standard billboards. However, 

there was some variability between the two locations and between type of roadway (arterial or 

freeway).  In Reading, the participants looked more often at CEVMS when on arterials, whereas 

they looked more often at standard billboards when on freeways. In Richmond, the drivers 

looked at CEVMS more than standard billboards no matter the type of road they were on, but as 

in Reading the preference for gazing at CEVMS was greater on arterials (68 percent on arterials 

and 55 percent on freeways). The slower speed on arterials and sign placement may present 

drivers with more opportunities to gaze at the signs. 

In Richmond, the results showed that drivers gazed more at CEVMS than standard billboards at 

night; however, for Reading no effect for time of day was found. CEVMS do have higher 

luminance and contrast than standard billboards at night. The results showed mean luminance of 

about 56 cd/m
2
 in the two cities where testing was conducted. These signs would appear clearly 

visible but not overly bright. 

80



55 

SUMMARY 

The results of these studies are consistent with a wealth of research that has been conducted on 

vision in natural environments.
(26,22,21)

 In the driving environment, gaze allocation is principally 

controlled by the requirements of the task. Consistent results were shown for the proportion of 

gazes to the road ahead for off-premise advertising conditions across the two cities. Average 

fixations were similar to CEVMS and standard billboards with no long single fixations evident 

for either condition. Across the two cities, four long dwell times were observed: one to a 

CEVMS on a freeway in the day, two to the same standard billboard on a freeway (once at night 

and once in the daytime), and one to a standard billboard on an arterial at night. Examination of 

the scene video and eye tracking data indicated that these long dwell times occurred when the 

billboards were close to the forward field of view where peripheral vision could still be used to 

gather visual information on the forward roadway.  

The present data suggest that the drivers in this study directed the majority of their visual 

attention to areas of the roadway that were relevant to the task at hand (i.e., the driving task). 

Furthermore, it is possible, and likely, that in the time that the drivers looked away from the 

forward roadway, they may have elected to glance at other objects in the surrounding 

environment (in the absence of billboards) that were not relevant to the driving task. When 

billboards were present, the drivers in this study sometimes looked at them, but not such that 

overall attention to the forward roadway decreased. 

LIMITATIONS OF THE RESEARCH 

In this study the participants drove a research vehicle with two experimenters on board. The 

participants were provided with audio turn-by-turn directions and consequently did not have a 

taxing navigation task to perform. The participants were instructed to drive as they normally 

would. However, the presence of researchers in the vehicle and the nature of the driving task do 

limit the degree to which one may generalize the current results to other driving situations. This 

is a general limitation of instrumented vehicle research. 

The two cities employed in the study appeared to follow common practices with respect to the 

content change frequency (every 8 to 10 seconds) and the brightness of the CEVMS. The current 

results would not generalize to situations where these guidelines are not being followed. 

Participant recruiting was done through libraries, community centers and at a university. This 

recruiting procedure resulted in a participant demographic distribution that may not be 

representative of the general driving population. 

The study employed a head-free eye tracking device to increase the realism of the driving 

situation (no head-mounted gear). However, the eye tracker had a sampling rate of 60 Hz, which 

made determining saccades problematic. The eye tracker and analyses software employed in this 

effort represents a significant improvement in technology over previous similar efforts in this 

area.  

The study focused on objects that were 1,000 feet or less from the drivers. This was dictated by 

the accuracy of the eye tracking system and the ability to resolve objects for data reduction. In 

addition, the geometry of the roadway precluded the consideration of objects at great distances.  

81



56 

The study was performed on actual roadways, and this limited the control of the visual scenes 

except via the route selection process. In an ideal case, one would have had roadways with 

CEVMS, standard billboards, and no off-premise advertising and in which the context 

surrounding digital and standard billboards did not differ. This was not the case in this study, 

although such an exclusive environment would be inconsistent with the experience of most 

drivers. This presents issues with the interpretation of the specific contributions made by 

billboards and the environment to the driver’s behavior.  

Sign content was not investigated (or controlled) in the present study, but may be an important 

factor to consider in future studies that investigate the distraction potential of advertising signs. 

Investigations about the effect of content could potentially be performed in driving simulators 

where this variable could be systematically controlled and manipulated. 

 

82



 

REFERENCES 

1. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. Policy Statement. [Available online at 

http://www.nhtsa.gov/Driving+Safety/Distracted+Driving/ci.Policy+Statement+and+Co

mpiled+FAQs+on+Distracted+Driving.print.] Accessed 7/27/2012. 

2. Shepherd, G. M., 2007: Guidance on Off-Premise Changeable Message Signs. 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/realestate/offprmsgsnguid.htm. 

3. Scenic America. Position Paper Regarding the Propriety of Permitting Digital Billboards 

on Interstate and Federal-Aid Highways under the Highway Beautification Act. 2010.  

4. Molino, J. A., J. Wachtel, J. E. Farbry, M. B. Hermosillo, and T. M. Granda. . The 

Effects of Commercial Electronic Variable Message Signs (Cevms) on Driver Attention 

and Distraction: An Update., FHWA-HRT-09-018. Federal Highway Administration, 

2009.  

5. Farbry, J., Wochinger, K., Shafer, T., Owens, N, & Nedzesky, A. Research Review of 

Potential Safety Effects of Electronic Billboards on Driver Attention and Distraction. 

Federal Highway Administration. Washington, DC, 2001.  

6. Tantala, M. W., and A. M. Tantala. A Study of the Relationship between Digital 

Billboards and Traffic Safety in Henrico County and Richmond, Virginia. The 

Foundation for Outdoor Advertising Research and Education (FOARE), 2010.  

7. Tantala, M. W., and A. M. Tantala. An Examination of the Relationship between Digital 

Billboards and Traffic Safety in Reading, Pennsylvania Using Empirical Bayes Analyses. 

Moving Toward Zero 2100. ITE Technical Conference and Exhibit, Buena Vista, FL, 

Institute of Transportation Engineers, 2011. 

8. Elvik, R. The Predictive Validity of Empirical Bayes Estimates of Road Safety. Accident 

Analysis & Prevention, 40, 2008, 1964-1969. 

9. Lee, S. E., McElheny, M.J., & Gibbons, R. . Driving Performance and Digital Billboards. 

Report prepared for Foundation for Outdoor Advertising Research and Education. 

Virginia Tech Transportation Institute., 2007.  

10. Society of Automotive Engineers. Definitions and Experimental Measures Related to the 

Specification of Driver Visual Behavior Using Video Based Techniques. 2000.  

11. Beijer, D., A. Smiley, and M. Eizenman. Observed Driver Glance Behavior at Roadside 

Advertising Signs. Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation 

Research Board,, No. 1899, 2004, 96-103. 

12. Smiley, A., T. Smahel, and M. Eizenman. Impact of Video Advertising on Driver 

Fixation Patters. Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation 

Research Board,, No. 1899, 2004, 76-83. 

13. Kettwich, C., K. Klinger, and U. Lemmer. Do Advertisements at the Roadside Distract 

the Driver? Optical Sensors 2008, San Diego, CA, SPIE, 2008. 

14. Klauer, S. G., Dingus, T. A., Neale, V. L., Sudweeks, J.D., &  Ramsey, D.J. The Impact 

of Driver Inattention on near-Crash/Crash Risk: An Analysis Using the 100-Car 

Naturalistic Driving Study Data, DOT HS 810 594. National Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration, 2006.  

15. Chattington, M., N. Reed, D. Basacik, A. Flint, and A. Parkes. Investigating Driver 

Distraction: The Effects of Video and Static Advertising, PPR409. Transport Research 

Laboratory, 2009.  

83



58 

16. Kettwich, C., K. Klinger, and U. Lemmer, 2008: Do Advertisements at the Roadside 

Distract the Driver? Optical Sensors 2008, F. Berghmans, A. G. Mignani, A. Cutolo, P. 

P. Moyrueis, and T. P. Pearsall, Eds., SPIE. 

17. Cole, B. L., and P. K. Hughes. A Field Trial of Attention and Search Conspicuity. Human 

Factors, 26, 1984, 299-313. 

18. Ruz, M., and J. Lupiáñez. A Review of Attentional Capture: On Its Automaticity and 

Sensitivity to Endogenous Control. Psicológica, 23, 2002, 283-309. 

19. Wachtel, J. Safety Impacts of the Emerging Digital Display Technology for Outdoor 

Advertising Signs. The Veridian Group, Inc, 2009.  

20. Theeuwes, J., and R. Burger. Attentional Control During Visual Search: The Effect of 

Irrelevant Singletons. Journal of Experimental Psychology: Human Perception and 

Performance, 24, 1998, 1342-1353. 

21. Tatler, B. W., M. M. Hayhoe, M. F. Land, and D. H. Ballard. Eye Guidance in Natural 

Vision: Reinterpreting Salience. Journal of Vision, 11, 2011, 1-23. 

22. Land, M. F. Vision, Eye Movements, and Natural Behavior. Visual Neuroscience, 26, 

2009, 51-62. 

23. Eckstein, M. P. Visual Search: A Retrospective. Journal of Vision, 11, 2011, 1-36. 

24. Henderson, J., G. Malcolm, and C. Schandl. Searching in the Dark: Cognitive Relevance 

Drives Attention in Real-World Scenes. Psychonomic Bulletin &  Review, 16, 2009, 850-

856. 

25. Henderson, J. M., J. R. Brockmole, M. S. Castelhano, and M. Mack, 2007: Visual 

Saliency Does Not Account for Eye Movements During Visual Search in Real-World 

Scenes. Eye Movements: A Window on Mind and Brain, R. P. G. v. Gompel, M. H. 

Fischer, W. S. Murray, and R. L. Hill, Eds., Elsevier, 537-562. 

26. Land, M. F. Eye Movements and the Control of Actions in Everyday Life. Progress in 

Retinal and Eye Research, 25, 2006, 296-324. 

27. Hayhoe, M., and D. Ballard. Eye Movements in Natural Behavior. Trends in Cognitive 

Sciences, 9, 2005, 188-194. 

28. Jovancevic-Misic, J., and M. Hayhoe. Adaptive Gaze Control in Natural Environments. 

The Journal of Neuroscience, 29, 2009, 6234-6238. 

29. Shinoda, H., M. M. Hayhoe, and A. Shrivastava. What Controls Attention in Natural 

Environments? Vision Research, 41, 2001, 3535-3545. 

30. SmartEye. Smarteye. [Available online at http://www.smarteye.se/.] Accessed June 22, 

2012. 

31. Whittle, P., Ed., 1994: The Psychophysics of Contrast Brightness.  Lawrence Erlbaum 

Associates. 

32. Regan, M. A., K. L. Young, J. D. Lee, and C. P. Gordon, 2009: Sources of Driver 

Distraction. Driver Distraction: Theory, Effects, and Mitigation., M. A. Regan, J. D. Lee, 

and K. L. Young, Eds., CRC Press, Taylor & Francis Group. 

33. Horberry, T., & Edquist, J., 2009: Distractions Outside the Vehicle. Driver Distraction: 

Theory, Effects, and Mitigation., M. A. Regan, Lee, J.D., & Young, K.L., Ed., CRC 

Press, Taylor & Francis Group. 

34. Rosenholtz, R., Y. Li, and L. Nakano. Measuring Visual Clutter. J Vis, 7, 2007, 17 11-22. 

35. Bravo, M. J., and H. Farid. A Scale Invariant Measure of Clutter. Journal of Vision, 8, 

2008, 1-9. 

84



59 

36. EyesDx. Multiple-Analysis of Psychophysical and Performance Signals (Mapps) 

[Available online at http://www.eyesdx.com/.] Accessed June 22, 2012. 

37. Recarte, M. A., and L. M. Nunes. Effects of Verbal and Spatial-Imagery Tasks on Eye 

Fixations While Driving. Journal of Experimental Psychology: Applied, 6, 2000, 31-43. 

38. Manor, B. R., and E. Gordon. Defining the Temporal Threshold for Ocular Fixation in 

Free-Viewing Visuocognitive Tasks. Journal of Neuroscience Methods, 128, 2003, 85-

93. 

39. Ahlstrom, C., K. Kircher, and A. Kircher. Considerations When Calculating Percent 

Road Centre from Eye Movement Data in Driver Distraction Monitoring. Proceedings of 

the Fifth International Driving Symposium on Human Factors in Driver Assessment, 

Training and Vehicle Design, 2009, 132-139. 

40. Agresti, A., 2002: Analyzing Repeated Categorical Response Data. Categorical Data 

Analysis, 2nd Edition, D. J. Balding, Ed., John Wiley & Sons, Inc. 

41. Stokes, M. E., C. S. Davis, and G. G. Koch. Categorical Data Analysis Using the Sas 

System (2nd Ed.).  SAS Institute, Inc., Cary, NC, 2000. 

42. Molenbergs, G., and G. Verbeke. Likelihood Ratio, Score, and Wald Tests in a 

Constrained Parameter Space. The American Statistican, 61, 2007, 22-27. 

43. ISO, 2002: Road Vehicles — Measurement of Driver Visual Behaviour with Respect to 

Transport Information and Control Systems —Part 1: Definitions and Parameters. ISO. 

44. ISO, 2001: Road Vehicles — Measurement of Driver Visual Behaviour with Respect to 

Transport Information and Control Systems — Part 2: Equipment and Procedures. ISO. 

45. Highway Capacity Manual.   Transportation Research Board, Washington, DC, 2000. 

46. Itti, L., and C. Koch. A Saliency-Based Search Mechanism for Overt and Covert Shifts of 

Visual Attention. Vision Research, 40, 2000, 1489-1506. 

47. Walther, D., and C. Koch. Modeling Attention to Salient Proto-Objects. Neural 

Networks, 19, 2006, 1395-1407. 

48. Itti, L., C. Koch, and E. Niebur. A Model of Saliency-Based Visual Attention for Rapid 

Scene Analysis. Pattern Analysis and Machine Intelligence, IEEE Transactions on, 20, 

1998, 1254-1259. 

49. Walther, D. B. Saliency Toolbox. [Available online at 

http://www.saliencytoolbox.net/index.html.] Accessed 6/27/2012. 

50. Land, M. F. Predictable Eye-Head Coordination During Driving. Nature, 359, 1992, 318-

320. 

51. Balas, B., L. Nakano, and R. Rosenholtz. A Summary-Statistic Representation in 

Peripheral Vision Explains Visual Crowding. Journal of Vision, 9, 2009, 1-18. 

52. Levi, D. M. Crowding--an Essential Bottleneck for Object Recognition: A Mini-Review. 

Vision Research, 48, 2008, 635-654. 

53. Horrey, W. J., and C. D. Wickens. In-Vehicle Glance Duration: Distributions,Tails, and 

Model of Crash Risk. Transportation Research Record, 2018, 2007, 22-28. 

54. Wierwille, W. W., 1993: Visual and Manual Demands of in-Car Controls and Displays. 

Automotive Ergonomics, B. Peacock, and W. Karwowsk, Eds., Taylor and Francis, 299-

320. 

55. Strasburger, H., I. Rentschler, and M. Jüttner. Peripheral Vision and Pattern Recognition: 

A Review. Journal of Vision, 11, 2011, 1-82. 

85



60 

56. Reimer, B. Impact of Cognitive Task Complexity on Drivers’ Visual Tunneling. 

Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board, No. 

2138, 2009, 13–19. 

57. Rayner, K., A. W. Inhoff, R. E. Morrison, M. L. Slowiaczek, and J. H. Bertera. Masking 

of Foveal and Parafoveal Vision During Eye Fixations in Reading. Journal of 

Experimental Psychology: Human Perception and Performance, 7, 1981, 167-179. 

58. Larson, A. M., and L. C. Loschky. The Contributions of Central Versus Peripheral Vision 

to Scene Gist Recognition. Journal of Vision, 9, 2009, 1-16. 

 

 

86



11/20/23, 11:48 AM Statute | Kansas State Legislature

https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k/ 1/2

House Status: Adjourned until Monday, January 9, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.
Senate Status: Adjourned until Monday, January 09, 2023 at 02:00 p.m.

2021 Statute

Prev Article 22. - HIGHWAY BEAUTIFICATION Next

68-2234. Highway advertising control; sign standards; zoning requirements. After March 31, 1972, and subject to the provisions
of K.S.A. 68-2233, and amendments thereto, and to subsection (f), signs which are to be erected in a business area shall comply with the
following standards: (a) General. Signs shall not be erected or maintained which:

(1) Imitate or resemble any official traffic sign, signal or device; or
(2) are erected or maintained upon trees or painted or drawn upon rocks or other natural features.
(b) Configuration and size. (1) Signs shall not be erected with sign faces which exceed 30 feet in height, 60 feet in length or 900

square feet in area, per facing, including border, trim and embellishments, but not including base or apron, supports, and other structural
members;

(2) the maximum size limitations shall apply to each sign facing;
(3) two sign displays not exceeding 450 square feet each may be erected in a facing, side by side or "double decked," and double-

faced, back-to-back or V-type signs shall be permitted and shall be treated as one structure with a maximum area of 900 square feet permitted
for each side or facing. To be classified as "back-to-back" there must not be more than 15 feet between structures or faces, to allow for
crossbracing;

(4) the area of any sign structure shall be measured by the smallest square, rectangle, circle or combination thereof which will
encompass the area of the sign display or displays;

(5) the height of any portion of the sign structure, excluding cutouts or extensions, as measured vertically from the adjacent edge of
the road grade of the main traveled way shall not exceed 50 feet;

(6) cutouts or extensions shall be permitted on legal conforming signs at a size not to exceed 30% of the size of the main display area,
with a maximum extension of five feet along the top edge, two feet along the sides and 11/2 feet along the bottom of the main display area.
Cutouts or extensions shall not be permitted where the configuration and size requirements of this subsection will be exceeded.

(c) Spacing. (1) Signs shall conform to all applicable building codes and ordinances of the city, county or state, whichever is
applicable by reason of the locations of the signs;

(2) signs shall not be erected or maintained in such a manner as to obscure or otherwise physically interfere with an official traffic
sign, signal or device or to obstruct or physically interfere with a driver's view of approaching, merging or intersecting traffic;

(3) except for official and on-premise signs, as defined in 23 U.S.C. § 131(c) and as provided for in K.S.A. 68-2233, and amendments
thereto, any signs or sign structures visible from any primary highway without fully controlled access:

(A) Shall not be spaced less than 300 feet apart outside of incorporated cities;
(B) shall not be spaced less than 200 feet apart within incorporated cities;
(4) any signs or sign structures visible from any interstate highway or freeway with fully controlled access:
(A) Shall not be spaced less than 500 feet apart, except for official and on-premise signs, as defined in 23 U.S.C. § 131(c), and as

provided in K.S.A. 68-2233, and amendments thereto;
(B) outside the corporate limits of cities, shall not be located within 500 feet of an interchange, feeder, intersection at grade, safety rest

area or information center regardless of whether the main traveled way is within or outside the city limits. The 500 feet spacing shall be
measured from the point at which the pavement widens and the direction of measurement shall be along the edge of pavement away from the
interchange, collector, intersection at grade, safety rest area or information center. In those interchanges where a quadrant does not have a
ramp, the 500 feet for the quadrant at the edge of the intersection is located at the edge of the intersection;

(5) the minimum distance between two signs prescribed by paragraphs (3) and (4) of this subsection shall be measured along the
nearest edge of the pavement between points directly opposite the signs along the same side of the highway. Such minimum distance shall
not apply to signs described by subsection (a), (b) or (c) of K.S.A. 68-2233, and amendments thereto, nor shall such signs be counted or be
used in measuring distances for the purpose of determining compliance with the spacing requirements of this subsection;

(6) the minimum distances between two signs prescribed by paragraphs (3) and (4) of this subsection shall not apply where such signs
are separated by a building, structure, roadway or other obstruction which prevents a view of both signs at the same time by traffic
proceedings on any one highway; and

(7) nothing in this subsection shall be construed as preventing the erection of double-faced, back-to-back or V-type signs with a
maximum of two sign displays per sign facing, as permitted by subsection (b). Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the owner of a single
face sign to change the position of the sign face to a different or opposite direction of traffic flow so long as an additional face or additional
square feet are not added to the sign structure. No such change may be affected until approval is granted by the department.

(d) Lighting. (1) Signs shall not be erected which contain, include or are illuminated by any flashing, intermittent, revolving or moving
light, except those giving public service information such as, but not limited to, time, date, temperature, weather or news; steadily burning
lights in configuration of letters or pictures are not prohibited;

(2) signs shall not be erected or maintained which are not effectively shielded so as to prevent beams or rays of light from being
directed at any portion of the traveled way of any interstate or primary highway and are of such intensity or brilliance as to cause glare or to

87

https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/events/house/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/events/senate/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0033_section/068_022_0033_k/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0035_section/068_022_0035_k/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/s/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k.pdf
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/s/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k.pdf


11/20/23, 11:48 AM Statute | Kansas State Legislature

https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k/ 2/2

impair the vision of the driver of any motor vehicle or to otherwise interfere with any driver's operation of a motor vehicle; and
(3) signs shall not be erected or maintained which are so illuminated that they obscure any official traffic sign, device or signal, or

imitate or may be confused with any official traffic sign, device or signal.
(e) Automatic changeable facing signs. (1) Automatic changeable facing signs shall be permitted within adjacent or controlled areas

under the following conditions:
(A) The sign does not contain or display flashing, intermittent or moving lights, including animated or scrolling advertising;
(B) the changeable facing remains in a fixed position for at least eight seconds;
(C) if a message is changed electronically, it must be accomplished within an interval of two seconds or less;
(D) the sign is not placed within 1,000 feet of another automatic changeable facing sign on the same side of the highway, with the

distance being measured along the nearest edge of the pavement and between points directly opposite the signs along each side of the
highway;

(E) if the sign is a legal conforming structure it may be modified to an automatic changeable facing sign upon compliance with these
standards and approval by the department. A nonconforming structure shall not be modified to create an automatic changeable facing sign;

(F) if the sign contains a default design that will freeze the sign in one position if a malfunction occurs; and
(G) if the sign application meets all other permitting requirements.
(2) The outdoor advertising license shall be revoked for failure to comply with any provision in this subsection.
(f) Application to local zoning authorities. Nothing in article 22 of chapter 68 of Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto,

shall be construed as prohibiting a local zoning authority from controlling the erection, maintenance, size, spacing and lighting of signs in all
areas within its jurisdiction by adopting standards which may be consistent with, or more or less restrictive than the highway advertising
control act, and amendments thereto, except that along interstate highways, the size and spacing requirements of subsections (b) and (c) of
K.S.A. 68-2234, and amendments thereto, shall be met. The standards adopted by a local zoning authority shall include the regulation of size,
of lighting and of spacing of all such signs and shall restrict the erection of new signs, other than signs described by subsections (a), (b) and
(c) of K.S.A. 68-2233, and amendments thereto, to zoned commercial or industrial areas.

(g) Prohibition against zoning to permit outdoor advertising. Zoning action which is not part of comprehensive zoning and is created
primarily to permit outdoor advertising structures, is not recognized as zoning for purposes of this act.

(h) Unzoned commercial or industrial area qualifications for signs.
(1) To qualify an area as unzoned commercial or industrial for the purpose of outdoor advertising control, one commercial or

industrial activity shall meet all of the following criteria prior to submitting an outdoor advertising permit application:
(A) The activity shall maintain all necessary business licenses as may be required by applicable state, county or local law or

ordinances;
(B) the property used for the activity shall be listed for ad valorem taxes with the county and municipal taxing authorities as required

by law;
(C) the activity shall be served by utilities, power, telephone, water and sewer or septic and well;
(D) the activity shall have direct or indirect vehicular access;
(E) the activity must be visible from, and located within 660 feet of the nearest edge of the right-of-way of the controlled route;
(F) the commercial or industrial activity must be in operation for a period of 12 months prior to the date of submitting an application

for an outdoor advertising permit and license;
(G) the activity shall be in operation for at least nine months per year; and
(H) the owner or employee shall be present at the site for 20 hours per week;
(2) the unzoned area shall include areas on both sides of any two-lane highway, but shall be limited to land on the same side as the

commercial or industrial activity on any highway with four or more traffic lanes. All measurements shall begin from the outer edges of
regularly used buildings, parking lots, storage or processing areas of the commercial or industrial activity, not from the property line of the
activity and shall be along the nearest edge of the main traveled way of the controlled route. The proposed sign location must be within 600
feet of the commercial or industrial activity.

History: L. 1972, ch. 251, § 4; L. 1973, ch. 272, § 2; L. 1981, ch. 266, § 1; L. 2006, ch. 141, § 3; July 1.

Prev Article 22. - HIGHWAY BEAUTIFICATION Next

2023. Powered by KLISS. Rendered: 2023-11-19T18:49:48. Head Rev No: 893605(E)

88

https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0033_section/068_022_0033_k/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/b2021_22/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0035_section/068_022_0035_k/
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/s/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k.pdf
https://www.kslegislature.org/li_2022/s/statute/068_000_0000_chapter/068_022_0000_article/068_022_0034_section/068_022_0034_k.pdf


www.ksdot.org

KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
BUREAU OF RIGHT OF WAY

DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING
700 S.W. HARRISON STREET, TOPEKA, KS 66603-3745
PUBLIC ACCESS AT NORTH ENTRANCE OF BUILDING

VOICE 785-296-3501  TTY 711
FAX 785-296-0009  http://www.ksdot.org

Toll Free Number 1-877-461-6817

August 2011

Department of Transportation

Department of Transportation

89



—  ATTENTION  —
This brochure is only a guideline for outdoor 
advertising and is not intended to be inclusive 
of all applicable laws.  Sign applicants and 
owners are responsible for knowing the laws 
and ordinances that control signage.  If there is 
a conflict between this brochure and any federal, 
state, or local laws or ordinances, the law or 
ordinances will prevail.  Please call KDOT if you 
have any questions.

Table of Contents - NOTES -

13

Why is the Kansas Department of Transportation 
involved with outdoor advertising?  ......................... 1

What is outdoor advertising?  .................................. 1

What type of signs does this apply to in Kansas?  .. 2

Sign Application Information  ................................ 3-8
Why do I need a sign application and license?
Who needs to obtain an application?
Where do I get an application form?
How much does one cost?
What do I need to do to apply?
How long do I have to build a sign?
Why do I need to have a green sign tag?
What roads require a sign to be licensed?
Where can I put a sign?
Can I put a sign on my property?
Can I put a sign on someone else’s property?
What are the regulations to outdoor advertising?
What are regulations that apply to LED/ACF

       signs?
Sign Licenses and Renewals  ................................. 9
 How much do they cost?

What if I lose a tag or my tag is stolen?
Can a sign be transferred to another owner?

TODS (Tourist Oriented Directional) and LOGO 
(Business Activities) Signs .................................... 10

How do we apply for a Vegetation Permit? ...........  11

Who do I Contact?  ................................................  11

Page

90



Why is the Kansas Department of 
Transportation involved with outdoor 
advertising?
As part of the Highway Beautification Act (also 
known as the Lady Bird Johnson Act), federal 
law requires all states to provide continuing, 
effective control of outdoor advertising (Title 
23, U.S. Code, Section 131).  Failure to comply 
may result in a 10 percent reduction in Kansas’s 
Federal Highway funds.

What is Outdoor Advertising?
Outdoor Advertising is signs, displays, and 
devices in areas visible from and adjacent to the 
federal-aid primary system in existence on June 
1, 1991 and any highway which is not on such 
system but which is on the national highway 
system.  These signs are controlled in order to 
protect the public investment on such highways, 
and to promote the safety and recreation value of 
public travel, and to preserve natural beauty.

112

Statutory Authority- NOTES -

91



112

What type of signs does this apply to in 
Kansas?
Kansas licenses three types of signs, legal 
conforming, direction, and official.  Each has its 
own specific rules that apply.  

  ◊ Legal conforming signs are signs that are in 
commercial or industrial zoned areas.  These 
signs require an application and fee, and an 
additional biennial licensing fee.

  ◊ Directional and official signs require a sign 
application and fee but are exempt from 
licensing fee.  Owned by official agencies.

How do we apply for a Vegetation 
Permit?
If you would like to get more information 
regarding a vegetation permit, please contact our 
office or go to www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/
VegMan for more information.

Who do I contact?
Kansas Department of Transportation
Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising
700 SW Harrison Street
Topeka KS 66603-3745
Toll Free:  1-877-461-6817
Email:  signs@ksdot.org
Fax:  785-296-0009
Hearing Impaired - 711

92



310

Sign Application
  

Why do I need a sign application (permit 
to build) and license?
As part of Kansas law K.S.A. 68-2231 et seq 
revised in 2006 you are required to submit an 
application and be approved before you can erect 
a sign adjacent to a controlled route in Kansas.  

Who needs to obtain an application to 
build a sign?
Anyone who wants to build a sign adjacent to 
controlled routes in Kansas.

Where do I get an application form?
You can either call one of the numbers listed on 
Page 11 or by accessing the Internet at www.
ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/beaut/ just click on 
Sign Application.

How much does it cost?
The fee to submit an application is $250.00 per 
sign.  In addition, a sign license fee is required 
once your application and sign location have 
been approved by KDOT.  This fee is $20.00 for 
signs with total square feet up to 32.  $75.00 for 
signs with a total of 33 to 300 square feet and 
$150.00 for signs over 301 square feet.  This fee 
is good for a two year period.

What do I need to do to apply for an 
application to build a sign?
In additional to filling out your sign application 
you will need to:

  ◊ send in a sketch or photo of the proposed 
sign 

TODS (Tourist Oriented Directional) 

and LOGO (Business Activities) 

Signs
  ◊ TODS signs are available along the state 

highway system to provide directional 
information to tourist-oriented businesses, 
seasonal agricultural products, services, 
and attractions that cannot be seen from the 
highway.  TODS signs are not allowed along 
interstate highways. 

 

 
 

  ◊ LOGO signs are available to eligible 
businesses who’s activities include gas, 
food, lodging, camping, and other attractions 
at eligible interchanges on the Interstate 
system.

If you are interested in a TODS or a LOGO sign 
please contact: www.kansas.interstatelogos.com 

93



94

  ◊ send in photo(s) of the staked location

  ◊ send in a sketch or map of the sign location

  ◊ send in zoning authority approval 
documentation

  ◊ send in the $250 Application Fee

  ◊ send in the Certificate of Title for signs over 
300 square feet

How long do I have to build a sign?
You have 180 days to build your sign following 
the approval of your application and the issuance 
of your sign license.

Why do I need to have a green sign tag 
attached to my sign structure?
This green sign tag is also your license tracking 
number.  This number allows easy viewing 
knowledge that your sign complies with state 
regulations.

Kansas Department of Transportation 

Sign Application  
(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign     Type of Construction _______________________________ 

 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft. Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 

Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;                                 
If Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 

Zoned Area      Un-Zoned 

Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________   Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  Name of Business_______________________________________ 

(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 

Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 

Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 

assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at signs@ksdot.org. Fax: 785-296-0009 

Return:  a) Application to Build Form     Mailing Address: 

 b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign   Kansas Department of Transportation, 

 c) Photos of Staked location     Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 

 d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location   700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 

 e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   

 f) $250 Application Fee  

  
      D.O.T. Form No. 1950 09 16

Kansas Department of Transportation 

Sign Application  

(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  
Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  
Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign  
 

 
 

Type of Construction _______________________________ 

 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft.

Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 

Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;           
            

          If
 Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 

Zoned Area  
 

 
 

 
Un-Zoned 

Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________  
 

Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  
Name of Business_______________________________________ 

(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 

Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 

Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 

assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at signs@ksdot.org. Fax: 785-296-0009 

Return:  a) Application to Build Form   
 

 
Mailing Address: 

 
b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign  

 
Kansas Department of Transportation, 

 
c) Photos of Staked location   

 
 

Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 

 
d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location 

 
 

700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 

 
e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  

Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   

 
f) $250 Application Fee  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D.O.T. Form No. 1950 03-08

Kansas Department of Transportation 
Sign Application  

(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign     Type of Construction _______________________________ 
 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft. Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 
Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;                                 If Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 
Zoned Area      Un-Zoned 
Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________   Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  Name of Business_______________________________________ 
(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 
Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 
Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 
Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 
assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at KDOT#ROW.Signs@ks.gov . Fax: 785-296-0009 
Return:  a) Application to Build Form     Mailing Address: 
 b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign   Kansas Department of Transportation, 
 c) Photos of Staked location     Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 
 d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location   700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 
 e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   
 f) $250 Application Fee  
        D.O.T. Form No. 1950 09 16

Sign Licenses and Renewals
How much do they cost?
Once the initial sign license fee is paid, a license 
fee will be due every 2 years.  This fee is $20.00 
for signs with total square feet up to 32.  $75.00 
for signs with a total of 33 to 300 square feet 
and $150.00 for signs over 301 square feet.   An 
invoice will be sent to each sign owner, of the 
structure, 60 days prior to the expiration date.  A 
$50 past due fee will be assessed 30 days after 
the expiration date for unpaid invoices.  The $50 
late fee will be accessed each month for the first 
two months.  Once an invoice is 60 days past due 
the license will be terminated and the sign will be 
subject to removal.

What if I lose a tag or my tag is stolen?
If you lose a tag or if your tag is stolen, a Sign 
License Replacement Plate Application form 
along with a $25.00 fee shall be submitted.  The 
license fee must be current prior to submitting a 
replacement plate application.

Can a sign be transferred to another 
owner?
Yes almost all signs can be transferred to another 
owner.  A Sign Transfer Application form must 
be filled out and submitted to KDOT to process 
a sign owner transfer.  There is no fee for 
transfers.

↓

94



58

What roads require a sign to be 
licensed? 

In Kansas this applies to all Interstate roads along 
with most State routes.  For a map of controlled 
roads go to www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/
beaut/ and click on KDOT Outdoor Advertising 
Control map.  All highways designated as part of 
the National Highway System (NHS) are subject 
to control.  The NHS includes all interstate and 
many of the former primary highways.  Most 
primary highways that are subject to control are 
not a part of the NHS.  

of
 th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
as

su
m

es
 n

o 
lia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
rr

or
s 

or
 o

m
is

si
on

s.

K
D

O
T 

m
ak

es
 n

o 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s,
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s,
 o

r r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 fo
r a

cc
ur

ac
y

K
A

N
S

A
S

 D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

T 
O

F 
TR

A
N

S
P

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E

0
10

B
U

R
E

A
U

 O
F 

TR
A

N
S

P
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G

30
10

20

M
O

R
TO

N
ST

E
VE

N
S

G
R

A N
T

SE
W

A
R

D
M

EA
D

E

H
A

SK
E

LL

G
R

A Y

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

KE
AR

N
Y

G
R

EE
LE

Y
W

IC
H

IT
A

FI
N

N
E Y

S C
O

TT
L A

N
E

N
E

S
S

C
LA

R
K

F O
R

D

K
IO

W
A

C
O

M
A

N
C

H
E

B
A

R
B

E
R

P
R

A
TT

H
O

D
G

EM
A N

P
A

W
N

E
E

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

S
TA

FF
O

R
D

B
A

R
TO

N

R
IC

E

W
AL

LA
C

E
LO

G
A

N
G

O
V E

W
Y

A
N

D
O

TT
E

SH
ER

M
AN

TH
O

M
A S

C
H

EY
E

N
N

E
R

A
W

LI
N

S

S H
E R

I D
A N

D
E

C
A

T U
R

R
U

S
H

T R
E G

O
E L

L I
S

R
U

S
S

E
LL

G
R

A H
AM

R
O

O
K

S

N
O

R
T O

N
P

H
IL

LI
P

S

O
S

B
O

R
N

E

S
M

IT
H

H
A

R
P

E
R

K
IN

G
M

A
N

S
E

D
G

W
IC

K

S
U

M
N

E
R

C
O

W
LE

Y

B
U

TL
E

R

R
E

N
O

H
A

R
V

E
Y

M
cP

H
E

R
S

O
N

M
A

R
IO

N

C
H

A
S

E

C
H

A
U

TA
U

Q
U

A

E
LK

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y

LA
BE

TT
E

C
H

ER
O

K
EE

N
E

O
S

H
O

C
R

A
W

FO
R

D
ST

A
N

TO
N

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D
W

IL
SO

N

LY
O

N

C
O

FF
E

Y

W
O

O
D

S
O

N
A

LL
E

N
BO

U
R

BO
N

AN
D

ER
SO

N
LI

N
N

E
LL

S
W

O
R

TH

SA
LI

N
E

LI
N

C
O

LN

O
TT

AW
A

D
IC

K
IN

SO
N

M
O

R
R

IS

G
EA

R
Y

M
IT

C
H

E
LL

C
LO

U
D

JE
W

E
LL

R
E

PU
BL

IC

C
LA

Y

R
IL

E
Y

W
AS

H
IN

G
T O

N
M

AR
S

H
A

L L

O
SA

G
E

W
AB

AU
N

S E
E

FR
AN

K
LI

N
M

IA
M

I

D
O

U
G

LA
S

JO
H

N
S

O
N

S
H

A
W

N
E

E
JA

C
KS

O
N

PO
TT

A
W

A T
O

M
IE

N
E

M
A

H
A

B
R

O
W

N

JE
FF

E
R

S
O

N

LE
A

VE
N

W
O

R
TH

A
TC

H
IS

O
N

Pi
tts

bu
rg

H
ug

ot
on

Jo
hn

so
n

C
it y

U
ly

ss
es

Li
be

r a
l

M
ea

de

Su
bl

et
te

Sy
r a

cu
se

La
ki

n
G

ar
de

n
C

i ty

C
im

a r
ro

n

S c
ot

tC
ity

A
sh

la
nd

C
ol

d w
a t

er

C
ity

D
od

ge

G
re

en
sb

ur
g

M
ed

ic
in

e 
Lo

dg
e

P
ra

tt

Je
tm

or
e

K
in

sl
ey

N
es

s 
C

ity

S
t. 

Jo
hn

La
rn

ed

G
re

at
 B

en
d

Tr
ib

un
e

Le
ot

i

Sp
r in

gs
Sh

ar
on

D
ig

h t
on

O
ak

l e
y

G
ov

e

G
oo

dl
an

dSt
. F

ra
nc

is

C
ol

by

H
ox

i e

A t
w

o o
d

O
be

rli
n

W
aK

ee
ne

y

H
ay

s

La
C

ro
ss

e

E
lls

w
or

th

R
us

se
ll

H
ill

 C
ity

S
to

ck
to

n

N
or

to
n

O
sb

or
ne

P
hi

lli
ps

bu
rg

C
en

te
r

S
m

ith

A
nt

ho
ny

W
el

lin
gt

on

K
in

gm
an

W
ic

hi
ta

W
in

fie
ld

E
l D

or
ad

o

H
ut

ch
in

so
n

N
ew

to
n

Ly
on

s

M
cP

he
rs

on

M
ar

io
n

Fa
lls

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

S
ed

an

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

H
ow

ar
d

Fr
ed

on
ia

O
sw

eg
o

C
ol

um
bu

s

E
rie

G
ira

rd

E
ur

ek
a

C
en

te
r

Ya
te

s

E
m

po
ria

Bu
rli

ng
to

n

Io
la

Sc
ot

t
Fo

rt

G
ar

ne
tt

M
ou

nd
C

ity

Li
nc

ol
n

S
al

in
a

M
in

ne
ap

ol
is

C
ou

nc
il 

G
ro

ve

Ab
ile

ne

Ju
nc

tio
n 

C
ity

B
el

oi
t

M
an

ka
to

C
on

co
rd

ia

B
el

le
vi

lle

C
en

te
r

C
la

y

M
an

ha
tta

n

W
as

hi
ng

to
n

M
ar

ys
vi

lle

Ly
nd

on

A
lm

a
TO

P
E

K
A

O
tta

w
a

P
ao

la

La
w

re
nc

e
O

la
th

e

K
an

sa
s 

C
ity

W
es

tm
or

el
an

d

H
ol

to
n

S
en

ec
a

H
ia

w
at

ha

O
sk

al
oo

sa

Le
av

en
w

or
th

Tr
oy

A
tc

hi
so

n

El
kh

ar
t

66
27

51
5651

25

51

56

27

16
0

25

16
0

51
54

83

23

54

19
0

56

83
14

4

98

56

50

40
0

50

25

27

25

50
15

6 50
23

83

2323

28
3

16
0

16
0

18
3

1

16
0

34

54

28
3

40
0

18
3

2

16
0

54
54

28
1

28
1

42

40
0

61

40
0

50

15
6

28
3

18
3

56

28
396

15
6

18
3

18
3 50

19

50

61

28
1

19

96
96

15
6

56

96

27

9696

25

40
27

40

96

4
95

83

964

40

23

70

27

70

2736

27
16

1
36

25

24
83

24

2323

25

11
7

83
38

336

4

14
7

28
3

70
18

3

4

28
1

4

15
6

40

28
1

18

23
2

18

24

28
3

24

18

18
3

9

38
3

928
3

36

9

60

38
3

18
3

28
1

18
1

24

36

98

28
1

36

18
1

12
8

2

17
9

4416
0

14
2

49
81

81

16
049

14

54
425496

16
6

55
15

77

15

1516
0

53

81
15

35
40

0

77
14

17

50
96

50

61

13
5

13
5

25
4

19
6

13
5

17
7

54

15

77
17

7
15

0
50

16
6

99

16
0

16
0

75

16
6

73

16
0

99

40
0

39
75

39

10
1 16

6

16
0

59
40

0

16
0

7
69

10
3

17
1

16
9

47
47

59
14

6

12
6

39
3

7
69

54

99

58

75

58

99

33
5

35

16
9

54
59

3
769

6531

731
23

9
16

9

31

7

52
69

52

15
2

14
1

11
1

4

13
5

14
0

14

18
18

40
14

3 70

10
681

15

4

15
43

56
17

7
14

9
4

70

18

82

77
57

17
7

18
77

11
3

14
24

24
9

28
9

14
8

14

12
8

36

81

14
8

3681

24
15

24
13

77

16

15
9

15 36
14

8

9

77

56

31 17
0

31

316826
8

33
5

4
99

18

40

24

33
5

470
7575

24

4

56
59

33
68

68
16

9

56
16

9
69

40
10

24
59

16

10
7

35 16
9

3224
73

43
532

5616
9

63
56970

5

99
63

16

16
75

62

11
6

87
18

7

99

36
63

9
20

9

75

75
15

9

924

92
19

2
19

2

15
9

9
5973

5

73

20
7

12
0

36

7

FA
P

 R
oa

ds
 - 

In
te

rs
ta

te
FA

P
 R

oa
ds

 - 
N

on
-In

te
rs

ta
te

C
on

tro
lle

d 
O

ut
do

or
 A

dv
er

tis
in

g 
R

ou
te

s
N

on
-C

on
tro

lle
d 

O
ut

do
or

   
 A

dv
er

tis
in

g 
R

ou
te

s
S

ce
ni

c 
B

yw
ay

s
N

on
-S

ta
te

 S
ys

te
m

 B
us

in
es

s 
R

ou
te

s

K
D

O
T 

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
TI

S
IN

G
 C

O
N

TR
O

L

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 A
D

V 
C

TR
L 

20
07

.G
W

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
09

/2
4/

07

C
A

N
S

YS
 D

A
TA

 3
/2

1/
06

Where are outdoor advertising signs 
prohibited?  

There are certain signs prohibited by law.  The 
following is a partial listing of some of the areas 
signs are not allowed, such as:
  ◊ Along scenic byways 
  ◊ In the right-of-way of any highway
  ◊ In any location that hinders the clear, 

unobstructed view of approaching or merging 
traffic, or obscures from view any traffic sign 
or other official sign.

  ◊ Within a stream or drainage canal.
  ◊ In any location that obscures the view of any 

connecting highway or intersection.

Are there signs that are exempt from this 
program?  

Yes, some signs that are visible from controlled 
highways are exempt from this program.  They 
include:

  ◊ Signs advertising the sale or lease of property 
on which they are located.

  ◊ Signs advertising the products and activities 
conducted on the property on which they are 
located.  These signs are referred to as “on 
premise” signs.

  ◊ LOGO and TODS signs authorized under the 
Motorist Information Signs Act.

95



76

Where can I put a sign?
You can put a sign on property zoned as 
commercial or industrial that is off the right-of-
way.  (See prohibited signs and areas)

Can I put a sign on my property?
Signs advertising the products and activities 
conducted on the property on which they are 
located are referred to as “on premise” signs and 
are not subject to this act.  A KDOT license is 
not required but you may need local government 
approval.

Can I put a sign on someone else’s 
property?
You can put a sign for your business or someone 
else’s business along a state highway.  This is 
called outdoor advertising.  You must submit an 
application and be approved to build a sign.  

  ◊ The sign must follow local ordinance and, if 
required, you must have a local permit.  

  ◊ The sign site must be on zoned or unzoned 
commercial or industrial property.  

  ◊ You must have the owner’s permission.  

  ◊ There must be a visible, licensed business 
or industry that has been in operation for at 
least six months on the property (if the area is 
unzoned).

What are some of the restrictions that 
apply to outdoor advertising?
Outdoor advertising signs placed along state 
highways:

  ◊ Can be no larger than 900 total square feet.    
Directional signs cannot exceed 150 square 
feet.

  ◊ Can have a sign face no more than 30 feet 
high and no wider than 60 feet.

  ◊ Can not exceed 50 feet above the road grade.  
This includes border, trim and embellishment, 
but does not include base or apron, supports 
or other structural members.

  ◊ Must comply with spacing standards

  ◊ The sign cannot contain flashing, intermittent, 
or moving lights, including animated or 
scrolling advertising.

What are the restrictions that apply 
specifically to Electronic (LED) signs?
The signs must display a static image for a 
minimum of eight seconds, and have an interval 
change time of two seconds or less.  Electronic 
signs must be at least 1,000 feet apart.  Only sign 
structures that are classified Legal Conforming 
may be modified to LED signs.

96



76

Where can I put a sign?
You can put a sign on property zoned as 
commercial or industrial that is off the right-of-
way.  (See prohibited signs and areas)

Can I put a sign on my property?
Signs advertising the products and activities 
conducted on the property on which they are 
located are referred to as “on premise” signs and 
are not subject to this act.  A KDOT license is 
not required but you may need local government 
approval.

Can I put a sign on someone else’s 
property?
You can put a sign for your business or someone 
else’s business along a state highway.  This is 
called outdoor advertising.  You must submit an 
application and be approved to build a sign.  

  ◊ The sign must follow local ordinance and, if 
required, you must have a local permit.  

  ◊ The sign site must be on zoned or unzoned 
commercial or industrial property.  

  ◊ You must have the owner’s permission.  

  ◊ There must be a visible, licensed business 
or industry that has been in operation for at 
least six months on the property (if the area is 
unzoned).

What are some of the restrictions that 
apply to outdoor advertising?
Outdoor advertising signs placed along state 
highways:

  ◊ Can be no larger than 900 total square feet.    
Directional signs cannot exceed 150 square 
feet.

  ◊ Can have a sign face no more than 30 feet 
high and no wider than 60 feet.

  ◊ Can not exceed 50 feet above the road grade.  
This includes border, trim and embellishment, 
but does not include base or apron, supports 
or other structural members.

  ◊ Must comply with spacing standards

  ◊ The sign cannot contain flashing, intermittent, 
or moving lights, including animated or 
scrolling advertising.

What are the restrictions that apply 
specifically to Electronic (LED) signs?
The signs must display a static image for a 
minimum of eight seconds, and have an interval 
change time of two seconds or less.  Electronic 
signs must be at least 1,000 feet apart.  Only sign 
structures that are classified Legal Conforming 
may be modified to LED/ACF with approval.

97



58

What roads require a sign to be 
licensed? 

In Kansas this applies to all Interstate roads along 
with most State routes.  For a map of controlled 
roads go to www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/
beaut/ and click on KDOT Outdoor Advertising 
Control map.  All highways designated as part of 
the National Highway System (NHS) are subject 
to control.  The NHS includes all interstate and 
many of the former primary highways.  Most 
primary highways that are subject to control are 
not a part of the NHS.  

of
 th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
as

su
m

es
 n

o 
lia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r e
rr

or
s 

or
 o

m
is

si
on

s.

K
D

O
T 

m
ak

es
 n

o 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s,
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s,
 o

r r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 fo
r a

cc
ur

ac
y

K
A

N
S

A
S

 D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

T 
O

F 
TR

A
N

S
P

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E

0
10

B
U

R
E

A
U

 O
F 

TR
A

N
S

P
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G

30
10

20

M
O

R
TO

N
ST

E
VE

N
S

G
R

A N
T

SE
W

A
R

D
M

EA
D

E

H
A

SK
E

LL

G
R

A Y

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

KE
AR

N
Y

G
R

EE
LE

Y
W

IC
H

IT
A

FI
N

N
E Y

S C
O

TT
L A

N
E

N
E

S
S

C
LA

R
K

F O
R

D

K
IO

W
A

C
O

M
A

N
C

H
E

B
A

R
B

E
R

P
R

A
TT

H
O

D
G

EM
A N

P
A

W
N

E
E

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

S
TA

FF
O

R
D

B
A

R
TO

N

R
IC

E

W
AL

LA
C

E
LO

G
A

N
G

O
V E

W
Y

A
N

D
O

TT
E

SH
ER

M
AN

TH
O

M
A S

C
H

EY
E

N
N

E
R

A
W

LI
N

S

S H
E R

I D
A N

D
E

C
A

T U
R

R
U

S
H

T R
E G

O
E L

L I
S

R
U

S
S

E
LL

G
R

A H
AM

R
O

O
K

S

N
O

R
T O

N
P

H
IL

LI
P

S

O
S

B
O

R
N

E

S
M

IT
H

H
A

R
P

E
R

K
IN

G
M

A
N

S
E

D
G

W
IC

K

S
U

M
N

E
R

C
O

W
LE

Y

B
U

TL
E

R

R
E

N
O

H
A

R
V

E
Y

M
cP

H
E

R
S

O
N

M
A

R
IO

N

C
H

A
S

E

C
H

A
U

TA
U

Q
U

A

E
LK

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y

LA
BE

TT
E

C
H

ER
O

K
EE

N
E

O
S

H
O

C
R

A
W

FO
R

D
ST

A
N

TO
N

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D
W

IL
SO

N

LY
O

N

C
O

FF
E

Y

W
O

O
D

S
O

N
A

LL
E

N
BO

U
R

BO
N

AN
D

ER
SO

N
LI

N
N

E
LL

S
W

O
R

TH

SA
LI

N
E

LI
N

C
O

LN

O
TT

AW
A

D
IC

K
IN

SO
N

M
O

R
R

IS

G
EA

R
Y

M
IT

C
H

E
LL

C
LO

U
D

JE
W

E
LL

R
E

PU
BL

IC

C
LA

Y

R
IL

E
Y

W
AS

H
IN

G
T O

N
M

AR
S

H
A

L L

O
SA

G
E

W
AB

AU
N

S E
E

FR
AN

K
LI

N
M

IA
M

I

D
O

U
G

LA
S

JO
H

N
S

O
N

S
H

A
W

N
E

E
JA

C
KS

O
N

PO
TT

A
W

A T
O

M
IE

N
E

M
A

H
A

B
R

O
W

N

JE
FF

E
R

S
O

N

LE
A

VE
N

W
O

R
TH

A
TC

H
IS

O
N

Pi
tts

bu
rg

H
ug

ot
on

Jo
hn

so
n

C
it y

U
ly

ss
es

Li
be

r a
l

M
ea

de

Su
bl

et
te

Sy
r a

cu
se

La
ki

n
G

ar
de

n
C

i ty

C
im

a r
ro

n

S c
ot

tC
ity

A
sh

la
nd

C
ol

d w
a t

er

C
ity

D
od

ge

G
re

en
sb

ur
g

M
ed

ic
in

e 
Lo

dg
e

P
ra

tt

Je
tm

or
e

K
in

sl
ey

N
es

s 
C

ity

S
t. 

Jo
hn

La
rn

ed

G
re

at
 B

en
d

Tr
ib

un
e

Le
ot

i

Sp
r in

gs
Sh

ar
on

D
ig

h t
on

O
ak

l e
y

G
ov

e

G
oo

dl
an

dSt
. F

ra
nc

is

C
ol

by

H
ox

i e

A t
w

o o
d

O
be

rli
n

W
aK

ee
ne

y

H
ay

s

La
C

ro
ss

e

E
lls

w
or

th

R
us

se
ll

H
ill

 C
ity

S
to

ck
to

n

N
or

to
n

O
sb

or
ne

P
hi

lli
ps

bu
rg

C
en

te
r

S
m

ith

A
nt

ho
ny

W
el

lin
gt

on

K
in

gm
an

W
ic

hi
ta

W
in

fie
ld

E
l D

or
ad

o

H
ut

ch
in

so
n

N
ew

to
n

Ly
on

s

M
cP

he
rs

on

M
ar

io
n

Fa
lls

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

S
ed

an

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

H
ow

ar
d

Fr
ed

on
ia

O
sw

eg
o

C
ol

um
bu

s

E
rie

G
ira

rd

E
ur

ek
a

C
en

te
r

Ya
te

s

E
m

po
ria

Bu
rli

ng
to

n

Io
la

Sc
ot

t
Fo

rt

G
ar

ne
tt

M
ou

nd
C

ity

Li
nc

ol
n

S
al

in
a

M
in

ne
ap

ol
is

C
ou

nc
il 

G
ro

ve

Ab
ile

ne

Ju
nc

tio
n 

C
ity

B
el

oi
t

M
an

ka
to

C
on

co
rd

ia

B
el

le
vi

lle

C
en

te
r

C
la

y

M
an

ha
tta

n

W
as

hi
ng

to
n

M
ar

ys
vi

lle

Ly
nd

on

A
lm

a
TO

P
E

K
A

O
tta

w
a

P
ao

la

La
w

re
nc

e
O

la
th

e

K
an

sa
s 

C
ity

W
es

tm
or

el
an

d

H
ol

to
n

S
en

ec
a

H
ia

w
at

ha

O
sk

al
oo

sa

Le
av

en
w

or
th

Tr
oy

A
tc

hi
so

n

El
kh

ar
t

66
27

51
5651

25

51

56

27

16
0

25

16
0

51
54

83

23

54

19
0

56

83
14

4

98

56

50

40
0

50

25

27

25

50
15

6 50
23

83

2323

28
3

16
0

16
0

18
3

1

16
0

34

54

28
3

40
0

18
3

2

16
0

54
54

28
1

28
1

42

40
0

61

40
0

50

15
6

28
3

18
3

56

28
396

15
6

18
3

18
3 50

19

50

61

28
1

19

96
96

15
6

56

96

27

9696

25

40
27

40

96

4
95

83

964

40

23

70

27

70

2736

27
16

1
36

25

24
83

24

2323

25

11
7

83
38

336

4

14
7

28
3

70
18

3

4

28
1

4

15
6

40

28
1

18

23
2

18

24

28
3

24

18

18
3

9

38
3

928
3

36

9

60

38
3

18
3

28
1

18
1

24

36

98

28
1

36

18
1

12
8

2

17
9

4416
0

14
2

49
81

81

16
049

14

54
425496

16
6

55
15

77

15

1516
0

53

81
15

35
40

0

77
14

17

50
96

50

61

13
5

13
5

25
4

19
6

13
5

17
7

54

15

77
17

7
15

0
50

16
6

99

16
0

16
0

75

16
6

73

16
0

99

40
0

39
75

39

10
1 16

6

16
0

59
40

0

16
0

7
69

10
3

17
1

16
9

47
47

59
14

6

12
6

39
3

7
69

54

99

58

75

58

99

33
5

35

16
9

54
59

3
769

6531

731
23

9
16

9

31

7

52
69

52

15
2

14
1

11
1

4

13
5

14
0

14

18
18

40
14

3 70

10
681

15

4

15
43

56
17

7
14

9
4

70

18

82

77
57

17
7

18
77

11
3

14
24

24
9

28
9

14
8

14

12
8

36

81

14
8

3681

24
15

24
13

77

16

15
9

15 36
14

8

9

77

56

31 17
0

31

316826
8

33
5

4
99

18

40

24

33
5

470
7575

24

4

56
59

33
68

68
16

9

56
16

9
69

40
10

24
59

16

10
7

35 16
9

3224
73

43
532

5616
9

63
56970

5

99
63

16

16
75

62

11
6

87
18

7

99

36
63

9
20

9

75

75
15

9

924

92
19

2
19

2

15
9

9
5973

5

73

20
7

12
0

36

7

FA
P

 R
oa

ds
 - 

In
te

rs
ta

te
FA

P
 R

oa
ds

 - 
N

on
-In

te
rs

ta
te

C
on

tro
lle

d 
O

ut
do

or
 A

dv
er

tis
in

g 
R

ou
te

s
N

on
-C

on
tro

lle
d 

O
ut

do
or

   
 A

dv
er

tis
in

g 
R

ou
te

s
S

ce
ni

c 
B

yw
ay

s
N

on
-S

ta
te

 S
ys

te
m

 B
us

in
es

s 
R

ou
te

s

K
D

O
T 

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 A
D

V
E

R
TI

S
IN

G
 C

O
N

TR
O

L

O
U

TD
O

O
R

 A
D

V 
C

TR
L 

20
07

.G
W

S 
   

   
   

   
   

   
09

/2
4/

07

C
A

N
S

YS
 D

A
TA

 3
/2

1/
06

Where are outdoor advertising signs 
prohibited?  

There are certain signs prohibited by law.  The 
following is a partial listing of some of the areas 
signs are not allowed, such as:
  ◊ Along scenic byways 
  ◊ In the right-of-way of any highway
  ◊ In any location that hinders the clear, 

unobstructed view of approaching or merging 
traffic, or obscures from view any traffic sign 
or other official sign.

  ◊ Within a stream or drainage canal.
  ◊ In any location that obscures the view of any 

connecting highway or intersection.

Are there signs that are exempt from this 
program?  

Yes, some signs that are visible from controlled 
highways are exempt from this program.  They 
include:

  ◊ Signs advertising the sale or lease of property 
on which they are located.

  ◊ Signs advertising the products and activities 
conducted on the property on which they are 
located.  These signs are referred to as “on 
premise” signs.

  ◊ LOGO and TODS signs authorized under the 
Motorist Information Signs Act.

98



94

  ◊ send in photo(s) of the staked location

  ◊ send in a sketch or map of the sign location

  ◊ send in zoning authority approval 
documentation

  ◊ send in the $250 Application Fee

  ◊ send in the Certificate of Title for signs over 
300 square feet

How long do I have to build a sign?
You have 180 days to build your sign following 
the approval of your application and the submittal 
of your sign license fee.

Why do I need to have a green sign tag 
attached to my sign structure?
This green sign tag is also your license tracking 
number.  This number allows easy viewing 
knowledge that your sign complies with state 
regulations.

Kansas Department of Transportation 

Sign Application  
(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign     Type of Construction _______________________________ 

 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft. Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 

Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;                                 
If Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 

Zoned Area      Un-Zoned 

Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________   Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  Name of Business_______________________________________ 

(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 

Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 

Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 

assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at signs@ksdot.org. Fax: 785-296-0009 

Return:  a) Application to Build Form     Mailing Address: 

 b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign   Kansas Department of Transportation, 

 c) Photos of Staked location     Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 

 d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location   700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 

 e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   

 f) $250 Application Fee  

  
      D.O.T. Form No. 1950 03-08

Kansas Department of Transportation 

Sign Application  

(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  
Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  
Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign  
 

 
 

Type of Construction _______________________________ 

 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft.

Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 

Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;           
            

          If
 Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 

Zoned Area  
 

 
 

 
Un-Zoned 

Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________  
 

Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  
Name of Business_______________________________________ 

(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 

Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 

Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 

assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at signs@ksdot.org. Fax: 785-296-0009 

Return:  a) Application to Build Form   
 

 
Mailing Address: 

 
b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign  

 
Kansas Department of Transportation, 

 
c) Photos of Staked location   

 
 

Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 

 
d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location 

 
 

700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 

 
e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  

Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   

 
f) $250 Application Fee  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D.O.T. Form No. 1950 03-08

Kansas Department of Transportation 
Sign Application  

(Application to Build a Sign)

Sign Owner Information  Classification of Sign Applying for:____________________________ 

Applicants Name (Sign Owner Name) ___________________________________________________     

Business Name (if different from above) __________________________________ Name of Contact_____________________________________  

Address________________________________________________________________ 

City__________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No._(_____)____________________ Fax __(______)________________________ Email Address ____________________________ 

Location of Sign Site  Is new sign location located within city Limits; Yes ____ No ______ Nearest City______________

Highway Number___________ Side of Highway (circle one)   N, S, E, W;       Nearest Mile Marker Reference _________________  

GPS, GPI Reference _________________________ County_________________  Location must be staked with name of owner displayed. 

Physical Description of Sign     Type of Construction _______________________________ 
 
Dimension:  Height of Facing ____________ft. Width of Facing ____________ ft. Overall Height Above Road Grade ____________ft. 

Type of Sign (Check all that apply):  Single face________; Double faced________; Side by Side_______; Stacked ______; V-Type_______; 
Back-to-Back _______; Tri-Vision _______

Number of Faces __________ Will Sign Be Illuminated; Yes____ No ____;                                 If Yes, will it be LED Display Yes____No____ 

Legend _____________________________________***Attach a photo of the placement of sign and a sketch or photo of the proposed sign. 

ZONING AND COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL QUALIFICATIONS (Only needed for Commercial Advertising) 
Zoned Area      Un-Zoned 
Is Area Zoned?      Yes_______ No________   Is location within 600 ft. of a qualifying business Yes _______ No_________

What is the zoning designation? _____________________  Name of Business_______________________________________ 
(Must be some type of commercial, industrial or business designation) 

Zoning Authority__________________________________ Phone Number ______________________ 

Do you have local approval of Sign Structure and Location Yes________  No__________ Not Needed _________________ 

Land Owner Information 
Land Owners Name__________________________________________     Business Name (if different) __________________________________ 

Name of Contact ____________________________________________      Address__________________________________________________ 

City_____________________________________________ State______________________ Zip Code________________ 

Telephone No. (_____) ______________________________ Fax (_______)______________ Email Address______________________________ 

Legal/Location Description _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Do you have permission from the land owner (if different than sign owner) to place your sign on this land?  Yes______ No __________ 
Have you read all of the statutes and regulations pertaining to Outdoor Advertising Control?  Yes ____ 

______________________________________________________ Date _____________________ 
Signature of Applicant 

Failure to complete this Application or giving false and/or misleading information will revoke and disqualify this permit.  If you need further 
assistance place call Toll Free 1 (877) 461-6817 or email us at signs@ksdot.org. Fax: 785-296-0009 
Return:  a) Application to Build Form     Mailing Address: 
 b) Sketch or Photo of Proposed Sign   Kansas Department of Transportation, 
 c) Photos of Staked location     Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising 
 d) Sketch or Map of Sign Location   700 SW Harrison Street, 14th Floor 
 e) Zoning Authority Approval Documentation  Topeka, Kansas 66603-3745   
 f) $250 Application Fee  
        D.O.T. Form No. 1950 03-08

Sign Licenses and Renewals
How much do they cost?
Once the initial sign license fee is paid, a license 
fee will be due every 2 years.  This fee is $20.00 
for signs with total square feet up to 32.  $75.00 
for signs with a total of 33 to 300 square feet 
and $150.00 for signs over 301 square feet.   An 
invoice will be sent to each sign owner, of the 
structure, 60 days prior to the expiration date.  A 
$50 past due fee will be assessed 30 days after 
the expiration date for unpaid invoices.  The $50 
late fee will be accessed each month for the first 
two months.  Once an invoice is 60 days past due 
the license will be terminated and the sign will be 
subject to removal.

What if I lose a tag or my tag is stolen?
If you lose a tag or if your tag is stolen, a Sign 
License Replacement Plate Application form 
along with a $25.00 fee shall be submitted.  The 
license fee must be current prior to submitting a 
replacement plate application.

Can a sign be transferred to another 
owner?
Yes almost all signs can be transferred to another 
owner.  A Sign Transfer Application form must 
be filled out and submitted to KDOT to process 
a sign owner transfer.  There is no fee for 
transfers.

↓

99



310

Sign Application
  

Why do I need a sign application (permit 
to build) and license?
As part of Kansas law K.S.A. 68-2231 et seq 
revised in 2006 you are required to submit an 
application and be approved before you can erect 
a sign adjacent to a controlled route in Kansas.  

Who needs to obtain an application to 
build a sign?
Anyone who wants to build a sign adjacent to 
controlled routes in Kansas.

Where do I get an application form?
You can either call one of the numbers listed on 
Page 11 or by accessing the Internet at www.
ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/beaut/ just click on 
Sign Application.

How much does it cost?
The fee to submit an application is $250.00 per 
sign.  In addition, a sign license fee is required 
once your application and sign location have 
been approved by KDOT.  This fee is $20.00 for 
signs with total square feet up to 32.  $75.00 for 
signs with a total of 33 to 300 square feet and 
$150.00 for signs over 301 square feet.  This fee 
is good for a two year period.

What do I need to do to apply for an 
application to build a sign?
In additional to filling out your sign application 
you will need to:

  ◊ send in a sketch or photo of the proposed 
sign 

TODS (Tourist Oriented Directional) 

and LOGO (Business Activities) 

Signs
  ◊ TODS signs are available along the state 

highway system to provide directional 
information to tourist-oriented businesses, 
seasonal agricultural products, services, 
and attractions that cannot be seen from the 
highway.  TODS signs are not allowed along 
interstate highways. 

 

 
 

  ◊ LOGO signs are available to eligible 
businesses who’s activities include gas, 
food, lodging, camping, and other attractions 
at eligible interchanges on the Interstate 
system.

If you are interested in a TODS or a LOGO sign 
please contact: www.kansas.interstatelogos.com 

100



112

What type of signs does this apply to in 
Kansas?
Kansas licenses three types of signs, legal 
conforming, direction, and official.  Each has its 
own specific rules that apply.  

  ◊ Legal conforming signs are signs that are in 
commercial or industrial zoned areas.  These 
signs require an applicaton and fee, and an 
additional yearly licensing fee.

  ◊ Directional and official signs require a sign 
application and fee but are exempt from 
licensing fee.

How do we apply for a Vegetation 
Permit?
If you would like to get more information 
regarding a vegetation permit, please contact our 
office or go to www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/
VegMan for more information.

Who do I contact?
Kansas Department of Transportation
Bureau of Right of Way, Outdoor Advertising
700 SW Harrison Street
Topeka KS 66603-3745
Toll Free:  1-877-461-6817
Email:  KDOT#ROW.Signs@ks.gov
Fax:  785-296-6946
Hearing Impaired - 711
www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burRow/beaut/ 

101



Why is the Kansas Department of 
Transportation involved with outdoor 
advertising?
As part of the Highway Beautification Act (also 
known as the Lady Bird Johnson Act), federal 
law requires all states to provide continuing, 
effective control of outdoor advertising (Title 
23, U.S. Code, Section 131).  Failure to comply 
may result in a 10 percent reduction in Kansas’s 
Federal Highway funds.

What is Outdoor Advertising?
Outdoor Advertising is signs, displays, and 
devices in areas visible from and adjacent to the 
federal-aid primary system in existence on June 
1, 1991 and any highway which is not on such 
system but which is on the national highway 
system.  These signs are controlled in order to 
protect the public investment on such highways, 
and to promote the safety and recreation value of 
public travel, and to preserve natural beauty.

112

Statutory Authority- NOTES -

102



—  ATTENTION  —
This brochure is only a guideline for outdoor 
advertising and is not intended to be inclusive 
of all applicable laws.  Sign applicants and 
owners are responsible for knowing the laws 
and ordinances that control signage.  If there is 
a conflict between this brochure and any federal, 
state, or local laws or ordinances, the law or 
ordinances will prevail.  Please call KDOT if you 
have any questions.

Table of Contents - NOTES -

13

Why is the Kansas Department of Transportation 
involved with outdoor advertising?  ......................... 1

What is outdoor advertising?  .................................. 1

What type of signs does this apply to in Kansas?  .. 2

Sign Application Information  ................................ 3-8
Why do I need a sign application and license?
Who needs to obtain an application?
Where do I get an application form?
How much does one cost?
What do I need to do to apply?
How long do I have to build a sign?
Why do I need to have a green sign tag?
What roads require a sign to be licensed?
Where can I put a sign?
Can I put a sign on my property?
Can I put a sign on someone else’s property?
What are the regulations to outdoor advertising?
What are regulations that apply to LED signs?

Sign Licenses and Renewals  ................................. 9
 How much do they cost?

What if I lose a tag or my tag is stolen?
Can a sign be transferred to another owner?

TODS (Tourist Oriented Directional) and LOGO 
(Business Activities) Signs .................................... 10

How do we apply for a Vegetation Permit? ...........  11

Who do I Contact?  ................................................  11

Page

103



www.ksdot.org

KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
BUREAU OF RIGHT OF WAY

DWIGHT D. EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING
700 S.W. HARRISON STREET, TOPEKA, KS 66603-3745
PUBLIC ACCESS AT NORTH ENTRANCE OF BUILDING

VOICE 785-296-3501  TTY 711
FAX 785-296-6946  http://www.ksdot.org

Toll Free Number 1-877-461-6817

     April 2019

Department of Transportation

Department of Transportation

104



Applicant:

Location:

Property ID:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

Current Land Use:

Proposed Land Use:

 

 Public Hearing Required

Legal Notice:

Case Number:

Project Name:

Project Summary:

Staff Contact:

AT A GLANCE

23-23

Popeye’s Final Development Plan

The applicant proposes a tear-down and rebuild 
of an existing drive-through restaurant with 
improvements, including closed entrance on 
Johnson Drive, two-lane drive-through vehicular 
stacking, landscaping, and pedestrian realm 
activation.

CSM Groups, DBA Popeye’s Louisiana 
Kitchen

6821 Johnson Drive

KF251208-2052

C-2B

N/A

Drive-Through Restaurant/Vacant

N/A

N/A

N/A

November 27, 2023 
Planning Commission

Staff Report

Karie Kneller, Planner

105



The applicant, CSM Groups, dba Popeye’s Louisiana Kitchen, submitted an application for a preliminary 
development plan for a fast food drive-through restaurant located at 6821 Johnson Drive, on the 
southeast corner of Johnson Drive and Broadmoor Street. The property is in the Form Based Code 
(FBC) overlay district and it is zoned C-2B “Retail and Service District.” Surrounding properties are 
zoned C2-B on the east and south, and M-1 on the west across Broadmoor Street. The property north 
of Johnson Drive is also zoned C2-B. The property is currently a half-acre (21,918 square feet), with a 
proposed re-plat associated with Case #23-18 that reduces the lot with additional dedicated right-of- 
way to under a half-acre. All necessary utilities are available on-site. The former Popeye’s drive through 
restaurant suffered fire damage in January of 2023 and will be completely rebuilt on the current site.

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the preliminary development plan (Case #23-
16) to the City Council in August 2023. The City Council approved the preliminary development plan in 
September 2023. The proposal includes an existing structure that will be razed, and the redevelopment 
of a one-story Popeye’s fast-food drive-through restaurant with parking lot, landscaping, and pedestrian 
realm improvements. The one-story structure will have a maximum parapet height of 26 feet with 
awnings and glass spandrel details. Surface parking is screened from street and pedestrian view by a 
6–7-foot brick wall with materials consistent with the main structure and in accordance with the Johnson 
Drive Design Guidelines. Amenities such as benches, bike racks, outdoor seating, street and pedestrian 
lighting, vegetated planters, storefront glazing, and new signage are also proposed to enhance the 
public realm.

Included in the final development plan is a demolition plan, site plan, as well as plans for truck turns, 
grading, utilities, erosion control, landscaping, and photometrics. Elevations of each façade, wall 
sections, color and material specifications, and a perspective streetscape rendering are also included 
in the final development plan. All required plans and specifications were submitted with the final 
development plan application. 

Landscaping consists of trees and shrubs native to northeast Kansas, and lighting will be full cut-off per 
International Dark Sky standards. Street and pedestrian lighting consistent with specifications along 
Johnson Drive frontage will be installed in two locations in the right-of-way; details are forthcoming with 
construction permitting.

The conditions as part of the approval of the preliminary development plan carry over to the final 
development plan and remain part of staff recommendations herein. The plans have not significantly 
changed with the final development plan.

Popeye’s Final Development Plan

Property Background and Information

Plan Review and Analysis

Project Proposal

106



Staff recommends that the Planning Commission  approve the preliminary development plan and non-
conforming situation permit for Popeye’s redevelopment with the following conditions:

1. Public amenities shall be provided in accordance with City Standards and the site design of 
adjacent improved properties on Johnson Drive, including but not limited to park benches, bike 
racks, and pedestrian streetlights; once installed, the City agrees to maintain amenities that are fully 
within the public right-of-way; details shall be submitted with construction documents prior to permit 
issuance.

2. A demolition permit application for the existing structure is required within three months of City 
Council approval of the Development Plan.

3. The applicant will provide a two (2) year warranty bond on any public infrastructure installed as 
part of this Development Plan. Said bond(s) will be placed on file with the City of Mission Community 
Development Department.

4. Construction permitting documents shall be submitted to the Community Development 
Department and approved by the Community Development Committee prior to the issuance of any 
building permits.

5. This Development Plan approval shall lapse in five (5) years from its effective date if construction 
on the project has not begun, or if such construction is not being diligently pursued; provided, however, 
that the applicant may request a hearing before the City Council to request an extension of this time 
period. The City Council may grant an extension for a maximum of 12 months for good cause.

6. The applicant shall obtain all approvals from Johnson County Wastewater and Johnson County 
Water District #1 prior to building permit issuance.

7. The applicant shall obtain all necessary reviews, inspections, and approvals from Consolidated 
Fire District #2 prior to final occupancy permit being issued.

8. The applicant shall be responsible for all damage to existing City infrastructure, including roads, 
curbs, and sidewalks. Repairs shall be of a quality like or better than existing conditions before final 
Certificate of Occupancy issuance.

9. Maintenance agreement for all site improvements, including but not limited to structures, improved 
infrastructure, landscaping, parking, and pedestrian connections on the property shall be provided 
and signed by the applicant and the appropriate City officials prior to construction permitting.

Popeye’s Final Development Plan

Recommendation

107



Popeye’s Final Development Plan

The Planning Commission will consider Case #23-23 Popeye’s Final Development Plan at its November 
27, 2023 meeting. 

No Action.

City Council Action

Planning Commision Action

108



109



110



” 

□

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

111

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 6909 JOHNSON DRIVE OWNER: BOOGALOO MANAGEMENT CORP ZONING: M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANET SUBS SANDWICH LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5918 BROADMOOR STREET OWNER: UNLEASHED PET RESCUE      AND ADDOPTION INC. ZONING: M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEASHED PET RESCUE LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5924 BROADMOOR STREET OWNER: BROADMOOR PROPERTIES, LLC ZONING: M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIDE CLEANERS -  BROADMOOR PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5925 BROADMOOR STREET OWNER: KH MOTORS, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
KH AUTOMOTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5929 BROADMOOR STREET OWNER: TOP SHELF HOLDINGS, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. LAND DDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 7000 JOHNSON DRIVE OWNER: MISSION 7000, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS PAINT STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 6880 JOHNSON DRIVE OWNER: JL GROUP HOLDINGS I, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR SQUARE BURGER KING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 6819 JOHNSON DRIVE OWNER: EVC MISSION LC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNERSTON COMMONS NATURAL GROCERS LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5922 BARKLEY STREET OWNER: CORNERSTONE COMMONS, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNERSTONE COMMONS FIVE GUYS & PEPPERJAX GRILLE LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 5915 BROADMOOR STREET OWNER: GOODMAN AND ERICKSON            MANAGEMENT COMPANY, LLC ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION ANIMAL CLINIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S  LOUISIANA KITCHEN L0T 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 6821 JOHNSON DRIVE OWNER: CONTINENTAL SUPERIOR        MANAGEMENT GROUPS ZONING: C-2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
160'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS: 6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCIVIL ENGINEER & SURVERYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHELPS ENGINEERING, INC. 1270 N. WINCHESTER OLATHE, KS 66061 913-393-1155 OFFICE 913-393-1166 FAX CONTACT: JUDD CLAUSSEN, P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN THE CITY OF MISSION, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT DESCRIPTION ALL THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 12 SOUTH, RANGE 25 EAST, IN THE CITY OF MISSION, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY SCOTT G CHRISMAN, LS-1306, ON JUNE 19, 2023, FOR PROJECT 230238, AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE N 89°53'00” E, ALONG THE NORTH E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 590.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 8, AND THE CENTERLINE OF BROADMOOR STREET, AS NOW ESTABLISHED, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, N 89°53'00" E, A DISTANCE OF 155.00 FEET, TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF CORNERSTONE COMMONS, A PLATTED SUBDIVISION OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MISSION, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS; THENCE S 0°07'00" E, A DISTANCE OF 215.00 FEET; THENCE S 89°53'00" W, A DISTANCE OF 155.00 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF BROADMOOR STREET, AS NOW ESTABLISHED; THENCE N 0°07'00" W, ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF SAID BROADMOOR STREET, A DISTANCE OF 215.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.7650 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF UNPLATTED LAND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PROPERTY LIES WITHIN ZONE X, DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AS SHOWN ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP PREPARED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR THE CITY OF MISSION, COMMUNITY NO. 200170, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, MAP NO. 20091C0023G, AND DATED AUGUST 3, 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL DATUM = NAVD88 BASED ON GPS OBSERVATION USING SMARTNET GPS NETWORK 1.  SET " " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT  SET " " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT  CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT ELEVATION = 1020.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOVERALL SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARMAN ARCHITECTURE+DESIGN 1735 SWIFT AVE. NORTH KANSAS CITY, MO 64116 816-474-2233 OFFICE 816-474-1051 FAX CONTACT: KATHLEEN A. WARMAN, AIA, NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOWNER/DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINENTAL SUPERIOR MANAGEMENT GROUPS 10190 KATY FREEWAY, SUITE 350 HOUSTON, TX 77043 713-266-8799 OFFICE 713-266-2703 FAX CONTACT: FAIZAN YOUSUF

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERALL SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK TURN PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5-C5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY COMPANIES: EVERGY  (816) 652-1852 (816) 652-1852 AMANDA KAUER (Amanda.Kauer@evergy.com)  (605) 321-6121-CELL (605) 321-6121-CELL 16215 W. 108TH STREET LENEXA, KANSAS 66219 ATMOS ENERGY CAMERON PARKS (cameron.parks@atmosenergy.com)  (913) 254-6344  (913) 254-6344  25090 W. 110TH TER.  (913) 768-4924 FAX (913) 768-4924 FAX FAX OLATHE, KS  66061 COMCAST CABLE CO.  (816) 795-2257 (816) 795-2257 JIM DUFF  (816) 795-0346 FAX (816) 795-0346 FAX (james_duff@cable.comcast.com) 3400 W. DUNCAN ROAD  BLUE SPRINGS, MISSOURI  64015 CITY OF MISSION  (913) 676-8381 (913) 676-8381 CELIA DURAN   4775 LAMAR AVE MISSION, KS, 66208 (cduran@missionks.org) CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS  (913) 322-9622  (913) 322-9622  MELISSA STRINGER (melissa.stringer@consolidated.com)   14859 W. 95TH STREET  LENEXA, KS 66215 AT&T  (913) 383-4929 (913) 383-4929 CLAYTON ANSPAUGH (ca4089@att.com)  (913) 383-4849 FAX (913) 383-4849 FAX 9444 NALL AVENUE OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS  66207 SPECTRUM CABLE  (913) 440-4189 (913) 440-4189 450 N. ROGERS RD. OLATHE KS. 66062 GOOGLE FIBER MS. TERESA ERB(TERESAERB@GOOGLE.COM)  (913) 551-4492 (913) 551-4492 908 BROADWAY BLVD. KANSAS CITY, MO  66105

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE PLANS



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

112

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENU BOARD CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCOM CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGITAL METAL  ORDER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE POST AND BAR ON CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6821 1-STORY BRICK & GLASS BUILDING F.F.=1018.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU PICKUP WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD & METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BUMPER BLOCK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL (IN A LOCATION APPROVED BY ALL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES) ALL CURBS, PARKING, DRIVES, DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, ETC., SUCH  THAT THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THE REMAINING PLANS CAN BE CONSTRUCTED. ALL FACILITIES TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE UNDERCUT TO SUITABLE MATERIAL AND BROUGHT TO GRADE WITH SUITABLE COMPACTED FILL MATERIAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL DEBRIS FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSING THE DEBRIS IN A LAWFUL MANNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS REQUIRED FOR DEMOLITION AND DISPOSAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  DAMAGE TO ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS TO REMAIN WILL BE REPLACED AT CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE WITH OWNER PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION TO ESTABLISH CUSTOMER ACCESS AND TRAFFIC FLOW DURING ALL PHASES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT/SIDEWALK TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BURIED ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BURIED TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CABLE TELEVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  REFER TO THE BUILDING PLANS FOR SITE LIGHTING ELECTRICAL MODIFICATIONS (IF ANY) TO THE EXISTING SYSTEM.   

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDEMOLITION KEY NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CURB. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING TRASH ENCLOSURE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING MENU BOARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CLEARANCE BAR, POST AND CONCRETE PAD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING POLE SIGN AND CONCRETE BASE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELECTRIC METER TO BE REMOVED (COORDINATE WITH EVERGY).

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS METER TO BE REMOVED (COORDINATE WITH KANSAS GAS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER METER PIT TO REMAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE RETAINING WALL TO REMAIN. DO NOT DISTURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING WOOD DECK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK TO REMAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING LIGHT POLE AND 2' SQUARE CONCRETE BASE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STOP BLOCKS (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADED AREAS INDICATE MAIN STRUCTURES AND OUTBUILDINGS TO BE DEMOLISHED. IN ADDITION TO SHADED DEMOLITION AREAS, ALL MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE,  STONE STRUCTURES, OUTBUILDINGS, PRIVATE SIDEWALKS, RETAINING WALLS, SIGNS, PATIOS, FOUNDATION WALLS AND FOOTINGS ASSOCIATED WITH THE STRUCTURES  SHALL BE REMOVED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS. TYPICAL LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO BACKFILL ALL EXCAVATIONS/DEPRESSIONS CREATED BY THE REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES, FOUNDATIONS, FOOTINGS, PAVING, SEPTIC TANKS, WELLS, PIPES, TREE ROOTS, DEBRIS AND UTILITY STRUCTURES, ETC.   ALL EXCAVATIONS SHALL BE BACKFILLED TO EXISTING GROUND ELEVATIONS ON ALL SIDES OF THE EXCAVATION.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL PRE-EXISTING STRUCTURES, FOUNDATIONS, FOOTINGS, PIERS, WATER WELLS, SEPTIC TANKS, LATERAL LINES, BURIED DEBRIS, MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE, ETC. WHICH MAY BE ENCOUNTERED DURING DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DISPOSE OF THESE MATERIALS IN A LOCATION APPROVED BY ALL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES.



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

113

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN - AERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE



114

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DIMENSION NOTES: 1.  BUILDING TIES SHOWN ARE TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF PROPOSED WALLS.  THE SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR SPECIFIC DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT INFORMATION FOR THE BUILDINGS. 2.  ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN FOR THE PARKING LOT AND CURBS ARE MEASURED FORM BACK OF CURB TO BACK OF CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT MARKING AND SIGNAGE NOTES: 1.  PARKING STALL MARKING STRIPES SHALL BE FOUR INCH (4") WIDE WHITE STRIPES.  DIRECTIONAL ARROW AND HANDICAP STALL MARKINGS SHALL BE FURNISHED AT LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLANS.  2.  HANDICAP PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND SIGNS SHALL CONFORM TO ALL FEDERAL (AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT) AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  3.  TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE "MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES".  4.  STOP SIGNS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON PLANS AND SHALL CONFORM TO THE "MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES".  SIGNS SHALL BE 18" X 12", 18 GAUGE STEEL AND SHALL BE ENGINEER GRADE REFLECTIVE. 5.  TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE PAINTED WITH A WHITE SHERWIN WILLIAMS S-W TRAFFIC MARKING SERIES B-29Y2 OR APPROVED EQUAL.  THE PAVEMENT MARKING SHALL BE APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS.  APPLY ON A CLEAN, DRY SURFACE AND AT A SURFACE TEMPERATURE OF NOT LESS THAN 70°F AND THE AMBIENT AIR TEMPERATURESHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 60°F AND RISING.  TWO COATS SHALL BE APPLIED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN NOTES: 1. All construction materials and procedures on this project shall conform to the latest revision of the following governing requirements, incorporated herein by reference: All construction materials and procedures on this project shall conform to the latest revision of the following governing requirements, incorporated herein by reference: A)  City ordinances & O.S.H.A. Regulations. B)  The City of Mission Technical Specifications and Municipal Code.. C)  The Project Specifications.  2. The contractor shall have one (1) signed copy of the plans (approved by the City) and one (1) copy of the appropriate Design and Construction Standards and Specifications at the job site at all times. The contractor shall have one (1) signed copy of the plans (approved by the City) and one (1) copy of the appropriate Design and Construction Standards and Specifications at the job site at all times. 3. The contractor will be responsible for securing all permits, bonds and insurance required by the  contract  documents, City of Mission, Kansas, and all other governing agencies (including  local, county, The contractor will be responsible for securing all permits, bonds and insurance required by the  contract  documents, City of Mission, Kansas, and all other governing agencies (including  local, county, state and federal authorities) having jurisdiction over the work proposed by these  construction documents.  The cost for all permits, bonds and insurance shall be the contractors  responsibility and shall be included in the bid for the work. 4. The contractor is responsible for coordination of his and his sub-contractor's work.  The contractor shall assume all responsibility for protecting and maintaining his work during the construction period The contractor is responsible for coordination of his and his sub-contractor's work.  The contractor shall assume all responsibility for protecting and maintaining his work during the construction period and between the various trades/sub-contractors constructing the work.  5. The demolition and removal(or relocation) of existing pavement, curbs, structures, utilities, and all other features necessary to construct the proposed improvements, shall be performed by the contractor.  The demolition and removal(or relocation) of existing pavement, curbs, structures, utilities, and all other features necessary to construct the proposed improvements, shall be performed by the contractor.  All waste material removed during  construction shall be disposed off the project site.  The contractor shall be responsible for all permits for  hauling and  disposing of waste material.  The disposal of waste material shall be in accordance with  all local, state and federal regulations.  6. Contractor shall be responsible for all relocations, including but not limited to, all utilities, storm drainage, sanitary sewer services, signs, traffic signals & poles, etc. as required.  All work shall be in Contractor shall be responsible for all relocations, including but not limited to, all utilities, storm drainage, sanitary sewer services, signs, traffic signals & poles, etc. as required.  All work shall be in accordance with governing authorities specifications and shall be approved by such. All cost shall be included in base bid. 7. All existing utilities indicated on the drawings are according to the best information available to the Engineer; however, all utilities actually existing may not be shown. The contractor shall be responsible All existing utilities indicated on the drawings are according to the best information available to the Engineer; however, all utilities actually existing may not be shown. The contractor shall be responsible for contacting all utility companies for an exact field location of each utility prior to any construction.  All utilities, shown and unshown, damaged through the negligence of the contractor shall be repaired or replaced by the contractor at his expense. 8. The contractor will be responsible for all damage to existing utilities, pavement, fences, structures and  other features not designated for removal.  The contractor shall repair all damages at his expense.  The contractor will be responsible for all damage to existing utilities, pavement, fences, structures and  other features not designated for removal.  The contractor shall repair all damages at his expense.  9. The contractor shall verify the flow lines of all existing storm or sanitary sewer connections and utility crossings prior to the start of construction.  Notify the engineer of any discrepancies.  The contractor shall verify the flow lines of all existing storm or sanitary sewer connections and utility crossings prior to the start of construction.  Notify the engineer of any discrepancies.  10. SAFETY NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR:  In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of SAFETY NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR:  In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of   In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the work.  This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.  Any construction observation by the engineer of the contractor's performance is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the contractor's safety measures, in, on or near the construction site.  11. Refer to the building plans for site lighting electrical requirements, including conduits, pole bases, pull boxes, etc.Refer to the building plans for site lighting electrical requirements, including conduits, pole bases, pull boxes, etc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT SCREEN WALL (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED PARKING STANDARD STALLS (9'-0" X 18'-0") ACCESSIBLE STALLS  PROVIDED STALLS REQUIRED PARKING STALLS 1 STALL / 4 SEATS (24 SEATS)* REQUIRED ACCESSIBLE STALLS    TOTAL STALLS REQUIRED ACCESSIBLE STALLS  PARKING LOT % LANDSCAPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 1 16  6 1-25 1 9%

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY AREA ZONING PROPOSED BUILDING (1-STORY) FLOOR AREA RATIO (FAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
21,198 S.F. / 0.49 AC. C2-B 2,354 S.F. 0.111 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SUMMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT PRIVATE 6" CURB (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL TRASH ENCLOSURE WITH HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS FOR ENCLOSER DETAILS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICK-UP WINDOW (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE. INSTALL MARKINGS PER STD. DETAIL. INSTALL VAN ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN. (1 TOTAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CONCRETE PAVEMENT (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MONUMENT SIGN INTEGRATED W/ WALL (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL MENU BOARD AND ORDER BOX (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT PUBLIC 6" CURB (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL PAVEMENT STRIPPING (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H1

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL PRE-ORDER MENU BOARD (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEARANCE BAR (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
H2

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT PUBLIC CONCRETE SIDEWALK RAMP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STOP SIGN (TYPICAL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
* OWNER ANTICIPATES UP TO 15 EMPLOYEES WORKING DURING MAX SHIFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PLANTER BED (RE: LANDSCAPE PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL (RE: LANDSCAPE PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BENCH (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TABLE W/ CHAIRS AND UMBRELLA  (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BIKE RINGS  (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6 FOOT SCREEN WALL  (RE: ARCHITECT PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LANDSCAPE BED (RE: LANDSCAPE PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARKING LOT LIGHT PE BED (RE: LIGHTING PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USITE KEY NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SIDEWALK RAMP WITH HANDRAIL ON BOTH SIDES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL TURNDOWN CONCRETE SIDEWALK. REFER TO GRADING PLAN FOR SIDEWALK ELEVATIONS ALONG RIGHT OF WAY AND OUTSIDE BUILDING. INSTALL HANDRAIL ALONG SIDEWALK FROM  BUILDING EXIT TO LANDING AT BOTTOM OF RAMP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL DUAL STREETLIGHT / PEDESTRIAN LIGHT POLES ALONG MISSION ROAD. FINAL LOCATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS TO BE COORDINATED WITH CITY AT TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT.



115

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK TURN PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

□

116

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1019.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
ME

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIP OF GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WET CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRY CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1088.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE GRADING NOTES: 1. CONTOURS AND ELEVATIONS: Existing and proposed contours are shown on plans at one foot (1') contour intervals, unless CONTOURS AND ELEVATIONS: Existing and proposed contours are shown on plans at one foot (1') contour intervals, unless otherwise noted,  proposed contours and elevations shown represent approximate finish  grade.  Contractor shall hold down subgrades to allow for pavement and sub-base thicknesses. 2. If the contractor does not accept existing topography as shown on the plans, without exception, he shall have made at his If the contractor does not accept existing topography as shown on the plans, without exception, he shall have made at his expense, a topographic survey by a registered land surveyor and submit it to the owner for review. 3. CLEARING AND GRUBBING: Prior to beginning preparation of subgrade, all areas under pavements or building shall be stripped of CLEARING AND GRUBBING: Prior to beginning preparation of subgrade, all areas under pavements or building shall be stripped of all topsoil, vegetation, large rock fragments (greater than 6 inches in any dimension) and any other deleterious material.  The actual stripping depth should be based on visual examination during construction and the results of proof-rolling operations. The root systems of all trees (not designated to remain) shall be removed in their entirety.  Stripping materials shall not be incorporated into structural fills.  4. TOPSOIL STRIPPING:  Prior to the start of site grading, the contractor shall strip all topsoil from areas to be graded, and TOPSOIL STRIPPING:  Prior to the start of site grading, the contractor shall strip all topsoil from areas to be graded, and stockpiled at a location on or adjacent to the site as directed by the owner.  At completion of grading operations and related construction, the contractor will be responsible for redistribution of topsoil over all areas disturbed by the construction activities.  Topsoil shall be placed to a minimum depth of six inches (6") and in accordance with specifications for landscaping.  At that time, and prior to the installation of landscaping or irrigation, all topsoil graded areas shall be visually inspected and accepted by the owner and ITL.  5. Contractor shall adjust and/or cut existing pavement as necessary to assure a smooth fit and continuous grade. Contractor Contractor shall adjust and/or cut existing pavement as necessary to assure a smooth fit and continuous grade. Contractor shall assure positive drainage away from buildings for all natural and paved areas. 6. SUBGRADE PREPARATION: Prior to placement of new fill material, the existing subgrade  shall be proofrolled and approved under SUBGRADE PREPARATION: Prior to placement of new fill material, the existing subgrade  shall be proofrolled and approved under the direction of the Geotechnical Engineer or his representative.  7. PROOFROLLING: Subsequent to completion of stripping and over-excavation, all building and pavement areas to receive PROOFROLLING: Subsequent to completion of stripping and over-excavation, all building and pavement areas to receive engineered fill should be systematically proof-rolled using a tandem axle dump truck loaded to approximately 20,000 pounds per axle.  Also, any finished subgrade areas to receive paving shall be proof-rolled within 48 hours of paving.  Unsuitable soils that are detected and that can not be recompacted should be over-excavated and replaced with controlled structural fill.    8. EARTHWORK:  EARTHWORK:  A) GEOTECHNICAL:  All earthwork shall conform to the recommendations of the Geotechnical report.  Said report and its recommendations are herein incorporated into the project requirements by reference. Prior to beginning construction, the contractor shall obtain a copy of and become familiar with the geotechnical report.  Unless specifically noted on the plans, the recommendations in the geotechnical report are hereby incorporated into the project requirements and specifications. B) SURFACE WATER: Surface water shall be intercepted and diverted during the  placement of fill.   C) FILLS:  All fills shall be considered controlled or structural fill and shall be free of  vegetation, organic matter, topsoil and debris. In areas where the thickness of the engineered fill is greater than five, feet building and pavement construction should not commence until so authorized by the on-site geotechnical engineer to allow for consolidation. D) BUILDING SUBGRADE: As specified in the Geotechnical Engineering Report, the upper section of building subgrade shall consist of Low Volume Change (LVC) material defined as approved, compacted granular fill or low to moderate plasticity cohesive soil materials stabilized with Class C Flyash.  Granular fill shall consist of compacted granular materials with a maximum particle size of two (2) inches or less, such as limestone screenings.  Refer to geotechnical report for complete requirements.  E) EXISTING SLOPES: Where fill material is to be placed on existing slopes greater  than 5:1 (horizontal to vertical), existing slope shall be benched providing a minimum vertical face of twelve inches (12").  The benches should be cut wide enough to accommodate the compaction equipment.  Fill material shall be placed and compacted in horizontal lifts not exceeding nine inches (9") (loose lift measurement), unless otherwise approved by the Geotechnical Engineer.  F) COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS: The upper 9 inches of pavement subgrade areas shall be compacted to a minimum density of ninety five percent (95%) of the material's maximum dry density as determined by ASTM D698 (standard proctor compaction).  The moisture content at the time of placement and compaction shall within a range of 0%  below to 4% above optimum moisture content as defined by the standard proctor compaction procedure.  The moisture contents shall be maintained within this range until completion of the work.  Where compaction of earth fill by a large roller is impractical or undesirable, the earth fill shall be hand compacted with small vibrating rollers or mechanical tampers.  9. All cut or fill slopes shall be 3:1 or flatter.  All asphalt parking areas shall be a minimum of 1% slope but not more than 5% All cut or fill slopes shall be 3:1 or flatter.  All asphalt parking areas shall be a minimum of 1% slope but not more than 5% slope unless otherwise noted.  All pavements within ADA parking areas shall not exceed 2% total slope.  All grades around building shall be held down 6" from finish floor and slope away another 6" in 10 feet.  Contractor shall notify engineer prior to final subgrade construction of any areas not within this slope requirement.   10. TESTING AND INSPECTION: Owner's Independent Testing Laboratory (ITL) shall make tests of earthwork during construction and TESTING AND INSPECTION: Owner's Independent Testing Laboratory (ITL) shall make tests of earthwork during construction and observe the placement of fills and other work performed on this project to verify that work has been completed in accordance with Geotechnical Engineering Report, Project Specifications and within industry standards.  The ITL will be selected by the owner and the cost of testing will be the owner's responsibility.  11. CLASSIFICATION:  All excavation shall be considered unclassified.  No separate or additional payments shall be made for rock CLASSIFICATION:  All excavation shall be considered unclassified.  No separate or additional payments shall be made for rock excavation. 12. PERMANENT RESTORATION: All areas disturbed by earthwork operations shall be sodded, unless shown otherwise by the PERMANENT RESTORATION: All areas disturbed by earthwork operations shall be sodded, unless shown otherwise by the landscaping plan or erosion control plan. 13. UTILITIES:  The contractor is specifically cautioned that the location and/or elevation of existing utilities as shown on these UTILITIES:  The contractor is specifically cautioned that the location and/or elevation of existing utilities as shown on these plans is based on records of the various utility companies, and where possible, measurements taken in the field.  The information is not to be relied on as being exact or complete.  The contractor must call the appropriate utility companies at least 48 hours before any excavation to request exact field location of utilities.  It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to relocate all existing utilities which conflict with the proposed improvements shown on the plans.  14. LAND DISTURBANCE:  The contractor shall adhere to all terms & conditions as outlined in the EPA or applicable state N.P.D.E.S. LAND DISTURBANCE:  The contractor shall adhere to all terms & conditions as outlined in the EPA or applicable state N.P.D.E.S. permit for storm water discharge associated with construction activities. Refer to project S.W.P.P.P. requirements.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PROPERTY LIES WITHIN ZONE X, DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AS SHOWN ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP PREPARED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR THE CITY OF MISSION, COMMUNITY NO. 200170, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, MAP NO. 20091C0023G, AND DATED AUGUST 3, 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL DATUM = NAVD88 BASED ON GPS OBSERVATION USING SMARTNET GPS NETWORK 1.  SET " " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT  SET " " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT " CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT  CUT IN BACK OF CURB NW CORNER OF PARKING LOT ELEVATION = 1020.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE



“ ”

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

117

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1019.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: 1. The contractor is specifically cautioned that the location and/or elevation of existing utilities as shown on these plans is based on records of the The contractor is specifically cautioned that the location and/or elevation of existing utilities as shown on these plans is based on records of the various utility companies, and where possible, measurements taken in the field. The information is not to be relied on as being exact or complete.  The contractor must call the appropriate utility companies at least 48 hours before any excavation to request exact field location of utilities. It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to coordinate with and relocate &/or remove all existing utilities which conflict with the proposed improvements shown on the plans.  2. The construction of storm sewers on this project shall conform to the requirements of the City's Technical Specifications and Design Criteria. The construction of storm sewers on this project shall conform to the requirements of the City's Technical Specifications and Design Criteria. City's Technical Specifications and Design Criteria. Technical Specifications and Design Criteria. 3. The contractor shall field verify the exact location and elevation of the existing storm sewer lines and the existing  elevation at locations where the The contractor shall field verify the exact location and elevation of the existing storm sewer lines and the existing  elevation at locations where the proposed storm sewer collects or releases to existing ground.  If discrepancies are encountered from the information shown on the plans, the contractor shall contact the design engineer. No pipes shall be laid until direction is received from the design engineer. 4. It will be the contractors responsibility to field adjust the top of all manholes and boxes as necessary to match the  grade of the adjacent area.   It will be the contractors responsibility to field adjust the top of all manholes and boxes as necessary to match the  grade of the adjacent area.   Tops of existing manholes shall be raised as necessary to be flush with proposed pavement elevations, and to be 6-inches above finished ground elevations in non-paved areas.  No separate or additional compensation will be made to the contractor for making final adjustments to the manholes and boxes.  5. Inlet locations, horizontal pipe information and vertical pipe information is shown to the center of the structure.   Deflection angles shown for storm Inlet locations, horizontal pipe information and vertical pipe information is shown to the center of the structure.   Deflection angles shown for storm sewer pipes are measured from the center of curb inlets and manholes.  The  contractor shall adjust the horizontal location of the pipes to go to the face of the boxes.  All roof drains shall be connected to storm sewer structures.  Provide cleanouts on roof drain lines at 100' max. Spacing and at all bend points.  Do not connect roof drains directly to storm sewer pipe.  6. The contractor shall be responsible for furnishing and installing all fire and domestic water lines, meters, backflow  devices, pits, valves and all The contractor shall be responsible for furnishing and installing all fire and domestic water lines, meters, backflow  devices, pits, valves and all other incidentals required for a complete operable fire protection and domestic water system.  All costs associated with the complete water system for the buildings shall be the responsibility of the contractor.  All work shall conform to the requirements of City.     City.     7. The contractor shall be responsible for furnishing and installing all sanitary sewer service lines from the buildings  to the public line. All work shall The contractor shall be responsible for furnishing and installing all sanitary sewer service lines from the buildings  to the public line. All work shall conform to the requirements of the City and Johnson County Unified Wastewater District. City and Johnson County Unified Wastewater District. 8. The contractor will be responsible for securing all permits, bonds and insurance required by the contract documents, City, and all other governing The contractor will be responsible for securing all permits, bonds and insurance required by the contract documents, City, and all other governing City, and all other governing , and all other governing agencies (including local, county, state and  federal authorities) having jurisdiction over the work proposed by these construction documents.  The cost  for all  permits bonds and insurance shall be the contractors responsibility and shall be included in the bid for the work.   9. By the use of these construction documents the contractor hereby agrees that he/she shall be solely responsible for  the safety of the construction By the use of these construction documents the contractor hereby agrees that he/she shall be solely responsible for  the safety of the construction workers and the public. The contractor agrees to hold the engineer and owner harmless for any and all injuries, claims, losses or damages related to the project.    10. The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing all materials, tools and equipment and installation of electrical  power, telephone and gas service The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing all materials, tools and equipment and installation of electrical  power, telephone and gas service from a point of connection from the public utility lines to the building structures.   This will include all conduits, service lines, meters, concrete pads and all other incidentals required for a complete  and operational system as required by the owner and the public utilities.  Refer to building plans for exact tie-in locations of all utilities.  Contractor shall verify connection points prior to installation of utility line.   11. All fill material is to be in place, compacted, and consolidated before installation of proposed utilities.  On-site geotechnical engineer shall provide All fill material is to be in place, compacted, and consolidated before installation of proposed utilities.  On-site geotechnical engineer shall provide written confirmation that this requirement has been met and that utilities may proceed in the fill areas.  All utilities are to be placed in trench conditions.  12. Contractor shall notify the utility authorities inspectors 48 hours before connecting to any existing line.  Contractor shall notify the utility authorities inspectors 48 hours before connecting to any existing line.  13. Water lines shall be as follows (unless otherwise shown on plans):  Water lines shall be as follows (unless otherwise shown on plans):  A.  Pipe sizes less than 3-inches that are installed below grade and outside building shall comply with the following: 1. Seamless Copper Tubing:  Type "K" soft copper, ASTM B88. 2. Fittings: Wrought copper (95_5 Tin Antimony solder joint), ASME B 16.22. B. Pipe sizes 3-inches Through 48-inches that are installed below grade and outside building shall comply with one of the following: 1. Gray Cast Iron Water Pipe:  ANSI A21.6, thickness class 52. a. Fittings:  Either mechanical joint or push_on joint, AWWA C110 or AWWA C111. Fittings:  Either mechanical joint or push_on joint, AWWA C110 or AWWA C111. b. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477. c. Cement Mortar Lining, AWWA C104 Cement Mortar Lining, AWWA C104 2. Ductile Iron Water Pipe:  AWWA C151, thickness class 50. a. Fittings:  Either mechanical joint or push_on joint, AWWA C110 or AWWA C111. Fittings:  Either mechanical joint or push_on joint, AWWA C110 or AWWA C111. b. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477. c. Cement Mortar Lining, AWWA C104 Cement Mortar Lining, AWWA C104 3. Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Water Pipe:  Pipe, AWWA C900, rated DR 18 (Class 150), continually marked as required.   a. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477 for smaller pipes. Elastomeric gaskets and lubricant:  ASTM F477 for smaller pipes. b. Pipe joints:  Integrally molded bell ends, ASTM D3139. Pipe joints:  Integrally molded bell ends, ASTM D3139. c. Trace wire: Magnetic detectable conductor, (#12 Copper) brightly colored plastic covering imprinted with “Water Service” in large letters Trace wire: Magnetic detectable conductor, (#12 Copper) brightly colored plastic covering imprinted with “Water Service” in large letters Water Service” in large letters  in large letters 14. Minimum trench width shall be 2 feet.  Minimum trench width shall be 2 feet.  15. Contractor shall maintain a minimum of 42" cover on all waterlines.  All water line joints are to be mechanical joints with thrust blocking as called Contractor shall maintain a minimum of 42" cover on all waterlines.  All water line joints are to be mechanical joints with thrust blocking as called out in specifications and construction plans.  Water mains and service lines shall be constructed in accordance to waterone's specifications for commercial services. 16. All waterlines shall be kept min. ten (10') apart (parallel) from sanitary sewer lines or manholes.  Or when crossing, an 24" vertical clearance All waterlines shall be kept min. ten (10') apart (parallel) from sanitary sewer lines or manholes.  Or when crossing, an 24" vertical clearance (outside edge of pipe to outside edge of pipe) of the water line above the sewer line is required.  17. Sanitary conflicts will be resolved prior to permit issuance. Sanitary conflicts will be resolved prior to permit issuance. 18. In the event of a vertical conflict between waterlines, sanitary lines, storm lines and gas lines (existing and proposed), the sanitary line shall be In the event of a vertical conflict between waterlines, sanitary lines, storm lines and gas lines (existing and proposed), the sanitary line shall be ductile iron pipe with mechanical joints at least 10 feet on both sides of crossing (or encased in concrete this same distance), the waterline shall have mechanical joints with appropriate thrust blocking as required to provide a minimum of 24" clearance. Meeting requirements of ANSI A21.10 or ANSI 21.11 (AWWA C-151) (CLASS 50).  19. All underground storm, sanitary, water and other utility lines shall be installed, inspected and approved before backfilling.  Failure to have inspection All underground storm, sanitary, water and other utility lines shall be installed, inspected and approved before backfilling.  Failure to have inspection approval prior to backfill will constitute rejection of work. 20. All necessary inspections and/or certifications required by codes and/or utility service companies shall be  performed prior to announced building All necessary inspections and/or certifications required by codes and/or utility service companies shall be  performed prior to announced building possession and the  final connection of service. Contractor shall coordinate with all utility companies for installation requirements and specifications.  21. Refer to building plans for site lighting electrical plan, irrigation, parking lot security system and associated conduit requirements.  Coordinate with Refer to building plans for site lighting electrical plan, irrigation, parking lot security system and associated conduit requirements.  Coordinate with Owner that all required conduits are in place & tested prior to paving. 22. When a building utility connection from site utilities leading up to the building cannot be made immediately, temporarily mark all such site utility When a building utility connection from site utilities leading up to the building cannot be made immediately, temporarily mark all such site utility terminations. 23. Refer to the building plans for site lighting electrical requirements, including conduits, pole bases, pull boxes, etc.Refer to the building plans for site lighting electrical requirements, including conduits, pole bases, pull boxes, etc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUTILITY KEY NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CABLE TELEVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BURIED ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER LINE (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BURIED TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER LINE (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CABLE TELEVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BURIED ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED OVERHEAD POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER LINE (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BURIED TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATER LINE (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE LINE (& SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE AND INTERCEPT EXISTING ELECTRICAL SECONDARY SERVICE AND REROUTE TO NEW BUILDING ENTRY LOCATION. COORDINATE WITH EVERGY (RE: MEP PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 6" PVC (SDR-26) SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LINE (SDR-26) @ 1.0% MIN. SLOPE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO BUILDING INTERIOR PLUMBING. TRANSITION FROM 4" INTERIOR TO 6" EXTERIOR AT FOUNDATION WALL. (RE: MEP PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEANOUT IN NON-PAVED AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO BUILDING INTERIOR PLUMBING (GREASE LINE). (RE: MEP PLANS). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 1,000 GALLON GREASE INTERCEPTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SAMPLING PORT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO BUILDING INTERIOR PLUMBING (GREASE LINE) (RE: MEP PLANS). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL 2" PVC (SDR-26) VENT LINE FROM SAMPLING PORT TO BUILDING (RE: MEP PLANS). CONNECT TO BUILDING INTERIOR PLUMBING (RE: MEP PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
G2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS ENTRY INTO BUILDING. FOLLOW GAS COMPANY (KANSAS GAS) REQUIREMENTS FOR SERVICE (RE: MEP PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC ENTRY INTO BUILDING. FOLLOW ELECTRIC COMPANY (EVERGY) REQUIREMENTS FOR SECONDARY SERVICE (RE: MEP PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE AND INTERCEPT EXISTING GAS SERVICE AND REROUTE TO NEW BUILDING ENTRY LOCATION. COORDINATE WITH KANSAS GAS (RE: MEP PLANS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'" DOMESTIC WATERLINE ENTRY TO BUILDING. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLING ANY APPURTENANCES ON THE DOMESTIC LINE SUCH AS BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICES (RE: BUILDING PLANS), GATE VALVES, REDUCERS, BENDS, TEES, ETC., WHICH MAY BE REQUIRED. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH WATER UTILITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO AND REUSE EXISTING DOMESTIC WATER METER PIT.  COORDINATE ALL WORK WITH WATERONE. ALL LABOR AND MATERIALS SHALL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED BY APPROVED CONTRACTOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH WATERONE STANDARDS. METER PIT SHALL HAVE 2 FEET OF CLEARANCE ON ALL SIDES. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL 2" DOMESTIC WATER LINE FROM METER TO BUILDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE AND CONNECT TO EXISTING SANIARY SEWER SERVICE LINE.



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

118

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENU BOARD CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCOM CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGITAL METAL  ORDER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE POST AND BAR ON CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6821 1-STORY BRICK & GLASS BUILDING F.F.=1018.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU PICKUP WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD & METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BUMPER BLOCK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE EXISTING DRIVE AS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTABLISH CONCRETE WASHOUT PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL PLAN-PHASE I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WASHOUT PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AREA = 0.46± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONTROL MEASURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM FACILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIP & STOCKPILE TOPSOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION / BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ROADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUGH GRADE / SEDIMENT CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING/SEED/FINAL STABILIZATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT CONTROL STRUCTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE TABLE WITH THEIR SPECIFIC PROJECT SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL EROSION/SEDIMENTATION CONTROL OPERATION TIME SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erosion and Sedimentation Control 1. All earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following All earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ll earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following l earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following arth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following rth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following th disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following h disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following isturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following sturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following turbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following urbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following rbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following bance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following nce activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ce activities shall proceed in accordance with the following e activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  activities shall proceed in accordance with the following activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ctivities shall proceed in accordance with the following tivities shall proceed in accordance with the following ivities shall proceed in accordance with the following vities shall proceed in accordance with the following ities shall proceed in accordance with the following ties shall proceed in accordance with the following ies shall proceed in accordance with the following es shall proceed in accordance with the following s shall proceed in accordance with the following  shall proceed in accordance with the following shall proceed in accordance with the following hall proceed in accordance with the following all proceed in accordance with the following ll proceed in accordance with the following l proceed in accordance with the following  proceed in accordance with the following proceed in accordance with the following roceed in accordance with the following oceed in accordance with the following ceed in accordance with the following eed in accordance with the following ed in accordance with the following d in accordance with the following  in accordance with the following in accordance with the following n accordance with the following  accordance with the following accordance with the following ccordance with the following cordance with the following ordance with the following rdance with the following dance with the following ance with the following nce with the following ce with the following e with the following  with the following with the following ith the following th the following h the following  the following the following he following e following  following following ollowing llowing lowing owing wing ing ng g sequence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any equence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any quence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any uence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any nce. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ce. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any e. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any . Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ach stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ch stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any h stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any tage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any age shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ge shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any e shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any hall be completed and immediately stabilized before any all be completed and immediately stabilized before any ll be completed and immediately stabilized before any l be completed and immediately stabilized before any  be completed and immediately stabilized before any be completed and immediately stabilized before any e completed and immediately stabilized before any  completed and immediately stabilized before any completed and immediately stabilized before any ompleted and immediately stabilized before any mpleted and immediately stabilized before any pleted and immediately stabilized before any leted and immediately stabilized before any eted and immediately stabilized before any ted and immediately stabilized before any ed and immediately stabilized before any d and immediately stabilized before any  and immediately stabilized before any and immediately stabilized before any nd immediately stabilized before any d immediately stabilized before any  immediately stabilized before any immediately stabilized before any mmediately stabilized before any mediately stabilized before any ediately stabilized before any diately stabilized before any iately stabilized before any ately stabilized before any tely stabilized before any ely stabilized before any ly stabilized before any y stabilized before any  stabilized before any stabilized before any tabilized before any abilized before any bilized before any ilized before any lized before any ized before any zed before any ed before any d before any  before any before any efore any fore any ore any re any e any  any any ny y subsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ubsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be sequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be equent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be quent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be uent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be nt stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be t stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be tage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be age is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ge is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be e is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be s initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be nitiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be itiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be tiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be iated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ted. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ed. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be d. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be . Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be learing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be earing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be aring, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ring, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ng, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be g, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be , grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be rubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bing, and topsoil stripping shall be ing, and topsoil stripping shall be ng, and topsoil stripping shall be g, and topsoil stripping shall be , and topsoil stripping shall be  and topsoil stripping shall be and topsoil stripping shall be nd topsoil stripping shall be d topsoil stripping shall be  topsoil stripping shall be topsoil stripping shall be opsoil stripping shall be psoil stripping shall be soil stripping shall be oil stripping shall be il stripping shall be l stripping shall be  stripping shall be stripping shall be tripping shall be ripping shall be ipping shall be pping shall be ping shall be ing shall be ng shall be g shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e limited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future imited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future mited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ted only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ed only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future d only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future nly to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ly to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future y to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future o those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future hose areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ose areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future se areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future e areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future reas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future eas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future as described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future s described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future escribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future scribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future cribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ibed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future bed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future d in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future n each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  each stage. No fill shall be placed in future each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ach stage. No fill shall be placed in future ch stage. No fill shall be placed in future h stage. No fill shall be placed in future  stage. No fill shall be placed in future stage. No fill shall be placed in future tage. No fill shall be placed in future age. No fill shall be placed in future ge. No fill shall be placed in future e. No fill shall be placed in future . No fill shall be placed in future  No fill shall be placed in future No fill shall be placed in future o fill shall be placed in future  fill shall be placed in future fill shall be placed in future ill shall be placed in future ll shall be placed in future l shall be placed in future  shall be placed in future shall be placed in future hall be placed in future all be placed in future ll be placed in future l be placed in future  be placed in future be placed in future e placed in future  placed in future placed in future laced in future aced in future ced in future ed in future d in future  in future in future n future  future future uture ture ure re e rights-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ights-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ghts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. hts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. s-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. -of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. f-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. -way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ay under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. y under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nder a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. der a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. er a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. r a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. and Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nd Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. d Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. isturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. sturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. turbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. urbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. rbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. bance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nce permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ce permit unless approved by the City Engineer. e permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  permit unless approved by the City Engineer. permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ermit unless approved by the City Engineer. rmit unless approved by the City Engineer. mit unless approved by the City Engineer. it unless approved by the City Engineer. t unless approved by the City Engineer.  unless approved by the City Engineer. unless approved by the City Engineer. nless approved by the City Engineer. less approved by the City Engineer. ess approved by the City Engineer. ss approved by the City Engineer. s approved by the City Engineer.  approved by the City Engineer. approved by the City Engineer. pproved by the City Engineer. proved by the City Engineer. roved by the City Engineer. oved by the City Engineer. ved by the City Engineer. ed by the City Engineer. d by the City Engineer.  by the City Engineer. by the City Engineer. y the City Engineer.  the City Engineer. the City Engineer. he City Engineer. e City Engineer.  City Engineer. City Engineer. ity Engineer. ty Engineer. y Engineer.  Engineer. Engineer. ngineer. gineer. ineer. neer. eer. er. r. . 2. The Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of The Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of he Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of e Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ontractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ntractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of actor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ctor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of or or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of wner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of er shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of hall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of all obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ll obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of l obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of btain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of in a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of n a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Land Disturbance Permit from the City of and Disturbance Permit from the City of nd Disturbance Permit from the City of d Disturbance Permit from the City of  Disturbance Permit from the City of Disturbance Permit from the City of isturbance Permit from the City of sturbance Permit from the City of turbance Permit from the City of urbance Permit from the City of rbance Permit from the City of bance Permit from the City of ance Permit from the City of nce Permit from the City of ce Permit from the City of e Permit from the City of  Permit from the City of Permit from the City of ermit from the City of rmit from the City of mit from the City of it from the City of t from the City of  from the City of from the City of rom the City of om the City of m the City of  the City of the City of he City of e City of  City of City of ity of ty of y of  of of f Olathe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control lathe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control athe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control the. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control he. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control e. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control . The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control he permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control e permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control ermit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control rmit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control mit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control it holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control t holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control older must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control lder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control der must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control er must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control r must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control ust schedule an initial erosion and sediment control st schedule an initial erosion and sediment control t schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  schedule an initial erosion and sediment control schedule an initial erosion and sediment control chedule an initial erosion and sediment control hedule an initial erosion and sediment control edule an initial erosion and sediment control dule an initial erosion and sediment control ule an initial erosion and sediment control le an initial erosion and sediment control e an initial erosion and sediment control  an initial erosion and sediment control an initial erosion and sediment control n initial erosion and sediment control  initial erosion and sediment control initial erosion and sediment control nitial erosion and sediment control itial erosion and sediment control tial erosion and sediment control ial erosion and sediment control al erosion and sediment control l erosion and sediment control  erosion and sediment control erosion and sediment control rosion and sediment control osion and sediment control sion and sediment control ion and sediment control on and sediment control n and sediment control  and sediment control and sediment control nd sediment control d sediment control  sediment control sediment control ediment control diment control iment control ment control ent control nt control t control  control control ontrol ntrol trol rol ol l inspection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. nspection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. spection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. pection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ction prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. tion prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ion prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. on prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. n prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. rior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. or to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. r to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. o any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ny earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. y earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. arthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. rthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. thmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. hmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. moving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. oving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ing on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ng on the proposed site as per the approved plan. g on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  on the proposed site as per the approved plan. on the proposed site as per the approved plan. n the proposed site as per the approved plan.  the proposed site as per the approved plan. the proposed site as per the approved plan. he proposed site as per the approved plan. e proposed site as per the approved plan.  proposed site as per the approved plan. proposed site as per the approved plan. roposed site as per the approved plan. oposed site as per the approved plan. posed site as per the approved plan. osed site as per the approved plan. sed site as per the approved plan. ed site as per the approved plan. d site as per the approved plan.  site as per the approved plan. site as per the approved plan. ite as per the approved plan. te as per the approved plan. e as per the approved plan.  as per the approved plan. as per the approved plan. s per the approved plan.  per the approved plan. per the approved plan. er the approved plan. r the approved plan.  the approved plan. the approved plan. he approved plan. e approved plan.  approved plan. approved plan. pproved plan. proved plan. roved plan. oved plan. ved plan. ed plan. d plan.  plan. plan. lan. an. n. . Scheduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in cheduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in heduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in eduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in duling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in uling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ing of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ng of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in g of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in f initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in nitial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in itial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in tial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in al inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in l inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in nspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in spections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in pections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ctions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in tions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ons must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ns must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in s must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ust be made at least twenty four (24) hours in st be made at least twenty four (24) hours in t be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  be made at least twenty four (24) hours in be made at least twenty four (24) hours in e made at least twenty four (24) hours in  made at least twenty four (24) hours in made at least twenty four (24) hours in ade at least twenty four (24) hours in de at least twenty four (24) hours in e at least twenty four (24) hours in  at least twenty four (24) hours in at least twenty four (24) hours in t least twenty four (24) hours in  least twenty four (24) hours in least twenty four (24) hours in east twenty four (24) hours in ast twenty four (24) hours in st twenty four (24) hours in t twenty four (24) hours in  twenty four (24) hours in twenty four (24) hours in wenty four (24) hours in enty four (24) hours in nty four (24) hours in ty four (24) hours in y four (24) hours in  four (24) hours in four (24) hours in our (24) hours in ur (24) hours in r (24) hours in  (24) hours in (24) hours in 24) hours in 4) hours in ) hours in  hours in hours in ours in urs in rs in s in  in in n advance. 3. All excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be All excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ll excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be l excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be xcavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be cavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be avation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be vation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be tion for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ion for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be on for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be n for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be or utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be r utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be tility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be lity line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ity line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ty line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be y line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ine installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ne installation shall be limited to the amount that can be e installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  installation shall be limited to the amount that can be installation shall be limited to the amount that can be nstallation shall be limited to the amount that can be stallation shall be limited to the amount that can be tallation shall be limited to the amount that can be allation shall be limited to the amount that can be llation shall be limited to the amount that can be lation shall be limited to the amount that can be ation shall be limited to the amount that can be tion shall be limited to the amount that can be ion shall be limited to the amount that can be on shall be limited to the amount that can be n shall be limited to the amount that can be  shall be limited to the amount that can be shall be limited to the amount that can be hall be limited to the amount that can be all be limited to the amount that can be ll be limited to the amount that can be l be limited to the amount that can be  be limited to the amount that can be be limited to the amount that can be e limited to the amount that can be  limited to the amount that can be limited to the amount that can be imited to the amount that can be mited to the amount that can be ited to the amount that can be ted to the amount that can be ed to the amount that can be d to the amount that can be  to the amount that can be to the amount that can be o the amount that can be  the amount that can be the amount that can be he amount that can be e amount that can be  amount that can be amount that can be mount that can be ount that can be unt that can be nt that can be t that can be  that can be that can be hat can be at can be t can be  can be can be an be n be  be be e excavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated xcavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated cavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated avated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated vated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ted, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated , installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated nstalled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated stalled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated talled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated alled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated lled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated led, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated , backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ackfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ckfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated kfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated filled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated illed and stabilized within one working day. All excavated lled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated led and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  and stabilized within one working day. All excavated and stabilized within one working day. All excavated nd stabilized within one working day. All excavated d stabilized within one working day. All excavated  stabilized within one working day. All excavated stabilized within one working day. All excavated tabilized within one working day. All excavated abilized within one working day. All excavated bilized within one working day. All excavated ilized within one working day. All excavated lized within one working day. All excavated ized within one working day. All excavated zed within one working day. All excavated ed within one working day. All excavated d within one working day. All excavated  within one working day. All excavated within one working day. All excavated ithin one working day. All excavated thin one working day. All excavated hin one working day. All excavated in one working day. All excavated n one working day. All excavated  one working day. All excavated one working day. All excavated ne working day. All excavated e working day. All excavated  working day. All excavated working day. All excavated orking day. All excavated rking day. All excavated king day. All excavated ing day. All excavated ng day. All excavated g day. All excavated  day. All excavated day. All excavated ay. All excavated y. All excavated . All excavated  All excavated All excavated ll excavated l excavated  excavated excavated xcavated cavated avated vated ated ted ed d material shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water aterial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water terial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water erial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water rial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water al shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water l shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water hall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water all be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ll be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water l be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water e deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water eposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water posited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water osited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water sited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ted on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ed on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water d on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water n the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water he upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water e upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water pslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water slope side of the trench. Sediment laden water lope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ope side of the trench. Sediment laden water pe side of the trench. Sediment laden water e side of the trench. Sediment laden water  side of the trench. Sediment laden water side of the trench. Sediment laden water ide of the trench. Sediment laden water de of the trench. Sediment laden water e of the trench. Sediment laden water  of the trench. Sediment laden water of the trench. Sediment laden water f the trench. Sediment laden water  the trench. Sediment laden water the trench. Sediment laden water he trench. Sediment laden water e trench. Sediment laden water  trench. Sediment laden water trench. Sediment laden water rench. Sediment laden water ench. Sediment laden water nch. Sediment laden water ch. Sediment laden water h. Sediment laden water . Sediment laden water  Sediment laden water Sediment laden water ediment laden water diment laden water iment laden water ment laden water ent laden water nt laden water t laden water  laden water laden water aden water den water en water n water  water water ater ter er r that accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hat accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or at accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or t accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ccumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or cumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or umulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or mulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or lates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or tes in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or es in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or s in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or n the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or he trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or e trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or renches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or enches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or nches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hes shall be pumped through a filtration device, or es shall be pumped through a filtration device, or s shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  shall be pumped through a filtration device, or shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hall be pumped through a filtration device, or all be pumped through a filtration device, or ll be pumped through a filtration device, or l be pumped through a filtration device, or  be pumped through a filtration device, or be pumped through a filtration device, or e pumped through a filtration device, or  pumped through a filtration device, or pumped through a filtration device, or umped through a filtration device, or mped through a filtration device, or ped through a filtration device, or ed through a filtration device, or d through a filtration device, or  through a filtration device, or through a filtration device, or hrough a filtration device, or rough a filtration device, or ough a filtration device, or ugh a filtration device, or gh a filtration device, or h a filtration device, or  a filtration device, or a filtration device, or  filtration device, or filtration device, or iltration device, or ltration device, or tration device, or ration device, or ation device, or tion device, or ion device, or on device, or n device, or  device, or device, or evice, or vice, or ice, or ce, or e, or , or  or or r equivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. quivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. uivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. valent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. alent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. lent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. nt sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. t sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. diment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. iment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ent removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. nt removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. t removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. emoval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. moval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. oval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. val facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. al facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. l facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. acility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. cility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. lity, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ity, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ty, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. y, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. , or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. r over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  over non-disturbed vegetated areas. over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ver non-disturbed vegetated areas. er non-disturbed vegetated areas. r non-disturbed vegetated areas.  non-disturbed vegetated areas. non-disturbed vegetated areas. on-disturbed vegetated areas. n-disturbed vegetated areas. -disturbed vegetated areas. disturbed vegetated areas. isturbed vegetated areas. sturbed vegetated areas. turbed vegetated areas. urbed vegetated areas. rbed vegetated areas. bed vegetated areas. ed vegetated areas. d vegetated areas.  vegetated areas. vegetated areas. egetated areas. getated areas. etated areas. tated areas. ated areas. ted areas. ed areas. d areas.  areas. areas. reas. eas. as. s. . Discharge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ischarge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active scharge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active charge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active harge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active arge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active rge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active e points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active  points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active oints should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ints should be established to provide for maximum distance to active nts should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ts should be established to provide for maximum distance to active s should be established to provide for maximum distance to active  should be established to provide for maximum distance to active should be established to provide for maximum distance to active hould be established to provide for maximum distance to active ould be established to provide for maximum distance to active uld be established to provide for maximum distance to active ld be established to provide for maximum distance to active d be established to provide for maximum distance to active  be established to provide for maximum distance to active be established to provide for maximum distance to active e established to provide for maximum distance to active  established to provide for maximum distance to active established to provide for maximum distance to active stablished to provide for maximum distance to active tablished to provide for maximum distance to active ablished to provide for maximum distance to active blished to provide for maximum distance to active lished to provide for maximum distance to active ished to provide for maximum distance to active shed to provide for maximum distance to active hed to provide for maximum distance to active ed to provide for maximum distance to active d to provide for maximum distance to active  to provide for maximum distance to active to provide for maximum distance to active o provide for maximum distance to active  provide for maximum distance to active provide for maximum distance to active rovide for maximum distance to active ovide for maximum distance to active vide for maximum distance to active ide for maximum distance to active de for maximum distance to active e for maximum distance to active  for maximum distance to active for maximum distance to active or maximum distance to active r maximum distance to active  maximum distance to active maximum distance to active aximum distance to active ximum distance to active imum distance to active mum distance to active um distance to active m distance to active  distance to active distance to active istance to active stance to active tance to active ance to active nce to active ce to active e to active  to active to active o active  active active ctive tive ive ve e waterways. 4. Before implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control Before implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control efore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control fore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control re implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control e implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control mplementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control plementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control lementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control menting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control enting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control nting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ng any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control g any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ny revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control y revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control evisions to the approved erosion and sediment control visions to the approved erosion and sediment control isions to the approved erosion and sediment control sions to the approved erosion and sediment control ions to the approved erosion and sediment control ons to the approved erosion and sediment control ns to the approved erosion and sediment control s to the approved erosion and sediment control  to the approved erosion and sediment control to the approved erosion and sediment control o the approved erosion and sediment control  the approved erosion and sediment control the approved erosion and sediment control he approved erosion and sediment control e approved erosion and sediment control  approved erosion and sediment control approved erosion and sediment control pproved erosion and sediment control proved erosion and sediment control roved erosion and sediment control oved erosion and sediment control ved erosion and sediment control ed erosion and sediment control d erosion and sediment control  erosion and sediment control erosion and sediment control rosion and sediment control osion and sediment control sion and sediment control ion and sediment control on and sediment control n and sediment control  and sediment control and sediment control nd sediment control d sediment control  sediment control sediment control ediment control diment control iment control ment control ent control nt control t control  control control ontrol ntrol trol rol ol l Plan or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved lan or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved an or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved n or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved r revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved evisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved visions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved isions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved sions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ons to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ns to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved s to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved o other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ther plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved her plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved er plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved r plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved lans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ns, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved s, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved , which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  which may affect the effectiveness of the approved which may affect the effectiveness of the approved hich may affect the effectiveness of the approved ich may affect the effectiveness of the approved ch may affect the effectiveness of the approved h may affect the effectiveness of the approved  may affect the effectiveness of the approved may affect the effectiveness of the approved ay affect the effectiveness of the approved y affect the effectiveness of the approved  affect the effectiveness of the approved affect the effectiveness of the approved ffect the effectiveness of the approved fect the effectiveness of the approved ect the effectiveness of the approved ct the effectiveness of the approved t the effectiveness of the approved  the effectiveness of the approved the effectiveness of the approved he effectiveness of the approved e effectiveness of the approved  effectiveness of the approved effectiveness of the approved ffectiveness of the approved fectiveness of the approved ectiveness of the approved ctiveness of the approved tiveness of the approved iveness of the approved veness of the approved eness of the approved ness of the approved ess of the approved ss of the approved s of the approved  of the approved of the approved f the approved  the approved the approved he approved e approved  approved approved pproved proved roved oved ved ed d Erosion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the rosion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the osion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the sion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the on and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the n and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the nd Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the d Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the diment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the iment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ent control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the nt control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the t control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ontrol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ntrol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the trol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the rol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the l plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the lan, the Contractor must receive approval of the an, the Contractor must receive approval of the n, the Contractor must receive approval of the , the Contractor must receive approval of the  the Contractor must receive approval of the the Contractor must receive approval of the he Contractor must receive approval of the e Contractor must receive approval of the  Contractor must receive approval of the Contractor must receive approval of the ontractor must receive approval of the ntractor must receive approval of the tractor must receive approval of the ractor must receive approval of the actor must receive approval of the ctor must receive approval of the tor must receive approval of the or must receive approval of the r must receive approval of the  must receive approval of the must receive approval of the ust receive approval of the st receive approval of the t receive approval of the  receive approval of the receive approval of the eceive approval of the ceive approval of the eive approval of the ive approval of the ve approval of the e approval of the  approval of the approval of the pproval of the proval of the roval of the oval of the val of the al of the l of the  of the of the f the  the the he e revisions from the City of Olathe. 5. All building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or All building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ll building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or l building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or uilding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ilding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or lding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ing materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ng materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or g materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or aterials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or terials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or erials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or rials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or als and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ls and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or s and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or nd wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or d wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or astes must be removed from the site and recycled or stes must be removed from the site and recycled or tes must be removed from the site and recycled or es must be removed from the site and recycled or s must be removed from the site and recycled or  must be removed from the site and recycled or must be removed from the site and recycled or ust be removed from the site and recycled or st be removed from the site and recycled or t be removed from the site and recycled or  be removed from the site and recycled or be removed from the site and recycled or e removed from the site and recycled or  removed from the site and recycled or removed from the site and recycled or emoved from the site and recycled or moved from the site and recycled or oved from the site and recycled or ved from the site and recycled or ed from the site and recycled or d from the site and recycled or  from the site and recycled or from the site and recycled or rom the site and recycled or om the site and recycled or m the site and recycled or  the site and recycled or the site and recycled or he site and recycled or e site and recycled or  site and recycled or site and recycled or ite and recycled or te and recycled or e and recycled or  and recycled or and recycled or nd recycled or d recycled or  recycled or recycled or ecycled or cycled or ycled or cled or led or ed or d or  or or r disposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's isposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's sposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's posed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's osed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's sed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's d of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's f in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's n accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ccordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's cordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's rdance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's dance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's nce with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ce with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's e with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ith the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's th the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's h the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's he Kansas Department of Health and Environment's e Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  Kansas Department of Health and Environment's Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ansas Department of Health and Environment's nsas Department of Health and Environment's sas Department of Health and Environment's as Department of Health and Environment's s Department of Health and Environment's  Department of Health and Environment's Department of Health and Environment's epartment of Health and Environment's partment of Health and Environment's artment of Health and Environment's rtment of Health and Environment's tment of Health and Environment's ment of Health and Environment's ent of Health and Environment's nt of Health and Environment's t of Health and Environment's  of Health and Environment's of Health and Environment's f Health and Environment's  Health and Environment's Health and Environment's ealth and Environment's alth and Environment's lth and Environment's th and Environment's h and Environment's  and Environment's and Environment's nd Environment's d Environment's  Environment's Environment's nvironment's vironment's ironment's ronment's onment's nment's ment's ent's nt's t's 's s regulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be egulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be gulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be lations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be tions. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ions. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ons. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ns. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be s. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be . No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be o building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be uilding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ilding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be lding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ing materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ng materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be g materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be aterials or wastes or unused building materials shall be terials or wastes or unused building materials shall be erials or wastes or unused building materials shall be rials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ials or wastes or unused building materials shall be als or wastes or unused building materials shall be ls or wastes or unused building materials shall be s or wastes or unused building materials shall be  or wastes or unused building materials shall be or wastes or unused building materials shall be r wastes or unused building materials shall be  wastes or unused building materials shall be wastes or unused building materials shall be astes or unused building materials shall be stes or unused building materials shall be tes or unused building materials shall be es or unused building materials shall be s or unused building materials shall be  or unused building materials shall be or unused building materials shall be r unused building materials shall be  unused building materials shall be unused building materials shall be nused building materials shall be used building materials shall be sed building materials shall be ed building materials shall be d building materials shall be  building materials shall be building materials shall be uilding materials shall be ilding materials shall be lding materials shall be ding materials shall be ing materials shall be ng materials shall be g materials shall be  materials shall be materials shall be aterials shall be terials shall be erials shall be rials shall be ials shall be als shall be ls shall be s shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e burned, buried, dumped, or discharged at the site. 6. Before disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure Before disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure efore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure fore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure re disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure e disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure isposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure sposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure posing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure osing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure sing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ng of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure g of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure f soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure oil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure il or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure l or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure r receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure eceiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ceiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure eiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure iving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ing borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ng borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure g borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure orrow for the site, the Contractor must assure rrow for the site, the Contractor must assure row for the site, the Contractor must assure ow for the site, the Contractor must assure w for the site, the Contractor must assure  for the site, the Contractor must assure for the site, the Contractor must assure or the site, the Contractor must assure r the site, the Contractor must assure  the site, the Contractor must assure the site, the Contractor must assure he site, the Contractor must assure e site, the Contractor must assure  site, the Contractor must assure site, the Contractor must assure ite, the Contractor must assure te, the Contractor must assure e, the Contractor must assure , the Contractor must assure  the Contractor must assure the Contractor must assure he Contractor must assure e Contractor must assure  Contractor must assure Contractor must assure ontractor must assure ntractor must assure tractor must assure ractor must assure actor must assure ctor must assure tor must assure or must assure r must assure  must assure must assure ust assure st assure t assure  assure assure ssure sure ure re e that each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved hat each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved at each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved t each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ach spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ch spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved h spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved poil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved oil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved il or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved l or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved r borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved orrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved row area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved w area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rea has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ea has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved a has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved as an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved s an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved n Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rosion and Sediment Control Plan approved osion and Sediment Control Plan approved sion and Sediment Control Plan approved ion and Sediment Control Plan approved on and Sediment Control Plan approved n and Sediment Control Plan approved  and Sediment Control Plan approved and Sediment Control Plan approved nd Sediment Control Plan approved d Sediment Control Plan approved  Sediment Control Plan approved Sediment Control Plan approved ediment Control Plan approved diment Control Plan approved iment Control Plan approved ment Control Plan approved ent Control Plan approved nt Control Plan approved t Control Plan approved  Control Plan approved Control Plan approved ontrol Plan approved ntrol Plan approved trol Plan approved rol Plan approved ol Plan approved l Plan approved  Plan approved Plan approved lan approved an approved n approved  approved approved pproved proved roved oved ved ed d by the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to y the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to he City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to e City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to ity of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to ty of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to y of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to f Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to lathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to athe and which is being implemented and maintained according to the and which is being implemented and maintained according to he and which is being implemented and maintained according to e and which is being implemented and maintained according to  and which is being implemented and maintained according to and which is being implemented and maintained according to nd which is being implemented and maintained according to d which is being implemented and maintained according to  which is being implemented and maintained according to which is being implemented and maintained according to hich is being implemented and maintained according to ich is being implemented and maintained according to ch is being implemented and maintained according to h is being implemented and maintained according to  is being implemented and maintained according to is being implemented and maintained according to s being implemented and maintained according to  being implemented and maintained according to being implemented and maintained according to eing implemented and maintained according to ing implemented and maintained according to ng implemented and maintained according to g implemented and maintained according to  implemented and maintained according to implemented and maintained according to mplemented and maintained according to plemented and maintained according to lemented and maintained according to emented and maintained according to mented and maintained according to ented and maintained according to nted and maintained according to ted and maintained according to ed and maintained according to d and maintained according to  and maintained according to and maintained according to nd maintained according to d maintained according to  maintained according to maintained according to aintained according to intained according to ntained according to tained according to ained according to ined according to ned according to ed according to d according to  according to according to ccording to cording to ording to rding to ding to ing to ng to g to  to to o City of Olathe regulations. 7. Any disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. Any disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ny disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. y disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. isturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. sturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. turbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. urbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. rbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. bed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. d area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. rea on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ea on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. a on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. n which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. hich activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ich activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ch activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. h activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ctivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. tivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. vity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ty has ceased must be stabilized immediately. y has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  has ceased must be stabilized immediately. has ceased must be stabilized immediately. as ceased must be stabilized immediately. s ceased must be stabilized immediately.  ceased must be stabilized immediately. ceased must be stabilized immediately. eased must be stabilized immediately. ased must be stabilized immediately. sed must be stabilized immediately. ed must be stabilized immediately. d must be stabilized immediately.  must be stabilized immediately. must be stabilized immediately. ust be stabilized immediately. st be stabilized immediately. t be stabilized immediately.  be stabilized immediately. be stabilized immediately. e stabilized immediately.  stabilized immediately. stabilized immediately. tabilized immediately. abilized immediately. bilized immediately. ilized immediately. lized immediately. ized immediately. zed immediately. ed immediately. d immediately.  immediately. immediately. mmediately. mediately. ediately. diately. iately. ately. tely. ely. ly. y. . During non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. uring non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ring non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ing non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ng non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. g non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. on-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. n-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. -germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. erminating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. rminating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. minating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. inating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. nating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ting periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ing periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ng periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. g periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. eriods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. riods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. iods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ds, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. s, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. , mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ulch must be applied at the recommended rates. lch must be applied at the recommended rates. ch must be applied at the recommended rates. h must be applied at the recommended rates.  must be applied at the recommended rates. must be applied at the recommended rates. ust be applied at the recommended rates. st be applied at the recommended rates. t be applied at the recommended rates.  be applied at the recommended rates. be applied at the recommended rates. e applied at the recommended rates.  applied at the recommended rates. applied at the recommended rates. pplied at the recommended rates. plied at the recommended rates. lied at the recommended rates. ied at the recommended rates. ed at the recommended rates. d at the recommended rates.  at the recommended rates. at the recommended rates. t the recommended rates.  the recommended rates. the recommended rates. he recommended rates. e recommended rates.  recommended rates. recommended rates. ecommended rates. commended rates. ommended rates. mmended rates. mended rates. ended rates. nded rates. ded rates. ed rates. d rates.  rates. rates. ates. tes. es. s. . Disturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed isturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed sturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed turbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed urbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed rbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed bed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed d areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed reas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed eas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed as which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed s which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed hich are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ich are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ch are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed h are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed re not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed e not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ot at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed t at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed t finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  finished grade and which will be re-disturbed finished grade and which will be re-disturbed inished grade and which will be re-disturbed nished grade and which will be re-disturbed ished grade and which will be re-disturbed shed grade and which will be re-disturbed hed grade and which will be re-disturbed ed grade and which will be re-disturbed d grade and which will be re-disturbed  grade and which will be re-disturbed grade and which will be re-disturbed rade and which will be re-disturbed ade and which will be re-disturbed de and which will be re-disturbed e and which will be re-disturbed  and which will be re-disturbed and which will be re-disturbed nd which will be re-disturbed d which will be re-disturbed  which will be re-disturbed which will be re-disturbed hich will be re-disturbed ich will be re-disturbed ch will be re-disturbed h will be re-disturbed  will be re-disturbed will be re-disturbed ill be re-disturbed ll be re-disturbed l be re-disturbed  be re-disturbed be re-disturbed e re-disturbed  re-disturbed re-disturbed e-disturbed -disturbed disturbed isturbed sturbed turbed urbed rbed bed ed d before winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding efore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding fore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding re winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding e winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding inter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding nter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding er shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding r shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding hall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding all be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ll be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding l be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding e stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding tabilized in accordance with temporary seeding abilized in accordance with temporary seeding bilized in accordance with temporary seeding ilized in accordance with temporary seeding lized in accordance with temporary seeding ized in accordance with temporary seeding zed in accordance with temporary seeding ed in accordance with temporary seeding d in accordance with temporary seeding  in accordance with temporary seeding in accordance with temporary seeding n accordance with temporary seeding  accordance with temporary seeding accordance with temporary seeding ccordance with temporary seeding cordance with temporary seeding ordance with temporary seeding rdance with temporary seeding dance with temporary seeding ance with temporary seeding nce with temporary seeding ce with temporary seeding e with temporary seeding  with temporary seeding with temporary seeding ith temporary seeding th temporary seeding h temporary seeding  temporary seeding temporary seeding emporary seeding mporary seeding porary seeding orary seeding rary seeding ary seeding ry seeding y seeding  seeding seeding eeding eding ding ing ng g specifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- pecifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ecifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- cifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- fications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- cations. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ations. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- tions. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ions. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ons. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ns. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- s. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- . Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- isturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- sturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- turbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- urbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- rbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- bed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- d areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- reas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- eas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- as that are either at finished grade or will not be re- s that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  that are either at finished grade or will not be re- that are either at finished grade or will not be re- hat are either at finished grade or will not be re- at are either at finished grade or will not be re- t are either at finished grade or will not be re-  are either at finished grade or will not be re- are either at finished grade or will not be re- re either at finished grade or will not be re- e either at finished grade or will not be re-  either at finished grade or will not be re- either at finished grade or will not be re- ither at finished grade or will not be re- ther at finished grade or will not be re- her at finished grade or will not be re- er at finished grade or will not be re- r at finished grade or will not be re-  at finished grade or will not be re- at finished grade or will not be re- t finished grade or will not be re-  finished grade or will not be re- finished grade or will not be re- inished grade or will not be re- nished grade or will not be re- ished grade or will not be re- shed grade or will not be re- hed grade or will not be re- ed grade or will not be re- d grade or will not be re-  grade or will not be re- grade or will not be re- rade or will not be re- ade or will not be re- de or will not be re- e or will not be re-  or will not be re- or will not be re- r will not be re-  will not be re- will not be re- ill not be re- ll not be re- l not be re-  not be re- not be re- ot be re- t be re-  be re- be re- e re-  re- re- e- - disturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. isturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. sturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. turbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. urbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. rbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. bed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. d before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. efore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. fore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. re winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. e winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. inter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. nter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. er must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. r must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ust be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. st be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. t be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. e stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. tabilized with permanent seeding specifications. abilized with permanent seeding specifications. bilized with permanent seeding specifications. ilized with permanent seeding specifications. lized with permanent seeding specifications. ized with permanent seeding specifications. zed with permanent seeding specifications. ed with permanent seeding specifications. d with permanent seeding specifications.  with permanent seeding specifications. with permanent seeding specifications. ith permanent seeding specifications. th permanent seeding specifications. h permanent seeding specifications.  permanent seeding specifications. permanent seeding specifications. ermanent seeding specifications. rmanent seeding specifications. manent seeding specifications. anent seeding specifications. nent seeding specifications. ent seeding specifications. nt seeding specifications. t seeding specifications.  seeding specifications. seeding specifications. eeding specifications. eding specifications. ding specifications. ing specifications. ng specifications. g specifications.  specifications. specifications. pecifications. ecifications. cifications. ifications. fications. ications. cations. ations. tions. ions. ons. ns. s. . 8. Planting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical Planting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical lanting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical anting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical nting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ing and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ng and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical g and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical nd seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical d seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical eeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical eding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ing dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ng dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical g dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical tes shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical es shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical s shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical hall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical all be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ll be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical l be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical e in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical n accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  accordance with the City of Olathe Technical accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ccordance with the City of Olathe Technical cordance with the City of Olathe Technical ordance with the City of Olathe Technical rdance with the City of Olathe Technical dance with the City of Olathe Technical ance with the City of Olathe Technical nce with the City of Olathe Technical ce with the City of Olathe Technical e with the City of Olathe Technical  with the City of Olathe Technical with the City of Olathe Technical ith the City of Olathe Technical th the City of Olathe Technical h the City of Olathe Technical  the City of Olathe Technical the City of Olathe Technical he City of Olathe Technical e City of Olathe Technical  City of Olathe Technical City of Olathe Technical ity of Olathe Technical ty of Olathe Technical y of Olathe Technical  of Olathe Technical of Olathe Technical f Olathe Technical  Olathe Technical Olathe Technical lathe Technical athe Technical the Technical he Technical e Technical  Technical Technical echnical chnical hnical nical ical cal al l Specifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved pecifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ecifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved fications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cations for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ations for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved tions for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ions for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ons for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ns for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved s for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved or Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved r Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ublic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved blic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved lic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved c Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved mprovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved provement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved rovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved vement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ment Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ent Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved nt Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved t Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved rojects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ojects. Interim stabilization will be achieved jects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cts. Interim stabilization will be achieved ts. Interim stabilization will be achieved s. Interim stabilization will be achieved . Interim stabilization will be achieved  Interim stabilization will be achieved Interim stabilization will be achieved nterim stabilization will be achieved terim stabilization will be achieved erim stabilization will be achieved rim stabilization will be achieved im stabilization will be achieved m stabilization will be achieved  stabilization will be achieved stabilization will be achieved tabilization will be achieved abilization will be achieved bilization will be achieved ilization will be achieved lization will be achieved ization will be achieved zation will be achieved ation will be achieved tion will be achieved ion will be achieved on will be achieved n will be achieved  will be achieved will be achieved ill be achieved ll be achieved l be achieved  be achieved be achieved e achieved  achieved achieved chieved hieved ieved eved ved ed d by mulching. 9. Only limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion Only limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion nly limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ly limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion y limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion imited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion mited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ted disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ed disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion d disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion isturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion sturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion turbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion urbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion rbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion bance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion nce will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ce will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion e will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ill be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ll be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion l be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion e permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ermitted to construct sediment traps, diversion rmitted to construct sediment traps, diversion mitted to construct sediment traps, diversion itted to construct sediment traps, diversion tted to construct sediment traps, diversion ted to construct sediment traps, diversion ed to construct sediment traps, diversion d to construct sediment traps, diversion  to construct sediment traps, diversion to construct sediment traps, diversion o construct sediment traps, diversion  construct sediment traps, diversion construct sediment traps, diversion onstruct sediment traps, diversion nstruct sediment traps, diversion struct sediment traps, diversion truct sediment traps, diversion ruct sediment traps, diversion uct sediment traps, diversion ct sediment traps, diversion t sediment traps, diversion  sediment traps, diversion sediment traps, diversion ediment traps, diversion diment traps, diversion iment traps, diversion ment traps, diversion ent traps, diversion nt traps, diversion t traps, diversion  traps, diversion traps, diversion raps, diversion aps, diversion ps, diversion s, diversion , diversion  diversion diversion iversion version ersion rsion sion ion on n terraces, etc. 10. At the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public At the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public t the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public he end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public e end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public nd of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public d of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public f each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ach working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ch working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public h working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public orking day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public rking day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public king day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ing day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ng day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public g day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ay, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public y, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public , any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ny sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public y sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ediment tracked or conveyed onto a public diment tracked or conveyed onto a public iment tracked or conveyed onto a public ment tracked or conveyed onto a public ent tracked or conveyed onto a public nt tracked or conveyed onto a public t tracked or conveyed onto a public  tracked or conveyed onto a public tracked or conveyed onto a public racked or conveyed onto a public acked or conveyed onto a public cked or conveyed onto a public ked or conveyed onto a public ed or conveyed onto a public d or conveyed onto a public  or conveyed onto a public or conveyed onto a public r conveyed onto a public  conveyed onto a public conveyed onto a public onveyed onto a public nveyed onto a public veyed onto a public eyed onto a public yed onto a public ed onto a public d onto a public  onto a public onto a public nto a public to a public o a public  a public a public  public public ublic blic lic ic c roadway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can oadway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can adway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can dway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can way will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ay will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can y will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ill be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ll be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can l be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can e removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can emoved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can moved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can oved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can d and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can nd re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can d re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can e-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can -deposited onto the construction site. Removal can deposited onto the construction site. Removal can eposited onto the construction site. Removal can posited onto the construction site. Removal can osited onto the construction site. Removal can sited onto the construction site. Removal can ited onto the construction site. Removal can ted onto the construction site. Removal can ed onto the construction site. Removal can d onto the construction site. Removal can  onto the construction site. Removal can onto the construction site. Removal can nto the construction site. Removal can to the construction site. Removal can o the construction site. Removal can  the construction site. Removal can the construction site. Removal can he construction site. Removal can e construction site. Removal can  construction site. Removal can construction site. Removal can onstruction site. Removal can nstruction site. Removal can struction site. Removal can truction site. Removal can ruction site. Removal can uction site. Removal can ction site. Removal can tion site. Removal can ion site. Removal can on site. Removal can n site. Removal can  site. Removal can site. Removal can ite. Removal can te. Removal can e. Removal can . Removal can  Removal can Removal can emoval can moval can oval can val can al can l can  can can an n be completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed e completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ompleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed mpleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed pleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed leted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed eted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed d through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed hrough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed rough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ugh use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed gh use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed h use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed se of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed e of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed f mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed echanical or hand tools, but must never be washed chanical or hand tools, but must never be washed hanical or hand tools, but must never be washed anical or hand tools, but must never be washed nical or hand tools, but must never be washed ical or hand tools, but must never be washed cal or hand tools, but must never be washed al or hand tools, but must never be washed l or hand tools, but must never be washed  or hand tools, but must never be washed or hand tools, but must never be washed r hand tools, but must never be washed  hand tools, but must never be washed hand tools, but must never be washed and tools, but must never be washed nd tools, but must never be washed d tools, but must never be washed  tools, but must never be washed tools, but must never be washed ools, but must never be washed ols, but must never be washed ls, but must never be washed s, but must never be washed , but must never be washed  but must never be washed but must never be washed ut must never be washed t must never be washed  must never be washed must never be washed ust never be washed st never be washed t never be washed  never be washed never be washed ever be washed ver be washed er be washed r be washed  be washed be washed e washed  washed washed ashed shed hed ed d off the road using water. 11. Sediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be Sediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be diment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be iment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ent removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be nt removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be t removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be emoval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be moval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be oval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be val from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be al from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be l from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be rom erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be om erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be m erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be rosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be osion and sediment controls and facilities shall be sion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ion and sediment controls and facilities shall be on and sediment controls and facilities shall be n and sediment controls and facilities shall be  and sediment controls and facilities shall be and sediment controls and facilities shall be nd sediment controls and facilities shall be d sediment controls and facilities shall be  sediment controls and facilities shall be sediment controls and facilities shall be ediment controls and facilities shall be diment controls and facilities shall be iment controls and facilities shall be ment controls and facilities shall be ent controls and facilities shall be nt controls and facilities shall be t controls and facilities shall be  controls and facilities shall be controls and facilities shall be ontrols and facilities shall be ntrols and facilities shall be trols and facilities shall be rols and facilities shall be ols and facilities shall be ls and facilities shall be s and facilities shall be  and facilities shall be and facilities shall be nd facilities shall be d facilities shall be  facilities shall be facilities shall be acilities shall be cilities shall be ilities shall be lities shall be ities shall be ties shall be ies shall be es shall be s shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e disposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or isposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or sposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or posed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or osed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or sed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or d of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or f in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or n landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or andscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ndscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or dscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or scaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or caped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or aped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ed areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or d areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or reas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or eas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or as outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or s outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or utside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or tside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or side of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ide of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or de of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or e of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or f steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or teep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or eep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or p slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or lopes, wetlands, floodplains, or opes, wetlands, floodplains, or pes, wetlands, floodplains, or es, wetlands, floodplains, or s, wetlands, floodplains, or , wetlands, floodplains, or  wetlands, floodplains, or wetlands, floodplains, or etlands, floodplains, or tlands, floodplains, or lands, floodplains, or ands, floodplains, or nds, floodplains, or ds, floodplains, or s, floodplains, or , floodplains, or  floodplains, or floodplains, or loodplains, or oodplains, or odplains, or dplains, or plains, or lains, or ains, or ins, or ns, or s, or , or  or or r drainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. rainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. inage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. nage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. age swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ge swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. e swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. wales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. les and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. es and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. s and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. nd immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. d immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. mmediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. mediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. diately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. iately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. tely stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ely stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ly stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. y stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. tabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. abilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. bilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. lized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. zed or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ed or placed in topsoil stockpiles. d or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  or placed in topsoil stockpiles. or placed in topsoil stockpiles. r placed in topsoil stockpiles.  placed in topsoil stockpiles. placed in topsoil stockpiles. laced in topsoil stockpiles. aced in topsoil stockpiles. ced in topsoil stockpiles. ed in topsoil stockpiles. d in topsoil stockpiles.  in topsoil stockpiles. in topsoil stockpiles. n topsoil stockpiles.  topsoil stockpiles. topsoil stockpiles. opsoil stockpiles. psoil stockpiles. soil stockpiles. oil stockpiles. il stockpiles. l stockpiles.  stockpiles. stockpiles. tockpiles. ockpiles. ckpiles. kpiles. piles. iles. les. es. s. . 12. Immediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for Immediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for mmediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for mediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for diately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for iately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for tely upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ely upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ly upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for y upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for pon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for on discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for n discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for iscovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for scovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for covering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for overing unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for vering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ring unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ing unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ng unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for g unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for nforeseen circumstances posing the potential for foreseen circumstances posing the potential for oreseen circumstances posing the potential for reseen circumstances posing the potential for eseen circumstances posing the potential for seen circumstances posing the potential for een circumstances posing the potential for en circumstances posing the potential for n circumstances posing the potential for  circumstances posing the potential for circumstances posing the potential for ircumstances posing the potential for rcumstances posing the potential for cumstances posing the potential for umstances posing the potential for mstances posing the potential for stances posing the potential for tances posing the potential for ances posing the potential for nces posing the potential for ces posing the potential for es posing the potential for s posing the potential for  posing the potential for posing the potential for osing the potential for sing the potential for ing the potential for ng the potential for g the potential for  the potential for the potential for he potential for e potential for  potential for potential for otential for tential for ential for ntial for tial for ial for al for l for  for for or r accelerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ccelerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement celerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement elerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement lerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement erated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement rated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ted erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ed erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement d erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement rosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement osion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement sion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement on and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement n and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement nd/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement d/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement /or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement r sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement diment pollution, the Contractor shall implement iment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ent pollution, the Contractor shall implement nt pollution, the Contractor shall implement t pollution, the Contractor shall implement  pollution, the Contractor shall implement pollution, the Contractor shall implement ollution, the Contractor shall implement llution, the Contractor shall implement lution, the Contractor shall implement ution, the Contractor shall implement tion, the Contractor shall implement ion, the Contractor shall implement on, the Contractor shall implement n, the Contractor shall implement , the Contractor shall implement  the Contractor shall implement the Contractor shall implement he Contractor shall implement e Contractor shall implement  Contractor shall implement Contractor shall implement ontractor shall implement ntractor shall implement tractor shall implement ractor shall implement actor shall implement ctor shall implement tor shall implement or shall implement r shall implement  shall implement shall implement hall implement all implement ll implement l implement  implement implement mplement plement lement ement ment ent nt t appropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ppropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated propriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated opriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated priate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated riate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated iate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated te best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated e best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated est management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated st management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated t management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated anagement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated nagement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated agement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated gement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ment practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ent practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated nt practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated t practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ractices to eliminate the potential for accelerated actices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ctices to eliminate the potential for accelerated tices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ces to eliminate the potential for accelerated es to eliminate the potential for accelerated s to eliminate the potential for accelerated  to eliminate the potential for accelerated to eliminate the potential for accelerated o eliminate the potential for accelerated  eliminate the potential for accelerated eliminate the potential for accelerated liminate the potential for accelerated iminate the potential for accelerated minate the potential for accelerated inate the potential for accelerated nate the potential for accelerated ate the potential for accelerated te the potential for accelerated e the potential for accelerated  the potential for accelerated the potential for accelerated he potential for accelerated e potential for accelerated  potential for accelerated potential for accelerated otential for accelerated tential for accelerated ential for accelerated ntial for accelerated tial for accelerated ial for accelerated al for accelerated l for accelerated  for accelerated for accelerated or accelerated r accelerated  accelerated accelerated ccelerated celerated elerated lerated erated rated ated ted ed d erosion and/or sediment pollution. 13. A copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution A copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution opy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution py of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution y of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution f the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution he approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution e approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution pproved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution proved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution roved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution oved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ed erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution d erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution rosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution osion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution sion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution on and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution n and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution nd sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution d sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution diment control plan and Stormwater Pollution iment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ent control plan and Stormwater Pollution nt control plan and Stormwater Pollution t control plan and Stormwater Pollution  control plan and Stormwater Pollution control plan and Stormwater Pollution ontrol plan and Stormwater Pollution ntrol plan and Stormwater Pollution trol plan and Stormwater Pollution rol plan and Stormwater Pollution ol plan and Stormwater Pollution l plan and Stormwater Pollution  plan and Stormwater Pollution plan and Stormwater Pollution lan and Stormwater Pollution an and Stormwater Pollution n and Stormwater Pollution  and Stormwater Pollution and Stormwater Pollution nd Stormwater Pollution d Stormwater Pollution  Stormwater Pollution Stormwater Pollution tormwater Pollution ormwater Pollution rmwater Pollution mwater Pollution water Pollution ater Pollution ter Pollution er Pollution r Pollution  Pollution Pollution ollution llution lution ution tion ion on n Prevention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. revention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. evention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. vention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ntion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. tion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. on Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. n Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times.  Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. lan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. an (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. n (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times.  (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. WPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. PPP) must be available at the project site at all times. PP) must be available at the project site at all times. P) must be available at the project site at all times. ) must be available at the project site at all times.  must be available at the project site at all times. must be available at the project site at all times. ust be available at the project site at all times. st be available at the project site at all times. t be available at the project site at all times.  be available at the project site at all times. be available at the project site at all times. e available at the project site at all times.  available at the project site at all times. available at the project site at all times. vailable at the project site at all times. ailable at the project site at all times. ilable at the project site at all times. lable at the project site at all times. able at the project site at all times. ble at the project site at all times. le at the project site at all times. e at the project site at all times.  at the project site at all times. at the project site at all times. t the project site at all times.  the project site at all times. the project site at all times. he project site at all times. e project site at all times.  project site at all times. project site at all times. roject site at all times. oject site at all times. ject site at all times. ect site at all times. ct site at all times. t site at all times.  site at all times. site at all times. ite at all times. te at all times. e at all times.  at all times. at all times. t all times.  all times. all times. ll times. l times.  times. times. imes. mes. es. s. . 14. All pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or All pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ll pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or l pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or umping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or mping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ing of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ng of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or g of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or f sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or diment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or iment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ent laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or nt laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or t laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or aden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or den water shall be through a sediment removal facility or en water shall be through a sediment removal facility or n water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  water shall be through a sediment removal facility or water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ater shall be through a sediment removal facility or ter shall be through a sediment removal facility or er shall be through a sediment removal facility or r shall be through a sediment removal facility or  shall be through a sediment removal facility or shall be through a sediment removal facility or hall be through a sediment removal facility or all be through a sediment removal facility or ll be through a sediment removal facility or l be through a sediment removal facility or  be through a sediment removal facility or be through a sediment removal facility or e through a sediment removal facility or  through a sediment removal facility or through a sediment removal facility or hrough a sediment removal facility or rough a sediment removal facility or ough a sediment removal facility or ugh a sediment removal facility or gh a sediment removal facility or h a sediment removal facility or  a sediment removal facility or a sediment removal facility or  sediment removal facility or sediment removal facility or ediment removal facility or diment removal facility or iment removal facility or ment removal facility or ent removal facility or nt removal facility or t removal facility or  removal facility or removal facility or emoval facility or moval facility or oval facility or val facility or al facility or l facility or  facility or facility or acility or cility or ility or lity or ity or ty or y or  or or r over undisturbed vegetated areas. 15. Stabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or Stabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or tabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or abilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or bilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or lization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or zation is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ation is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or tion is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ion is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or on is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or n is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or s defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or efined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or fined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ned as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ed as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or d as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or s a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or inimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or nimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or imum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or mum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or um uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or m uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or niform 70% perennial vegetated cover or iform 70% perennial vegetated cover or form 70% perennial vegetated cover or orm 70% perennial vegetated cover or rm 70% perennial vegetated cover or m 70% perennial vegetated cover or  70% perennial vegetated cover or 70% perennial vegetated cover or 0% perennial vegetated cover or % perennial vegetated cover or  perennial vegetated cover or perennial vegetated cover or erennial vegetated cover or rennial vegetated cover or ennial vegetated cover or nnial vegetated cover or nial vegetated cover or ial vegetated cover or al vegetated cover or l vegetated cover or  vegetated cover or vegetated cover or egetated cover or getated cover or etated cover or tated cover or ated cover or ted cover or ed cover or d cover or  cover or cover or over or ver or er or r or  or or r other permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ther permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated her permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated er permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated r permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ermanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated rmanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated manent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated anent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated nent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated nt non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated t non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated on-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated n-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated -vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated egetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated getated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated etated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated tated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ted cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ed cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated d cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated over with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ver with a density sufficient to resist accelerated er with a density sufficient to resist accelerated r with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  with a density sufficient to resist accelerated with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ith a density sufficient to resist accelerated th a density sufficient to resist accelerated h a density sufficient to resist accelerated  a density sufficient to resist accelerated a density sufficient to resist accelerated  density sufficient to resist accelerated density sufficient to resist accelerated ensity sufficient to resist accelerated nsity sufficient to resist accelerated sity sufficient to resist accelerated ity sufficient to resist accelerated ty sufficient to resist accelerated y sufficient to resist accelerated  sufficient to resist accelerated sufficient to resist accelerated ufficient to resist accelerated fficient to resist accelerated ficient to resist accelerated icient to resist accelerated cient to resist accelerated ient to resist accelerated ent to resist accelerated nt to resist accelerated t to resist accelerated  to resist accelerated to resist accelerated o resist accelerated  resist accelerated resist accelerated esist accelerated sist accelerated ist accelerated st accelerated t accelerated  accelerated accelerated ccelerated celerated elerated lerated erated rated ated ted ed d surface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other urface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other face erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ace erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ce erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other e erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other osion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other sion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other on and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other n and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other nd subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other d subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ubsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other bsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other surface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other urface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other face characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ace characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ce characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other e characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other haracteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other aracteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other racteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other acteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other cteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other teristics sufficient to resist sliding and other eristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ristics sufficient to resist sliding and other istics sufficient to resist sliding and other stics sufficient to resist sliding and other tics sufficient to resist sliding and other ics sufficient to resist sliding and other cs sufficient to resist sliding and other s sufficient to resist sliding and other  sufficient to resist sliding and other sufficient to resist sliding and other ufficient to resist sliding and other fficient to resist sliding and other ficient to resist sliding and other icient to resist sliding and other cient to resist sliding and other ient to resist sliding and other ent to resist sliding and other nt to resist sliding and other t to resist sliding and other  to resist sliding and other to resist sliding and other o resist sliding and other  resist sliding and other resist sliding and other esist sliding and other sist sliding and other ist sliding and other st sliding and other t sliding and other  sliding and other sliding and other liding and other iding and other ding and other ing and other ng and other g and other  and other and other nd other d other  other other ther her er r movements. 16. An erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 An erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 osion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 sion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 on control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ontrol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ntrol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 trol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 lanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 anket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 nket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 et will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 t will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ill be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ll be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 e installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 nstalled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 stalled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 talled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 alled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 lled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 led on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 d on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ll disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 isturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 sturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 turbed slopes steeper than 3:1 urbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rbed slopes steeper than 3:1 bed slopes steeper than 3:1 ed slopes steeper than 3:1 d slopes steeper than 3:1  slopes steeper than 3:1 slopes steeper than 3:1 lopes steeper than 3:1 opes steeper than 3:1 pes steeper than 3:1 es steeper than 3:1 s steeper than 3:1  steeper than 3:1 steeper than 3:1 teeper than 3:1 eeper than 3:1 eper than 3:1 per than 3:1 er than 3:1 r than 3:1  than 3:1 than 3:1 han 3:1 an 3:1 n 3:1  3:1 3:1 :1 1 and all areas of concentrated flows. 17. Until the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be Until the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ntil the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be til the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be il the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be l the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be he site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be e site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ite is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be te is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be e is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be s stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be tabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be abilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be bilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be lized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be zed, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ed, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be d, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be , all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ll erosion and sediment control BMPs must be l erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  erosion and sediment control BMPs must be erosion and sediment control BMPs must be rosion and sediment control BMPs must be osion and sediment control BMPs must be sion and sediment control BMPs must be ion and sediment control BMPs must be on and sediment control BMPs must be n and sediment control BMPs must be  and sediment control BMPs must be and sediment control BMPs must be nd sediment control BMPs must be d sediment control BMPs must be  sediment control BMPs must be sediment control BMPs must be ediment control BMPs must be diment control BMPs must be iment control BMPs must be ment control BMPs must be ent control BMPs must be nt control BMPs must be t control BMPs must be  control BMPs must be control BMPs must be ontrol BMPs must be ntrol BMPs must be trol BMPs must be rol BMPs must be ol BMPs must be l BMPs must be  BMPs must be BMPs must be MPs must be Ps must be s must be  must be must be ust be st be t be  be be e maintained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and aintained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and intained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ntained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and tained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ined properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ned properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ed properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and d properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and  properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and roperly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and operly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and perly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and erly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and rly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and y. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and . Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and  Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and aintenance must include inspections of all erosion and intenance must include inspections of all erosion and ntenance must include inspections of all erosion and tenance must include inspections of all erosion and enance must include inspections of all erosion and nance must include inspections of all erosion and ance must include inspections of all erosion and nce must include inspections of all erosion and ce must include inspections of all erosion and e must include inspections of all erosion and  must include inspections of all erosion and must include inspections of all erosion and ust include inspections of all erosion and st include inspections of all erosion and t include inspections of all erosion and  include inspections of all erosion and include inspections of all erosion and nclude inspections of all erosion and clude inspections of all erosion and lude inspections of all erosion and ude inspections of all erosion and de inspections of all erosion and e inspections of all erosion and  inspections of all erosion and inspections of all erosion and nspections of all erosion and spections of all erosion and pections of all erosion and ections of all erosion and ctions of all erosion and tions of all erosion and ions of all erosion and ons of all erosion and ns of all erosion and s of all erosion and  of all erosion and of all erosion and f all erosion and  all erosion and all erosion and ll erosion and l erosion and  erosion and erosion and rosion and osion and sion and ion and on and n and  and and nd d sediment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ediment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All diment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All iment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ent control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All nt control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All t control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ontrol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ntrol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All trol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All rol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All l BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All MPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All Ps after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All s after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All fter each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ter each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All er each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All r each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ach runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ch runoff event and on a weekly basis. All h runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  runoff event and on a weekly basis. All runoff event and on a weekly basis. All unoff event and on a weekly basis. All noff event and on a weekly basis. All off event and on a weekly basis. All ff event and on a weekly basis. All f event and on a weekly basis. All  event and on a weekly basis. All event and on a weekly basis. All vent and on a weekly basis. All ent and on a weekly basis. All nt and on a weekly basis. All t and on a weekly basis. All  and on a weekly basis. All and on a weekly basis. All nd on a weekly basis. All d on a weekly basis. All  on a weekly basis. All on a weekly basis. All n a weekly basis. All  a weekly basis. All a weekly basis. All  weekly basis. All weekly basis. All eekly basis. All ekly basis. All kly basis. All ly basis. All y basis. All  basis. All basis. All asis. All sis. All is. All s. All . All  All All ll l preventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, reventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, eventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, entative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ntative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, tative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, tive and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ive and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ve and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, e and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, nd remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, d remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, emedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, medial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, edial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, dial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, al maintenance work, including clean out, repair, l maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  maintenance work, including clean out, repair, maintenance work, including clean out, repair, aintenance work, including clean out, repair, intenance work, including clean out, repair, ntenance work, including clean out, repair, tenance work, including clean out, repair, enance work, including clean out, repair, nance work, including clean out, repair, ance work, including clean out, repair, nce work, including clean out, repair, ce work, including clean out, repair, e work, including clean out, repair,  work, including clean out, repair, work, including clean out, repair, ork, including clean out, repair, rk, including clean out, repair, k, including clean out, repair, , including clean out, repair,  including clean out, repair, including clean out, repair, ncluding clean out, repair, cluding clean out, repair, luding clean out, repair, uding clean out, repair, ding clean out, repair, ing clean out, repair, ng clean out, repair, g clean out, repair,  clean out, repair, clean out, repair, lean out, repair, ean out, repair, an out, repair, n out, repair,  out, repair, out, repair, ut, repair, t, repair, , repair,  repair, repair, epair, pair, air, ir, r, , replacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eplacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed placement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed lacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed acement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed cement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ment, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ent, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed nt, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed t, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed , regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed  regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed egrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed grading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed rading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ding, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ing, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ng, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed g, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed , reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed  reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed seeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ing, remulching, and renetting must be performed ng, remulching, and renetting must be performed g, remulching, and renetting must be performed , remulching, and renetting must be performed  remulching, and renetting must be performed remulching, and renetting must be performed emulching, and renetting must be performed mulching, and renetting must be performed ulching, and renetting must be performed lching, and renetting must be performed ching, and renetting must be performed hing, and renetting must be performed ing, and renetting must be performed ng, and renetting must be performed g, and renetting must be performed , and renetting must be performed  and renetting must be performed and renetting must be performed nd renetting must be performed d renetting must be performed  renetting must be performed renetting must be performed enetting must be performed netting must be performed etting must be performed tting must be performed ting must be performed ing must be performed ng must be performed g must be performed  must be performed must be performed ust be performed st be performed t be performed  be performed be performed e performed  performed performed erformed rformed formed ormed rmed med ed d immediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, mmediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, mediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, diately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, iately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, tely. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ely. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ly. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, y. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, . If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, f erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, rosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, osion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, sion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, on and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, n and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, nd sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, d sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, diment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, iment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ent control BMPs fail to perform as expected, nt control BMPs fail to perform as expected, t control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  control BMPs fail to perform as expected, control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ontrol BMPs fail to perform as expected, ntrol BMPs fail to perform as expected, trol BMPs fail to perform as expected, rol BMPs fail to perform as expected, ol BMPs fail to perform as expected, l BMPs fail to perform as expected,  BMPs fail to perform as expected, BMPs fail to perform as expected, MPs fail to perform as expected, Ps fail to perform as expected, s fail to perform as expected,  fail to perform as expected, fail to perform as expected, ail to perform as expected, il to perform as expected, l to perform as expected,  to perform as expected, to perform as expected, o perform as expected,  perform as expected, perform as expected, erform as expected, rform as expected, form as expected, orm as expected, rm as expected, m as expected,  as expected, as expected, s expected,  expected, expected, xpected, pected, ected, cted, ted, ed, d, , replacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. eplacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. placement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. lacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. acement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. cement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ment BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ent BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. nt BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. t BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required.  BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. MPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. Ps, or modifications of those installed will be required. s, or modifications of those installed will be required. , or modifications of those installed will be required.  or modifications of those installed will be required. or modifications of those installed will be required. r modifications of those installed will be required.  modifications of those installed will be required. modifications of those installed will be required. odifications of those installed will be required. difications of those installed will be required. ifications of those installed will be required. fications of those installed will be required. ications of those installed will be required. cations of those installed will be required. ations of those installed will be required. tions of those installed will be required. ions of those installed will be required. ons of those installed will be required. ns of those installed will be required. s of those installed will be required.  of those installed will be required. of those installed will be required. f those installed will be required.  those installed will be required. those installed will be required. hose installed will be required. ose installed will be required. se installed will be required. e installed will be required.  installed will be required. installed will be required. nstalled will be required. stalled will be required. talled will be required. alled will be required. lled will be required. led will be required. ed will be required. d will be required.  will be required. will be required. ill be required. ll be required. l be required.  be required. be required. e required.  required. required. equired. quired. uired. ired. red. ed. d. . 18. Any sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland Any sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ny sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland y sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland diment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland iment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ent removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland nt removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland t removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland emoved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland moved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland oved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland d from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland rom BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland om BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland m BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland MPs during construction shall be returned to upland Ps during construction shall be returned to upland s during construction shall be returned to upland  during construction shall be returned to upland during construction shall be returned to upland uring construction shall be returned to upland ring construction shall be returned to upland ing construction shall be returned to upland ng construction shall be returned to upland g construction shall be returned to upland  construction shall be returned to upland construction shall be returned to upland onstruction shall be returned to upland nstruction shall be returned to upland struction shall be returned to upland truction shall be returned to upland ruction shall be returned to upland uction shall be returned to upland ction shall be returned to upland tion shall be returned to upland ion shall be returned to upland on shall be returned to upland n shall be returned to upland  shall be returned to upland shall be returned to upland hall be returned to upland all be returned to upland ll be returned to upland l be returned to upland  be returned to upland be returned to upland e returned to upland  returned to upland returned to upland eturned to upland turned to upland urned to upland rned to upland ned to upland ed to upland d to upland  to upland to upland o upland  upland upland pland land and nd d areas on site and incorporated into site grading. 19. Upon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all Upon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all pon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all on completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all n completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ompletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all mpletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all pletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all letion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all etion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all tion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all on of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all n of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all f all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ll earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all l earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all arth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all rth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all th disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all h disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all isturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all sturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all turbance activities and permanent stabilization of all urbance activities and permanent stabilization of all rbance activities and permanent stabilization of all bance activities and permanent stabilization of all ance activities and permanent stabilization of all nce activities and permanent stabilization of all ce activities and permanent stabilization of all e activities and permanent stabilization of all  activities and permanent stabilization of all activities and permanent stabilization of all ctivities and permanent stabilization of all tivities and permanent stabilization of all ivities and permanent stabilization of all vities and permanent stabilization of all ities and permanent stabilization of all ties and permanent stabilization of all ies and permanent stabilization of all es and permanent stabilization of all s and permanent stabilization of all  and permanent stabilization of all and permanent stabilization of all nd permanent stabilization of all d permanent stabilization of all  permanent stabilization of all permanent stabilization of all ermanent stabilization of all rmanent stabilization of all manent stabilization of all anent stabilization of all nent stabilization of all ent stabilization of all nt stabilization of all t stabilization of all  stabilization of all stabilization of all tabilization of all abilization of all bilization of all ilization of all lization of all ization of all zation of all ation of all tion of all ion of all on of all n of all  of all of all f all  all all ll l disturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final isturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final sturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final turbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final urbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final rbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final bed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final ed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final d areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final reas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final eas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final as, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final s, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final , the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final he Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final e Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final wner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final ner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final er and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final r and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final nd or Contractor shall contact the City for a final d or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  or Contractor shall contact the City for a final or Contractor shall contact the City for a final r Contractor shall contact the City for a final  Contractor shall contact the City for a final Contractor shall contact the City for a final ontractor shall contact the City for a final ntractor shall contact the City for a final tractor shall contact the City for a final ractor shall contact the City for a final actor shall contact the City for a final ctor shall contact the City for a final tor shall contact the City for a final or shall contact the City for a final r shall contact the City for a final  shall contact the City for a final shall contact the City for a final hall contact the City for a final all contact the City for a final ll contact the City for a final l contact the City for a final  contact the City for a final contact the City for a final ontact the City for a final ntact the City for a final tact the City for a final act the City for a final ct the City for a final t the City for a final  the City for a final the City for a final he City for a final e City for a final  City for a final City for a final ity for a final ty for a final y for a final  for a final for a final or a final r a final  a final a final  final final inal nal al l inspection.



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

119

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1019.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE EXISTING DRIVE AS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTABLISH CONCRETE WASHOUT PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-30-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-14-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER STAFF COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL PLAN-PHASE II

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBED AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WASHOUT PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBED AREA = 0.46± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONTROL MEASURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM FACILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIP & STOCKPILE TOPSOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION / BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ROADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUGH GRADE / SEDIMENT CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING/SEED/FINAL STABILIZATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT CONTROL STRUCTURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE TABLE WITH THEIR SPECIFIC PROJECT SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL EROSION/SEDIMENTATION CONTROL OPERATION TIME SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erosion and Sedimentation Control 1. All earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following All earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ll earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following l earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following earth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following arth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following rth disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following th disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following h disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following disturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following isturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following sturbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following turbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following urbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following rbance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following bance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ance activities shall proceed in accordance with the following nce activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ce activities shall proceed in accordance with the following e activities shall proceed in accordance with the following  activities shall proceed in accordance with the following activities shall proceed in accordance with the following ctivities shall proceed in accordance with the following tivities shall proceed in accordance with the following ivities shall proceed in accordance with the following vities shall proceed in accordance with the following ities shall proceed in accordance with the following ties shall proceed in accordance with the following ies shall proceed in accordance with the following es shall proceed in accordance with the following s shall proceed in accordance with the following  shall proceed in accordance with the following shall proceed in accordance with the following hall proceed in accordance with the following all proceed in accordance with the following ll proceed in accordance with the following l proceed in accordance with the following  proceed in accordance with the following proceed in accordance with the following roceed in accordance with the following oceed in accordance with the following ceed in accordance with the following eed in accordance with the following ed in accordance with the following d in accordance with the following  in accordance with the following in accordance with the following n accordance with the following  accordance with the following accordance with the following ccordance with the following cordance with the following ordance with the following rdance with the following dance with the following ance with the following nce with the following ce with the following e with the following  with the following with the following ith the following th the following h the following  the following the following he following e following  following following ollowing llowing lowing owing wing ing ng g sequence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any equence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any quence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any uence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ence. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any nce. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ce. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any e. Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any . Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any Each stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ach stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ch stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any h stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any stage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any tage shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any age shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any ge shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any e shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any  shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any shall be completed and immediately stabilized before any hall be completed and immediately stabilized before any all be completed and immediately stabilized before any ll be completed and immediately stabilized before any l be completed and immediately stabilized before any  be completed and immediately stabilized before any be completed and immediately stabilized before any e completed and immediately stabilized before any  completed and immediately stabilized before any completed and immediately stabilized before any ompleted and immediately stabilized before any mpleted and immediately stabilized before any pleted and immediately stabilized before any leted and immediately stabilized before any eted and immediately stabilized before any ted and immediately stabilized before any ed and immediately stabilized before any d and immediately stabilized before any  and immediately stabilized before any and immediately stabilized before any nd immediately stabilized before any d immediately stabilized before any  immediately stabilized before any immediately stabilized before any mmediately stabilized before any mediately stabilized before any ediately stabilized before any diately stabilized before any iately stabilized before any ately stabilized before any tely stabilized before any ely stabilized before any ly stabilized before any y stabilized before any  stabilized before any stabilized before any tabilized before any abilized before any bilized before any ilized before any lized before any ized before any zed before any ed before any d before any  before any before any efore any fore any ore any re any e any  any any ny y subsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ubsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bsequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be sequent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be equent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be quent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be uent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ent stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be nt stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be t stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be stage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be tage is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be age is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ge is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be e is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be is initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be s initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be initiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be nitiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be itiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be tiated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be iated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ated. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ted. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ed. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be d. Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be . Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be Clearing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be learing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be earing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be aring, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ring, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ing, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ng, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be g, grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be , grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be  grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be grubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be rubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be ubbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bbing, and topsoil stripping shall be bing, and topsoil stripping shall be ing, and topsoil stripping shall be ng, and topsoil stripping shall be g, and topsoil stripping shall be , and topsoil stripping shall be  and topsoil stripping shall be and topsoil stripping shall be nd topsoil stripping shall be d topsoil stripping shall be  topsoil stripping shall be topsoil stripping shall be opsoil stripping shall be psoil stripping shall be soil stripping shall be oil stripping shall be il stripping shall be l stripping shall be  stripping shall be stripping shall be tripping shall be ripping shall be ipping shall be pping shall be ping shall be ing shall be ng shall be g shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e limited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future imited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future mited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ited only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ted only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ed only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future d only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future only to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future nly to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ly to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future y to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future to those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future o those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future those areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future hose areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ose areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future se areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future e areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future areas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future reas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future eas described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future as described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future s described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future described in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future escribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future scribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future cribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ribed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ibed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future bed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ed in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future d in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future in each stage. No fill shall be placed in future n each stage. No fill shall be placed in future  each stage. No fill shall be placed in future each stage. No fill shall be placed in future ach stage. No fill shall be placed in future ch stage. No fill shall be placed in future h stage. No fill shall be placed in future  stage. No fill shall be placed in future stage. No fill shall be placed in future tage. No fill shall be placed in future age. No fill shall be placed in future ge. No fill shall be placed in future e. No fill shall be placed in future . No fill shall be placed in future  No fill shall be placed in future No fill shall be placed in future o fill shall be placed in future  fill shall be placed in future fill shall be placed in future ill shall be placed in future ll shall be placed in future l shall be placed in future  shall be placed in future shall be placed in future hall be placed in future all be placed in future ll be placed in future l be placed in future  be placed in future be placed in future e placed in future  placed in future placed in future laced in future aced in future ced in future ed in future d in future  in future in future n future  future future uture ture ure re e rights-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ights-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ghts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. hts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ts-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. s-of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. -of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. of-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. f-way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. -way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. way under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ay under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. y under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. under a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nder a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. der a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. er a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. r a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. a Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. Land Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. and Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nd Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. d Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. Disturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. isturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. sturbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. turbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. urbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. rbance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. bance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ance permit unless approved by the City Engineer. nce permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ce permit unless approved by the City Engineer. e permit unless approved by the City Engineer.  permit unless approved by the City Engineer. permit unless approved by the City Engineer. ermit unless approved by the City Engineer. rmit unless approved by the City Engineer. mit unless approved by the City Engineer. it unless approved by the City Engineer. t unless approved by the City Engineer.  unless approved by the City Engineer. unless approved by the City Engineer. nless approved by the City Engineer. less approved by the City Engineer. ess approved by the City Engineer. ss approved by the City Engineer. s approved by the City Engineer.  approved by the City Engineer. approved by the City Engineer. pproved by the City Engineer. proved by the City Engineer. roved by the City Engineer. oved by the City Engineer. ved by the City Engineer. ed by the City Engineer. d by the City Engineer.  by the City Engineer. by the City Engineer. y the City Engineer.  the City Engineer. the City Engineer. he City Engineer. e City Engineer.  City Engineer. City Engineer. ity Engineer. ty Engineer. y Engineer.  Engineer. Engineer. ngineer. gineer. ineer. neer. eer. er. r. . 2. The Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of The Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of he Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of e Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Contractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ontractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ntractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ractor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of actor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ctor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tor or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of or or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of or Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Owner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of wner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ner shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of er shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of r shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of shall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of hall obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of all obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ll obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of l obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of btain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of tain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of ain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of in a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of n a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of a Land Disturbance Permit from the City of  Land Disturbance Permit from the City of Land Disturbance Permit from the City of and Disturbance Permit from the City of nd Disturbance Permit from the City of d Disturbance Permit from the City of  Disturbance Permit from the City of Disturbance Permit from the City of isturbance Permit from the City of sturbance Permit from the City of turbance Permit from the City of urbance Permit from the City of rbance Permit from the City of bance Permit from the City of ance Permit from the City of nce Permit from the City of ce Permit from the City of e Permit from the City of  Permit from the City of Permit from the City of ermit from the City of rmit from the City of mit from the City of it from the City of t from the City of  from the City of from the City of rom the City of om the City of m the City of  the City of the City of he City of e City of  City of City of ity of ty of y of  of of f Olathe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control lathe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control athe. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control the. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control he. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control e. The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control . The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control The permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control he permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control e permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control permit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control ermit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control rmit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control mit holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control it holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control t holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control holder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control older must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control lder must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control der must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control er must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control r must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control must schedule an initial erosion and sediment control ust schedule an initial erosion and sediment control st schedule an initial erosion and sediment control t schedule an initial erosion and sediment control  schedule an initial erosion and sediment control schedule an initial erosion and sediment control chedule an initial erosion and sediment control hedule an initial erosion and sediment control edule an initial erosion and sediment control dule an initial erosion and sediment control ule an initial erosion and sediment control le an initial erosion and sediment control e an initial erosion and sediment control  an initial erosion and sediment control an initial erosion and sediment control n initial erosion and sediment control  initial erosion and sediment control initial erosion and sediment control nitial erosion and sediment control itial erosion and sediment control tial erosion and sediment control ial erosion and sediment control al erosion and sediment control l erosion and sediment control  erosion and sediment control erosion and sediment control rosion and sediment control osion and sediment control sion and sediment control ion and sediment control on and sediment control n and sediment control  and sediment control and sediment control nd sediment control d sediment control  sediment control sediment control ediment control diment control iment control ment control ent control nt control t control  control control ontrol ntrol trol rol ol l inspection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. nspection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. spection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. pection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ection prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ction prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. tion prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ion prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. on prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. n prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. prior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. rior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ior to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. or to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. r to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. to any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. o any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. any earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ny earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. y earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. earthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. arthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. rthmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. thmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. hmoving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. moving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. oving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ving on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ing on the proposed site as per the approved plan. ng on the proposed site as per the approved plan. g on the proposed site as per the approved plan.  on the proposed site as per the approved plan. on the proposed site as per the approved plan. n the proposed site as per the approved plan.  the proposed site as per the approved plan. the proposed site as per the approved plan. he proposed site as per the approved plan. e proposed site as per the approved plan.  proposed site as per the approved plan. proposed site as per the approved plan. roposed site as per the approved plan. oposed site as per the approved plan. posed site as per the approved plan. osed site as per the approved plan. sed site as per the approved plan. ed site as per the approved plan. d site as per the approved plan.  site as per the approved plan. site as per the approved plan. ite as per the approved plan. te as per the approved plan. e as per the approved plan.  as per the approved plan. as per the approved plan. s per the approved plan.  per the approved plan. per the approved plan. er the approved plan. r the approved plan.  the approved plan. the approved plan. he approved plan. e approved plan.  approved plan. approved plan. pproved plan. proved plan. roved plan. oved plan. ved plan. ed plan. d plan.  plan. plan. lan. an. n. . Scheduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in cheduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in heduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in eduling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in duling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in uling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ling of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ing of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ng of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in g of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in of initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in f initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in initial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in nitial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in itial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in tial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ial inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in al inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in l inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in inspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in nspections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in spections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in pections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ections must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ctions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in tions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ions must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ons must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ns must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in s must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in must be made at least twenty four (24) hours in ust be made at least twenty four (24) hours in st be made at least twenty four (24) hours in t be made at least twenty four (24) hours in  be made at least twenty four (24) hours in be made at least twenty four (24) hours in e made at least twenty four (24) hours in  made at least twenty four (24) hours in made at least twenty four (24) hours in ade at least twenty four (24) hours in de at least twenty four (24) hours in e at least twenty four (24) hours in  at least twenty four (24) hours in at least twenty four (24) hours in t least twenty four (24) hours in  least twenty four (24) hours in least twenty four (24) hours in east twenty four (24) hours in ast twenty four (24) hours in st twenty four (24) hours in t twenty four (24) hours in  twenty four (24) hours in twenty four (24) hours in wenty four (24) hours in enty four (24) hours in nty four (24) hours in ty four (24) hours in y four (24) hours in  four (24) hours in four (24) hours in our (24) hours in ur (24) hours in r (24) hours in  (24) hours in (24) hours in 24) hours in 4) hours in ) hours in  hours in hours in ours in urs in rs in s in  in in n advance. 3. All excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be All excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ll excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be l excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be excavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be xcavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be cavation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be avation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be vation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ation for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be tion for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ion for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be on for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be n for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be for utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be or utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be r utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be utility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be tility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ility line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be lity line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ity line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ty line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be y line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be line installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ine installation shall be limited to the amount that can be ne installation shall be limited to the amount that can be e installation shall be limited to the amount that can be  installation shall be limited to the amount that can be installation shall be limited to the amount that can be nstallation shall be limited to the amount that can be stallation shall be limited to the amount that can be tallation shall be limited to the amount that can be allation shall be limited to the amount that can be llation shall be limited to the amount that can be lation shall be limited to the amount that can be ation shall be limited to the amount that can be tion shall be limited to the amount that can be ion shall be limited to the amount that can be on shall be limited to the amount that can be n shall be limited to the amount that can be  shall be limited to the amount that can be shall be limited to the amount that can be hall be limited to the amount that can be all be limited to the amount that can be ll be limited to the amount that can be l be limited to the amount that can be  be limited to the amount that can be be limited to the amount that can be e limited to the amount that can be  limited to the amount that can be limited to the amount that can be imited to the amount that can be mited to the amount that can be ited to the amount that can be ted to the amount that can be ed to the amount that can be d to the amount that can be  to the amount that can be to the amount that can be o the amount that can be  the amount that can be the amount that can be he amount that can be e amount that can be  amount that can be amount that can be mount that can be ount that can be unt that can be nt that can be t that can be  that can be that can be hat can be at can be t can be  can be can be an be n be  be be e excavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated xcavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated cavated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated avated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated vated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ated, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ted, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d, installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated , installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated installed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated nstalled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated stalled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated talled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated alled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated lled, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated led, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d, backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated , backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated backfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ackfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ckfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated kfilled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated filled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated illed and stabilized within one working day. All excavated lled and stabilized within one working day. All excavated led and stabilized within one working day. All excavated ed and stabilized within one working day. All excavated d and stabilized within one working day. All excavated  and stabilized within one working day. All excavated and stabilized within one working day. All excavated nd stabilized within one working day. All excavated d stabilized within one working day. All excavated  stabilized within one working day. All excavated stabilized within one working day. All excavated tabilized within one working day. All excavated abilized within one working day. All excavated bilized within one working day. All excavated ilized within one working day. All excavated lized within one working day. All excavated ized within one working day. All excavated zed within one working day. All excavated ed within one working day. All excavated d within one working day. All excavated  within one working day. All excavated within one working day. All excavated ithin one working day. All excavated thin one working day. All excavated hin one working day. All excavated in one working day. All excavated n one working day. All excavated  one working day. All excavated one working day. All excavated ne working day. All excavated e working day. All excavated  working day. All excavated working day. All excavated orking day. All excavated rking day. All excavated king day. All excavated ing day. All excavated ng day. All excavated g day. All excavated  day. All excavated day. All excavated ay. All excavated y. All excavated . All excavated  All excavated All excavated ll excavated l excavated  excavated excavated xcavated cavated avated vated ated ted ed d material shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water aterial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water terial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water erial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water rial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ial shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water al shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water l shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water shall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water hall be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water all be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ll be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water l be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water be deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water e deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water deposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water eposited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water posited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water osited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water sited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ited on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ted on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ed on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water d on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water on the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water n the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water the upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water he upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water e upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water  upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water upslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water pslope side of the trench. Sediment laden water slope side of the trench. Sediment laden water lope side of the trench. Sediment laden water ope side of the trench. Sediment laden water pe side of the trench. Sediment laden water e side of the trench. Sediment laden water  side of the trench. Sediment laden water side of the trench. Sediment laden water ide of the trench. Sediment laden water de of the trench. Sediment laden water e of the trench. Sediment laden water  of the trench. Sediment laden water of the trench. Sediment laden water f the trench. Sediment laden water  the trench. Sediment laden water the trench. Sediment laden water he trench. Sediment laden water e trench. Sediment laden water  trench. Sediment laden water trench. Sediment laden water rench. Sediment laden water ench. Sediment laden water nch. Sediment laden water ch. Sediment laden water h. Sediment laden water . Sediment laden water  Sediment laden water Sediment laden water ediment laden water diment laden water iment laden water ment laden water ent laden water nt laden water t laden water  laden water laden water aden water den water en water n water  water water ater ter er r that accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hat accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or at accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or t accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or accumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ccumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or cumulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or umulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or mulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ulates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or lates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ates in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or tes in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or es in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or s in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or in the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or n the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or the trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or he trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or e trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or trenches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or renches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or enches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or nches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or ches shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hes shall be pumped through a filtration device, or es shall be pumped through a filtration device, or s shall be pumped through a filtration device, or  shall be pumped through a filtration device, or shall be pumped through a filtration device, or hall be pumped through a filtration device, or all be pumped through a filtration device, or ll be pumped through a filtration device, or l be pumped through a filtration device, or  be pumped through a filtration device, or be pumped through a filtration device, or e pumped through a filtration device, or  pumped through a filtration device, or pumped through a filtration device, or umped through a filtration device, or mped through a filtration device, or ped through a filtration device, or ed through a filtration device, or d through a filtration device, or  through a filtration device, or through a filtration device, or hrough a filtration device, or rough a filtration device, or ough a filtration device, or ugh a filtration device, or gh a filtration device, or h a filtration device, or  a filtration device, or a filtration device, or  filtration device, or filtration device, or iltration device, or ltration device, or tration device, or ration device, or ation device, or tion device, or ion device, or on device, or n device, or  device, or device, or evice, or vice, or ice, or ce, or e, or , or  or or r equivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. quivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. uivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ivalent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. valent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. alent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. lent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ent sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. nt sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. t sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. sediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ediment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. diment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. iment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ment removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ent removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. nt removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. t removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. removal facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. emoval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. moval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. oval facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. val facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. al facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. l facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. facility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. acility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. cility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ility, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. lity, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ity, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ty, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. y, or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. , or over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. or over non-disturbed vegetated areas. r over non-disturbed vegetated areas.  over non-disturbed vegetated areas. over non-disturbed vegetated areas. ver non-disturbed vegetated areas. er non-disturbed vegetated areas. r non-disturbed vegetated areas.  non-disturbed vegetated areas. non-disturbed vegetated areas. on-disturbed vegetated areas. n-disturbed vegetated areas. -disturbed vegetated areas. disturbed vegetated areas. isturbed vegetated areas. sturbed vegetated areas. turbed vegetated areas. urbed vegetated areas. rbed vegetated areas. bed vegetated areas. ed vegetated areas. d vegetated areas.  vegetated areas. vegetated areas. egetated areas. getated areas. etated areas. tated areas. ated areas. ted areas. ed areas. d areas.  areas. areas. reas. eas. as. s. . Discharge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ischarge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active scharge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active charge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active harge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active arge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active rge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ge points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active e points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active  points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active points should be established to provide for maximum distance to active oints should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ints should be established to provide for maximum distance to active nts should be established to provide for maximum distance to active ts should be established to provide for maximum distance to active s should be established to provide for maximum distance to active  should be established to provide for maximum distance to active should be established to provide for maximum distance to active hould be established to provide for maximum distance to active ould be established to provide for maximum distance to active uld be established to provide for maximum distance to active ld be established to provide for maximum distance to active d be established to provide for maximum distance to active  be established to provide for maximum distance to active be established to provide for maximum distance to active e established to provide for maximum distance to active  established to provide for maximum distance to active established to provide for maximum distance to active stablished to provide for maximum distance to active tablished to provide for maximum distance to active ablished to provide for maximum distance to active blished to provide for maximum distance to active lished to provide for maximum distance to active ished to provide for maximum distance to active shed to provide for maximum distance to active hed to provide for maximum distance to active ed to provide for maximum distance to active d to provide for maximum distance to active  to provide for maximum distance to active to provide for maximum distance to active o provide for maximum distance to active  provide for maximum distance to active provide for maximum distance to active rovide for maximum distance to active ovide for maximum distance to active vide for maximum distance to active ide for maximum distance to active de for maximum distance to active e for maximum distance to active  for maximum distance to active for maximum distance to active or maximum distance to active r maximum distance to active  maximum distance to active maximum distance to active aximum distance to active ximum distance to active imum distance to active mum distance to active um distance to active m distance to active  distance to active distance to active istance to active stance to active tance to active ance to active nce to active ce to active e to active  to active to active o active  active active ctive tive ive ve e waterways. 4. Before implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control Before implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control efore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control fore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ore implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control re implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control e implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control implementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control mplementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control plementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control lementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ementing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control menting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control enting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control nting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ting any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ing any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ng any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control g any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control any revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control ny revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control y revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control  revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control revisions to the approved erosion and sediment control evisions to the approved erosion and sediment control visions to the approved erosion and sediment control isions to the approved erosion and sediment control sions to the approved erosion and sediment control ions to the approved erosion and sediment control ons to the approved erosion and sediment control ns to the approved erosion and sediment control s to the approved erosion and sediment control  to the approved erosion and sediment control to the approved erosion and sediment control o the approved erosion and sediment control  the approved erosion and sediment control the approved erosion and sediment control he approved erosion and sediment control e approved erosion and sediment control  approved erosion and sediment control approved erosion and sediment control pproved erosion and sediment control proved erosion and sediment control roved erosion and sediment control oved erosion and sediment control ved erosion and sediment control ed erosion and sediment control d erosion and sediment control  erosion and sediment control erosion and sediment control rosion and sediment control osion and sediment control sion and sediment control ion and sediment control on and sediment control n and sediment control  and sediment control and sediment control nd sediment control d sediment control  sediment control sediment control ediment control diment control iment control ment control ent control nt control t control  control control ontrol ntrol trol rol ol l Plan or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved lan or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved an or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved n or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved or revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved r revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved revisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved evisions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved visions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved isions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved sions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ions to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ons to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ns to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved s to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved to other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved o other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved other plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ther plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved her plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved er plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved r plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved plans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved lans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ans, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved ns, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved s, which may affect the effectiveness of the approved , which may affect the effectiveness of the approved  which may affect the effectiveness of the approved which may affect the effectiveness of the approved hich may affect the effectiveness of the approved ich may affect the effectiveness of the approved ch may affect the effectiveness of the approved h may affect the effectiveness of the approved  may affect the effectiveness of the approved may affect the effectiveness of the approved ay affect the effectiveness of the approved y affect the effectiveness of the approved  affect the effectiveness of the approved affect the effectiveness of the approved ffect the effectiveness of the approved fect the effectiveness of the approved ect the effectiveness of the approved ct the effectiveness of the approved t the effectiveness of the approved  the effectiveness of the approved the effectiveness of the approved he effectiveness of the approved e effectiveness of the approved  effectiveness of the approved effectiveness of the approved ffectiveness of the approved fectiveness of the approved ectiveness of the approved ctiveness of the approved tiveness of the approved iveness of the approved veness of the approved eness of the approved ness of the approved ess of the approved ss of the approved s of the approved  of the approved of the approved f the approved  the approved the approved he approved e approved  approved approved pproved proved roved oved ved ed d Erosion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the rosion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the osion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the sion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ion and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the on and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the n and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the and Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the nd Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the d Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the Sediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ediment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the diment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the iment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ment control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ent control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the nt control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the t control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the control plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ontrol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ntrol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the trol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the rol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the ol plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the l plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the  plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the plan, the Contractor must receive approval of the lan, the Contractor must receive approval of the an, the Contractor must receive approval of the n, the Contractor must receive approval of the , the Contractor must receive approval of the  the Contractor must receive approval of the the Contractor must receive approval of the he Contractor must receive approval of the e Contractor must receive approval of the  Contractor must receive approval of the Contractor must receive approval of the ontractor must receive approval of the ntractor must receive approval of the tractor must receive approval of the ractor must receive approval of the actor must receive approval of the ctor must receive approval of the tor must receive approval of the or must receive approval of the r must receive approval of the  must receive approval of the must receive approval of the ust receive approval of the st receive approval of the t receive approval of the  receive approval of the receive approval of the eceive approval of the ceive approval of the eive approval of the ive approval of the ve approval of the e approval of the  approval of the approval of the pproval of the proval of the roval of the oval of the val of the al of the l of the  of the of the f the  the the he e revisions from the City of Olathe. 5. All building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or All building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ll building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or l building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or building materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or uilding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ilding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or lding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ding materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ing materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ng materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or g materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or materials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or aterials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or terials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or erials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or rials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ials and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or als and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or ls and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or s and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or and wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or nd wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or d wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or  wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or wastes must be removed from the site and recycled or astes must be removed from the site and recycled or stes must be removed from the site and recycled or tes must be removed from the site and recycled or es must be removed from the site and recycled or s must be removed from the site and recycled or  must be removed from the site and recycled or must be removed from the site and recycled or ust be removed from the site and recycled or st be removed from the site and recycled or t be removed from the site and recycled or  be removed from the site and recycled or be removed from the site and recycled or e removed from the site and recycled or  removed from the site and recycled or removed from the site and recycled or emoved from the site and recycled or moved from the site and recycled or oved from the site and recycled or ved from the site and recycled or ed from the site and recycled or d from the site and recycled or  from the site and recycled or from the site and recycled or rom the site and recycled or om the site and recycled or m the site and recycled or  the site and recycled or the site and recycled or he site and recycled or e site and recycled or  site and recycled or site and recycled or ite and recycled or te and recycled or e and recycled or  and recycled or and recycled or nd recycled or d recycled or  recycled or recycled or ecycled or cycled or ycled or cled or led or ed or d or  or or r disposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's isposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's sposed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's posed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's osed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's sed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ed of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's d of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's of in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's f in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's in accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's n accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's accordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ccordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's cordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ordance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's rdance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's dance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ance with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's nce with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ce with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's e with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ith the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's th the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's h the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's he Kansas Department of Health and Environment's e Kansas Department of Health and Environment's  Kansas Department of Health and Environment's Kansas Department of Health and Environment's ansas Department of Health and Environment's nsas Department of Health and Environment's sas Department of Health and Environment's as Department of Health and Environment's s Department of Health and Environment's  Department of Health and Environment's Department of Health and Environment's epartment of Health and Environment's partment of Health and Environment's artment of Health and Environment's rtment of Health and Environment's tment of Health and Environment's ment of Health and Environment's ent of Health and Environment's nt of Health and Environment's t of Health and Environment's  of Health and Environment's of Health and Environment's f Health and Environment's  Health and Environment's Health and Environment's ealth and Environment's alth and Environment's lth and Environment's th and Environment's h and Environment's  and Environment's and Environment's nd Environment's d Environment's  Environment's Environment's nvironment's vironment's ironment's ronment's onment's nment's ment's ent's nt's t's 's s regulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be egulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be gulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ulations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be lations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ations. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be tions. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ions. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ons. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ns. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be s. No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be . No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be No building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be o building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be building materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be uilding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ilding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be lding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ding materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ing materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ng materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be g materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be  materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be materials or wastes or unused building materials shall be aterials or wastes or unused building materials shall be terials or wastes or unused building materials shall be erials or wastes or unused building materials shall be rials or wastes or unused building materials shall be ials or wastes or unused building materials shall be als or wastes or unused building materials shall be ls or wastes or unused building materials shall be s or wastes or unused building materials shall be  or wastes or unused building materials shall be or wastes or unused building materials shall be r wastes or unused building materials shall be  wastes or unused building materials shall be wastes or unused building materials shall be astes or unused building materials shall be stes or unused building materials shall be tes or unused building materials shall be es or unused building materials shall be s or unused building materials shall be  or unused building materials shall be or unused building materials shall be r unused building materials shall be  unused building materials shall be unused building materials shall be nused building materials shall be used building materials shall be sed building materials shall be ed building materials shall be d building materials shall be  building materials shall be building materials shall be uilding materials shall be ilding materials shall be lding materials shall be ding materials shall be ing materials shall be ng materials shall be g materials shall be  materials shall be materials shall be aterials shall be terials shall be erials shall be rials shall be ials shall be als shall be ls shall be s shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e burned, buried, dumped, or discharged at the site. 6. Before disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure Before disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure efore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure fore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ore disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure re disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure e disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure disposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure isposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure sposing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure posing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure osing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure sing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ing of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ng of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure g of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure of soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure f soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure soil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure oil or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure il or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure l or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure or receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure r receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure receiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure eceiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ceiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure eiving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure iving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ving borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ing borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure ng borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure g borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure  borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure borrow for the site, the Contractor must assure orrow for the site, the Contractor must assure rrow for the site, the Contractor must assure row for the site, the Contractor must assure ow for the site, the Contractor must assure w for the site, the Contractor must assure  for the site, the Contractor must assure for the site, the Contractor must assure or the site, the Contractor must assure r the site, the Contractor must assure  the site, the Contractor must assure the site, the Contractor must assure he site, the Contractor must assure e site, the Contractor must assure  site, the Contractor must assure site, the Contractor must assure ite, the Contractor must assure te, the Contractor must assure e, the Contractor must assure , the Contractor must assure  the Contractor must assure the Contractor must assure he Contractor must assure e Contractor must assure  Contractor must assure Contractor must assure ontractor must assure ntractor must assure tractor must assure ractor must assure actor must assure ctor must assure tor must assure or must assure r must assure  must assure must assure ust assure st assure t assure  assure assure ssure sure ure re e that each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved hat each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved at each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved t each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved each spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ach spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ch spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved h spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved spoil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved poil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved oil or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved il or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved l or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved or borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved r borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved borrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved orrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rrow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved row area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ow area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved w area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved area has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rea has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved ea has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved a has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved has an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved as an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved s an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved n Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved  Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved rosion and Sediment Control Plan approved osion and Sediment Control Plan approved sion and Sediment Control Plan approved ion and Sediment Control Plan approved on and Sediment Control Plan approved n and Sediment Control Plan approved  and Sediment Control Plan approved and Sediment Control Plan approved nd Sediment Control Plan approved d Sediment Control Plan approved  Sediment Control Plan approved Sediment Control Plan approved ediment Control Plan approved diment Control Plan approved iment Control Plan approved ment Control Plan approved ent Control Plan approved nt Control Plan approved t Control Plan approved  Control Plan approved Control Plan approved ontrol Plan approved ntrol Plan approved trol Plan approved rol Plan approved ol Plan approved l Plan approved  Plan approved Plan approved lan approved an approved n approved  approved approved pproved proved roved oved ved ed d by the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to y the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to the City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to he City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to e City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to City of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to ity of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to ty of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to y of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to of Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to f Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to  Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to Olathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to lathe and which is being implemented and maintained according to athe and which is being implemented and maintained according to the and which is being implemented and maintained according to he and which is being implemented and maintained according to e and which is being implemented and maintained according to  and which is being implemented and maintained according to and which is being implemented and maintained according to nd which is being implemented and maintained according to d which is being implemented and maintained according to  which is being implemented and maintained according to which is being implemented and maintained according to hich is being implemented and maintained according to ich is being implemented and maintained according to ch is being implemented and maintained according to h is being implemented and maintained according to  is being implemented and maintained according to is being implemented and maintained according to s being implemented and maintained according to  being implemented and maintained according to being implemented and maintained according to eing implemented and maintained according to ing implemented and maintained according to ng implemented and maintained according to g implemented and maintained according to  implemented and maintained according to implemented and maintained according to mplemented and maintained according to plemented and maintained according to lemented and maintained according to emented and maintained according to mented and maintained according to ented and maintained according to nted and maintained according to ted and maintained according to ed and maintained according to d and maintained according to  and maintained according to and maintained according to nd maintained according to d maintained according to  maintained according to maintained according to aintained according to intained according to ntained according to tained according to ained according to ined according to ned according to ed according to d according to  according to according to ccording to cording to ording to rding to ding to ing to ng to g to  to to o City of Olathe regulations. 7. Any disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. Any disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ny disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. y disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. disturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. isturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. sturbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. turbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. urbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. rbed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. bed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ed area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. d area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. area on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. rea on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ea on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. a on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. on which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. n which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. which activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. hich activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ich activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ch activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. h activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. activity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ctivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. tivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ivity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. vity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ity has ceased must be stabilized immediately. ty has ceased must be stabilized immediately. y has ceased must be stabilized immediately.  has ceased must be stabilized immediately. has ceased must be stabilized immediately. as ceased must be stabilized immediately. s ceased must be stabilized immediately.  ceased must be stabilized immediately. ceased must be stabilized immediately. eased must be stabilized immediately. ased must be stabilized immediately. sed must be stabilized immediately. ed must be stabilized immediately. d must be stabilized immediately.  must be stabilized immediately. must be stabilized immediately. ust be stabilized immediately. st be stabilized immediately. t be stabilized immediately.  be stabilized immediately. be stabilized immediately. e stabilized immediately.  stabilized immediately. stabilized immediately. tabilized immediately. abilized immediately. bilized immediately. ilized immediately. lized immediately. ized immediately. zed immediately. ed immediately. d immediately.  immediately. immediately. mmediately. mediately. ediately. diately. iately. ately. tely. ely. ly. y. . During non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. uring non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ring non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ing non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ng non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. g non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. non-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. on-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. n-germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. -germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. germinating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. erminating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. rminating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. minating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. inating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. nating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ating periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ting periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ing periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ng periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. g periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. periods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. eriods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. riods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. iods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ods, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ds, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. s, mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. , mulch must be applied at the recommended rates.  mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. mulch must be applied at the recommended rates. ulch must be applied at the recommended rates. lch must be applied at the recommended rates. ch must be applied at the recommended rates. h must be applied at the recommended rates.  must be applied at the recommended rates. must be applied at the recommended rates. ust be applied at the recommended rates. st be applied at the recommended rates. t be applied at the recommended rates.  be applied at the recommended rates. be applied at the recommended rates. e applied at the recommended rates.  applied at the recommended rates. applied at the recommended rates. pplied at the recommended rates. plied at the recommended rates. lied at the recommended rates. ied at the recommended rates. ed at the recommended rates. d at the recommended rates.  at the recommended rates. at the recommended rates. t the recommended rates.  the recommended rates. the recommended rates. he recommended rates. e recommended rates.  recommended rates. recommended rates. ecommended rates. commended rates. ommended rates. mmended rates. mended rates. ended rates. nded rates. ded rates. ed rates. d rates.  rates. rates. ates. tes. es. s. . Disturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed isturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed sturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed turbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed urbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed rbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed bed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed d areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed areas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed reas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed eas which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed as which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed s which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed which are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed hich are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ich are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ch are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed h are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed are not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed re not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed e not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed not at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed ot at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed t at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed at finished grade and which will be re-disturbed t finished grade and which will be re-disturbed  finished grade and which will be re-disturbed finished grade and which will be re-disturbed inished grade and which will be re-disturbed nished grade and which will be re-disturbed ished grade and which will be re-disturbed shed grade and which will be re-disturbed hed grade and which will be re-disturbed ed grade and which will be re-disturbed d grade and which will be re-disturbed  grade and which will be re-disturbed grade and which will be re-disturbed rade and which will be re-disturbed ade and which will be re-disturbed de and which will be re-disturbed e and which will be re-disturbed  and which will be re-disturbed and which will be re-disturbed nd which will be re-disturbed d which will be re-disturbed  which will be re-disturbed which will be re-disturbed hich will be re-disturbed ich will be re-disturbed ch will be re-disturbed h will be re-disturbed  will be re-disturbed will be re-disturbed ill be re-disturbed ll be re-disturbed l be re-disturbed  be re-disturbed be re-disturbed e re-disturbed  re-disturbed re-disturbed e-disturbed -disturbed disturbed isturbed sturbed turbed urbed rbed bed ed d before winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding efore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding fore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ore winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding re winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding e winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding winter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding inter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding nter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ter shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding er shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding r shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding shall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding hall be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding all be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding ll be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding l be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding be stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding e stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding  stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding stabilized in accordance with temporary seeding tabilized in accordance with temporary seeding abilized in accordance with temporary seeding bilized in accordance with temporary seeding ilized in accordance with temporary seeding lized in accordance with temporary seeding ized in accordance with temporary seeding zed in accordance with temporary seeding ed in accordance with temporary seeding d in accordance with temporary seeding  in accordance with temporary seeding in accordance with temporary seeding n accordance with temporary seeding  accordance with temporary seeding accordance with temporary seeding ccordance with temporary seeding cordance with temporary seeding ordance with temporary seeding rdance with temporary seeding dance with temporary seeding ance with temporary seeding nce with temporary seeding ce with temporary seeding e with temporary seeding  with temporary seeding with temporary seeding ith temporary seeding th temporary seeding h temporary seeding  temporary seeding temporary seeding emporary seeding mporary seeding porary seeding orary seeding rary seeding ary seeding ry seeding y seeding  seeding seeding eeding eding ding ing ng g specifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- pecifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ecifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- cifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ifications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- fications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ications. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- cations. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ations. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- tions. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ions. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ons. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ns. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- s. Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- . Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- Disturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- isturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- sturbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- turbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- urbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- rbed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- bed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- ed areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- d areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- areas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- reas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- eas that are either at finished grade or will not be re- as that are either at finished grade or will not be re- s that are either at finished grade or will not be re-  that are either at finished grade or will not be re- that are either at finished grade or will not be re- hat are either at finished grade or will not be re- at are either at finished grade or will not be re- t are either at finished grade or will not be re-  are either at finished grade or will not be re- are either at finished grade or will not be re- re either at finished grade or will not be re- e either at finished grade or will not be re-  either at finished grade or will not be re- either at finished grade or will not be re- ither at finished grade or will not be re- ther at finished grade or will not be re- her at finished grade or will not be re- er at finished grade or will not be re- r at finished grade or will not be re-  at finished grade or will not be re- at finished grade or will not be re- t finished grade or will not be re-  finished grade or will not be re- finished grade or will not be re- inished grade or will not be re- nished grade or will not be re- ished grade or will not be re- shed grade or will not be re- hed grade or will not be re- ed grade or will not be re- d grade or will not be re-  grade or will not be re- grade or will not be re- rade or will not be re- ade or will not be re- de or will not be re- e or will not be re-  or will not be re- or will not be re- r will not be re-  will not be re- will not be re- ill not be re- ll not be re- l not be re-  not be re- not be re- ot be re- t be re-  be re- be re- e re-  re- re- e- - disturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. isturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. sturbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. turbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. urbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. rbed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. bed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ed before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. d before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. before winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. efore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. fore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ore winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. re winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. e winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. winter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. inter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. nter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ter must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. er must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. r must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. must be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. ust be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. st be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. t be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. be stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. e stabilized with permanent seeding specifications.  stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. stabilized with permanent seeding specifications. tabilized with permanent seeding specifications. abilized with permanent seeding specifications. bilized with permanent seeding specifications. ilized with permanent seeding specifications. lized with permanent seeding specifications. ized with permanent seeding specifications. zed with permanent seeding specifications. ed with permanent seeding specifications. d with permanent seeding specifications.  with permanent seeding specifications. with permanent seeding specifications. ith permanent seeding specifications. th permanent seeding specifications. h permanent seeding specifications.  permanent seeding specifications. permanent seeding specifications. ermanent seeding specifications. rmanent seeding specifications. manent seeding specifications. anent seeding specifications. nent seeding specifications. ent seeding specifications. nt seeding specifications. t seeding specifications.  seeding specifications. seeding specifications. eeding specifications. eding specifications. ding specifications. ing specifications. ng specifications. g specifications.  specifications. specifications. pecifications. ecifications. cifications. ifications. fications. ications. cations. ations. tions. ions. ons. ns. s. . 8. Planting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical Planting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical lanting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical anting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical nting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ting and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ing and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ng and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical g and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical and seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical nd seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical d seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical seeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical eeding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical eding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ding dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ing dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ng dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical g dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical dates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ates shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical tes shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical es shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical s shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical shall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical hall be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical all be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ll be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical l be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical be in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical e in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical in accordance with the City of Olathe Technical n accordance with the City of Olathe Technical  accordance with the City of Olathe Technical accordance with the City of Olathe Technical ccordance with the City of Olathe Technical cordance with the City of Olathe Technical ordance with the City of Olathe Technical rdance with the City of Olathe Technical dance with the City of Olathe Technical ance with the City of Olathe Technical nce with the City of Olathe Technical ce with the City of Olathe Technical e with the City of Olathe Technical  with the City of Olathe Technical with the City of Olathe Technical ith the City of Olathe Technical th the City of Olathe Technical h the City of Olathe Technical  the City of Olathe Technical the City of Olathe Technical he City of Olathe Technical e City of Olathe Technical  City of Olathe Technical City of Olathe Technical ity of Olathe Technical ty of Olathe Technical y of Olathe Technical  of Olathe Technical of Olathe Technical f Olathe Technical  Olathe Technical Olathe Technical lathe Technical athe Technical the Technical he Technical e Technical  Technical Technical echnical chnical hnical nical ical cal al l Specifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved pecifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ecifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ifications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved fications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ications for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cations for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ations for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved tions for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ions for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ons for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ns for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved s for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved for Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved or Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved r Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Public Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ublic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved blic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved lic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ic Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved c Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Improvement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved mprovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved provement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved rovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ovement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved vement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ement Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ment Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ent Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved nt Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved t Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved  Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved Projects. Interim stabilization will be achieved rojects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ojects. Interim stabilization will be achieved jects. Interim stabilization will be achieved ects. Interim stabilization will be achieved cts. Interim stabilization will be achieved ts. Interim stabilization will be achieved s. Interim stabilization will be achieved . Interim stabilization will be achieved  Interim stabilization will be achieved Interim stabilization will be achieved nterim stabilization will be achieved terim stabilization will be achieved erim stabilization will be achieved rim stabilization will be achieved im stabilization will be achieved m stabilization will be achieved  stabilization will be achieved stabilization will be achieved tabilization will be achieved abilization will be achieved bilization will be achieved ilization will be achieved lization will be achieved ization will be achieved zation will be achieved ation will be achieved tion will be achieved ion will be achieved on will be achieved n will be achieved  will be achieved will be achieved ill be achieved ll be achieved l be achieved  be achieved be achieved e achieved  achieved achieved chieved hieved ieved eved ved ed d by mulching. 9. Only limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion Only limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion nly limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ly limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion y limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion limited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion imited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion mited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ited disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ted disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ed disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion d disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion disturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion isturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion sturbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion turbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion urbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion rbance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion bance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ance will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion nce will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ce will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion e will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion will be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ill be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ll be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion l be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion be permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion e permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion  permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion permitted to construct sediment traps, diversion ermitted to construct sediment traps, diversion rmitted to construct sediment traps, diversion mitted to construct sediment traps, diversion itted to construct sediment traps, diversion tted to construct sediment traps, diversion ted to construct sediment traps, diversion ed to construct sediment traps, diversion d to construct sediment traps, diversion  to construct sediment traps, diversion to construct sediment traps, diversion o construct sediment traps, diversion  construct sediment traps, diversion construct sediment traps, diversion onstruct sediment traps, diversion nstruct sediment traps, diversion struct sediment traps, diversion truct sediment traps, diversion ruct sediment traps, diversion uct sediment traps, diversion ct sediment traps, diversion t sediment traps, diversion  sediment traps, diversion sediment traps, diversion ediment traps, diversion diment traps, diversion iment traps, diversion ment traps, diversion ent traps, diversion nt traps, diversion t traps, diversion  traps, diversion traps, diversion raps, diversion aps, diversion ps, diversion s, diversion , diversion  diversion diversion iversion version ersion rsion sion ion on n terraces, etc. 10. At the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public At the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public t the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public the end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public he end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public e end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public end of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public nd of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public d of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public of each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public f each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public each working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ach working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ch working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public h working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public working day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public orking day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public rking day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public king day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ing day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ng day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public g day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public day, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ay, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public y, any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public , any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public any sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ny sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public y sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public  sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public sediment tracked or conveyed onto a public ediment tracked or conveyed onto a public diment tracked or conveyed onto a public iment tracked or conveyed onto a public ment tracked or conveyed onto a public ent tracked or conveyed onto a public nt tracked or conveyed onto a public t tracked or conveyed onto a public  tracked or conveyed onto a public tracked or conveyed onto a public racked or conveyed onto a public acked or conveyed onto a public cked or conveyed onto a public ked or conveyed onto a public ed or conveyed onto a public d or conveyed onto a public  or conveyed onto a public or conveyed onto a public r conveyed onto a public  conveyed onto a public conveyed onto a public onveyed onto a public nveyed onto a public veyed onto a public eyed onto a public yed onto a public ed onto a public d onto a public  onto a public onto a public nto a public to a public o a public  a public a public  public public ublic blic lic ic c roadway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can oadway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can adway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can dway will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can way will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ay will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can y will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can will be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ill be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ll be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can l be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can be removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can e removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can removed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can emoved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can moved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can oved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ved and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can ed and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can d and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can and re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can nd re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can d re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can  re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can re-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can e-deposited onto the construction site. Removal can -deposited onto the construction site. Removal can deposited onto the construction site. Removal can eposited onto the construction site. Removal can posited onto the construction site. Removal can osited onto the construction site. Removal can sited onto the construction site. Removal can ited onto the construction site. Removal can ted onto the construction site. Removal can ed onto the construction site. Removal can d onto the construction site. Removal can  onto the construction site. Removal can onto the construction site. Removal can nto the construction site. Removal can to the construction site. Removal can o the construction site. Removal can  the construction site. Removal can the construction site. Removal can he construction site. Removal can e construction site. Removal can  construction site. Removal can construction site. Removal can onstruction site. Removal can nstruction site. Removal can struction site. Removal can truction site. Removal can ruction site. Removal can uction site. Removal can ction site. Removal can tion site. Removal can ion site. Removal can on site. Removal can n site. Removal can  site. Removal can site. Removal can ite. Removal can te. Removal can e. Removal can . Removal can  Removal can Removal can emoval can moval can oval can val can al can l can  can can an n be completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed e completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed completed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ompleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed mpleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed pleted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed leted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed eted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ted through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed d through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed through use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed hrough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed rough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ough use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed ugh use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed gh use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed h use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed use of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed se of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed e of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed of mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed f mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed  mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed mechanical or hand tools, but must never be washed echanical or hand tools, but must never be washed chanical or hand tools, but must never be washed hanical or hand tools, but must never be washed anical or hand tools, but must never be washed nical or hand tools, but must never be washed ical or hand tools, but must never be washed cal or hand tools, but must never be washed al or hand tools, but must never be washed l or hand tools, but must never be washed  or hand tools, but must never be washed or hand tools, but must never be washed r hand tools, but must never be washed  hand tools, but must never be washed hand tools, but must never be washed and tools, but must never be washed nd tools, but must never be washed d tools, but must never be washed  tools, but must never be washed tools, but must never be washed ools, but must never be washed ols, but must never be washed ls, but must never be washed s, but must never be washed , but must never be washed  but must never be washed but must never be washed ut must never be washed t must never be washed  must never be washed must never be washed ust never be washed st never be washed t never be washed  never be washed never be washed ever be washed ver be washed er be washed r be washed  be washed be washed e washed  washed washed ashed shed hed ed d off the road using water. 11. Sediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be Sediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ediment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be diment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be iment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ment removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ent removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be nt removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be t removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be removal from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be emoval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be moval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be oval from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be val from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be al from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be l from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be from erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be rom erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be om erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be m erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be  erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be erosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be rosion and sediment controls and facilities shall be osion and sediment controls and facilities shall be sion and sediment controls and facilities shall be ion and sediment controls and facilities shall be on and sediment controls and facilities shall be n and sediment controls and facilities shall be  and sediment controls and facilities shall be and sediment controls and facilities shall be nd sediment controls and facilities shall be d sediment controls and facilities shall be  sediment controls and facilities shall be sediment controls and facilities shall be ediment controls and facilities shall be diment controls and facilities shall be iment controls and facilities shall be ment controls and facilities shall be ent controls and facilities shall be nt controls and facilities shall be t controls and facilities shall be  controls and facilities shall be controls and facilities shall be ontrols and facilities shall be ntrols and facilities shall be trols and facilities shall be rols and facilities shall be ols and facilities shall be ls and facilities shall be s and facilities shall be  and facilities shall be and facilities shall be nd facilities shall be d facilities shall be  facilities shall be facilities shall be acilities shall be cilities shall be ilities shall be lities shall be ities shall be ties shall be ies shall be es shall be s shall be  shall be shall be hall be all be ll be l be  be be e disposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or isposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or sposed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or posed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or osed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or sed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ed of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or d of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or of in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or f in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or in landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or n landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or landscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or andscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ndscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or dscaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or scaped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or caped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or aped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ped areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ed areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or d areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or areas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or reas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or eas outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or as outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or s outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or outside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or utside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or tside of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or side of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ide of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or de of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or e of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or of steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or f steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or steep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or teep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or eep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or ep slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or p slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or  slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or slopes, wetlands, floodplains, or lopes, wetlands, floodplains, or opes, wetlands, floodplains, or pes, wetlands, floodplains, or es, wetlands, floodplains, or s, wetlands, floodplains, or , wetlands, floodplains, or  wetlands, floodplains, or wetlands, floodplains, or etlands, floodplains, or tlands, floodplains, or lands, floodplains, or ands, floodplains, or nds, floodplains, or ds, floodplains, or s, floodplains, or , floodplains, or  floodplains, or floodplains, or loodplains, or oodplains, or odplains, or dplains, or plains, or lains, or ains, or ins, or ns, or s, or , or  or or r drainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. rainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ainage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. inage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. nage swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. age swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ge swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. e swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. swales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. wales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ales and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. les and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. es and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. s and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. and immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. nd immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. d immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. immediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. mmediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. mediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ediately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. diately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. iately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ately stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. tely stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ely stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ly stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. y stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. stabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. tabilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. abilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. bilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ilized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. lized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ized or placed in topsoil stockpiles. zed or placed in topsoil stockpiles. ed or placed in topsoil stockpiles. d or placed in topsoil stockpiles.  or placed in topsoil stockpiles. or placed in topsoil stockpiles. r placed in topsoil stockpiles.  placed in topsoil stockpiles. placed in topsoil stockpiles. laced in topsoil stockpiles. aced in topsoil stockpiles. ced in topsoil stockpiles. ed in topsoil stockpiles. d in topsoil stockpiles.  in topsoil stockpiles. in topsoil stockpiles. n topsoil stockpiles.  topsoil stockpiles. topsoil stockpiles. opsoil stockpiles. psoil stockpiles. soil stockpiles. oil stockpiles. il stockpiles. l stockpiles.  stockpiles. stockpiles. tockpiles. ockpiles. ckpiles. kpiles. piles. iles. les. es. s. . 12. Immediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for Immediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for mmediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for mediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ediately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for diately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for iately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ately upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for tely upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ely upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ly upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for y upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for upon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for pon discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for on discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for n discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for discovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for iscovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for scovering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for covering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for overing unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for vering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ering unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ring unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ing unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for ng unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for g unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for  unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for unforeseen circumstances posing the potential for nforeseen circumstances posing the potential for foreseen circumstances posing the potential for oreseen circumstances posing the potential for reseen circumstances posing the potential for eseen circumstances posing the potential for seen circumstances posing the potential for een circumstances posing the potential for en circumstances posing the potential for n circumstances posing the potential for  circumstances posing the potential for circumstances posing the potential for ircumstances posing the potential for rcumstances posing the potential for cumstances posing the potential for umstances posing the potential for mstances posing the potential for stances posing the potential for tances posing the potential for ances posing the potential for nces posing the potential for ces posing the potential for es posing the potential for s posing the potential for  posing the potential for posing the potential for osing the potential for sing the potential for ing the potential for ng the potential for g the potential for  the potential for the potential for he potential for e potential for  potential for potential for otential for tential for ential for ntial for tial for ial for al for l for  for for or r accelerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ccelerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement celerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement elerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement lerated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement erated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement rated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ated erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ted erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ed erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement d erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement erosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement rosion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement osion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement sion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ion and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement on and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement n and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement and/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement nd/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement d/or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement /or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement or sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement r sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement  sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement sediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ediment pollution, the Contractor shall implement diment pollution, the Contractor shall implement iment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ment pollution, the Contractor shall implement ent pollution, the Contractor shall implement nt pollution, the Contractor shall implement t pollution, the Contractor shall implement  pollution, the Contractor shall implement pollution, the Contractor shall implement ollution, the Contractor shall implement llution, the Contractor shall implement lution, the Contractor shall implement ution, the Contractor shall implement tion, the Contractor shall implement ion, the Contractor shall implement on, the Contractor shall implement n, the Contractor shall implement , the Contractor shall implement  the Contractor shall implement the Contractor shall implement he Contractor shall implement e Contractor shall implement  Contractor shall implement Contractor shall implement ontractor shall implement ntractor shall implement tractor shall implement ractor shall implement actor shall implement ctor shall implement tor shall implement or shall implement r shall implement  shall implement shall implement hall implement all implement ll implement l implement  implement implement mplement plement lement ement ment ent nt t appropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ppropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated propriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ropriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated opriate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated priate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated riate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated iate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ate best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated te best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated e best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated best management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated est management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated st management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated t management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated management practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated anagement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated nagement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated agement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated gement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ement practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ment practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ent practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated nt practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated t practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated  practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated practices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ractices to eliminate the potential for accelerated actices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ctices to eliminate the potential for accelerated tices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ices to eliminate the potential for accelerated ces to eliminate the potential for accelerated es to eliminate the potential for accelerated s to eliminate the potential for accelerated  to eliminate the potential for accelerated to eliminate the potential for accelerated o eliminate the potential for accelerated  eliminate the potential for accelerated eliminate the potential for accelerated liminate the potential for accelerated iminate the potential for accelerated minate the potential for accelerated inate the potential for accelerated nate the potential for accelerated ate the potential for accelerated te the potential for accelerated e the potential for accelerated  the potential for accelerated the potential for accelerated he potential for accelerated e potential for accelerated  potential for accelerated potential for accelerated otential for accelerated tential for accelerated ential for accelerated ntial for accelerated tial for accelerated ial for accelerated al for accelerated l for accelerated  for accelerated for accelerated or accelerated r accelerated  accelerated accelerated ccelerated celerated elerated lerated erated rated ated ted ed d erosion and/or sediment pollution. 13. A copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution A copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution copy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution opy of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution py of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution y of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution of the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution f the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution the approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution he approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution e approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution approved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution pproved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution proved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution roved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution oved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ved erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ed erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution d erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution erosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution rosion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution osion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution sion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ion and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution on and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution n and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution and sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution nd sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution d sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution  sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution sediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ediment control plan and Stormwater Pollution diment control plan and Stormwater Pollution iment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ment control plan and Stormwater Pollution ent control plan and Stormwater Pollution nt control plan and Stormwater Pollution t control plan and Stormwater Pollution  control plan and Stormwater Pollution control plan and Stormwater Pollution ontrol plan and Stormwater Pollution ntrol plan and Stormwater Pollution trol plan and Stormwater Pollution rol plan and Stormwater Pollution ol plan and Stormwater Pollution l plan and Stormwater Pollution  plan and Stormwater Pollution plan and Stormwater Pollution lan and Stormwater Pollution an and Stormwater Pollution n and Stormwater Pollution  and Stormwater Pollution and Stormwater Pollution nd Stormwater Pollution d Stormwater Pollution  Stormwater Pollution Stormwater Pollution tormwater Pollution ormwater Pollution rmwater Pollution mwater Pollution water Pollution ater Pollution ter Pollution er Pollution r Pollution  Pollution Pollution ollution llution lution ution tion ion on n Prevention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. revention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. evention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. vention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ention Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ntion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. tion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. ion Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. on Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. n Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times.  Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. Plan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. lan (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. an (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. n (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times.  (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. (SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. SWPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. WPPP) must be available at the project site at all times. PPP) must be available at the project site at all times. PP) must be available at the project site at all times. P) must be available at the project site at all times. ) must be available at the project site at all times.  must be available at the project site at all times. must be available at the project site at all times. ust be available at the project site at all times. st be available at the project site at all times. t be available at the project site at all times.  be available at the project site at all times. be available at the project site at all times. e available at the project site at all times.  available at the project site at all times. available at the project site at all times. vailable at the project site at all times. ailable at the project site at all times. ilable at the project site at all times. lable at the project site at all times. able at the project site at all times. ble at the project site at all times. le at the project site at all times. e at the project site at all times.  at the project site at all times. at the project site at all times. t the project site at all times.  the project site at all times. the project site at all times. he project site at all times. e project site at all times.  project site at all times. project site at all times. roject site at all times. oject site at all times. ject site at all times. ect site at all times. ct site at all times. t site at all times.  site at all times. site at all times. ite at all times. te at all times. e at all times.  at all times. at all times. t all times.  all times. all times. ll times. l times.  times. times. imes. mes. es. s. . 14. All pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or All pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ll pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or l pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or pumping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or umping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or mping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ping of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ing of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ng of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or g of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or of sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or f sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or sediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ediment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or diment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or iment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ment laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ent laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or nt laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or t laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or laden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or aden water shall be through a sediment removal facility or den water shall be through a sediment removal facility or en water shall be through a sediment removal facility or n water shall be through a sediment removal facility or  water shall be through a sediment removal facility or water shall be through a sediment removal facility or ater shall be through a sediment removal facility or ter shall be through a sediment removal facility or er shall be through a sediment removal facility or r shall be through a sediment removal facility or  shall be through a sediment removal facility or shall be through a sediment removal facility or hall be through a sediment removal facility or all be through a sediment removal facility or ll be through a sediment removal facility or l be through a sediment removal facility or  be through a sediment removal facility or be through a sediment removal facility or e through a sediment removal facility or  through a sediment removal facility or through a sediment removal facility or hrough a sediment removal facility or rough a sediment removal facility or ough a sediment removal facility or ugh a sediment removal facility or gh a sediment removal facility or h a sediment removal facility or  a sediment removal facility or a sediment removal facility or  sediment removal facility or sediment removal facility or ediment removal facility or diment removal facility or iment removal facility or ment removal facility or ent removal facility or nt removal facility or t removal facility or  removal facility or removal facility or emoval facility or moval facility or oval facility or val facility or al facility or l facility or  facility or facility or acility or cility or ility or lity or ity or ty or y or  or or r over undisturbed vegetated areas. 15. Stabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or Stabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or tabilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or abilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or bilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ilization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or lization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ization is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or zation is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ation is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or tion is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ion is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or on is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or n is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or is defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or s defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or defined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or efined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or fined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ined as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ned as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or ed as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or d as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or as a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or s a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or a minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or minimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or inimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or nimum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or imum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or mum uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or um uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or m uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or  uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or uniform 70% perennial vegetated cover or niform 70% perennial vegetated cover or iform 70% perennial vegetated cover or form 70% perennial vegetated cover or orm 70% perennial vegetated cover or rm 70% perennial vegetated cover or m 70% perennial vegetated cover or  70% perennial vegetated cover or 70% perennial vegetated cover or 0% perennial vegetated cover or % perennial vegetated cover or  perennial vegetated cover or perennial vegetated cover or erennial vegetated cover or rennial vegetated cover or ennial vegetated cover or nnial vegetated cover or nial vegetated cover or ial vegetated cover or al vegetated cover or l vegetated cover or  vegetated cover or vegetated cover or egetated cover or getated cover or etated cover or tated cover or ated cover or ted cover or ed cover or d cover or  cover or cover or over or ver or er or r or  or or r other permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ther permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated her permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated er permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated r permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated permanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ermanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated rmanent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated manent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated anent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated nent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ent non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated nt non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated t non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated non-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated on-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated n-vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated -vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated vegetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated egetated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated getated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated etated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated tated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ted cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ed cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated d cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated cover with a density sufficient to resist accelerated over with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ver with a density sufficient to resist accelerated er with a density sufficient to resist accelerated r with a density sufficient to resist accelerated  with a density sufficient to resist accelerated with a density sufficient to resist accelerated ith a density sufficient to resist accelerated th a density sufficient to resist accelerated h a density sufficient to resist accelerated  a density sufficient to resist accelerated a density sufficient to resist accelerated  density sufficient to resist accelerated density sufficient to resist accelerated ensity sufficient to resist accelerated nsity sufficient to resist accelerated sity sufficient to resist accelerated ity sufficient to resist accelerated ty sufficient to resist accelerated y sufficient to resist accelerated  sufficient to resist accelerated sufficient to resist accelerated ufficient to resist accelerated fficient to resist accelerated ficient to resist accelerated icient to resist accelerated cient to resist accelerated ient to resist accelerated ent to resist accelerated nt to resist accelerated t to resist accelerated  to resist accelerated to resist accelerated o resist accelerated  resist accelerated resist accelerated esist accelerated sist accelerated ist accelerated st accelerated t accelerated  accelerated accelerated ccelerated celerated elerated lerated erated rated ated ted ed d surface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other urface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rface erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other face erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ace erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ce erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other e erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other erosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rosion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other osion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other sion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ion and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other on and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other n and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other and subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other nd subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other d subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other subsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ubsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other bsurface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other surface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other urface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other rface characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other face characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ace characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ce characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other e characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other  characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other characteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other haracteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other aracteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other racteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other acteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other cteristics sufficient to resist sliding and other teristics sufficient to resist sliding and other eristics sufficient to resist sliding and other ristics sufficient to resist sliding and other istics sufficient to resist sliding and other stics sufficient to resist sliding and other tics sufficient to resist sliding and other ics sufficient to resist sliding and other cs sufficient to resist sliding and other s sufficient to resist sliding and other  sufficient to resist sliding and other sufficient to resist sliding and other ufficient to resist sliding and other fficient to resist sliding and other ficient to resist sliding and other icient to resist sliding and other cient to resist sliding and other ient to resist sliding and other ent to resist sliding and other nt to resist sliding and other t to resist sliding and other  to resist sliding and other to resist sliding and other o resist sliding and other  resist sliding and other resist sliding and other esist sliding and other sist sliding and other ist sliding and other st sliding and other t sliding and other  sliding and other sliding and other liding and other iding and other ding and other ing and other ng and other g and other  and other and other nd other d other  other other ther her er r movements. 16. An erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 An erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 erosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rosion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 osion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 sion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ion control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 on control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 control blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ontrol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ntrol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 trol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ol blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 blanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 lanket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 anket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 nket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ket will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 et will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 t will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 will be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ill be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ll be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 be installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 e installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 installed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 nstalled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 stalled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 talled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 alled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 lled on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 led on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ed on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 d on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 on all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 n all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 all disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 ll disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 l disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1  disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 disturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 isturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 sturbed slopes steeper than 3:1 turbed slopes steeper than 3:1 urbed slopes steeper than 3:1 rbed slopes steeper than 3:1 bed slopes steeper than 3:1 ed slopes steeper than 3:1 d slopes steeper than 3:1  slopes steeper than 3:1 slopes steeper than 3:1 lopes steeper than 3:1 opes steeper than 3:1 pes steeper than 3:1 es steeper than 3:1 s steeper than 3:1  steeper than 3:1 steeper than 3:1 teeper than 3:1 eeper than 3:1 eper than 3:1 per than 3:1 er than 3:1 r than 3:1  than 3:1 than 3:1 han 3:1 an 3:1 n 3:1  3:1 3:1 :1 1 and all areas of concentrated flows. 17. Until the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be Until the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ntil the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be til the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be il the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be l the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be the site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be he site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be e site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be site is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ite is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be te is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be e is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be is stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be s stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be stabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be tabilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be abilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be bilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ilized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be lized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ized, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be zed, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ed, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be d, all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be , all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be all erosion and sediment control BMPs must be ll erosion and sediment control BMPs must be l erosion and sediment control BMPs must be  erosion and sediment control BMPs must be erosion and sediment control BMPs must be rosion and sediment control BMPs must be osion and sediment control BMPs must be sion and sediment control BMPs must be ion and sediment control BMPs must be on and sediment control BMPs must be n and sediment control BMPs must be  and sediment control BMPs must be and sediment control BMPs must be nd sediment control BMPs must be d sediment control BMPs must be  sediment control BMPs must be sediment control BMPs must be ediment control BMPs must be diment control BMPs must be iment control BMPs must be ment control BMPs must be ent control BMPs must be nt control BMPs must be t control BMPs must be  control BMPs must be control BMPs must be ontrol BMPs must be ntrol BMPs must be trol BMPs must be rol BMPs must be ol BMPs must be l BMPs must be  BMPs must be BMPs must be MPs must be Ps must be s must be  must be must be ust be st be t be  be be e maintained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and aintained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and intained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ntained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and tained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ained properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ined properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ned properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ed properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and d properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and  properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and properly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and roperly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and operly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and perly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and erly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and rly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and ly. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and y. Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and . Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and  Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and Maintenance must include inspections of all erosion and aintenance must include inspections of all erosion and intenance must include inspections of all erosion and ntenance must include inspections of all erosion and tenance must include inspections of all erosion and enance must include inspections of all erosion and nance must include inspections of all erosion and ance must include inspections of all erosion and nce must include inspections of all erosion and ce must include inspections of all erosion and e must include inspections of all erosion and  must include inspections of all erosion and must include inspections of all erosion and ust include inspections of all erosion and st include inspections of all erosion and t include inspections of all erosion and  include inspections of all erosion and include inspections of all erosion and nclude inspections of all erosion and clude inspections of all erosion and lude inspections of all erosion and ude inspections of all erosion and de inspections of all erosion and e inspections of all erosion and  inspections of all erosion and inspections of all erosion and nspections of all erosion and spections of all erosion and pections of all erosion and ections of all erosion and ctions of all erosion and tions of all erosion and ions of all erosion and ons of all erosion and ns of all erosion and s of all erosion and  of all erosion and of all erosion and f all erosion and  all erosion and all erosion and ll erosion and l erosion and  erosion and erosion and rosion and osion and sion and ion and on and n and  and and nd d sediment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ediment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All diment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All iment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ment control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ent control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All nt control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All t control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All control BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ontrol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ntrol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All trol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All rol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ol BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All l BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All BMPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All MPs after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All Ps after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All s after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All after each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All fter each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ter each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All er each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All r each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All each runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ach runoff event and on a weekly basis. All ch runoff event and on a weekly basis. All h runoff event and on a weekly basis. All  runoff event and on a weekly basis. All runoff event and on a weekly basis. All unoff event and on a weekly basis. All noff event and on a weekly basis. All off event and on a weekly basis. All ff event and on a weekly basis. All f event and on a weekly basis. All  event and on a weekly basis. All event and on a weekly basis. All vent and on a weekly basis. All ent and on a weekly basis. All nt and on a weekly basis. All t and on a weekly basis. All  and on a weekly basis. All and on a weekly basis. All nd on a weekly basis. All d on a weekly basis. All  on a weekly basis. All on a weekly basis. All n a weekly basis. All  a weekly basis. All a weekly basis. All  weekly basis. All weekly basis. All eekly basis. All ekly basis. All kly basis. All ly basis. All y basis. All  basis. All basis. All asis. All sis. All is. All s. All . All  All All ll l preventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, reventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, eventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ventative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, entative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ntative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, tative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ative and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, tive and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ive and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ve and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, e and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, and remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, nd remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, d remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, remedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, emedial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, medial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, edial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, dial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, ial maintenance work, including clean out, repair, al maintenance work, including clean out, repair, l maintenance work, including clean out, repair,  maintenance work, including clean out, repair, maintenance work, including clean out, repair, aintenance work, including clean out, repair, intenance work, including clean out, repair, ntenance work, including clean out, repair, tenance work, including clean out, repair, enance work, including clean out, repair, nance work, including clean out, repair, ance work, including clean out, repair, nce work, including clean out, repair, ce work, including clean out, repair, e work, including clean out, repair,  work, including clean out, repair, work, including clean out, repair, ork, including clean out, repair, rk, including clean out, repair, k, including clean out, repair, , including clean out, repair,  including clean out, repair, including clean out, repair, ncluding clean out, repair, cluding clean out, repair, luding clean out, repair, uding clean out, repair, ding clean out, repair, ing clean out, repair, ng clean out, repair, g clean out, repair,  clean out, repair, clean out, repair, lean out, repair, ean out, repair, an out, repair, n out, repair,  out, repair, out, repair, ut, repair, t, repair, , repair,  repair, repair, epair, pair, air, ir, r, , replacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eplacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed placement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed lacement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed acement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed cement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ement, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ment, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ent, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed nt, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed t, regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed , regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed  regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed regrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed egrading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed grading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed rading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ading, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ding, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ing, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ng, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed g, reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed , reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed  reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed reseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eseeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed seeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eeding, remulching, and renetting must be performed eding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ding, remulching, and renetting must be performed ing, remulching, and renetting must be performed ng, remulching, and renetting must be performed g, remulching, and renetting must be performed , remulching, and renetting must be performed  remulching, and renetting must be performed remulching, and renetting must be performed emulching, and renetting must be performed mulching, and renetting must be performed ulching, and renetting must be performed lching, and renetting must be performed ching, and renetting must be performed hing, and renetting must be performed ing, and renetting must be performed ng, and renetting must be performed g, and renetting must be performed , and renetting must be performed  and renetting must be performed and renetting must be performed nd renetting must be performed d renetting must be performed  renetting must be performed renetting must be performed enetting must be performed netting must be performed etting must be performed tting must be performed ting must be performed ing must be performed ng must be performed g must be performed  must be performed must be performed ust be performed st be performed t be performed  be performed be performed e performed  performed performed erformed rformed formed ormed rmed med ed d immediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, mmediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, mediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ediately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, diately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, iately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ately. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, tely. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ely. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ly. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, y. If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, . If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, If erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, f erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, erosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, rosion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, osion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, sion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ion and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, on and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, n and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, and sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, nd sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, d sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, sediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ediment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, diment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, iment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ment control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ent control BMPs fail to perform as expected, nt control BMPs fail to perform as expected, t control BMPs fail to perform as expected,  control BMPs fail to perform as expected, control BMPs fail to perform as expected, ontrol BMPs fail to perform as expected, ntrol BMPs fail to perform as expected, trol BMPs fail to perform as expected, rol BMPs fail to perform as expected, ol BMPs fail to perform as expected, l BMPs fail to perform as expected,  BMPs fail to perform as expected, BMPs fail to perform as expected, MPs fail to perform as expected, Ps fail to perform as expected, s fail to perform as expected,  fail to perform as expected, fail to perform as expected, ail to perform as expected, il to perform as expected, l to perform as expected,  to perform as expected, to perform as expected, o perform as expected,  perform as expected, perform as expected, erform as expected, rform as expected, form as expected, orm as expected, rm as expected, m as expected,  as expected, as expected, s expected,  expected, expected, xpected, pected, ected, cted, ted, ed, d, , replacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. eplacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. placement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. lacement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. acement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. cement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ement BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ment BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. ent BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. nt BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. t BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required.  BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. BMPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. MPs, or modifications of those installed will be required. Ps, or modifications of those installed will be required. s, or modifications of those installed will be required. , or modifications of those installed will be required.  or modifications of those installed will be required. or modifications of those installed will be required. r modifications of those installed will be required.  modifications of those installed will be required. modifications of those installed will be required. odifications of those installed will be required. difications of those installed will be required. ifications of those installed will be required. fications of those installed will be required. ications of those installed will be required. cations of those installed will be required. ations of those installed will be required. tions of those installed will be required. ions of those installed will be required. ons of those installed will be required. ns of those installed will be required. s of those installed will be required.  of those installed will be required. of those installed will be required. f those installed will be required.  those installed will be required. those installed will be required. hose installed will be required. ose installed will be required. se installed will be required. e installed will be required.  installed will be required. installed will be required. nstalled will be required. stalled will be required. talled will be required. alled will be required. lled will be required. led will be required. ed will be required. d will be required.  will be required. will be required. ill be required. ll be required. l be required.  be required. be required. e required.  required. required. equired. quired. uired. ired. red. ed. d. . 18. Any sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland Any sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ny sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland y sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland sediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ediment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland diment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland iment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ment removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ent removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland nt removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland t removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland removed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland emoved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland moved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland oved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ved from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland ed from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland d from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland from BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland rom BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland om BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland m BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland  BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland BMPs during construction shall be returned to upland MPs during construction shall be returned to upland Ps during construction shall be returned to upland s during construction shall be returned to upland  during construction shall be returned to upland during construction shall be returned to upland uring construction shall be returned to upland ring construction shall be returned to upland ing construction shall be returned to upland ng construction shall be returned to upland g construction shall be returned to upland  construction shall be returned to upland construction shall be returned to upland onstruction shall be returned to upland nstruction shall be returned to upland struction shall be returned to upland truction shall be returned to upland ruction shall be returned to upland uction shall be returned to upland ction shall be returned to upland tion shall be returned to upland ion shall be returned to upland on shall be returned to upland n shall be returned to upland  shall be returned to upland shall be returned to upland hall be returned to upland all be returned to upland ll be returned to upland l be returned to upland  be returned to upland be returned to upland e returned to upland  returned to upland returned to upland eturned to upland turned to upland urned to upland rned to upland ned to upland ed to upland d to upland  to upland to upland o upland  upland upland pland land and nd d areas on site and incorporated into site grading. 19. Upon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all Upon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all pon completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all on completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all n completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all completion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ompletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all mpletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all pletion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all letion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all etion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all tion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ion of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all on of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all n of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all f all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all ll earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all l earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all earth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all arth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all rth disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all th disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all h disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all  disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all disturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all isturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all sturbance activities and permanent stabilization of all turbance activities and permanent stabilization of all urbance activities and permanent stabilization of all rbance activities and permanent stabilization of all bance activities and permanent stabilization of all ance activities and permanent stabilization of all nce activities and permanent stabilization of all ce activities and permanent stabilization of all e activities and permanent stabilization of all  activities and permanent stabilization of all activities and permanent stabilization of all ctivities and permanent stabilization of all tivities and permanent stabilization of all ivities and permanent stabilization of all vities and permanent stabilization of all ities and permanent stabilization of all ties and permanent stabilization of all ies and permanent stabilization of all es and permanent stabilization of all s and permanent stabilization of all  and permanent stabilization of all and permanent stabilization of all nd permanent stabilization of all d permanent stabilization of all  permanent stabilization of all permanent stabilization of all ermanent stabilization of all rmanent stabilization of all manent stabilization of all anent stabilization of all nent stabilization of all ent stabilization of all nt stabilization of all t stabilization of all  stabilization of all stabilization of all tabilization of all abilization of all bilization of all ilization of all lization of all ization of all zation of all ation of all tion of all ion of all on of all n of all  of all of all f all  all all ll l disturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final isturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final sturbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final turbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final urbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final rbed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final bed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final ed areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final d areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final areas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final reas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final eas, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final as, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final s, the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final , the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final the Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final he Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final e Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final Owner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final wner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final ner and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final er and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final r and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final and or Contractor shall contact the City for a final nd or Contractor shall contact the City for a final d or Contractor shall contact the City for a final  or Contractor shall contact the City for a final or Contractor shall contact the City for a final r Contractor shall contact the City for a final  Contractor shall contact the City for a final Contractor shall contact the City for a final ontractor shall contact the City for a final ntractor shall contact the City for a final tractor shall contact the City for a final ractor shall contact the City for a final actor shall contact the City for a final ctor shall contact the City for a final tor shall contact the City for a final or shall contact the City for a final r shall contact the City for a final  shall contact the City for a final shall contact the City for a final hall contact the City for a final all contact the City for a final ll contact the City for a final l contact the City for a final  contact the City for a final contact the City for a final ontact the City for a final ntact the City for a final tact the City for a final act the City for a final ct the City for a final t the City for a final  the City for a final the City for a final he City for a final e City for a final  City for a final City for a final ity for a final ty for a final y for a final  for a final for a final or a final r a final  a final a final  final final inal nal al l inspection.



120

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230513

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-12-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
DDB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3, BOARDWALK COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6401 NW BARRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KANSAS CITY, PLATTE COUNTY, MISSOURI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/12/23



121



122



123



42x26 42x26

42
x2

6

24x26

24x26

24
"x
60

"

4T
IE
RS

24
"x
60

"

4T
IE
RS

24
"x
48

"

4T
IE
RS

24
"x
48

"

4T
IE
RS

24"x48"

4TIERS

24"x48"

4TIERS

24"x48"

4TIERS

24"x48"

4TIERS

24"x48"

4TIERS

24
"x
48

"

4T
IE
RS

24"x36"

4TIERS

24
"x
60

"

4T
IE
RS

3
A6.2

1
A6.2

2
A6.2

SCALE:   1/4"=1'-0"

EQUIPMENT PLAN
A1
1

EQUIPMENT PLAN

NORTH

1/4"=1'-0"

A1

cdt KAW

01 2124 VE UPDATED DRAWINGS02-07-2023

WARMAN ARCHITECTURE+DESIGN
1735 SWIFT AVE.

NORTH KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64116
 V. 816.474.2233     F. 816.474.1051

Location

Project No. Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

Date

Checked

Drawing Title

Store Type

Project

Description

DRAWINGS REVISED AS PER DESIGN BULLETIN

No. Date

Description

Description

REVISIONS

No. Date

ISSUE TABLE

No. (mm/dd/yy)
Date

THIS DRAWING IS OWNED BY OR LICENSED FOR USE BY POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN ( OR ITS AFFILIATED OR RELATED COMPANIES) AND MAY NOT BE
REPRODUCED, USED, DOWNLOADED, DISSEMINATED, PUBLISHED, OR
TRANSFERRED IN ANY FORM OR BY ANY MEANS, EXCEPT WITH THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN . COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL LAW SUBJECT TO CRIMINAL AND
CIVIL PENALTIES.

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON THE
PROJECT AND TO REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN  REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. THESE DRAWINGS
ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES UNLESS INDICATED BY
POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN  AS "ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION".

AUGUST 01, 2023

01 2124 PROTOTYPE DOCUMENTS10-27-21

Company Logo

5961-23

Seal

6821 Johnson Dr
Mission, KS

ATYPICAL
(BASED ON US  2124 PROTOTYPE)

124



T/O WINDOWS 9'-0"

T/O PARAPET

T/O TOWER

U/S CANOPY9'-0"

SLIDESLIDE

T/O CONC. SLAB0'-0"

9'-0"
T/O CMU
WALL

SLIDESLIDE

Drive Thru

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

PREFINISHED METAL COPING TO
MATCH PRECAST SILL STONE

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK
(COLOR: NAPA VALLEY)

EIFS (COLOR TO BE WHITE)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PRE-FABRICATED METAL BAND
(COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

METAL DOOR, PAINTED (COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT SURFACE)

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

PREFINISHED STOREFRONT
DOOR (COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PREFINISHED STOREFRONT
SYSTEM (COLOR TO BE BLACK)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK
(COLOR: NAPA VALLEY)

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK
(COLOR: NAPA VALLEY)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE TEAL)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK
(COLOR: NAPA VALLEY)

PREFINISHED METAL COPING TO
MATCH PRECAST SILL STONE

EIFS (COLOR TO BE WHITE)

NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD FIBER CEMENT
PANELS (COLOR TO BE CEDAR)

PREFINISHED DRIVE-THRU
WINDOW (COLOR TO BE BLACK)

PREFINISHED DRIVE-THRU
WINDOW (COLOR TO BE BLACK)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PRE-FABRICATED METAL BAND
(COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

PREFINISHED METAL COPING TO
MATCH PRECAST SILL STONE

EIFS (COLOR TO BE WHITE)

PREFINISHED BREAK METAL,
TYP. (COLOR TO BE TEAL)

27'- 4"

26'-0"T/O PARAPET

T/O TOWER27'- 4"

26'-0"

LOUISIANA KITCHEN

PATIO DINING ALCOVE PATIO DINING ALCOVE

16" X 16" OPENING IN
SCREEN WALL ( TYP.)

T/O PARAPET

T/O TOWER27'- 4"

26'-0"

0'-0"
T/O CONC.
SLAB

NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD
FIBER CEMENT PANELS
(COLOR TO BE CEDAR)

NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD
FIBER CEMENT PANELS
(COLOR TO BE CEDAR)

SOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICK

FABRIC AWNING, COLOR
TO MATCH TEAL CANOPY

EIFS BAND (COLOR TO MATCH
NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD )

SOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICK

GLASS SPANDREL PANELS
WITH OPAQUE FILM

RAISED PLANTERRAISED PLANTERRAISED PLANTER RAISED PLANTER

SOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICK

SOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICK

EIFS BAND (COLOR TO BE WHITE)

2'
-2

"

6'
-2

" 7'
-2

"

4'
-2

"

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

EIFS BAND (COLOR TO MATCH
NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD )

2
A6.2

1/4"=1'-0"

A5.0

cdt

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

KAW

01 2124 VE UPDATED DRAWINGS02-07-2023

WARMAN ARCHITECTURE+DESIGN
1735 SWIFT AVE.

NORTH KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64116
 V. 816.474.2233     F. 816.474.1051

Location

Project No. Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

Date

Checked

Drawing Title

Store Type

Project

Description

DRAWINGS REVISED AS PER DESIGN BULLETIN

No. Date

Description

Description

REVISIONS

No. Date

ISSUE TABLE

No. (mm/dd/yy)
Date

THIS DRAWING IS OWNED BY OR LICENSED FOR USE BY POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN ( OR ITS AFFILIATED OR RELATED COMPANIES) AND MAY NOT BE
REPRODUCED, USED, DOWNLOADED, DISSEMINATED, PUBLISHED, OR
TRANSFERRED IN ANY FORM OR BY ANY MEANS, EXCEPT WITH THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN . COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL LAW SUBJECT TO CRIMINAL AND
CIVIL PENALTIES.

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON THE
PROJECT AND TO REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN  REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. THESE DRAWINGS
ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES UNLESS INDICATED BY
POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN  AS "ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION".

AUGUST 01, 2023

01 2124 PROTOTYPE DOCUMENTS10-27-21

Company Logo

5961-23

Seal

6821 Johnson Dr
Mission, KS

ATYPICAL
(BASED ON US  2124 PROTOTYPE)

NOTE
ALL SIGNAGE UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

NORTH ELEVATION1
A5 SCALE:   1/4"=1' - 0"

EAST ELEVATION2
A5 SCALE:   1/4"=1' - 0"

125



DROP ROD

PAINTED STEEL GATE
POST TYPICAL (PAINT
SAFETY YELLOW)

GATE PULLS

PREFINISHED 1X4 PLASTIC
LUMBER (WEATHERED
WOOD) FRAME

DOUBLE GATES WITH
PREFINISHED 1X6 PLASTIC
LUMBER (WEATHERED
WOOD)  SECURE TO
STEEL FRAME WITH
THRU-BOLTED CARRIAGE
BOLTS - 4 PER BOARD.

8" SPLIT FACE &
PAINTED COLOR:
"MOCHA BROWN"

CONCRETE CAP
ROUNDED

8'
-6

"

8'
-0

"

TRASH ENCLOSURE (GATE/FRONT) TRASH ENCLOSURE (SIDE)
6" DIA., CONC. FILLED PIPE BOLLARD

4'
-0

"

EIFS (COLOR TO BE WHITE)PREFINISHED METAL COPING TO
MATCH PRECAST SILL STONE

NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD
FIBER CEMENT PANELS
(COLOR TO BE CEDAR)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PRE-FABRICATED METAL
BAND (COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK
(COLOR: NAPA VALLEY)

PREFINISHED METAL COPING TO
MATCH PRECAST SILL STONE

PRECAST SILL STONE
(COLOR TO BE GRAY)

PREFINISHED STOREFRONT
DOOR (COLOR TO BE ORANGE)

PREFINISHED STOREFRONT
SYSTEM (COLOR TO BE BLACK)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE TEAL)

PREFINISHED BREAK METAL,
TYP. (COLOR TO BE TEAL)

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPY
(COLOR TO BE TEAL)

WIRE MESH GATE
(COLOR TO BE BLACK)

T/O PARAPET 26'-0"

0'-0"T/O CONC. SLAB

9'-0"
@ T.O. CMU WALL

U/S CANOPYU/S CANOPY9'-0"

T/O TOWER27'- 4"

9'-0"

T/O PARAPET

T/O TOWER27'- 4"

26'-0"

0'-0"

T/O WINDOWS

U/S OF DECK
@ HIGH POINT

20'-6"LOUISIANA KITCHEN

NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD
FIBER CEMENT PANELS
(COLOR TO BE CEDAR)

EIFS BAND (COLOR
TO BE WHITE)

SOLDIER COURSE BAND,
COLOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FACE BRICK

SOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR
TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICKSOLDIER COURSE BAND, COLOR

TO MATCH ADJACENT FACE BRICK

GLASS SPANDREL PANELS
WITH OPAQUE FILM

T/O CONC.
SLAB

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

FACE BRICK, ACME BRICK (COLOR:
NAPA VALLEY TO BE PAINTED WHITE)

FACE BRICK, ACME
BRICK (COLOR: NAPA
VALLEY TO BE
PAINTED WHITE)

EIFS BAND (COLOR TO MATCH
NICHIHA VINTAGE WOOD )

FABRIC AWNING, COLOR
TO MATCH TEAL CANOPY

1
A6.2

3
A6.2

1/4"=1'-0"

A5.1

cdt

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

KAW

01 2124 VE UPDATED DRAWINGS02-07-2023

WARMAN ARCHITECTURE+DESIGN
1735 SWIFT AVE.

NORTH KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64116
 V. 816.474.2233     F. 816.474.1051

Location

Project No. Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

Date

Checked

Drawing Title

Store Type

Project

Description

DRAWINGS REVISED AS PER DESIGN BULLETIN

No. Date

Description

Description

REVISIONS

No. Date

ISSUE TABLE

No. (mm/dd/yy)
Date

THIS DRAWING IS OWNED BY OR LICENSED FOR USE BY POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN ( OR ITS AFFILIATED OR RELATED COMPANIES) AND MAY NOT BE
REPRODUCED, USED, DOWNLOADED, DISSEMINATED, PUBLISHED, OR
TRANSFERRED IN ANY FORM OR BY ANY MEANS, EXCEPT WITH THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN . COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL LAW SUBJECT TO CRIMINAL AND
CIVIL PENALTIES.

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON THE
PROJECT AND TO REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN  REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. THESE DRAWINGS
ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES UNLESS INDICATED BY
POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN  AS "ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION".

AUGUST 01, 2023

01 2124 PROTOTYPE DOCUMENTS10-27-21

Company Logo

5961-23

Seal

6821 Johnson Dr
Mission, KS

ATYPICAL
(BASED ON US  2124 PROTOTYPE)

NOTE
ALL SIGNAGE UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

SCALE:   3/8" = 1'-0"

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE ELEVATIONS

SOUTH ELEVATION1
A5.1 SCALE:   1/4"=1' - 0"

WEST ELEVATION2
A5.1 SCALE:   1/4"=1' - 0"

3
A5.1

126



9'
-4

"

T/O CONC. SLAB0' - 0"

PUBLIC
AREA

101

EXTERIOR

U/S OF TRUSS17'-11"

T/O PARAPET FRAMING26'-0"

1
A7

5'
-0

"

PREFINISHED METAL FLASHING REFER
TO EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE ON
SHEET A5-A5.1 FOR COLOR AND TYPE.

FLUID APPLIED MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER (STO GOLD
COAT). ALL TRANSITIONS AT FOUNDATION, ROUGH
OPENINGS, SHEATHING JOINTS, FLASHINGS, WALL
PENETRATIONS AND PARAPETS TO BE SEALED
PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF FLUID APPLIED
MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER PER MANUFACTURER'S
DETAILS. REFER TO SPECS ON SP3.

UNFACED BATT INSULATION (R-20) FROM
U/S OF DECK TO 18" MIN. ABOVE DECK.

CONTINUOUS BLOCKING. REFER TO
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

PLYWOOD SHEATHING.

2X6 FIRE STOP AT CEILING (TYP.)
INSTALL ADDITIONAL FIRE
STOPPING AT 10'-0" (MAX.)
INTERVALS IN CONCEALED SPACES.

EX5

NOTE:
1. PROVIDE CAULKING/ GYPSUM BOARD,

PATCH AS REQUIRED FOR SIGNAGE
ELECTRICAL LINES. SITE VERIFY.

2. ALL EXPOSED FOUNDATION TO BE
PARGED AND FREE OF IMPERFECTIONS

FSK FOIL FACED FLAME SPREAD 25 BATT INSULATION
IN ALL EXPOSED AREA (R-20) SMOKE DEVELOPMENT
450 FROM 10'-0" TO U/S OF DECK

DASHED LINE INDICATES 6 mil
POLY VAPOR RETARDER

1 LAYER OF 12" GYPSUM
WALL BOARD (U/S OF DECK).

SIDE WALK AND CURB TO
SUIT SITE PLAN.

VERTICAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION TO
TOP OF FOUNDATION FOOTING
CONTINUOUS AROUND PERIMETER
OF EXTERIOR FOUNDATION WALLS.

HORIZONTAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION
(2'-0" MIN.) CONTINUOUS AROUND
PERIMETER OF FLOOR SLAB.

10 MIL VAPOR RETARDER

TPO ROOF MEMBRANE ON
BACK OF PARAPET WALL (TYP.)

FACE BRICK. REFER TO EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR

STOREFRONT ENTRANCE AND
GLAZING. REFER TO EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS.

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPIES SUPPLY
AND INSTALL BY SIGN COMPANY. G.C.
TO SUPPLY AND INSTALL IN WALL
BLOCKING SUPPORT.

2
A7

3
A7

SIM.

REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING DETAILS (TYP.).

STOREFRONT WINDOW AND GLAZING.
REFER TO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS.

2x4 @ 16" OC

CANVAS AWNING

1
2" PLYWOOD (TYP)

TAPE LIGHT

REFER TO SHEET A4 FOR
ROOF CONSTRUCTION

20'-6" U/S OF DECK
@ HIGH POINT

ACCESS PANEL

9'
-4

"

T/O CONC. SLAB0' - 0"

PUBLIC
AREA

101

EXTERIOR

U/S OF DECKVARIES

U/S OF TRUSS17'-11"

T/O PARAPET FRAMING26'-0"

1
A7

VA
R

IE
S

PREFINISHED METAL FLASHING REFER
TO EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE ON
SHEET A5-A5.1 FOR COLOR AND TYPE.

FLUID APPLIED MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER (STO GOLD
COAT). ALL TRANSITIONS AT FOUNDATION, ROUGH
OPENINGS, SHEATHING JOINTS, FLASHINGS, WALL
PENETRATIONS AND PARAPETS TO BE SEALED
PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF FLUID APPLIED
MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER PER MANUFACTURER'S
DETAILS. REFER TO SPECS ON SP3.

UNFACED BATT INSULATION (R-20) FROM
U/S OF DECK TO 18" MIN. ABOVE DECK.

CONTINUOUS BLOCKING. REFER TO
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

PLYWOOD SHEATHING.

2X6 FIRE STOP AT CEILING (TYP.)
INSTALL ADDITIONAL FIRE
STOPPING AT 10'-0" (MAX.)
INTERVALS IN CONCEALED SPACES.

EX5

NOTE:
1. PROVIDE CAULKING/ GYPSUM BOARD,

PATCH AS REQUIRED FOR SIGNAGE
ELECTRICAL LINES. SITE VERIFY.

2. ALL EXPOSED FOUNDATION TO BE
PARGED AND FREE OF IMPERFECTIONS

FSK FOIL FACED FLAME SPREAD 25 BATT INSULATION
IN ALL EXPOSED AREA (R-20) SMOKE DEVELOPMENT
450 FROM 10'-0" TO U/S OF DECK

DASHED LINE INDICATES 6 mil
POLY VAPOR RETARDER

1 LAYER OF 12" GYPSUM
WALL BOARD (U/S OF DECK).

SIDE WALK AND CURB TO
SUIT SITE PLAN.

VERTICAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION TO
TOP OF FOUNDATION FOOTING
CONTINUOUS AROUND PERIMETER
OF EXTERIOR FOUNDATION WALLS.

HORIZONTAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION
(2'-0" MIN.) CONTINUOUS AROUND
PERIMETER OF FLOOR SLAB.

10 MIL VAPOR RETARDER

TPO ROOF MEMBRANE ON
BACK OF PARAPET WALL (TYP.)

REFER TO SHEET A4 FOR
ROOF CONSTRUCTION

FACE BRICK. REFER TO EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR

STOREFRONT ENTRANCE AND
GLAZING. REFER TO EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS.

PRE-FABRICATED CANOPIES SUPPLY
AND INSTALL BY SIGN COMPANY. G.C.
TO SUPPLY AND INSTALL IN WALL
BLOCKING SUPPORT.

2
A7

3
A7

SIM.

REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING DETAILS (TYP.).

STOREFRONT WINDOW AND GLAZING.
REFER TO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS.

2x4 @ 16" OC

CANVAS AWNING

1
2" PLYWOOD (TYP)

TAPE LIGHT

ACCESS PANEL

PREP
106

5
A7

FLUID APPLIED MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER (STO GOLD
COAT). ALL TRANSITIONS AT FOUNDATION, ROUGH
OPENINGS, SHEATHING JOINTS, FLASHINGS, WALL
PENETRATIONS AND PARAPETS TO BE SEALED
PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF FLUID APPLIED
MEMBRANE AIR BARRIER PER MANUFACTURER'S
DETAILS. REFER TO SPECS ON SP3.

UNFACED BATT INSULATION (R-20) FROM
U/S OF DECK TO 18" MIN. ABOVE DECK.

PLYWOOD SHEATHING.

2X6 FIRE STOP AT CEILING (TYP.) INSTALL
ADDITIONAL FIRE STOPPING AT 10'-0" (MAX.)
INTERVALS IN CONCEALED SPACES.

EX2

DASHED LINE INDICATES 6 mil
POLY VAPOR RETARDER

1 LAYER OF 12" GYPSUM WALL
BOARD (U/S OF DECK).

1 LAYER OF 12" CEMENT BOARD
(EXTEND 12" A.F.F.).

1'
-0

"
TO

 O
F

C
EM

EN
T

BO
AR

D 10 MIL VAPOR
RETARDER

7
A7

2"x8" WOOD STUD @ 16" O.C.
REFER TO STRUCTURAL
DRAWINGS.

6
A7

VERTICAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION TO
TOP OF FOUNDATION FOOTING
CONTINUOUS AROUND PERIMETER
OF EXTERIOR FOUNDATION WALLS.

HORIZONTAL R-15 RIGID INSULATION
(2'-0" MIN.) CONTINUOUS AROUND
PERIMETER OF FLOOR SLAB.

6'
-4

"

DASHED LINE INDICATES 6 mil
POLY VAPOR RETARDER

REFER TO SHEET A4 FOR
ROOF CONSTRUCTION

T/O CONC. SLAB0' - 0"

U/S OF TRUSS17'-11"

T/O PARAPET FRAMING27'-4"

PREFINISHED METAL FLASHING REFER
TO EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE ON
SHEET A5-A5.1 FOR COLOR AND TYPE.

20'-6" U/S OF DECK
@ HIGH POINT

9'
-4

"

TPO ROOF MEMBRANE ON
BACK OF PARAPET WALL (TYP.)

B/O WATER TABLE2' - 0"

REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
FOUNDATION WALL AND FOOTING DETAILS (TYP.).

SIDE WALK AND CURB TO
SUIT SITE PLAN.

EXTERIOR

NOTE:
1. PROVIDE CAULKING/ GYPSUM BOARD,

PATCH AS REQUIRED FOR SIGNAGE
ELECTRICAL LINES. SITE VERIFY.

2. ALL EXPOSED FOUNDATION TO BE
PARGED AND FREE OF IMPERFECTIONS

CONTINUOUS BLOCKING. REFER TO
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS.

FACE BRICK. REFER TO EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR

B/O SOLDIER COURSE7'-1 38"

B/O SOLDIER COURSE16'-5 38"

A6.2SCALE:   1/2" = 1'-0"A6.2
1

KAW

01 2124 VE UPDATED DRAWINGS02-07-2023

WARMAN ARCHITECTURE+DESIGN
1735 SWIFT AVE.

NORTH KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64116
 V. 816.474.2233     F. 816.474.1051

Location

Project No. Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

Date

Checked

Drawing Title

Store Type

Project

Description

DRAWINGS REVISED AS PER DESIGN BULLETIN

No. Date

Description

Description

REVISIONS

No. Date

ISSUE TABLE

No. (mm/dd/yy)
Date

THIS DRAWING IS OWNED BY OR LICENSED FOR USE BY POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN ( OR ITS AFFILIATED OR RELATED COMPANIES) AND MAY NOT BE
REPRODUCED, USED, DOWNLOADED, DISSEMINATED, PUBLISHED, OR
TRANSFERRED IN ANY FORM OR BY ANY MEANS, EXCEPT WITH THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN . COPYRIGHT
INFRINGEMENT IS A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL LAW SUBJECT TO CRIMINAL AND
CIVIL PENALTIES.

THE CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON THE
PROJECT AND TO REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE POPEYES LOUISIANA
KITCHEN  REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. THESE DRAWINGS
ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES UNLESS INDICATED BY
POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN  AS "ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION".

AUGUST 01, 2023

01 2124 PROTOTYPE DOCUMENTS10-27-21

Company Logo

5961-23

Seal

6821 Johnson Dr
Mission, KS

ATYPICAL
(BASED ON US  2124 PROTOTYPE)

SCALE:   1/2" = 1'-0"A6.2
2

WALL SECTIONS

AS NOTED

XX

SCALE:   1/2" = 1'-0"A6.2
3 WALL SECTIONWALL SECTIONWALL SECTION

127



128



129



Copyright © 2021 Allen Industries, Inc. 
This is an original, unpublished drawing, created by Allen 
Industries, Inc. This drawing is submitted to you in confidence 
for your use solely in  connection with the project being planned 
for you by Allen Industries, Inc.  and is not to be shown to 
anyone outside your organization, nor used, reproduced, 
copied or exhibited in any fashion whatsoever. The designs 
shown on the drawing (except for any registered trademarks 
that may belong to a client of Allen Industries, Inc.) remain the 
property of Allen Industries, Inc.

Client:

Address:

Issue Date:

05/23/22

File Name:

Page #:

Sales:

House
Design:

ECW
PM:

-

Date Description#
1
2
3
4
5
6

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

Initial
-
-
-
-
-
-

.,

POPEYES
#

Client Review Status

Approval Date:Client Signature:

Allen Industries, Inc. requires that an approved 
drawing be obtained from the client prior to any 
production release or production release revision.Popeyes_2100 Series Signage Reference Book

14 of 21

1
0
'-
6
" 

O
A

H

1
0
'-
0
 1

/2
"

7 1/2"

6
'-
0

"

3mm ACM PTM Painted Teal

7'-0"

.080" Alum. Panel
Painted Willow

Drive Thru Order Canopy
Proposed

Front (Entrance) View
Scale: 1/2"=1'-0"

4"

1 1/2"
1'-0"

7'-0"

Top View
Scale: 3/8"=1'-0"

Bottom View
Scale: 3/8"=1'-0"

3
'-
0
"

7 1/2"

3'-6"

7'-0"

1'-2 1/2"5"

3
'-
0
"

1
'-3

"
5
"

3
'-6

"

6
'-0

"

Light Fixture (Perimeter Lit)

General Specifications:

Canopy: Fabricated Aluminum & ACM Structure w/ Steel Tube Support.

Electrical:  Actual Number of Circuits to be Determined by Licensed Electrical Contractor
 (1) 20 AMP Circuit, 120 Volts - All Wiring Shall be 12 GA

 Quantity: (1) ONE

Paint Specifications

All paint finishes to be Satin 
unless otherwise specified

BM CC-542 Willow

Paint to Match
Pantone 326C - Teal

8"

6'-7 1/2"

6
"

1
0
'-8

" to
 G

ra
d
e

6'-0"

1
0
'-
6
" 

O
A

H

Side View
Scale: 1/2"=1'-0"

Microphone

Speaker
(1" Ø Powerout
Hole Req’d)

8"

7 1/8"

4 5/8"

2
'-
0
 1

/4
"

2" x 4" x 1/8" Wall
Aluminum Rectangle
Painted Teal
(exposed sides)

Warranty Information:
1.) 10 Year Warranty on GE 7100K LED Lighting

2.) 5 Year Warranty on GE Power Supplies

6
"

2" x 4" 4mm Wood Grain ACM Wrap

2" x 4" x 1/8" Alum. Tube Frame

POP20-SB
Microphone/Speaker Box

3
'-0

"
11

"

4"

6" x 6" x 1/4" Steel Tube

.250" Stub Pipe
Insert Baffle

4" Ø Steel Pipe

1/2" Ø Nut Welded
to Tube for Tension Bolt

2" x 4" x 1/8" Alum. Tube Frame
w/ 2" x 4" ACM Wrap

DESIGN INTENT ONLY
Engineering Required to 

Determine Actual Production 
& Installation Requirements

Color Specifications

Reynobond Duragloss
5000 French Walnut

Insert Item Code

Electric Sign
Complies with

UL48

130



EIFS - STO, MEDIUM TEXTUREVINTAGEWOOD - CEDAR

WHITE BLUFFNAPA VALLEY

131



132



 

 
 

  1 

 
 
October 30, 2023 
 
 
Re: Popeye’s Louisiana Kitchen 

Stormwater Memo 
 PEI #230238 
 
 
The existing and proposed impervious areas were analyzed to determine if post 
development BMPs and detention are required for the proposed Popeye’s Louisiana 
Kitchen. 
 
 
Existing Site 
The existing 21,198 SF (0.49 Ac.) site consists of a paved parking lot and building. The 
site has 3 drainage areas.  
 

• The western and southern parking lot drain southwesterly directly to Broadmoor 
Street. See Discharge Point #1 on Exhibit B1. 

• The northeast portion of the site surface drains northerly directly to Johnson Drive. 
See Discharge Point #2 on Exhibit B1. 

• The southern portion of the site (existing private dive) drains early directly off the 
site. See Discharge Point #3 on Exhibit B1. 

 
The existing site consists of 17,891 SF (0.41 acres) of impervious area. See exhibits A1 
and B1 for reference. 
 
Proposed Site 
The proposed project will remove the existing building and a portion of the existing parking 
lot. A new Popeye’s Louisiana Kitchen will be constructed. The proposed site will maintain 
the existing drainage patterns with negligible shifts in watershed (see Exhibit B2).  
 
The proposed site consists of 16,780 SF (0.39 acres) of impervious area. See exhibits A2 
and B2 reference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133



 
 

  2 

Conclusion 
The proposed site results in a decrease in impervious area of 1,111 SF.  
 
Section 500.210 of the Mission Kansas municipal code has adopted APWA for regulating 
stormwater management.  Stormwater detention is not required per Section 5601.3 of the 
Kansas City Metropolitan Chapter APWA Standard Specifications & Design Criteria, which 
states that any remodeling, repair, replacement, or other improvements to any existing 
structure or facility and appurtenances that does not result an increase area of impervious 
surface on the site is exempt of detention requirements. 
  
Section 500.215 of the Mission Kansas municipal code has adopted the MARC BMP 
manual for purposes of stormwater quality management.  Stormwater treatment BMP’s 
are not required for this site per Section 4.2.1 of the MARC BMP manual, which states 
that a previously developed site that maintains or reduces the percent impervious area, 
would not meet the definition of a development as stated in APWA 5601.3 and would not 
require additional stormwater BMP’s.   
 
 
Please feel free to contact me at (913) 393-1155 if you require additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Phelps Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Daniel Finn, P.E. 
 

  

10/30/2023

134



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

135

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM#5009

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TSLP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENU BOARD CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCOM CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGITAL METAL  ORDER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE POST AND BAR ON CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6821 1-STORY BRICK & GLASS BUILDING F.F.=1018.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU PICKUP WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD & METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BUMPER BLOCK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-11-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-11-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BOUNDARY FOR LOS VALUE RATING CALCULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS = 17,891 S.F. (0.41 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE = 3,307 S.F. (0.08 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL LOT = 21,198 S.F. (0.49 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE



PULL TO
HERE

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

136

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM#5009

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TSLP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/O

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-11-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BOUNDARY FOR LOS VALUE RATING CALCULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONDITIONS MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS = 16,780 S.F. (0.39 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE = 4,418 S.F. (0.10 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL LOT = 21,198 S.F. (0.49 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 63RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 55TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
METCALF AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NALL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMAR AVENUE



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

137

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENU BOARD CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCOM CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIGITAL METAL  ORDER BOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE POST AND BAR ON CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6821 1-STORY BRICK & GLASS BUILDING F.F.=1018.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU PICKUP WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD & METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BUMPER BLOCK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-11-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRAINAGE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.10 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.29 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.10 Ac.



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

138

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CONC. CURB/GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ASPH. DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION IN  BK. 201906,  PG. 008236 (#18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 CORNERSTONE COMMONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...2653.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC R/W-ASPH. PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED FOR HWY. IN BK. 347, PG. 137 (#10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY ESMT FOR ROAD IN BK. 111 MISC., PG. 674 (#12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. IN COND. CASE NO. 41765 IN BK. 187, PG. 554 (#13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 201, PG. 651 (#14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 276 (#15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERM. ESMT. AND R/W IN BK. 1799, PG. 278 (#16) QUIT CLAIM DEED IN BK. 2038, PG. 207 (#17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE SW 1/4, SEC. 8-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: EVC MISSION, LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°53'00"E...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°07'00"E...180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...125.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°07'00"W...153.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°12'57"W(D)N89°53'00"E...1.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...15.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'29"W(D)N89°43'56"E...22.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°47'03"E(D)N0°07'00"W...10.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF BROADMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
  OF JOHNSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 1-STORY BUILDING 2,354 S.F. 24 SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE = 1019.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°53'00"W...101.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
App.

AutoCAD SHX Text
By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
230238

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-11-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
AEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPEYE'S LOUISIANA KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
6821 JOHNSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION, KANSAS 66202

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION KANSAS   LAND SURVEYING - LS-82 ENGINEERING - E-391 CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION MISSOURI LAND SURVEYING-2007001128 ENGINEERING-2007005058

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY NOTES: VISUAL INDICATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE AS SHOWN. UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN, AS FURNISHED BY THEIR LESSORS, ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD BE VERIFIED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CALL 811. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.10 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE POINT #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.28 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.11 Ac.



H

I
-

L

I

T

E

1

9

5

8

7 1/4"

4 1/2"

MTG.

CANOPY BACK

VIEW

4 1/2"4 1/2"

13 7/8"

14"

13 3/4"

13450 Monte Vista Avenue

Chino, California       91710

Telephone: (909) 465-1999

Toll Free: (800) 465-0211

Fax: (909) 465-0907

www.hilitemfg.com

Wattage Voltage

Finish
DEDICATED LED INFOMounting

Item Number

***Confidential and Proprietary. The information contained on this page is the sole property of Hi-Lite Mfg. Co., Inc. Any reproduction, redistribution, or use to profit

from in part or as a whole without prior written authorization of Hi-Lite Mfg. Co., Inc. is unlawful, against trade laws and will be prosecuted to the fullest extent.

JOB NAME:

TYPE:

QTY:

REV:

SCALE: DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET:

N.T.S. 10/24/2023

B.A.-D

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

120/277V

93-White (Interior/Exterior of Shade & Arm) 34W LED4 4000 Lumens, 4000KWall Mount

34W

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

H-HLPP644BL-LED4-WH

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

P

r

o

p

r

i

e

t

a

r

y

 

 

D

r

a

w

i

n

g

H

i

L

i

t

e

 

M

f

g

DARK SKY COMPLIANT

ETL Listed

Suitable for WET Location

Dimming ELV, Triac & 0/1-10v Dim

Standard. Triac Dim will only work at

120V139

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-LITE MFG. CO., INC.



Page 1/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

Catalog # : Project :

Date :Prepared By :

Mirada Small Area (MRS)
Outdoor LED Area Light

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

Construction
•  Rugged die-cast aluminum housing 

contains factory prewired driver and optical 
unit. Cast aluminum wiring access door 
located underneath.

• Fixtures are finished with LSI’s DuraGrip® 
polyester powder coat finishing process. 
The DuraGrip finish withstands extreme 
weather changes without cracking or 
peeling. Other standard LSI finishes 
available. Consult factory.

• Shipping weight: 27 lbs in carton.

Optical System
• State-of-the-Art one piece silicone optic 

sheet delivers industry leading optical 
control with an integrated gasket to provide 
IP66 rated seal.

• Proprietary silicone refractor optics provide 
exceptional coverage and uniformity in 
distribution types 2, 3, 5W, and FT.

• Silicone optical material does not yellow or 
crack with age and provides a typical light 
transmittance of 93%.

• Zero uplight.

• Available in 5000K, 4000K, and 3000K 
color temperatures per ANSI C78.377

• Minimum CRI of 70.

• Integral louver (IL) and integral half 
louver (IH) options available for enhanced 
backlight control.

Electrical

• High-performance driver features over-
voltage, under-voltage, short-circuit and 
over temperature protection.

• 0-10V dimming (10% - 100%) standard.

• Standard Universal Voltage (120-277 VAC) 
Input 50/60 Hz or optional High Voltage 
(347-480 VAC).

• L70 Calculated Life: >60k Hours

• Total harmonic distortion: <20%

• Operating temperature: -40°C to +50°C 
(-40°F to +122°F).

• Power factor: >.90

• Input power stays constant over life.

• Field replaceable 10kV surge protection 
device meets a minimum Category C Low 
operation (per ANSI/IEEE C62.41.2).

• High-efficacy LEDs mounted to metal-core 
circuit board to maximize heat dissipation

• Driver is fully encased in potting material 
for moisture resistance and complies with 
FCC standards. Driver and key electronic 
components can easily be accessed.

Controls 
• Optional integral passive infrared 

Bluetooth™ motion and photocell sensor. 
Fixtures operate independently and can 
be commissioned via iOS or Android 
configuration app.

• LSI’s AirLink™ wireless control system 
options reduce energy and maintenance 
costs while optimizing light quality 24/7.

Installation
• Designed to mount to square or round 

poles.

• A single fastener secures the hinged door, 
underneath the housing and provides 
quick & easy access to the electrical 
compartment.

• Included terminal block accepts up to 12 ga. 
wire.

• Utilizes LSI’s traditional B3 drill pattern. 

Warranty

• LSI luminaires carry a 5-year limited 
warranty. Refer to https://www.lsicorp.com/
resources/terms-conditions-warranty/ for 
more information.

Listings

• Listed to UL 1598 and UL 8750.

• Meets Buy American Act requirements.

• IDA compliant; with 3000K color 
temperature selection.

• Title 24 Compliant; see local ordinance for 
qualification information.

• Suitable for wet locations.

• IP66 rated Luminaire per IEC 60598-1.

• 3G rated for ANSI C136.31 high vibration 
applications are qualified.

• IK08 rated luminiare per IEC 66262 me-
chanical impact code

• DesignLights Consortium® Listings in 
progress.

OVERVIEW

Lumen Package 6,000 - 24,000

Wattage Range 41 - 196

Efficacy Range (LPW) 112 - 156

Fixture Weight lbs (kg) 20 (9.1)

QUICK LINKS

Ordering Guide Performance Photometrics Dimensions

140



Page 2/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

ORDERING GUIDE Back to Quick Links

TYPICAL ORDER EXAMPLE:    MRS   LED   18L   SIL   FT   UNV   DIM   40    70CRI   ALBCS1   BLK   IH

Prefix Light Source Lumen Package Lens Distribution Orientation2 Voltage Driver

MRS - Mirada Small Area 
Light

LED 6L - 6,000 lms
9L - 9,000 lms
12L - 12,000 lms
15L - 15,000 lms
18L - 18,000 lms
21L - 21,000 lms
24L - 24,000 lms

Custom Lumen Packages1

SIL - Silicone 2 - Type 2
3 - Type 3
5W - Type 5 Wide 
FT -  Forward Throw

(blank) - standard
L- Optics rotated left 90°
R - Optics rotated right 90°

UNV - Universal Voltage (120-277V)
HV - High Voltage (347-480V)

DIM - 0-10V Dimming (0-10%)

Color Temp Color Rendering Controls (Choose One) Finish Options

50 - 5,000  CCT
40 - 4,000  CCT
30 - 3,000  CCT

70CRI - 70 CRI (Blank) - None

Wireless Controls System 
ALSC - AirLink Synapse Control System
ALSCS2 - AirLink Synapse Control System with 12-20’ MH Motion Sensor        
ALSCS4 - AirLink Synapse Control System with 20-40’ MH Motion Sensor
ALBCS1 - AirLink Blue Wireless Motion & Photo Sensor Controller (8-24’ MH)
ALBCS2 - AirLink Blue Wireless Motion & Photo Sensor Controller (25-40’ MH)

Stand-Alone Controls
EXT - 0-10v Dimming leads extended to housing exterior
CR7P - 7 Pin Control Receptacle ANSI C136.41 3
IMSBT1 - Integral Bluetooth™ Motion and Photocell Sensor (8-24’ MH)4

IMSBT2 - Integral Bluetooth™ Motion and Photocell Sensor (25-40’ MH)4

BLK - Black
BRZ - Dark Bronze
GMG - Gun Metal Gray
GPT - Graphite
MSV - Metallic Silver
PLP - Platinum Plus
SVG - Satin Verde Green
WHT - White 

(Blank) - None

IH - Integral Half Louver (Moderate Spill 
Light Cutoff2

IL - Integral Louver (Sharp Spill Light 
Cutoff)2

Need more information?
Click here for our glossary

Have additional questions?
Call us at (800) 436-7800 

Accessory Ordering Information5

FOOTNOTES:
1. Custom lumen and wattage packages available, consult factory. Values are within industry standard tolerances but not DLC listed.
2. Not available on “Type 5W” distribution.
3. Control device or shorting cap must be ordered separately. See Accessory Ordering Information.
4. IMSBT is field configurable via the LSI app that can be downloaded from your smartphone’s native app store.
5. Accessories are shipped separately and field installed.
6. “CLR” denotes finish. See Finish options. 
7. Fusing must be located in hand hole of pole. See Fusing Accessory Guide for compatability.

CONTROLS ACCESSORIES MOUNTING ACCESSORIES

Description Order Number Description Order Number6

Twist Lock Photocell (120V) for use with CR7P 122514 Universal Mounting Bracket 684616CLR

Twist Lock Photocell (208-277) for use with CR7P 122515 Adjustable Slip Fitter (2" - 2 3/8" Tenon) 688138CLR

Twist Lock Photocell (347V) for use with CR7P 122516 Horizontal Slip Fitter (2" - 2 3/8" Tenon) 652761CLR

Twist Lock Photocell (480V) for use with CR7P 1225180 Quick Mount Pole Bracket (Square Pole) 687073CLR

AirLink 5 Pin Twist Lock Controller 661409 Quick Mount Pole Bracket (4-5" Round Pole) 689903CLR

AirLink 7 Pin Twist Lock Controller 661410 15 Tilt Quick Mount Pole Bracket (Square Pole) 688003CLR

Pole-Mounted Occupancy Sensor (24V) 663284CLR6 15 Tilt Quick Mount Pole Bracket (4-5" Round Pole) 689905CLR

Shorting Cap for use with CR7P 149328 Wall Mount Bracket 382132CLR

FUSING OPTIONS7

Description Order Number

Single Fusing (120V)

See Fusing
Accessory

Guide

Single Fusing (277V)

Double Fusing (208V, 240V)

Double Fusing (480V)

Double Fusing (347V)

SHIELDING & MISCELLANEOUS ACCESSORIES
Description Order Number

Field Install Integral Louver (Sharp Spill Light Cutoff) 690981

Field Install Integral Half Louver (Moderate Spill Light Cutoff) 743415

10’ Linear Bird Spike Kit (2’ Recommended per Luminaire) 751632

SHIELDING OPTIONS
Mirada Small

See Shielding 
Guide

Mirada Medium

Mirada Large

Zone Medium

Zone Large

Slice Medium

141

https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/fusing-accessories-guide.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/fusing-accessories-guide.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/fusing-accessories-guide.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/fusing-accessories-guide.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/documents/products/shielding-guide.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/documents/products/shielding-guide.pdf


Page 3/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

Back to Quick LinksACCESSORIES

OPTICS ROTATION ACCESSORIES/OPTIONS

Integral Louver (IL) and House-Side Shield (IH)
Accessory louver and shield available for improved backlight control without sacrificing 
street side performance. LSI’s Integral Louver (L) and Integral House-Side Shield (IH) 
options deliver backlight control that significantly reduces spill light behind the poles for 
applications with pole locations close to adjacent properties. The design maximizes forward 
reflected light while reducing glare, maintaining the optical distribution selected, and most 
importantly eliminating light trespass. Both options rotate with the optical distribution. 

7 Pin Photoelectric Control
7-pin ANSI C136.41-2013 control receptacle option available for twist 
lock photocontrols or wireless control modules. Control accessories 
sold separately. Dimming leads from the receptacle will be connected 
to the driver dimming leads (Consult factory for alternate wiring).

Luminaire Shown 
with CR7P

Luminaire Shown with Integral 
Louver (IL)

Luminaire Shown with 
IMSBT Option

IMSBT

MOUNTING ACCESSORIES SHIELDING, POLES & MISC. ACCESSORIES

Sid
e A

rm

Universal Mounting Bracket
Mounts to ≥ 3” square or round (tapered/straight) poles with (2) mounting hole spaces 
between 3.5” to 5”

Part Number: BKA UMB CLR

Sh
iel

din
g

Integral Louver  
Field Install Integral Louver provides maximum backlight control by shiedling each 
individual row of LEDS

Part Number: 686485 

Quick Mount Plate
True one person installation to existing/new contruction poles with hole spaces beteen 2.4 to 
4.6” 

Part Number: BKS PQM B3B5 XX CLR

Integral Half Louver
Field Install Integral Half Louver provides great  backlight control without impacting front 
side distribution.

Part Number: 743416

15° Tilt Quick Mount Plate
True one person installation to existing/new contruction poles with hole spaces beteen 2.4 to 
4.6”

Part Number: BKS PQ15 B3B5 XX CLR

External Shield
External shield blocks view of light source from anyside of luminaire, additional shielding 
configurations available

Part Number: 785970BLK (3”) / 785962BLK (6”)

Te
no

n /
 Sl

ipfi
tte

r

Adjustable Slipfitter 
Mounts onto a 2” (51mm) IP, 2.375” (60mm) O.D. tenon and provides 180° of tilt (max 45° above 
horizontal) 

Part Number: BKA ASF CLR
Po

les

Square Poles
14 - 39’ steel and aluminum poles in 4”, 5” and 6” sizes for retrofit and new construction

Part Number: 4SQ/5SQ/6SQ

Square Tenon Top 
Mounts onto a 2” (51mm) IP, 2.375” (60mm) O.D. tenon and allows for mounting up to 4 
luminaires 

Part Number: BKA XNM * 

Round Poles
10 - 30’ steel and aluminum poles in 4” and 5” sizes for retrofit and new construction

Part Number: 4RP/5RP

Square Internal Slipfitter
Mounts inside 4” or 5” square pole and allows for mounting up to 4 lumianires

Part Number: BKA X_ISF * CLR

Tapered Poles
20’ - 39’ steel and aluminum poles for retrofit and new construction 

Part Number: RTP

Wa
ll M

ou
nt

/ W
oo

d P
ole

Wall Mount Bracket  
Mounts onto vertical wall surface ( hardware/anchors not included)  

Part Number: BKS XBO WM CLR Mi
sc

.

Bird Spikes   
10’ Linear Bird Spike Kit, 4’ recommended per luminaire, includes silcone adhesive and 
application tool  

Part Number: 751632 

Wood Pole Bracket  
Mounts onto wooden poles (6” minimum OD, hardware/anchors not inlcuded)

Part Number: BKS XBO WP CLR

Replace CLR with paint finish description

Repleace XX with SQ for square pole or RD for round pole (≥3” OD)

Replace * with S (Single), D180 (Double @180°), D90 (Double @90°), T90 (Triple), Q90 (Quad)

Replace _ with 4 (4” square pole) or 5 (5” square pole)

Optics Rotated Left Straight Optics Rotated Right

Use Type
R

(Optics Rotated Right)

Pole

EXAMPLE Use Type
L

(Optics Rotated Left)

Top View

142



Page 4/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

PERFORMANCE Back to Quick Links

DELIVERED LUMENS*

Lumen 
Package

Distribution CRI
3000K CCT 4000K CCT 5000K CCT

Wattage
Delivered Lumens Efficacy BUG Rating Delivered Lumens Efficacy BUG Rating Delivered Lumens Efficacy BUG Rating

6L

2

70

6045 148 B2-U0-G1 6268 154 B2-U0-G1 6253 153 B2-U0-G1

41
3 6145 151 B1-U0-G2 6372 156 B1-U0-G2 6357 156 B1-U0-G2

5W 5812 142 B3-U0-G1 6,026 148 B3-U0-G1 6012 147 B3-U0-G1

FT 5947 146 B1-U0-G1 6166 151 B1-U0-G1 6152 151 B1-U0-G1

9L

2

70

9091 145 B2-U0-G2 9484 152 B2-U0-G2 9462 151 B2-U0-G2

63
3 9241 148 B2-U0-G2 9641 154 B2-U0-G2 9619 154 B2-U0-G2

5W 8740 140 B3-U0-G2 9,118 146 B3-U0-G2 9097 144 B3-U0-G2

FT 8943 143 B2-U0-G2 9330 149 B2-U0-G2 9308 149 B2-U0-G2

12L

2

70

12132 141 B3-U0-G2 12685 148 B3-U0-G2 12514 146 B3-U0-G2

86
3 12333 143 B2-U0-G2 12894 150 B2-U0-G2 12721 148 B2-U0-G2

5W 11664 136 B4-U0-G2 12195 142 B4-U0-G2 12031 140 B4-U0-G2

FT 11935 139 B2-U0-G2 12479 145 B2-U0-G2 12311 143 B2-U0-G2

15L

2

70

14220 128 B3-U0-G2 15167 137 B3-U0-G2 14488 131 B3-U0-G2

111
3 14938 135 B2-U0-G2 15933 144 B2-U0-G2 15219 137 B2-U0-G2

5W 14304 129 B4-U0-G2 15257 137 B4-U0-G2 14574 131 B4-U0-G2

FT 14342 129 B2-U0-G2 15297 138 B2-U0-G2 14612 132 B2-U0-G2

18L

2

70

16438 122 B3-U0-G3 17532 130 B3-U0-G3 16747 124 B3-U0-G3

135
3 17267 128 B3-U0-G3 18417 137 B3-U0-G3 17592 131 B3-U0-G3

5W 16535 123 B4-U0-G2 17636 133 B5-U0-G3 16846 125 B4-U0-G2

FT 16578 123 B3-U0-G3 17682 131 B3-U0-G3 16890 125 B3-U0-G3

21L

2

70

19488 118 B3-U0-G3 20786 126 B3-U0-G3 19885 120 B3-U0-G3

1653 20472 124 B3-U0-G3 21835 132 B3-U0-G3 20857 126 B3-U0-G3

5W 19604 119 B5-U0-G3 20,909 126 B5-U0-G3 19973 121 B5-U0-G3

FT 19655 119 B3-U0-G3 20964 127 B3-U0-G3 20025 121 B3-U0-G3

24L

2

70

21976 112 B3-U0-G3 23439 120 B3-U0-G3 22390 114 B3-U0-G3

196
3 23085 118 B3-U0-G3 24622 126 B3-U0-G3 23519 120 B3-U0-G3

5W 22105 113 B5-U0-G3 23578 120 B5-U0-G3 22522 115 B5-U0-G3

FT 22164 113 B3-U0-G3 23640 121 B3-U0-G3 22581 115 B3-U0-G3

*LEDs are frequently updated therefore values are nominal.

ELECTRICAL DATA (AMPS)*

Lumens 120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V

6L  0.34  0.20  0.17  0.15  0.12  0.09 

9L  0.52  0.30  0.26  0.23  0.18  0.13 

12L  0.72  0.41  0.36  0.31  0.25  0.18 

15L  0.93  0.53  0.46  0.40  0.32  0.23 

18L  1.12  0.65  0.56  0.49  0.39  0.28 

21L  1.38  0.80  0.69  0.60  0.48  0.34 

24L  1.63  0.94  0.82  0.71  0.56  0.41 

*Electrical data at 25°C (77°F). Actual wattage may differ by +/-10%

RECOMMENDED LUMEN MAINTENANCE1

Ambient Temp Lumen Multiplier

C 0 hrs.2 25K hrs.2 50K hrs.2 75K hrs.3 100K hrs.3

0 C - 25 C 100% 95% 89% 84% 79%

40 C 100% 94% 87% 80% 74%

FOOTNOTES:
1. Lumen maintenance values at 25°C are calculated per TM-21 based on LM-80 data and 

in-situ luminaire testing.
2. In accordance with IESNA TM-21-11, Projected Values represent interpolated value 

based on time durations that are within six times (6X)the IESNA LM-80-08 total test 
duration (in hours) for the device under testing ((DUT) i.e. the packaged LED chip).

3. In accordance with IESNA TM-21-11, Calculated Values represent time durations that 
exceed six times NA LM-80-08 total test duration (in hours) for the device under 
testing ((DUT) i.e. the packaged LED chip).

143



Page 5/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

PHOTOMETRICS Back to Quick Links

LUMINAIRE DATA

Type 2 Distribution

Description 4000 Kelvin, 70 CRI

Delivered Lumens 17,532

Watts 135

Efficacy 130

IES Type Type II - Short

BUG Rating B3-U0-G3

LUMINAIRE DATA

Type 3 Distribution

Description 4000 Kelvin, 70 CRI

Delivered Lumens 18,417

Watts 135

Efficacy 137

IES Type Type III - Short

BUG Rating B3-U0-G3

Zonal Lumen Summary

Zone Lumens %Luminaire

Low (0-30)° 2831 16%

Medium (30-60)° 10310 59%

High (60-80)° 4208 24%

Very High (80-90)° 184 1%

Uplight (90-180)° 0 0%

Total Flux 17532 100%

Zonal Lumen Summary

Zone Lumens %Luminaire

Low (0-30)° 2329 13%

Medium (30-60)° 10634 61%

High (60-80)° 5246 30%

Very High (80-90)° 208 1%

Uplight (90-180)° 0 0%

Total Flux 18417 100%

MRS-LED-18L-SIL-2-40-70CRI

MRS-LED-18L-SIL-3-40-70CRI

ISO FOOTCANDLE

ISO FOOTCANDLE

POLAR CURVE

POLAR CURVE

.5 1

2 5

2548

5097

7645

10193

1

2

20’ Mounting Height/20’ Grid Spacing
    5 FC           2 FC         1 FC         0.5 FC

.5 1 2 5

2556

5113

7669

10225

1

2

20’ Mounting Height/20’ Grid Spacing
    5 FC           2 FC         1 FC         0.5 FC

Luminaire photometry has been conducted by an accredited laboratory in accordance with IESNA LM-79. As specified by IESNA LM-79 the 
entire luminaire is tested as the source resulting in a luminaire efficiency of 100%.

144



Page 6/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

Back to Quick LinksPHOTOMETRICS (CONT)

LUMINAIRE DATA

Type FT Distribution

Description 4000 Kelvin, 70 CRI

Delivered Lumens 17,682

Watts 135

Efficacy 131

IES Type Type III - Short

BUG Rating B3-U0-G2

LUMINAIRE DATA

Type 5W Distribution

Description 4000 Kelvin, 70 CRI

Delivered Lumens 17,636

Watts 135

Efficacy 131

IES Type Type VS - Short

BUG Rating B4-U0-G2

Zonal Lumen Summary

Zone Lumens %Luminaire

Low (0-30)° 2255 13%

Medium (30-60)° 9463 54%

High (60-80)° 5696 32%

Very High (80-90)° 268 2%

Uplight (90-180)° 0 0%

Total Flux 17682 100%

Zonal Lumen Summary

Zone Lumens %Luminaire

Low (0-30)° 1646 9%

Medium (30-60)° 7453 43%

High (60-80)° 8405 48%

Very High (80-90)° 132 1%

Uplight (90-180)° 0 0%

Total Flux 17636 100%

MRS-LED-18L-SIL-FT-40-70CRI

MRM-LED-30L-SIL-5W-40-70CRI

ISO FOOTCANDLE

ISO FOOTCANDLE

POLAR CURVE

POLAR CURVE

.5

1

2

5
2755

5510

8265

11020

1

2

20’ Mounting Height/20’ Grid Spacing
    5 FC           2 FC         1 FC         0.5 FC

.5
1

2

2442

4883

7325

9766

1

2

20’ Mounting Height/20’ Grid Spacing
    5 FC           2 FC         1 FC         0.5 FC

145



Page 7/7 Rev. 10/11/22 
SPEC.1045.A.0620

Type:Mirada Small Area Light (MRS)

LSI Industries Inc. 10000 Alliance Rd. Cincinnati, OH 45242 • www.lsicorp.com
(513) 372-3200 • ©2022 LSI Industries Inc. All Rights Reserved. Specifi cations subject to change without notice.

Have questions? Call us at (800) 436-7800 

PRODUCT DIMENSIONS Back to Quick Links

CONTROLS

25" (634mm)

7" (180mm)

13" (330mm)

2.4"

0.6"

0.9"

AirLink Wireless Lighting Controller 
The AirLink integrated controller is a California Title 24 compliant lighting controller that provides real-time light monitoring 
and control with utility-grade power monitoring. It includes a 24V sensor input and power supply to connect a sensor into the 
outdoor AirLink wireless lighting system. The wireless integrated controller is compatible with this fixture.

Click here to learn more about AirLink.

Integral Bluetooth™ Motion and Photocell Sensor (IMSBT)
Slim low profile sensor provides multi-level control based on motion and/or daylight. Sensor controls 0-10 VDC LED drivers and 
is rated for cold and wet locations (-30° C to 70° C). Two unique PIR lenses are available and used based on fixture mounting 
height. All control parameters are adjustable via an iOS or Android App capable of storing and transmitting sensor profiles.

Click here to learn more about IMSBT.

AirLink Blue
Wireless Bluetooth Mesh Outdoor Lighting Control System  that provides energy savings, code compliance and enhanced
safety/security for parking lots and parking garages. Three key components; Bluetooth wireless radio/sensor controller,
Time Keeper and an iOS App. Capable of grouping multiple fixtures and sensors as well as scheduling time-based events by 
zone. Radio/Sensor Controller is factory integrated into Area/Site, Wall Mounted, Parking Garage and Canopy luminaires.

Click here to learn more about AirLink Blue.

B3 Drill Pattern

LUMINAIRE EPA CHART - MRS

Single

D180°

D90°

0.5

0.9

0.9

1.3

1.3

1.8

1.8

1.8

2.2

1.4

1.4

1.4

2.3

1.9

2.3

2.6

2.3

2.6

T90°

TN120°

Q90°

0º 30º 45ºTilt Degree 0º 30º 45ºTilt Degree

146

https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/documents/products/airlink-outdoor-specsheet.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/wp-content/uploads/documents/products/imsbt-specsheet.pdf
https://www.lsicorp.com/products/controls/control-systems/airlink-blue/


Applicant:

Location:

Property ID:

Current Zoning:

Proposed Zoning:

Current Land Use:

Proposed Land Use:

 

 Public Hearing Required

Legal Notice:

Case Number:

Project Name:

Project Summary:

Staff Contact:

AT A GLANCE

23-24

Popeye’s Final Plat

The applicant proposes a dedication of additional 
right-of-way for public improvements on Johnson 
Drive.

CSM Groups, DBA Popeye’s Louisiana 
Kitchen

6821 Johnson Drive

KF251208-2052

C-2B

N/A

Drive-Through Restaurant/Vacant

N/A

N/A

N/A

November 27, 2023 
Planning Commission

Staff Report

Karie Kneller, Planner

147



The applicant, CSM Groups, dba Popeye’s Louisiana Kitchen, has submitted an application for a final 
plat for the property located at 6821 Johnson Drive, on the southeast corner of Johnson Drive and 
Broadmoor Street. The preliminary plat was approved by the Planning Commission at its August 28, 
2023 meeting and public hearing. 

The applicant proposes a replat of the former Popeye’s drive-through restaurant site, with certain site 
improvements in the public right-of-way to meet the intent of the municipal code and Form Based Code 
overlay. Improvements include a widened pedestrian path, or pedestrian “plaza,” and eliminating existing 
curb-cut on Johnson Drive. Park benches, pedestrian-scaled streetlights, and bike racks improve the 
pedestrian realm, and additional landscaping in the pedestrian right-of-way improves the walkability 
along Johnson Drive and Broadmoor Street. 

Mission Comprehensive Plan

The   property lies within the FBC overlay district. The FBC takes precedence for development and 
performance standards over the municipal code for setback, height, architectural features, and priority 
of the pedestrian realm. The front and side street setbacks require a 0-to-10-foot setback, and the rear 
and side yard setbacks require a minimum of zero feet. 

Analysis: The setbacks conform with the regulations set forth in the FBC. The right-of-way 
provided by the setback includes space for features that improve the pedestrian experience and 
attempt to meet the intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Johnson Drive Design Guidelines

According to the requirements of the Johnson Drive Design Guidelines, sidewalks on Johnson Drive 
shall be a minimum of eight feet wide. Sidewalks on secondary streets such as Broadmoor shall be 
a minimum of five feet wide. Elements that enhance the pedestrian realm, including park benches, 
pedestrian-scaled streetlights, bike racks, and landscaping are required.

Analysis: The proposal provides an extended pedestrian “plaza” along Johnson Drive that will 
include outdoor seating, landscaping, street lighting, and bicycle amenities as part of the final 
development plan.

Municipal Code

Section 440.240 stipulates that following approval of the preliminary plat by the Planning Commission, 

Popeye’s Final Plat

Property Background and Information

Plan Review and Analysis

Project Proposal

148



a final plat shall be considered by the Planning Commission and, upon approval, by the Governing 
Body for final approval. Section 440.260 stipulates that final plats shall be approved by the Planning 
Commission if it determines that:

1. The final plat substantially conforms to the approved preliminary plat

2. The plat conforms to all applicable requirements of the municipal code.

3. All submission requirements have been satisfied.

4. Approval of the final plat is affirmed by the majority of the Planning Commission.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission vote to recommend approval of Case #23-24 Popeye’s 
Final Plat.

The Planning Commission will consider Case #23-24 Popeye’s Final Plat at its November 27, 2023 
meeting. 

City Council will consider Case #23-24 at its December 20, 2023 meeting.

Popeye’s Final Plat

Recommendation

Planning Commision Action

City Council Action

149



11/14/2023

150


	Case 22-22 Billboard SUP Staff Report
	Mission-Land-Use-Application_updated signed 9.20.23
	2023-9-21_23-187 PDP SUP REV 0
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0 VICINITY PLAN
	C2.0 SITE PLAN
	1 DIGITAL BILLBOARD DESIGN DETAILS


	23-187 SWMR 10.23.2023
	23-187- DRAINAGE LETTER
	23-187 HYDRO MAP
	23-187 SWMR
	23-187 SWMR
	23-187 - NO RISE
	page 5




	dot_49029_DS1
	Statute _ Kansas State Legislature
	Advertising Signs in Kansas Brochure 04 19
	Case 22-24 Popeye's FDP Staff Report
	Application
	2023-11-14 Popeyey's FDP
	2023-09-21 FDP Plans
	5961_A01-EqptPlan
	5961_A050 Ext Elev
	5961_A051 Ext Elev
	5961_A062 Wall Section
	A06.2 WALL SECTION

	5961_Elevations_Color
	5961_2124_A050-ExtrElev_Rndrd-REV
	5961_2124_A051-ExtrElev_Rndrd-REV

	Popeyes_DT-Order-Canopy
	5961_MaterialsFinishes
	5961-Popeyes Mission 3D Rendering


	2023-10-30 Stormwater Memo
	Ext Light Spec
	Sheets and Views
	ANSI A Title Block (portrait)


	MRS-Spec-Sheet
	Case 22-24 Popeye's Final Plat Staff Report
	PLAT 1

	Text Field 14: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 15: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 16: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 17: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 13: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 6: 

	Text Field 12: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 7: 



